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IMPORTANT NOTICE

The Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Bank
hereby warrant the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the contents of this annual report and that there
are no false representations, misleading statements or material omissions, and jointly and severally assume
liability for the information hereof.

The full text and the summary of the 2020 annual report (the “Report”) were reviewed and approved at the
Bank’s twelfth meeting of the sixth session of the Board of Directors on 30 March 2021. 12 Directors were eligible
to attend the meeting and 12 of them attended in person, with several Supervisors of the Bank in attendance.

Unless otherwise specified, the financial information set out in this Report represents data from the consolidated
financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries, namely Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Co., Ltd., Fugou
Zhengyin County Bank Co., Ltd., Xinmi Zhengyin County Bank Co., Ltd., Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank Co.,
Ltd. and Queshan Zhengyin County Bank Co., Ltd.

The Bank prepared the 2020 annual financial report in accordance with the China Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises and International Financial Reporting Standards, which was audited by KPMG Huazhen LLP
and KPMG under the PRC and Hong Kong standards on auditing, respectively. The two firms issued an audit
report and an independent auditor’s report respectively, which were both standard and unqualified.

Mr. WANG Tianyu, the legal representative and chairman, Mr. SHEN Xueqing, the president, Mr. FU Chungiao,
the person-in-charge of accounting, and Ms. GAO Chenxin, the head of accounting department of the Bank,
hereby declare and warrant the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the financial statements in this
Report.

The Board of the Bank recommended that one new Share for every 10 Shares shall be issued to the Ordinary
Shareholders whose names appeared on the register of Shareholders as at the dividend distribution registration
date by way of capitalization issue, and no cash dividend or bonus share shall be distributed or issued. The profit
distribution plan will be proposed at the general meeting of the Bank for approval.

Forward-looking statements such as future plans mentioned in this Report do not constitute actual commitments
of the Bank to investors. Investors and parties concerned should be fully aware of the risks, and understand the
differences among plans, estimates and commitments.

During the Reporting Period, the Bank was not aware of any material risk that would adversely affect its future
development strategies and business targets. The major risks to which the Bank was exposed in its operations
and management and the corresponding measures adopted by the Bank are detailed in this Report. For further
information, please refer to the relevant information in the sections headed “Risk Management” and “Outlook” in
the chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this Report.
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DEFINITIONS

DEFINITIONS

In this Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth

below:
“2019 AGM”

“Articles of Association”

“A Share(s)”

“Bank”, “Bank of Zhengzhou”, or “We”

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
“Board of Supervisors”

“Capitalization Issue”

“CBIRC”
“CBIRC Henan Office”
“Company Law”

“Corporate Governance Code”

“CSRC”

“Director(s)”

“Former CBRC”

“Former CBRC Henan Office”

“Fugou Zhengyin County Bank”

“Group”
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the annual general meeting of the Bank convened on 20 May 2020

the articles of association of the Bank, as amended from time to
time

ordinary shares with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each in the share
capital of the Bank, which are listed and traded on the Small and
Medium Enterprise (SME) Board of the SZSE (stock code: 002936)
Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.* (BMNIETTARMABRAF]), a joint
stock company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability on
16 November 1996 in accordance with the PRC laws, and, if the
context requires, includes its predecessors, subsidiaries, branches
and sub-branches

the board of Directors of the Bank

the board of Supervisors of the Bank

the issue of one new Share for every 10 Shares held by way of
capitalization of capital reserve in 2020 as part of the dividend
distribution plan of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2019
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission

China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission Henan Office

Company Law of the People’s Republic of China

Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Stock
Exchange Listing Rules

China Securities Regulatory Commission

the director(s) of the Bank

the former China Banking Regulatory Commission

the former China Banking Regulatory Commission Henan Office

Fugou Zhengyin County Bank Co., Ltd.* ((k/E BRI SEERITIS B IR
~Al)

the Bank and its subsidiaries



“Hong Kong”
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”
“HK$”

“H Share(s)”

“Jiuding Financial Leasing Company”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Law on Commercial Banks”
“Macao”
“MOF”

“Offshore Preference Shares”

“PBoC”

“PRC” or “China”

“Queshan Zhengyin County Bank”

“Reporting Period”
“RMB” or “Renminbi”
“Securities Law”

“SFO”

“Share(s)” or “Ordinary Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)” or
“Ordinary Shareholder(s)”

DEFINITIONS

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
overseas-listed shares in the share capital of the Bank, with a
nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are listed and traded on the

Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 6196)

Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (A NS & RHEERNE
R A

30 March 2021, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing
of this Report for the purpose of ascertaining certain information
contained hereof

Law on Commercial Banks of the People’s Republic of China

the Macao Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China
59,550,000 shares of non-cumulative perpetual offshore preference
shares with a nominal value of RMB100 each issued by the Bank
and listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 4613)

the People’s Bank of China

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this Report
only, excluding Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan regions

Queshan Zhengyin County Bank Co., Ltd.* (F&1L ZF iR AT $EER 1 TR% (D
R AR])

the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended from time to time

the A Shares and the H Shares

holder(s) of the Ordinary Share(s)
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DEFINITIONS

“Stock Exchange Listing Rules”

“Supervisor(s)”
“SZSE”

“SZSE Listing Rules”

“Xinmi Zhengyin County Bank”
“Xinzheng Zhengyin County Bank”
“Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank”
“Yanling Zhengyin County Bank”

“Zhongmu Zhengyin County Bank”

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

the supervisor(s) of the Bank
Shenzhen Stock Exchange

Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange

Xinmi Zhengyin County Bank Co., Ltd.* (¥ZEF R $EIR1TRAYID B IR
NE])

Xinzheng Zhengyin County Bank Co., Ltd.* (37 &L B4R & S SR 1T A% 1D
R A))

Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank Co., Ltd.* (B BRI SERITRMGH
FRAA])

Yanling Zhengyin County Bank Co., Ltd.* (BSREE[RITSEIRTTAR (DB
RAR])

Zhongmu Zhengyin County Bank Co., Ltd.* (Ff £ ZF R AR TTAS D
BRAF])

* The Bank is not an authorized institution within the meaning of the Banking Ordinance (Chapter 155 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), and not subject to the supervision of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, nor being authorized to carry out
banking and/or deposit-taking business in Hong Kong.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

We keep progressing with our dream as time goes by. Based on our clear positioning and self-recognition,
we have opened up a route suitable for our own development. In 2020, we continued to move forward with
high-quality development while adhering to our original intention, maintaining our confidence and demonstrating
our determination.

WITH PERSISTENT EFFORTS, WE EXPERIENCED ANOTHER BLOOMING YEAR
DESPITE UPS AND DOWNS

In 2020, we remained highly motivated and made concerted effort to jump through the hurdles and managed to
deliver a sound “report card” to our Shareholders. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s total assets
were RMB547,813 million, representing an increase of 9.46% from the end of the previous year; the gross loans
and advances to customers were RMB237,959 million, representing an increase of 21.46% from the end of the
previous year; and the total deposits from customers were RMB314,230 million, representing an increase of
8.65% from the end of the previous year. During the Reporting Period, the Bank recorded an operating income
of RMB14,580 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.48%; and profit before provision of RMB11,197
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 14.22%.

The Bank is like a big ship ready to sail. The unreserved trust of our Shareholders lays the anchor for us to do
our best. The entrustment of customers serves as the beacon for our voyage, and the swift and concrete efforts
of all employees creates the paddles for us to sail through the tide.

As the waves surge, we have become more active in promoting high-quality development. The past year
was the “closing year” of the Bank’s Five-year Strategic Plan (2016-2020). After refinement, we achieved a “clay
to porcelain” transformation. We completed the issuance of 1 billion A Shares by way of non-public issuance
and replenished the core tier 1 capital of the Bank with the RMB4.6 billion proceeds thereunder; made full use
of the qualifications as a tier-1 trader and market maker in the open market to, for the first time, underwrite
and distribute more than RMB100 billion of securities, with the total amount of bonds and capital transactions
exceeding RMB10 trillion; solidly promoted “Ten Practical Things” and completed the integration of core systems
of the seven rural banks controlled or invested in by the Bank ahead of schedule, made great process in the
establishment of risk management lines, exceeded the targets for the capital-light matchmaking business of the
financial market business line, and developed more mature public-private application scenarios and product
solutions; accelerated the deep integration of technological innovation with business development, set up
corporate, retail, and risk technology support centres, launched the Jiujiu (A ) version of mobile banking,
and established 55 innovative projects, 33 of which have been put into operation; elaborated a new strategic
development plan and execution sub-plans covering 14 segments and 35 branches and sub-branches, and
established a regular review mechanism to promote the implementation of the plans.

Keeping in mind our duty to safeguard our homeland, we serve the real economy more wholeheartedly.
As a local small and medium-sized bank, Bank of Zhengzhou is rooted in the vast Henan Province and tirelessly
promotes the positive interplay of finance in regional development and real economy. With a great effort to support
the construction of key areas and weak spots in the domestic economy, we have developed plans to support
the high-quality development of the manufacturing industry with a focus on the transformation and upgrade of
the manufacturing industry in Henan Province, and vigorously promoted the development of strategic emerging
industries, and the prosperity of the cultural & creative, technology and tourism industries. The Bank enhanced its
cooperation with the government and focused on advancing municipal infrastructure projects, affordable housing
projects and public service projects that are in line with national policies; formulated an action plan to support
the development of private enterprises, introduced 25 measures, and issued a white list of 340 “non-real estate,
non-platform” customers. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the balance of loans to private enterprises was
RMB89,129 million, representing an increase of RMB8,377 million from the end of the previous year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

We achieved distinction by innovating products and services in a more targeted manner. Consumption
is an “accelerator” of economic growth. In an all-out effort to promote the transformation of retail banking and
gradually reduce the cost of debt, we tapped into our customer base through payroll agent services, trade union
membership cards and other services, built a privileged head office-grade private banking platform, launched
the “Wealth Manager” platform, introduced co-branded credit cards such as Oscar Cinema Card, and built a
four-in-one channel ecosystem, thereby expanding the fan base and friends of the Bank. SMEs are our closest
growth partners. In a consistent effort to grow together with SMEs, we followed the policies to support small
and micro enterprises by extending credit loans to them and deferring repayment of principal and interest
due, promoted the innovation and upgrading of products such as Housing E-financing and E-purchase Loans,
launched a new retail credit system with financial technologies as the driving force, and initiated the “1,000-Sail
Program” to support 1,000 high-tech SMEs in the next three years. Zhengzhou is located on the edge of the
Yellow River and in the Central Plains. In an effort to build a model commerce and logistics bank, we held onto
Zhengzhou’s geographic advantage in transportation and logistics, repositioned the Bank as a transaction
bank, organized five bank-enterprise meetings and product promotion meetings, released version 2.0 of “Cloud
Logistics”, developed a new service model based on an online freight platform, and held the 4th Summit of China
Commerce and Logistics Bank Alliance.

We adopted a more prudent approach to risk management to reinforce the bottom line. In the past five
years, the Bank achieved speedy development. We completed the listing of our H Shares in 2015 and the listing
of our A Shares in 2018. Our fast development has come with some problems. We have learned from mistakes,
faced our problems, expanded our thinking and changed our methods in time. In particular, we set up a
large-value asset management centre, disposed risk assets according to their grade and type, strictly carried out
concentration limit management, and increased the efforts to dispose risk assets through a variety of approaches
including collection, restructuring, write-off, and batch transfer. Dedicated to reducing chaotic situations, we
conducted due diligence, highlighted negative examples, held accountable the personnel responsible for four
batches of non-performing loans, held a Bank-wide compliance conference, issued “13 red lines” for employee
behaviors, issued opinions on joint prevention and control of complaints, cases and negative public opinions,
carried out screening of potential risks and party committee inspection on 15 branches, and completed 14
special audits and 10 routine audits as part of our “Mine-sweeping Operation”.

We made concerted efforts to fulfill our responsibilities in a more sincere manner. The COVID-19
pandemic hit the world in early 2020 and is still spreading across the globe. In the fight against COVID-19, China
has demonstrated extraordinary institutional, political, and organizational advantages. We quickly launched the
response mechanism for epidemic prevention and control, carried out staff screening for COVID-19, distributed
anti-epidemic supplies, introduced measures to help residents and enterprises, organized donation of money and
materials, initiated voluntary activities such as voluntary blood donation, and established a variety of donation
channels to support the COVID-19 relief efforts for the “heroes in harm’s way”. We opened a financial green
channel and issued guidance to support enterprises’ resumption of work and production, investigated the impact
of COVID-19 on enterprises’ production and operations to assist them based on their targeted needs, took the
initiative to lower interest rate on loans, issued special refinancing loans to enterprises in need and deferred
the repayment of principal and interest due, in an effort to help enterprises tide over difficulties. In total, the
Bank issued RMB5.6 billion worth of “work resumption loans” at a low interest rate to 3,325 small and micro
enterprises.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

CHANGE IS A CONSTANT AND WE LOOK TO THE STARS AND THE SEA

"Spring urges numerous trees to sprout, and the sun presents a fresh world”. The Bank had many moments
of “spotting glimpses of hope when suspecting there is no way forward in the midst of endless obstacles”. At
the beginning of the third decade of the 21st century, we deconstructed and reconstructed our positioning,
firmly embarked on the promising path of high-quality development, rolled out new strategic plans, and set
the strategic vision of building a “leading bank with high-quality development”, with a view to create value for
customers, Shareholders and our brand.

We break away from the past and commit to tackling long-lived problems. Our top priority is to remove
the historical burden and set off lightly. In the past, we pursued rapid development, which enabled us to seize
first-mover opportunities but brought to us a lot of potential risks. In the next stage, we must recognize the
reality and observe the facts, effectively resolve the problem of non-performing assets and clear out the historical
burden that restricts our future development. Although it is bound to be painful to cure the poison by scraping
bones. we believe in the saying “the goal will be reached however far away, and things will be done however
hard”.

We seek transformation for lightening the burden to start afresh. Our weapon for success is to abandon
the obsession with scale, accelerate capital-light transformation and fully refine in an all-round way. We have
to shift from “heavy” to “light” in terms of thinking and action. To this end, we emphasize organic development,
optimize the structure of assets and liabilities, increase the proportion of intermediary business income, try to
achieve more things with the same or even less capital, shape the structure of our balance sheet healthier, and
drive sustainable development with endogenous profits.

We are bold to innovate for healthy growth. The waves of the times will lead us to new opportunities and
challenges. It is an indisputable reality that many young customers do not go to banks. The transformation to
“light” also requires us to bravely embrace digital transformation and the revolution of financial technology. In
an effort to create core competitiveness through special and differentiated services, we strive to develop and
become “a commerce and logistics bank, a financing expert for SMEs, and a boutique bank for residents”. To
this end, we must integrate technology into business, break business boundaries, foster strengths and make up
for weaknesses, and create new drivers of development.

We are delighted to nurture resilient personnel with corporate culture. We need to have our corporate
culture permeate every corner and crevice where it is hard to reach and drives our employees’ immediate
response to difficulties as if our corporate culture is embedded in their reflexes and muscle memories. We firmly
adhere to high-quality development, build a cultural atmosphere featuring “compliance, coordination, innovation,
enterprising and inclusivity”, encourage innovation and hard work, and have established a fault-tolerant
mechanism. We look forward to the tranquil beauty of “lotuses swaying in the breeze above the clear water”.

Ambition will be accomplished however far away. We believe that brilliant accomplishment is not something
we wait for, but something we work hard to acquire. Success will only favor those who forge ahead with
determination, and will not wait for those who are hesitant and afraid of difficulties. In the new year, we will follow
the general trends, respect laws so as and discipline, and promote the spirit of “serving the people, seeking
innovative development and working hard” so as to write a new chapter.

Chairman
WANG Tianyu
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PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT

2020 is an extraordinary year. Faced with complex development environment, the Bank, under the correct
leadership of the Board, overcame difficulties and properly addressed various risks and challenges to maintain a
sound development momentum, thus continuously moving towards high-quality development.

In 2020, our key indicators improved steadily and achieved continuous high-quality development. As at
the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank had total assets of RMB547,813 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 9.46%; the gross loans and advances to customers of RMB237,959 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 21.46%; and total deposits from customers of RMB314,230 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 8.65%. The Bank’s operating income for the year was RMB14,580 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 8.48%; net interest margin was 2.40%, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.24
percentage point; cost-to-income ratio was 22.53%, representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.09 percentage
points; and net profit amounted to RMB3,321 million.

In 2020, we developed a new strategic plan as a blueprint for future development. We completed the
development of a new five-year strategic plan and execution sub-plans for 2021-2025. The new plan, with the
strategic vision of building a “leading bank with high-quality development”, is to drive the development of four
segments - retail, corporate, government and gold market business with technological innovations, and promote
the construction of “1+6” capabilities regarding risk management, organizational and personnel, collaboration,
corporate culture, resource allocation, and technology capabilities. It serves as the Bank’s action roadmap for
high-quality development.

In 2020, our effort in credit risk management achieved great results, leading to healthier asset quality.
We improved our unified post-loan management and unified file management, and strengthened the closed-ring
risk management from “access” to “disposal”; strictly implemented the concentration limit management, and
reduced our business volume with anonymous customers, real estate loans and businesses out of Henan
Province; and set up a large-value asset management centre to dispose of risk assets according to their levels
and types. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s overdue loans ratio was 3.04%, representing a
decrease of 0.60 percentage point from the end of the previous year; non-performing loan ratio was 2.08%,
falling for three consecutive years.

In 2020, we lived up to our responsibility for epidemic prevention and control and our measures for
“Six Stabilities and Six Guarantees” achieved good results. We implemented stringent measures for
epidemic prevention and control, actively donated cash and goods, and organized and participated in related
voluntary activities such as free online consultation, online fundraising, caring for anti-COVID-19 medical staff in
Hubei, and deployment of party members serving as community guards. We introduced special products such as
“work resumption loans” and technology loans, cooperated with others to provide emergence loan services, and
implemented COVID-related re-financing policies, including making targeted reduction of reserve requirements
for small refinancing loans and granting inclusive credit loans. In addition, we reduced fees and charges and
deferred repayment of principal and interest, thus giving financial support to the real economy. As a result, the
Bank received the “Best Small and Medium-sized Bank of the Year in Six Stabilities and Six Guarantees” award
from the Financial Times.
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PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT

In 2020, we focused on developing distinctive services and improved the quality and efficiency of our
business development. We held the 4th Summit of China Commerce and Logistics Bank Alliance with number
of members increased to 55, launched version 2.0 of “Cloud Logistics” to develop a new service mode based on
an online freight platform, learned from the experience of advanced peers to create a new financial technology
model of the Bank, and successfully completed the objective of “Two Increases and Two Controls”. In addition,
we launched the “Bank of Zhengzhou Wealth Manager” platform, introduced the virtual credit cards, namely Le
Card (44-R) and Oscar Cinema Card (8§ F), and built a four-in-one channel ecosystem covering micro banking,
WeChat official account, applet, and corporate WeChat. During the year, we underwrote and distributed more
than RMB100 billion of securities for the first time, and the total amount of our bonds and capital transactions
exceeded RMB10 trillion.

In the list of 2020 Top 40 Value-Creating Banks in China released by McKinsey & Company, the Bank ranked
16th and 21st among Chinese banks in terms of risk-adjusted return on capital (RAROC) and economic profit,
up by 19 and 10 places from the previous year, respectively. Moreover, the Bank ranked 219th (and 2nd among
Henan-based enterprises) in the 2020 list of “Top 500 Chinese Service Enterprises”.

2021 is the 100th anniversary of the founding of the Communist Party of China and the first year of the Bank’s
new five-year strategic plan. Opportunities and risks will coexist, while difficulties and challenges remain. We
will closely follow the spirit of the central, provincial and municipal economic work conferences and the national
banking and insurance regulatory work conference, adhere to the guidance for party building, and focus on
the implementation of the new strategic plan to begin a new chapter of high-quality development, so as to
continuously create greater value for Shareholders and all sectors of society.

President
SHEN Xueqing
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BASIC INFORMATION

Legal name in Chinese:
Legal name in English:

Legal representative:
Authorized representatives:
Board secretary and contact details:

Joint company secretaries:
Securities affairs representative and contact
details:

Places of listing, stock short names and
codes:

Unified Social Credit Code:
Financial licence number:
Registered address and office address:

Postal codes of the registered address and
office address:
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BB SR1TRZ D BBR A A (Abbreviation: ZBNER1T)

Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.
(Abbreviation: ZHENGZHOU BANK)

Mr. WANG Tianyu

Mr. WANG Tianyu, Mr. FU Chungiao

Mr. FU Chungiao

Contact address: 22 Shangwu Waihuan Road,
Zhengdong New District, Zhengzhou, Henan
Province, China

Tel: +86-371-6700 9056

Fax: +86-371-6700 9898

E-mail: ir@zzbank.cn

Mr. FU Chungiao, Ms. LEUNG Wing Han Sharon

Mr. WANG Yongfeng

Contact address: 22 Shangwu Waihuan Road,
Zhengdong New District, Zhengzhou, Henan
Province, China

Tel: +86-371-6700 9056

Fax: +86-371-6700 9898

E-mail: ir@zzbank.cn

A Shares: SZSE BANK OF ZHENGZHOU 002936

H Shares: Hong Kong Stock Exchange

BANK OF ZHENGZHOU 6196

Offshore Preference Shares: Hong Kong Stock
Exchange ZZBNK 17USDPREF 4613

914100001699995779

B1036H241010001

22 Shangwu Waihuan Road, Zhengdong New District,

Zhengzhou, Henan Province, China
450018
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Principal place of business in Hong Kong:

Contact address:

Tel:

Fax:

E-mail:

Website:

Newspapers for information disclosure:

Websites for information disclosure:

Place where the annual report can be
obtained:

Domestic auditor:

Address of domestic auditor:

Undersigned accountants:
International auditor:

Address of international auditor:

Sponsor for continuous supervision:

Address of sponsor for continuous
supervision:

Sponsor representatives™ee;

Continuous supervision period™:

PRC legal advisor:

Hong Kong legal advisor:

Registrar for A Shares:

Registrar for H Shares:

CORPORATE INFORMATION

40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

22 Shangwu Waihuan Road, Zhengdong New District,
Zhengzhou, Henan Province, China

+86-371-6700 9199

+86-371-6700 9898

ir@zzbank.cn

www.zzbank.cn

Securities Times, China Securities Journal, Shanghai
Securities News, Securities Daily

Website for publishing the annual report of A Shares:
www.cninfo.com.cn

Website for publishing the annual report of H Shares:
www.hkexnews.hk

The General Office of the Board and principal place of
business of the Bank

KPMG Huazhen LLP

8th Floor, KPMG Tower, Oriental Plaza, 1 East Chang
An Avenue, Beijing, China

Mr. GONG Kai, Mr. LI Jie

KPMG (Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Council
Ordinance)

8th Floor, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road, Central,
Hong Kong

China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd.

38-45F, Block A, Jiangsu Building, Yitian Road, Futian
District, Shenzhen, China

Ms. MA Jianhong and Ms. LV Yingxia

From 19 September 2018 to 31 December 2021

King & Wood Mallesons (Beijing)

King & Wood Mallesons

China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Limited, Shenzhen Branch

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Note: In November 2020, the Bank completed the non-public issuance of A Shares. China Merchants Securities
Co., Ltd., the sponsor for continuous supervision, appointed sponsor representative Ms. MA Jianhong in
replacement of sponsor representative Ms. WU Yuhui to continue to perform the continuous supervision
work in relation to the Bank’s initial public offering and listing of Shares. After the replacement of the sponsor
representative, the sponsor representatives for continuous supervision are Ms. MA Jianhong and Ms. LV
Yingxia, and the continuous supervision period will end on 31 December 2021.
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COMPANY PROFILE

Bank of Zhengzhou is a regional joint stock commercial bank. The Bank was listed on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in December 2015 and in SZSE in September 2018, respectively,
becoming the first domestic city commercial bank with both its A Shares and H Shares listed.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank had 4,984 employees and 173 institutional operation
sites in the province, including one operation division of the headquarters, 14 provincial branches and one
financial service centre for small enterprises. The Bank established Jiuding Financial Leasing Company
and managed a total of seven county banks at Zhongmu, Xinmi, Yanling, Fugou, Xinzheng, Xunxian and
Queshan, with its comprehensive business operation developing steadily. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, total assets increased by RMB47,335 million or 9.46% to RMB547,813 million from the beginning
of the year; total deposits from customers increased by RMB25,014 million or 8.65% to RMB314,230
million from the beginning of the year; gross loans and advances to customers increased by RMB42,048
million or 21.46% to RMB237,959 million from the beginning of the year; net profit was RMB3,321 million.
The capital adequacy ratio was 12.86%, the NPL ratio was 2.08% and the allowance to NPL ratio was
160.44%. All major indicators complied with regulatory requirements.

The Bank’s principal business activities mainly include corporate banking, retail banking and treasury
business. The Bank provides corporate banking customers with a wide range of financial products
and services, including corporate loans (including trade financing), international business and services,
corporate deposits, as well as products and services involving transaction fees and commissions. The
Bank provides retail banking customers with a wide variety of products and services, including loans,
deposits, bank cards, as well as products and services involving transaction fees and commissions. The
Bank’s treasury business meets its liquidity needs while seeking maximum returns from non-loan business
funds. The Bank’s treasury business mainly includes money market transactions, investment in securities
and other financial assets, bond underwriting and distribution, inter-bank discounts and rediscounts of
bills and treasury business conducted on behalf of customers.

Bank of Zhengzhou has always adhered to the goal of characteristic and differentiated development,
focusing on three distinctive business positioning features of “commerce and logistics bank, financial
service expert for SMEs, and boutique bank for residents”, firmly promoting the transformation of
corporate business and retail business and starting to bear fruit. The Bank’s operation management
capability continues to improve, receiving wide recognition from various sectors of the community. In the
2020 Top 40 Value-Creating Banks in China issued by McKinsey & Company, the risk-adjusted return on
capital (RAROC) and economic profit of the Bank ranked 16th and 21st among the national banks, 19
and 10 places higher than last year, respectively. The Bank ranked 219th in the list of Top 500 Chinese
Service Enterprises in 2020, ranking the 2nd among the shortlisted enterprises in Henan. The Bank was
also accredited as Excellent Underwriter and Excellent Market Maker in the Financial Bond Interbank
Market by the China Development Bank.
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ANALYSIS OF CORE COMPETITIVENESS

Leveraging regional advantages to build a “commerce and logistics bank”. The Bank leverages
Zhengzhou’s geographical advantages as an important national transportation hub, a national central
city, a core city in the Central Plains Economic Zone and an important node city in the Belt and Road
Initiative to build a financial, transactional and service-oriented commerce and logistics banking platform
that provides comprehensive and multi-level financial services for all sectors of trade and logistics. As at
the Latest Practicable Date, the Bank’s “Five Clouds” platforms, i.e. cloud trading, cloud financing, cloud
logistics, cloud business and cloud service, have all been put into operation. The China Commerce and
Logistics Bank Alliance (the first of its kind) initiated by the Bank has held four summits and recruited
55 members covering logistics, consumer, fintech and financial sectors, and has set up the logistics
committee, the fintech committee and the supply chain finance committee, thus building a trade and
finance ecosystem and brazing a distinctive development path in the field of commerce and logistics.

Practicing social responsibility and becoming an “SME financial service expert”. The Bank closely follows
the policies and initiatives of the central, provincial (Henan), and municipal (Zhengzhou) governments
and keeps in mind its original intention and mission to support the development of the real economy by
providing efficient, convenient and low-cost financing services for high-quality SMEs. To this end, the Bank
has built up a microfinance institutional structure with dedicated microfinance branches and sub-branches
to lead the implementation of pilot projects for inclusive finance reform; developed innovative “online and
offline” credit products and introduced the microfinance service brand “Simple Style”; and formulated
the Action Plan to Support the Development of Private Economy to assist the development of small and
medium-sized private enterprises with concrete actions. As a result of such efforts, the Bank has gradually
become a role model in providing financial services for SMEs in Henan Province.

Developing inclusive finance to build a “boutique bank for residents”. As a local financial institution in
Zhengzhou, the Bank adheres to the principle of “honoring the responsibility to defend the hometown” and
focuses on citizens’ basic necessities of life to pursue the digital transformation featuring “scenario-based
products and accelerated online and intelligent services”, so as to integrate smart financial services into
citizens’ daily life. The Bank constantly improves the multi-level customer service system, develops wealth
management products that are more suitable for the needs of local customers, and provides wealth
management services in terms of services, products and channels; endeavors to introduce advanced
technology to enable a wonderful and intelligent life and run a “boutique bank for residents” well trusted
by the public; and extends financial services to rural villages and towns by building rural service outlets
and expanding online service channels. By doing so, the Bank builds a comprehensive, multi-level,
multi-dimensional service network to solve the “last mile” problem of financial services.

Managing compliance risks carefully to ensure sound operations. The Bank has set the bottom line
of “compliance-based development”, created a good atmosphere for “compliance-based operations
and sound development”, and continuously improved compliance management and internal control. In
particular, the Bank regularly reviews relevant measures and compliance issues, and inspects all aspects
of operational and managerial activities from the beginning to end, thus consolidating the foundation
for compliance and internal control; promotes swindle prevention and control and employee behavior
management, and implements swindle prevention responsibilities at all levels to develop an inclination for
proactive compliance; strengthens employees’ compliance awareness and compliance skills education to
build the cornerstone of compliance-based development and promote the healthy development of various
business lines; adheres to the goal of “zero risk event”, continuously strengthens the construction of
the three lines of defense, increases accountability for violations, and eliminates hidden risks in a timely
manner.
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Developing innovative thinking to accelerate innovation output. The Bank re-examines and considers
innovation work, establishes crisis awareness, and actively creates an institutional atmosphere suitable
for innovation. To this end, the Bank has the chief information officer serving as the director of innovative
business, optimizes the innovation system by overhauling the overall innovation process, and establishes
an efficient and clear innovation management mechanism and an innovation assessment and reward
mechanism with equal rights and responsibilities to stimulate the innovation passion of all departments
and employees and promote the emergence of high-quality innovation projects. Moreover, the Bank
strengthens the integration of technology and business to accelerate innovation output, and builds
a two-wheeled innovation model driven by “agile innovation & steady innovation”; intensifies external
cooperation, and leverages fintech including big data and artificial intelligence to improve its capabilities in
risk control and comprehensive financial services, with a view to integrating innovations into all aspects of
the Bank’s development strategies, business processes, products and services.

Establishing an awareness of talent nurturing and laying emphasis on personnel training. The Bank recruits
and attracts high-caliber talent from the fields of investment banking, risk management, credit review and
human resources through headhunting; carries out the “Falcon Plan” to introduce external talent on a
large scale and recruit graduates from key universities; builds a “talent database”, improves the personnel
structure, and gradually improves the training mechanism for talent, so as to lay a solid human resource
foundation for future high-quality development.

Creating a corporate culture and adhering to the corporate vision. The Bank upholds the core values
of “compliance, innovation and integrity”, and strives to build a distinctive corporate culture of pursuing
excellence and overcoming difficulties in various aspects such as work style construction, learning
& innovation, publicity & education, and setting of role models. The Bank lays emphasis on cultural
inheritance, innovation and practice, and integrates its corporate culture into the daily behavior of
employees and all aspects of customer services, business operations and compliance management. An
excellent corporate culture can serve as an endogenous driving force for the Bank to achieve its corporate
vision of “building a boutique bank with a century of prosperity” and to become a competitive “century-old
bank” with top-notch management, services, employees and first-class brand.
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MAJOR AWARDS IN 2020

In March 2020, China Banking Association released the 2019 Top 100 List of China Banking Industry and
the Bank ranked 41st;

In May 2020, Forbes released the list of “GLOBAL 2000 -The World’s Largest Public Companies” and the
Bank ranked 1,378th;

In June 2020, the Bank’s mobile bank won the title of 2020 Innovative Mobile Bank of the Year in the
award list of 2020 innovative mobile banking jointly released by WWW.CIWEEK.COM of Chinese Academy
of Sciences, Centre for Informatization Study of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences and eNET Research
Institute;

In July 2020, in the competition organized by Zhengzhou Enterprise Confederation, Zhengzhou
Entrepreneurs Association and Zhengzhou Federation of Industrial Economy, the Bank won the title of
“Outstanding Transformation and Innovation Enterprise in Zhengzhou”;

In September 2020, at the 2020 China Financial Innovation Forum cum 2020 Online Press Conference of
China’s Financial Innovation Achievements co-sponsored by The Chinese Banker and other institutions,
the Bank received the Top Ten Fintech Innovation Award on the back of its case study on Graph Data
Mining and Analysis Based on Complex Network;

In September 2020, China Enterprise Confederation and China Enterprise Directors Association jointly
released the list of Top 500 Enterprises in Chinese Service Industry in 2020 and the Bank ranked 219th
(2nd among Henan-based enterprises);

In October 2020, at the 15th Award Presentation Ceremony and Summit Forum for Competitiveness and
Creditworthiness Survey of Chinese Listed Companies organized by the Chinese Securities Journal, the
Bank won the “Best Listed Company for Social Responsibility”;

In October 2020, at the “NBD China Financial Summit” cum “China Golden Tripod Awards” Presentation
Ceremony organized by National Business Daily, the Bank won the “2020 FinTech Improvement Award”;

In November 2020, at the 2020 Top 100 Henan Enterprises Summit co-hosted by Henan Enterprise
Confederation and Henan Entrepreneurs Association, the Bank ranked 17th among the Top 100
Enterprises in Henan Province in 2020;

In December 2020, at the presentation ceremony of “2020 Golden Medal List of Chinese Financial
Institutions — Golden Dragon Prize” organized by Financial News, the Bank won “Bank of the Year for
Ensuring Six Stabilities and Six Guarantees and Serving Small and Medium Enterprises” of the Golden
Dragon Prize; and

In December 2020, in the results of the 2020 Golden Horse Award for the Chinese Financial Market
announced by Securities Times, the Bank won the “Excellent Service for the Real Economy” award.
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MAJOR ACCOUNTING DATA AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS
The financial data and indicators set forth in this Report is prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards. Unless otherwise specified, such information represents the data of the

Group stated in RMB.

Unit: RMB’ 000

Year-on-year

increase/
Major accounting data 2019  decrease (%) 2018 2017 2016
Operating results
Operating income 14,579,669 13,440,214 8.48 11,133,655 10,212,985 9,980,486
Total profit 4,012,467 4,006,026 0.16 3,809,906 5,547,260 5,257,033
Net profit attributable to Shareholders
of the Bank 3,167,567 3,285,122 (3.58) 3,058,831 4,280,024 3,998,768
Net cash flow (used in)/generated from
operating activities (11,179,309) (7,850,803) 42,40 (25,819,469)  (1,981,394) 54,036,394
Calculated on a per Share basis
(RMB/Share)
Basic earnings per Share® 0.41 0.43 (4.65) 0.47 0.80 0.75
Diluted earnings per Share® 0.41 0.43 (4.65) 0.47 0.80 0.75
As at the As at the Year-on-year As at the As at the As at the
end of end of increase/ end of end of end of
Scale indicators 2020 2019  decrease (%) 2018 2017 2016
Total assets 547,813,444 500,478,127 9.46 466,142,418 435,828,887 366,147,972
Gross loans and advances to customers
(excluding accrued interest) 237,959,190 195,911,665 21.46 159,572,792 128,456,478 107,633,407
Provision for impairment losses on loans
and advances to customers® 7,931,775 7,424,847 6.83 6,097,376 4,000,536 3,458,832
Total liabilities 501,841,523 460,586,505 8.96 428,278,919 402,389,522 344,286,597
Total deposits from customers
(excluding accrued interest) 314,230,420 289,216,860 8.65 264,130,934 255,407,398 216,389,640
Share capital 7,514,125 5,921,932 26.89 5,921,932 5,321,932 5,321,932
Shareholders’ equity 45,971,921 39,891,622 15.24 37,863,499 33,439,365 21,861,375
Including: equity attributable to
Shareholders of the Bank 44,494,897 38,590,322 15.30 36,649,739 32,205,887 21,296,378
Net assets per Share attributable to
Ordinary Shareholders of the Bank®® 4.88 472 3.39 4.87 4.58 4.00
Net capital® 52,679,369 46,215,496 13.99 45,958,462 41,614,453 28,463,881
Including: net tier-one capital® 44,492,918 38,353,128 16.01 36,618,138 32,262,545 21,312,985
Net risk-weighted assets® 409,505,750 381,759,225 7.27 349,504,822 307,474,718 242,109,283
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2019 Year-on-year

Major financial indicators (restated)™ change 2018 2017 2016
Capital adequacy ratio(%)
Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio® 8.92 7.98 0.94 8.22 7.93 8.79
Tier-one capital adequacy ratio® 10.87 10.05 0.82 10.48 10.49 8.80
Capital adequacy ratio® 12.86 12.11 0.75 13.15 13.53 11.76
Asset quality indicators(%)
Non-performing loan ratio® 2.08 2.37 (0.29) 2.47 1.50 1.31
Allowance to non-performing loans® 160.44 159.85 0.59 154.84 207.75 237.38
Allowance to total loans® 3.33 3.79 (0.46) 3.82 3.11 3.1
Ratio of loans with principal or interest

overdue for more than 90 days to

non-performing loans” 96.11 89.52 6.59 95.36 171.13 129.38
Profitability indicators(%)
Weighted average return on net assets? 8.37 9.30 (0.93) 10.03 18.82 20.21
Return on total assets® 0.63 0.70 (0.07) 0.69 1.08 1.28
Cost-to-income ratio® 22.53 26.62 (4.09) 27.96 26.15 22.34
Net interest spread‘® (12 2.46 2.29 0.17 1.77 1.94 2.52
Net interest margin(' (12 2.40 2.16 0.24 1.70 2.08 2.69
Other financial indicators(%)
Leverage ratio™ 6.63 6.34 0.29 6.79 6.49 Ghiks
Liquidity ratio®™ 70.41 56.44 13.97 56.39 61.72 40.61
Liquidity coverage ratio"™ 353.94 300.37 53.57 304.42 225.20 256.91
Loan-to-deposit ratio"® 82.63 72.33 10.30 66.06 50.29 51.34
Percentage of loans to the single

largest customer!™® 3.61 411 (0.50) 413 3.12 3.51
Percentage of loans to the top ten

single customers'’d 26.17 26.94 0.77) 21.46 22.01 24.83
Percentage of credit granted to the

single largest group customer(™ 6.15 7.01 (0.86) 6.02 4.66 5.58
Normal loan migration ratio'® 4.68 3.43 1.25 8.81 10.35 9.12
Special mention loan migration ratio™ 33.16 28.96 4.20 55.14 58.55 4410
Substandard loan migration ratio"® 68.76 97.76 (29.00) 76.71 29.46 98.00
Doubtful loan migration ratio" - 0.34 (0.34) 0.14 0.07 0.25
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Operating income includes net interest income, net fee and commission income, net trading gains, net gains arising
from investments and other operating income.

Basic earnings per Share, diluted earnings per Share and weighted average return on net assets were calculated
according to Compilation Rules for Information Disclosures by Companies that Offer Securities to the Public (No.9):
Calculation and Disclosure of Rate of Return on Equity and Earnings per Share (2010 Revision).

In June 2020, the Bank issued one new Share for every 10 Shares to Ordinary Shareholders by way of conversion
of capital reserve. After the implementation of the Capitalization Issue, the number of Ordinary Shares of the Bank
changed from 5,921,931,900 to 6,514,125,090. Basic earnings per Share, diluted earnings per Share and net assets
per Share attributable to Ordinary Shareholders of the Bank during the comparison period were recalculated on the
basis of the number of Shares after the Capitalization Issue. For details, please refer to “1.3 The Impact of Changes in
Ordinary Shares on Financial Indicators Such as Earnings per Share and Net Assets per Share in the Previous Year and
the Latest Period” of “1 CHANGES IN ORDINARY SHARES” in the chapter headed “CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL
AND INFORMATION ON SHAREHOLDERS” of this Report.

In 2020, the Bank distributed the dividends on the Offshore Preference Shares. In calculating basic earnings per
Share, diluted earnings per Share and weighted average return on net assets, the distributed dividends of the Offshore
Preference Shares for the period have been deducted from the “net profit attributable to Ordinary Shareholders of the
Bank”, and the distributed dividends of the Offshore Preference Shares and other equity instruments for the period
have been deducted from the “weighted average net assets”.

Representing the equity attributable to Ordinary Shareholders of the Bank after deducting other equity instruments
divided by the number of Ordinary Shares at the end of the period.

Including the provision for impairment losses on the loans and advances to customers measured at amortized costs
and the loans and advances to customers at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The capital adequacy ratio and relevant data are calculated in accordance with the Regulation Governing Capital
of Commercial Banks (Provisional) (3£ R1TAREE#HE (517)) issued by the former CBRC in 2012 and relevant
requirements. The calculations are based on statutory financial statements of the Bank prepared under Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises.

Non-performing loan ratio was calculated by dividing total non-performing loan principal (excluding accrued interests)
by gross loan and advance principal to customers (excluding accrued interest); the allowance to non-performing loans
was calculated by dividing allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances to customers by the total non-
performing loan principal (excluding accrued interest); and the allowance to total loans was calculated by dividing
allowance for impairment losses on loans and advances to customers by the gross loan and advance principal to
customers (excluding accrued interest).

Ratio of loans with principal or interest overdue for more than 90 days to non-performing loans is calculated by total
principal of loans with principal or interest overdue for more than 90 days (excluding accrued interest) divided by total
principal of non-performing loans (excluding accrued interest).

Representing the percentage of net profit for the Reporting Period to the average balance of total assets at the
beginning and the end of the period.

Calculated by dividing total operating expenses (excluding tax and surcharges) by operating income.

Calculated as the difference between the average yield on total interest-earning assets and the average cost of total
interest-bearing liabilities based on daily average of the interest-earning assets and the interest-bearing liabilities.

Calculated by dividing net interest income by the daily average interest-earning assets based on daily average interest-
earning assets.

According to the requirements of the Notice on Strictly Implementing Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
and Effectively Enhancing the 2020 Annual Reports of Enterprises (Cai Kuai [2021] No. 2) (BEREZ TR ¥ & 58
PIENEE2020F FRH TIERBA) (B1€[2021]25% X)) jointly issued by the MOF, State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of the State Council, CBIRC and CSRC, the Bank has re-classified its income from
credit card repayment by instalments from fee and commission income to interest income since 2020, and restated the
figures for the same period in 2019.

Percentage of loans to the single largest customer and percentage of loans to the top ten single customers were

recalculated in accordance with regulatory criteria based on audited data, other indicators represented data reported to
regulatory authorities. Loan migration ratios were based on the criteria of the parent of the Bank.
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DIFFERENCES IN ACCOUNTING DATA UNDER DOMESTIC AND
INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Bank’s net assets as at the end of the Reporting Period and the net profit during the Reporting Period
as calculated in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises of the PRC is the
same as that calculated in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATORS BY QUARTER

Unit: RMB’000

Fourth Third Second First

quarter of quarter of quarter of quarter of

Item 2020 2020 2020 2020

Operating income 3,673,528 3,225,617 3,972,822 3,707,702

Net profit attributable to Shareholders

of the Bank (125,107) 874,821 1,322,786 1,095,067
Net cash flow (used in)/generated from

operating activities (10,579,707) (6,920,364) (8,373,402) 14,694,164

Note: There is no substantial difference between the aforesaid financial indicators or their sum and those disclosed in
the quarterly reports and interim report of the Bank.
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REVIEW OF THE ECONOMY AND MACRO-ENVIRONMENT

In 2020, faced with the tough and complex environment at home and abroad, especially the serious
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”), the Chinese government adjusted its economic
targets in a timely manner and took special measures at the special time to safeguard economic
fundamentals. China was the first country to control the Pandemic and resume work and production,
enabling its economy to achieve rapid recovery. Firstly, an overall V-Shaped economic recovery was
achieved. Under the impact of the Pandemic, China’s gross domestic product (‘GDP”) contracted
substantially by 6.8% in the first quarter, and recovered for three consecutive quarters with a year-on-year
growth of 3.2%, 4.9% and 6.5% respectively, showing a typical asymmetric V-shaped recovery. The
GDP for the year reached RMB101,598.6 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 2.3%. In
particular, the primary, secondary and tertiary sectors showed year-on-year growth of 3.0%, 2.6% and
2.1%, respectively. Secondly, industrial production continued to develop, with high-tech manufacturing
and equipment manufacturing industries growing more rapidly. The added value of nationwide or larger
scaled industries showed a 2.8% vyear-on-year increase. In particular, the added value of high-tech
manufacturing and equipment manufacturing showed a year-on-year increase of 7.1% and 6.6%,
respectively. Thirdly, the service sector gradually recovered, and the modern service sector enjoyed a
sound growth momentum. The national service industry production index remained flat compared to
the previous year. The growth rate of the added value of the information transmission, software and
information technology service industry and the financial industry were 14.8 and 4.9 percentage points
higher than that of the tertiary sector, respectively, and the expected service sector business activities
index was 60.1%, staying in the high boom range for six consecutive months. Fourthly, market sales
recovered more rapidly, and the growth of sales of consumption upgrade products was speeding up. The
total retail sales of consumer goods decreased year-on-year by 3.9%, which was narrowed down by 7.5
percentage points as compared with that in the first half of the year. Fifthly, investment in fixed assets
recovered steadily. The growth of investment in each of the three sectors turned positive, and investment
in high-tech industries and social sectors grew at a faster pace. The annual investment in fixed assets
(excluding rural households) reached RMB51,890.7 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 2.9%.
In particular, the investment in infrastructure and real estate development increased by 0.9% and 7.0%,
respectively. Sixthly, foreign trade achieved positive growth and the trade structure continued to improve.
The total imports and exports of goods grew 1.9% year-on-year to RMB32,155.7 billion, including exports
of RMB17,932.6 billion (up by 4.0%) and imports of RMB14,223.1 billion (down by 0.7%). Seventhly.
the growth rate of consumer prices decreased, and the ratio of per capita disposable income of urban
residents to that of rural residents continued to decrease. The consumer price index rose by 2.5%
throughout the year, lower than the 2.9% increase in the previous year. The per capita disposable income
of residents in China was RMB32,189 (up by 2.1%), in real terms after the deduction of price factors and
is basically in line with economic growth. The ratio of per capita disposable income of urban residents
to that of rural residents was 2.56, narrowed by 0.08 from the previous year. In 2020, China’s economy
gradually overcame the adverse effects of the Pandemic and achieved a steady recovery. However,
China’s economic recovery is still shaky amid the ongoing spread of the Pandemic across the world and
the increasing external risks and challenges.
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In 2020, to cope with the impact of the Pandemic, the Chinese government timely adjusted its monetary
policy to provide more targeted and effective financial support for the real economy and exerted the
precise drip irrigation function of structural monetary policy tools. In 2020, China’s volume of social
financing was RMB284.83 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 13.3%, which is 2.6 percentage
points higher than the same period of the previous year; the increase in social financing in 2020 was
RMB34.86 trillion, which is RMB9.19 trillion more than the same period of the previous year. The balance
of broad money (M2) was RMB218.68 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 10.1%, which
is 1.4 percentage points higher than the same period of the previous year. The balance of RMB and
foreign currency loans reached RMB178.4 ftrillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 12.5%, of
which the balance of RMB loans was RMB172.75 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 12.8%
or RMB19.63 trillion (representing a year-on-year increase of RMB2.82 trillion). The balance of RMB and
foreign currency deposits reached RMB218.37 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 10.2%,
of which the balance of RMB deposits was RMB212.57 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of
10.2% or RMB19.65 trillion (representing a year-on-year increase of RMB4.28 ftrillion). In the interbank
RMB market, a total of RMB1,339.66 trillion was traded through interbank lending, spot trading and
repo. The weighted average interest rates of interbank lending and pledged repo were 1.3% and 1.36%,
which were 0.79 and 0.74 percentage points lower than those for the same period of the previous year,
respectively.

In 2020, Henan Province coordinated Pandemic prevention and control and economic development,
driving the economy to change for the better. Firstly, the province’s economy steadily recovered. In 2020,
the province’s GDP was RMB5,499,707 million, up by 1.3% year-on-year and is 1.0 percentage point
lower than the national average. In particular, the added value of the primary, secondary and tertiary
sectors increased by 2.2%, 0.7% and 1.6%, respectively. Secondly, industrial production gradually
resumed, and high-tech manufacturing industry developed more rapidly. The added value of provincial or
larger scaled industries increased by 0.4%, which is 0.6 percentage point higher than that in the first three
quarters. The added value of high-tech manufacturing industry grew by 8.9%, which is 8.5 percentage
points higher than that of industries above designated size. Thirdly, the province’s investment in fixed
assets continued to pick up, and the investment in newly started projects increased rapidly. The province’s
investment in fixed assets (excluding rural households) increased by 4.3%, which is 0.7 percentage point
higher than the first three quarters and 1.4 percentage points higher than the national average. During
the year, the province’s investment in newly started projects grew by 25.3%, with the investment in newly
started projects above RMB100 million increased by 30.8%. Fourthly, consumer demand gradually picked
up, and the sales of products relating to consumption upgrade grew rapidly. The province’s total retail
sales of consumer goods was RMB2,250,277 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.1% and
narrowed by 2.9 percentage points from the first three quarters. Fifthly, the increase in consumer price
index dropped, and the industrial producer price index decreased. The province’s consumer price index
rose by 2.8% year-on-year, representing a decrease of 0.8 percentage point from the first three quarters.
The province’s producer price index for industrial products and industrial producer purchase price index
decreased year-on-year by 0.8% and 0.6%, respectively. Sixthly, the total foreign trade volume grew
rapidly, and the foreign trade market was diversifying. The province’s total value of imports and exports
was RMB665.48 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.4%, which is 14.5 percentage points
higher than the national growth rate. The annual imports from and exports to the United States, ASEAN
and the European Union (27 countries, excluding the United Kingdom) grew swiftly to reach RMB133.45
billion, RMB86.8 billion and RMB84.44 billion, respectively.
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2020 is the final year of building a well-off society in an all-round way and executing the 13th Five-Year
Plan, and is also the year of ending the tough battle to prevent and resolve financial risks. Faced with the
severe challenges posed by the Pandemic and the complex and ever-changing domestic and international
environment, the banking industry provided financial services in accordance with the requirements of “Six
Stabilities” and “Six Guarantees” to serve the sound development of the real economy. Overall, in 2020,
China’s banking industry ran smoothly with controllable risks, a sound momentum and optimized business
structure. The key operating and regulatory indicators of the industry fell within a reasonable range. The
total assets of domestic commercial banks grew steadily, and the local and foreign currency assets of
financial institutions in the banking industry were RMB319.7 ftrillion, representing a year-on-year increase
of 10.1%. The overall quality of credit assets remained stable. The balance of non-performing loans of
commercial banks was RMB2.7 trillion, with a non-performing loan ratio of 1.84%. Profitability declined on
a year-on-year basis. Commercial banks achieved a total net profit of RMB1.94 trillion, with an average
capital profit margin of 9.48% and an average return on total assets of 0.77%. Risk compensation
capability was sufficient. The balance of provisions for non-performing loans of commercial banks was
RMBS5 ftrillion, with the provision coverage ratio and loan provision ratio standing at 184.5% and 3.39%,
respectively. Financial services continued to expand. The balance of loans from financial institutions in
the banking industry for small and micro enterprises reached RMB42.7 trillion. Liquidity remained at a
sound level. The liquidity coverage ratio, liquidity ratio, RMB excess reserve ratio, and loan-to-deposit
ratio of commercial banks were 146.47%, 58.41%, 2.29% and 76.81% respectively. Due to the Pandemic
and other factors, the credit risk of the banking industry has increased, with non-performing loans yet to
be fully exposed. Moving on to the next stage, financial institutions, especially small and medium-sized
banks, should make adequate preparations in this regard.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2020 was quite an extraordinary year beset with difficulties. The Bank reaped promising results as all
of its senior management members and employees worked together to take on challenges. During the
Reporting Period, the Bank’s operations and management exemplified the following characteristics:

Firstly, key operating indicators stabilized with moderate improvement. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, the Bank’s total assets amounted to RMB547,813 million, representing an increase of RMB47,335
million or 9.46% from the beginning of the year; deposits from customers amounted to RMB314,230
million, representing an increase of RMB25,014 million or 8.65% from the beginning of the year; gross
loans and advances to customers reached RMB237,959 million, representing an increase of RMB42,048
million or 21.46% from the beginning of the year; operating income for 2020 was RMB14,580 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB1,139 million or 8.48%; net profit was RMB3,321 million,
down by 1.55% year-on-year; net interest margin was 2.40%, up by 0.24 percentage point year-on-year;
cost-to-income ratio was 22.53%, down by 4.09 percentage points year-on-year; the capital adequacy
ratio, non-performing loan ratio and allowance to non-performing loans were 12.86%, 2.08% and
160.44% respectively, and all key indicators have met the regulatory requirements.
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Secondly, the Bank achieved victory for now of the “Four Great Battles”. The Bank won the battle to
prevent and control the Pandemic. During the Pandemic, the Bank formulated prevention and control
plans, carried out staff screening for COVID-19 and assured the availability of anti-pandemic supplies.
There was no confirmed or suspected case across all employees of the Bank. The Bank actively
donated cash and goods, and organized and participated in various activities such as free online medical
consultations, the caring and assisting of the medical staff in Hubei Province, and deployment of party
members serving as community guards, which were fully recognized by the provincial and municipal
leaders. The Bank won the tough battle to resume work and production. Standing at the political height,
the Bank fulfilled the “Six Stabilities” and “Six Guarantees” requirements, and implemented various policies
such as anti-pandemic special re-loans, and the policy for targeted reduction of reserve requirements
for small refinancing loans. “Loans for Work Resumption” was initially launched across the province by
reducing costs and surrendering part of the Bank’s profits and deferring the repayment of principals and
interests. The Bank won the battle to eliminate irregularities. It set up a large-value asset management
centre to dispose of risk assets according to their grade and type; strictly implemented the concentration
limit management; reduced our business volume with anonymous customers, real estate loans and
businesses out of the province; established three technology support centres for the corporate, retail and
risk segments; smoothened cases and litigation management responsibilities and institutional standards;
and improved the post-loan management policy and credit file management policy across the Bank.
As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s non-performing loan ratio was 2.08%, representing a
decrease of 0.29 percentage point from the end of last year, while asset quality continued to improve.
The Bank won the battle against chaos. It published the “13 high-tension lines” in relation to employees’
conducts; completed the reform for dispatching the Supervisory Committee of the Zhengzhou Commission
for Discipline Inspection; issued opinions on the joint prevention and control of complaints by means of
written petitions, cases and public opinion events, and carried out a “Mine-sweeping Operation” to identify
potential risks. As a result, the Bank did not have any major cases or complaints throughout the year.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. 24



CHAPTER Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

25

Thirdly, the Bank carried out high-quality development to enhance quality and efficiency. The Bank
vigorously developed its corporate business and unlocked its potential. The 4th China Commerce and
Logistics Bank Alliance Summit (whose number of members increased to 55) was held, and Cloud
Logistics 2.0 was launched to create a new service model for an online freight platform. The Bank
obtained qualifications to provide services for provincial treasury central payment, provincial unified salary
payment and provincial social security card cooperative banks agent. The Bank opened up new paths
for the small and micro businesses. It made good use of various policies such as the inclusive small and
micro credit loan support scheme and the deferred repayment of principals and interests. The balance
of “Housing e-financing” amounted to RMB14,363 million. The “1,000-Sails Program” of science and
technology finance was launched to create a new financial model for technology innovation. The goal
of “Two Increases and Two Controls” was successfully completed. The Bank’s retail business reaped
outstanding results. The ZhengYin wealth planner platform was launched online, with sales exceeding
RMB13 billion in six months; virtual credit cards, namely Le Card (44-+) and Oscar Cinema Card (85
), were launched. The Bank launched the Jiujiu (A A) version of mobile banking online, and built a four-
in-one channel ecosystem comprising micro-banking, WeChat official accounts, applets and corporate
WeChat. The financial market business made a breakthrough. The Bank carried out transactions in the
primary and secondary markets as a tier-1 trader and market maker in the open market to underwrite and
distribute more than RMB100 billion of securities for the first time, with the total amount of bonds and
capital transactions exceeding RMB10 trillion.
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3 FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS

3.1

Income Statement Analysis

During the Reporting Period, under the leadership of the Board, the Bank proactively coped with
the impact of the Pandemic and the complicated and challenging domestic and international
landscape. It stayed true to its original mission, faced the challenges undauntedly, facilitated
the resumption of work and production activity and performed its obligations and mission as a
local bank with practical actions. The Bank continued to consolidate its positioning with features
of “finance for commerce and logistics, finance for residents, and finance for small and micro
enterprises” and strengthened the support for small and micro credit loans. Focusing on the main
operating theme of high-quality development, the Bank strengthened its risk management and
ramped up efforts in the provision and write-off. During the Reporting Period, the Bank recorded
operating income of RMB14,580 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.48%; net profit
of RMB3,321 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.55%; and net profit attributable to
Shareholders of the Bank of RMB3,168 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.58%.
Major items of and changes in the Bank’s income statement are set out as follows:

Unit: RMB’ 000

For the year ended 31 December

2019 Rate of
Item (restated)™ere Change change (%)

Net interest income 11,239,162 9,018,458 2,220,704 24.62
Non-interest income 3,340,507 4,421,756 (1,081,249) (24.45)
Operating income 14,579,669 13,440,214 1,139,455 8.48
Less: Operating expenses 3,417,780 3,693,321 (275,541) (7.46)
Less: Impairment losses on assets 7,184,457 5,796,660 1,387,797 23.94
Operating profit 3,977,432 3,950,233 27,199 0.69
Share of profits of associates 35,035 55,793 (20,758) (87.21)
Profit before taxation 4,012,467 4,006,026 6,441 0.16
Less: Income tax expense 691,596 632,806 58,790 9.29
Net profit 3,320,871 3,373,220 (52,349 (1.55)
Including: Shareholders of the Bank 3,167,567 3,285,122 (117,555) (3.58)

Non-controlling interests 153,304 88,098 65,206 74.02

Note: According to the requirements of the Notice on Strictly Implementing Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and Effectively Enhancing the 2020 Annual Reports of Enterprises (Cai Kuai [2021] No. 2)
KRR BB AT E @R E A B ISR (#2020 F F R TIEMBAL) (A1 &[2021]258 X)) jointly issued by
the MOF, State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council, CBIRC
and CSRC, the Bank has re-classified the income from credit card repayment by instalments from fee
and commission income to interest income since 2020, and restated the figures for the same period in
2019.
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CHAPTER III

3.1.1 Net Interest Income, Net Interest Spread and Net Interest Margin

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the Bank recorded net interest income of RMB11,239 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB2,221 million or 24.62% and accounting for
77.09% of the operating income. Specifically, business scale adjustments resulted in an
increase of RMB1,824 million in net interest income and changes in yield or cost rate
resulted in an increase of RMB396 million in net interest income.

The following table sets forth the average balance of the Bank’s interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, interest income and expenses from these assets, average yield of
these interest-earning assets and average cost rate of these interest-bearing liabilities during

the Reporting Period:

Unit: RMB’000

Item

Interest-earning assets

Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities and other
financial assets'"

Deposits with central bank

Amounts due from banks and other
financial institutions®

Finance lease receivables

Total interest-earning assets

Interest-bearing liabilities

Deposits from customers

Amounts due to banks and other
financial institutions®

Debt securities issued

Due to central bank

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Net interest income

Net interest spread

Net interest margin®

Average
balance®

217,308,902

195,351,678
25,873,517

12,707,428
17,966,437
469,207,962

304,709,927

63,289,022
95,586,704
16,815,448
480,401,101

For the year ended 31 December

2020 2019 (restated)”
Average Average
Interest yield/ Interest yield/
income/ interest Average income/ interest
expense rate (%) balance © expense rate (%)
12,335,208 5.68 179,235,899 10,402,831 5.80
9,634,456 4.93 184,458,775 9,640,255 5.23
393,146 1.52 30,738,042 465,408 1.51
224,862 1.77 8,652,806 264,148 3.06
1,305,471 7.271 13,599,972 819,135 6.02
23,893,143 5.09 416,685,494 21,591,827 5.18
7,659,143 2,51 277,077,708 7,140,622 2.58
1,655,175 2.62 55,179,680 1,780,675 3.28
2,841,648 297 97,570,029 3,465,530 3.55
498,015 296 5,693,017 186,542 3.28
12,653,981 2.63 435520434 12,573,369 2.89

11,239,162 9,018,458

2.46 2.29
2.40 2.16
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Notes:

1. Consisting of financial investments at amortized cost and bonds at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

2. Consisting of deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions and financial assets
held under resale agreements.

3. Consisting of deposits and placements from banks and other financial institutions and financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements.

4. Calculated as the difference between the average yield on total interest-earning assets and the average
cost of total interest-bearing liabilities based on the average daily interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities.

58 Calculated by dividing net interest income by the average balance of total interest-earning assets based
on the average daily interest-earning assets.

6. Calculated as the average daily balance of the Bank.

7. According to the requirements of the Notice on Strictly Implementing Accounting Standards for Business

Enterprises and Effectively Enhancing the 2020 Annual Reports of Enterprises (Cai Kuai [2021] No. 2)
KRARBR AT E G T LRV E NP 2020 F FMIIERBA) (T €[2021]295X)) jointly issued by
the MOF, State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council, CBIRC
and CSRC, the Bank has re-classified the income from credit card repayment by instalments from fee
and commission income to interest income since 2020, and restated the figures for the same period in
2019.
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During the Reporting Period, changes in the volume and interest rate of the Bank led to
changes in interest income and interest expenses. Changes in volume are measured by
changes in the average balance of the interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities
while changes in rate are measured by changes in the average rate of the interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Combined effects of changes in volume and rate were
included in changes in interest.

Unit: RMB’ 000

For the year ended 31 December

2020 vs. 2019

Increase/(decrease) due to Net increase/
Item Volume™ Rate® (decrease)®

Interest-earning assets

Loans and advances to customers 2,209,763 (277,436) 1,932,327
Investments securities and other

financial assets 569,289 (575,088) (5,799)
Deposits with central bank (73,654) 1,392 (72,262)
Amounts due from banks and

other financial institutions 123,777 (163,063) (39,286)
Finance lease receivables 262,995 223,341 486,336
Changes in interest income 3,092,170 (790,854) 2,301,316

Interest-bearing liabilities

Deposits from customers 712,115 (193,594) 518,521
Amounts due to banks and other

financial institutions 261,692 (387,192) (125,500)
Debt securities issued (70,445) (553,437) (623,882)
Due to central bank 364,447 (52,974) 311,473
Change in interest expenses 1,267,809 (1,187,197) 80,612
Notes:
1. Represents the average balance for the Reporting Period minus the average balance for the

previous period, multiplied by the average yield/cost rate for the previous period.

2. Represents the average revenue/(expenses) for the Reporting Period minus the average revenue/
(expenses) for the previous period, multiplied by the average balance for the Reporting Period.

3. Represents interest income/(expenses) for the Reporting Period minus interest income/
(expenses) for the previous period.
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3.1.2

Net interest spread and net interest margin

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s net interest spread amounted to 2.46%,
representing an increase of 0.17 percentage point as compared to the same period of the
previous year, while the Bank’s net interest margin amounted to 2.40%, representing an
increase of 0.24 percentage point as compared to the same period of the previous year. In
2020, monetary policy was relaxed in general, and the Bank actively optimized its liability
structure and improved liability cost management, which resulted in a significant drop in
the average cost rate of interest-bearing liabilities as compared with the same period of the
previous year, leading to an increase in the net interest spread and net interest margin.

Interest Income

During the Reporting Period, the Bank achieved interest income of RMB23,893 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB2,301 million or 10.66%, mainly due to the
growth in the scale of interest-earning assets.

Interest income from loans

During the Reporting Period, the Bank steadily promoted credit granting. The average
balance of loans and advances to customers increased by RMB38,073 million as
compared to the same period of the previous year. Interest income from loans amounted to
RMB12,335 million, representing an increase of RMB1,932 million or 18.57% as compared
to the same period of the previous year. Set out below are the average balance, interest
income and average yield for each component of the Bank’s loans and advances to
customers for the Reporting Period:

Unit: RMB’ 000

For the year ended 31 December

2020 2019
Average Interest Average Average Interest Average
Item balance income yield (%) balance income yield (%)

Corporate loans 139,162,951 8,339,607 599 117,550,120 6,960,284 5.92
Personal loans 65,684,795 3,643,366 5.55 51,503,213 3,027,437 5.88
Discounted bills 12,461,156 352,235 2.83 10,182,566 415,160 4.08

Gross loans and
advances to
customers 217,308,902 12,335,208 568 179,235,899 10,402,881 5.80
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3.1.3

Interest income from investment securities and other financial assets

During the Reporting Period, interest income from investment securities and other financial
assets of the Bank amounted to RMB9,634 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
RMB6 million or 0.06%, which was principally attributable to the drop in the average yield of
investment securities and other financial assets.

Interest income from amounts due from banks and other financial institutions

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s interest income from amounts due from banks and
other financial institutions amounted to RMB225 million, representing a decrease of RMB39
million or 14.87% as compared to the same period of the previous year, which was primarily
attributable to the decrease in the average yield of such assets.

Interest income from finance lease receivables

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s interest income from finance lease receivables
increased by RMB486 million or 59.37% to RMB1,305 million as compared to the same
period of the previous year, which was primarily attributable to the increase in the size
and average vyield of finance lease receivables of Jiuding Financial Leasing Company, a
subsidiary of the Bank.

Interest Expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s interest expense increased by RMB81 million or
0.64% to RMB12,654 million as compared to the same period of the previous year, which
was affected by comprehensive factors including the increase in the scale of interest-bearing
liabilities and the decline in the average cost rate of liabilities.
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Interest expenses on deposits from customers

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s interest expense on deposits from customers
amounted to RMB7,659 million, representing a year-on-year increase of RMB519 million
or 7.26%, and accounted for 60.53% of all interest expenses. The increase was mainly
due to the overall growth of the deposit business as a result of the Bank’s vigorous
efforts in building its customer base. The decrease in the average cost rate of deposits
from customers was mainly due to fluctuations in market interest rates and the Bank’s
enhancement of its liability structure and improvement in cost management.

Unit: RMB’ 000

For the year ended 31 December

2020 2019
Average Interest Average Average Interest Average
ltem balance expenses cost rate (%) balance expenses  cost rate (%)

Corporate deposits

Demand 74,066,754 439,606 0.59 77,023,727 422,446 0.55
Time 98,303,074 3,427,395 3.49 89,488,182 4,051,364 4.53
Subtotal 172,369,828 3,867,001 2.24 166,511,909 4,473,810 2.69

Personal deposits

Demand 23,754,413 215,047 091 20,154,816 151,565 0.75
Time 79,418,674 3,163,011 3.98 67,428,231 2,255,687 3.35
Subtotal 103,173,087 3,378,058 3.27 87,583,047 2,407,252 2.75
Others 29,167,012 414,084 142 22,982,752 259,560 1.13

Total deposits
from customers 304,709,927 7,659,143 251 277,077,708 7,140,622 2.58
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3.1.4

Interest expenses on debt securities issued

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s interest expense on debt securities issued
amounted to RMB2,842 million, representing a decrease of RMB624 million as compared to
the previous year, which was primarily attributable to the decrease in average cost rate of
interbank deposits during the Reporting Period.

Interest expense on amounts due to banks and other financial institutions

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s interest expense on amounts due to banks and
other financial institutions amounted to RMB1,655 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of RMB126 million or 7.05%, which was primarily attributable to the decrease in
the cost of interbank funds as a result of relaxed monetary policy in the monetary market
during the Reporting Period.

Interest expense arising from amounts due to Central Bank

During the Reporting Period, interest expense arising from amounts due to central bank
amounted to RMB498 million, representing an increase of RMB311 million or 166.97% as
compared to the previous year, which was primarily attributable to the increase in medium-
term lending facilities, special refinancing for Pandemic prevention and combat, and
refinancing to small banks during the Reporting Period as compared to the same period of
the previous year.

Non-interest Income

During the Reporting Period, the Bank achieved non-interest income of RMB3,341 million,
representing a decrease of RMB1,081 million or 24.45% as compared to the same period of
the previous year and accounted for 22.91% of the operating income. Such income includes
net fee and commission income of RMB1,730 million, representing an increase of RMB155
million as compared to the previous year. The Bank recorded other non-interest income
of RMB1,611 million, representing a decrease of RMB1,236 million as compared to the
previous year.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net fee and commission income

Unit: RMB’000

For the year ended 31 December

Rate of
Item 2019 Change change (%)

Fee and commission income

Agency and custody services fees 1,308,885 1,160,799 148,086 12.76
Underwriting and advisory fees 281,875 259,983 21,892 8.42
Acceptance and guarantee

services fees 186,762 163,492 23,270 14.23
Bank card services fees 125,393 112,681 12,712 11.28
Others 33,686 25,614 8,072 31.51
Subtotal 1,936,601 1,722,569 214,032 12.43
Fee and commission expense (206,615) (147,140) (59,475) 40.42
Net fee and commission income 1,729,986 1,675,429 154,557 9.81

During the Reporting Period, the Bank proactively adapted to the new regulations on asset
management and market changes, and made steady progress in the transformation and
upgrade of its intermediary business. The net fee and commission income amounted to
RMB1,730 million, representing an increase of RMB155 million or 9.81% as compared to the
same period of the previous year, which was primarily attributable to an increase in the scale
of the agency and custody business, acceptance and guarantee business and securities
underwriting business.

Other non-interest income

Unit: RMB’000

For the year ended 31 December

Rate of
Item 2019 Change change (%)

Net trading gains 368,339 708,485 (340,146) (48.01)
Net gains arising from investment 1,187,922 2,097,656 (909,734) (43.37)
Other operating income 54,260 40,186 14,074 35.02
Total 1,610,521 2,846,327 (1,235,806) (43.42)

During the Reporting Period, other non-interest income amounted to RMB1,611 million,
representing a decrease of RMB1,236 million or 43.42% as compared to the same period of
the previous year, which was primarily due to the fair value change of financial investments
at fair value through profit or loss.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. 34



CHAPTER I

35

3.1.5 Operating Expenses

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the operating expenses of the Bank were RMB3,418 million,
representing a decrease of RMB276 million or 7.46% as compared to the same period of

the previous year. Benefited from the state’s policies on tax and fee reduction

in order to

support the prevention and control of the Pandemic and the Bank’s improvement of cost
management and control, the Bank’s operating expenses during the period decreased as

compared to the same period of the previous year.

Unit: RMB’ 000

For the year ended 31 December

Item m 2019 Change

Rate of
change (%)

Staff costs 2,024,774 2,198,718 (173,944) (7.91)
Depreciation and amortization 439,534 474,790 (35,256) (7.43)
Rental and property

management expenses 99,112 98,819 293 0.30
Office expenses 55,269 51,950 3,319 6.39
Tax and surcharges 133,092 115,617 17,475 15.11
Others 665,999 753,427 (87,428) (11.60)
Total operating expenses 3,417,780 3,693,321 (275,541) (7.46)

The following table sets forth the major components of staff costs of the Bank during the

Reporting Period:

Unit: RMB’ 000

For the year ended 31 December

Rate of
Item 2019 Change change (%)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances 1,551,670 1,607,809 (56,139) (3.49)
Social insurance and annuity 151,339 251,867 (100,528) (39.91)
Supplementary retirement benefits 4,837 15,397 (10,560) (68.58)
Staff welfare 156,829 172,375 (15,546) (9.02)
Housing allowances 104,654 89,090 15,564 17.47
Others 55,445 62,180 (6,735) (10.83)
Total 2,024,774 2,198,718 (173,944) (7.91)
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3.1.6 Impairment Losses on Assets

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s impairment losses on assets increased by
RMB1,388 million or 23.94% to RMB7,184 million as compared with the previous year. The
impairment losses of loans and advances to customers were RMB5,487 million, representing
an increase of RMB748 million or 15.78% as compared to the same period of the previous
year. This is mainly due to the fact that the Bank continued to comply with the principle of
prudent operation, appropriately increased the provision for asset impairment, and further
strengthened risk-resistance capability based on the market operating environment and
asset structure changes.

Unit: RMB’ 000

For the year ended 31 December

Rate of
Item 2019 Change change (%)

Impairment losses on loans and

advances to customers 5,487,062 4,739,054 748,008 15.78
Impairment losses on financial

investments at amortized cost 1,317,666 837,322 480,344 57.37
Impairment losses on finance

lease receivables 286,652 170,001 116,651 68.62
Impairment losses on off-balance

sheet credit commitments (76,453) 50,801 (127,254) (250.50)

Impairment losses on financial

investments at fair value through

other comprehensive income 169,198 541 168,657 31,175.05
Othergihete 332 (1,059) 1,391 (131.35)

Total impairment losses
on assets 7,184,457 5,796,660 1,387,797 23.94

Note: Others consist of impairment losses on items such as deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, placements with banks and other
financial institutions.
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3.1.7 Income Tax Expense

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s income tax expense amounted to RMB692 million,
representing an increase of RMB59 million or 9.29% as compared to the same period of the
previous year. During the Reporting Period, the Bank'’s effective tax rate was 17.24%, which
is lower than the statutory tax rate of 25% and was mainly due to the fact that the interest
income from state-owned bonds and local government bonds held by the Bank was tax-
exempt income according to the relevant PRC tax law.

Unit: RMB’ 000

For the year ended 31 December

Rate of
Item 2019 Change  change (%)

Current tax 1,276,375 1,442,569 (166,194) (11.52)
Deferred tax (634,354) (905,865) 271,511 (29.97)
Adjustment for prior years 49,575 96,102 (46,527) (48.41)
Total income tax expense 691,596 632,806 58,790 9.29
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3.2 Balance Sheet Analysis
3.2.1 Assets

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s total assets amounted to RMB547,813
million, representing an increase of RMB47,335 million or 9.46% from the end of the
previous year. The increase of total assets was mainly due to the increase in loans and
advances to customers and finance lease receivables. The balances (after provision) and
breakdowns of the components of the Bank’s total assets are as follows:

Unit: RMB’000

As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019 Change
% of % of % of

ltem Amount total (%) Amount total (%) Amount total (%)
Assets
Cash and deposits with central bank 36,492,083 6.66 38,465,676 7.69 (1,973,593 (1.08)
Deposits with banks and other

financial institutions 2,357,591 043  1,930,3% 0.39 427,197 0.04
Placements with banks and other

financial institutions 3,083,574 0.56 2,784,681 0.56 298,393 0.00
Derivative financial assets 362,970 0.07 94,602 0.02 268,368 0.05
Financial assets held under resale agreements 8,585,647 1.57 2,998,744 0.60 5,586,903 0.97
Loans and advances to customers 231,250,013 42.21 189,266,541 37.82 41,983,472 4.39
Finance lease receivables 22,565,825 412 12,501,697 2.50 10,064,128 1.62

Financial investments
- Financial investments at fair value

through profit or loss 46,463,308 8.48 55,062,294 11.00  (8,598,986) (2.52)
- Financial investments at fair value

through other comprehensive income 21,983,430 401 15,751,610 315 6,231,820 0.86
- Financial investments at amortized cost 164,230,569 29.98 173,168,422 3460 (8,937,853 (4.62)
Interest in associates 400,250 0.07 376,874 0.08 23,376 0.01)
Property and equipment 2,686,802 049 2372354 0.47 314,448 0.02
Deferred tax assets 3,718,962 0.68 2,834,990 0.57 883,972 0.11
Other assets 3,632,420 0.67 2,869,248 0.55 763,172 0.12
Total assets 547,813,444 100.00 500,478,127 100.00 47,335,317 -
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Loans and advances to customers

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s total loans and advances to customers
amounted to RMB237,959 million, representing an increase of RMB42,048 million or
21.46% as compared with the end of the previous year. The Bank’s loans and advances to
customers are mainly composed of corporate loans, personal loans and discounted bills.

Set out below is a breakdown of the Bank’s loans by business line:

Item

As at

31 December 2020
Amount % of total (%)

Unit: RMB’000

As at
31 December 2019

Amount

% of total (%)

Corporate loans!" 156,954,032 65.96 124,565,616 63.58
Personal loans 67,328,937 28.29 59,593,823 30.42
Discounted bills 13,676,221 5.75 11,752,226 6.00
Gross loans and advances to customers 237,959,190 100.00 195,911,665 100.00
Add: Accrued interest 1,046,446 682,722
Less: Provision for impairment losses® 7,755,623 7,327,846
Book value of loans and advances

to customers 231,250,013 189,266,541
Notes:
1. Forfeiting is included in the corporate loans.
2. Excluding provision for impairment losses on forfeiting and discounted bills, provision for

impairment losses on forfeiting and discounted bills was included in other comprehensive

income.
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(1)

@)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Corporate loans

Corporate loan is the largest component of the Bank’s loans and advances to
customers. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s corporate loans
amounted to RMB156,954 million, accounted for 65.96% of the Bank’s total loans
and advances to customers and representing an increase of RMB32,388 million or
26.00% from the end of the previous year. During the Reporting Period, the Bank
closely focused on the three features of its positioning as “finance for commerce and
logistics, finance for small and micro enterprises and finance for citizens”, thereby
achieving steady growth in corporate loans.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Bank’s corporate loans by collateral:

Unit: RMB’ 000

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019

Item Amount % of total (%) Amount % of total (%)
Unsecured loans 25,996,452 16.56 18,968,452 15.23
Guaranteed loans 78,812,696 50.21 55,088,693 44 .22
Loans secured by tangible

assets other than

monetary assets 33,346,976 21.25 31,853,512 25.57
Loans secured by intangible

assets or monetary
assets 18,797,908 11.98 18,654,959 14.98

Total corporate loan
principal 156,954,032 100.00 124,565,616 100.00

Personal loans

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s total personal loans amounted to
RMBG67,329 million, accounting for 28.29% of the Bank’s total loans and advances
to customers and representing an increase of RMB7,735 million or 12.98% from
the end of the previous year, of which, total personal business loans and total
personal residential mortgage loans were RMB25,640 million and RMB35,965 million,
respectively, representing an increase of 22.60% and 19.67% from the end of the
previous year, which was mainly due to the growth in the business scale of personal
business loans and personal residential mortgage loans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Bank’s personal loans by product

type:
Unit: RMB’ 000
As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019

Item Amount % of total (%) Amount % of total (%)
Personal business loans 25,639,981 38.08 20,912,865 35.10
Personal residential

mortgage loans 35,964,974 53.42 30,052,807 50.43
Personal consumption loans 2,769,512 4.11 5,807,222 9.74
Credit card loans 2,954,470 4.39 2,820,929 4.73
Total personal

loan principal 67,328,937 100.00 59,593,823 100.00

3) Discounted bills

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s discounted bills amounted to
RMB13,676 million, representing an increase of RMB1,924 million or 16.37% from
the end of the previous year. During the Reporting Period, the Bank flexibly adjusted
the scale of bill financing according to the needs of business development and the

financing needs of customers.
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Investments in securities and other financial assets

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s total investments in securities and equity
instruments amounted to RMB234,453 million, representing a decrease of RMB10,334
million or 4.22% from the end of the previous year. Details are set out as follows:

Iltem

As at 31 December 2020

Amount

% of total (%)

Unit: RMB’000

As at 31 December 2019
Amount % of total (%)

Financial investments at amortized cost 166,298,387 70.93 174,300,504 71.20
Financial investments at fair value

through other comprehensive income 21,691,216 9.25 15,424,513 6.30
Financial investments at fair value

through profit or loss 46,463,308 19.82 55,062,294 22.50
Total investment securities and

other financial assets 234,452,911 100.00 244,787,311 100.00
Add: Accrued interest 2,106,004 1,758,957
Less: Provision for impairment losses o 3,881,608 2,563,942
Book value of investment securities

and other financial assets 232,677,307 243,982,326

Note: Excluding provision for impairment losses on financial investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Bank’s investments in securities are classified into debt instruments and equity
instruments. Set out below is a breakdown of the Bank’s investment in securities by

product:

Item

As at 31 December 2020
Amount % of total (%)

Debt securities investments

Unit: RMB’ 000

As at 31 December 2019

Amount

% of total (%)

Government bonds 40,538,719 17.29 31,614,484 12.92
Debt securities issued by policy banks 39,543,998 16.87 33,995,748 13.89
Debt securities issued by banks and

other financial institutions 1,865,371 0.80 2,974,444 1.22
Debt securities issued by corporate issuers 6,356,024 2.7 8,468,274 3.46
Subtotal 88,304,112 37.67 77,052,950 31.49
Investment products under trust schemes 67,275,604 28.70 77,489,646 31.66
Investment products managed by

securities companies 55,741,447 23.78 62,966,123 25.72
Otherg/e® 23,123,348 9.85 27,270,192 11.13
Total debt instruments 234,444,511 100.00 244,778,911 100.00
Equity instruments 8,400 8,400
Total investments securities and

other financial assets 234,452,911 244,787,311

Note: Others consist of debt financing schemes.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the top ten financial bonds held by the Bank
as at the end of the Reporting Period:

Unit: RMB’000

Nominal Interest
No. Type of bonds value balance rate (%) Maturity date Impairment
1 2020 Financial bonds 3,753,008 3.70 2030-10-20 =
2 2016 Financial bonds 3,250,000 3.33 2026-02-22 86
3 2016 Financial bonds 2,490,000 3.33 2026-01-06 66
4 2020 Financial bonds 2,426,582 3.09 2030-06-18 56
5 2020 Financial bonds 2,220,000 3.07 2030-03-10 59
6 2016 Financial bonds 2,200,000 3.24 2023-02-25 58
7 2016 Financial bonds 1,900,000 3.32 2023-01-06 50
8 2020 Financial bonds 1,672,513 3.79 2030-10-26 55
9 2019 Financial bonds 1,360,000 3.45 2029-09-20 37
10 2019 Financial bonds 1,170,000 3.74 2029-07-12 32

Derivative financial instruments
During the Reporting Period, there were two-way fluctuations in the exchange rate between
US dollar and RMB, the Bank made reasonable use of forward foreign exchange to

effectively mitigate market risks and maintain a sound trading style.

Unit: RMB’ 000

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
Contractual/ Contractual/
notional Fair value Fair value notional Fair value Fair value
Derivative financial instruments amount of assets of liabilities amount of assets  of liabilities

Non-deliverable forwards 6,002,908 362,970 - 11,022,396 94,602 (4,944)

Total 6,002,908 362,970 - 11,022,396 94,602 (4,944)
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3.2.2 Liabilities

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s total liabilities amounted to RMB501,842
million, representing an increase of RMB41,255 million or 8.96% from the end of the
previous year, which was mainly due to the increase in liabilities including deposits from
customers and due to central bank.

Unit: RMB’ 000

As at As at
31 December 2020 31 December 2019 Change
% of % of % of

Item Amount total (%) Amount total (%) Amount total (%)
Due to central bank 25,966,645 517 9,954,864 216 16,011,781 3.01
Deposits from banks and other

financial institutions 20,210,404 403 18,906,118 410 1,304,286 (0.07)
Placements from banks and other

financial institutions 20,467,593 408 14,113,018 3.06 6,354,575 1.02
Derivative financial liabilities - - 4,944 0.01 (4,944 0.01)
Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements 21,303,430 425 16,385,737 3.56 4,917,693 0.69
Deposits from customers 316,512,735 63.07 292,125,786 6342 24,386,949 (0.35)
Tax payable 653,304 0.13 745,840 0.16 (92,536) (0.03)
Debt securities issued 93,164,057 18.56 105,245,667 22.85  (12,081,610) (4.29)
Other liabilities* 3,563,355 0.71 3,104,531 0.68 458,824 0.03
Total 501,841,523 100.00 460,586,505 100.00 41,255,018

Note: Other liabilities primarily consist of items in the process of clearance and settlement, staff costs
payable and estimated liabilities.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Deposits from customers

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s gross deposits from customers amounted
to RMB314,230 million, representing an increase of RMB25,014 million or 8.65% from the
end of the previous year. The steady growth in the Bank’s deposits from customers was
mainly attributable to the overall growth of the deposit business as a result of the Bank’s
vigorous efforts in building its customer base. Set out below is a breakdown of the Bank’s
deposits from customers by product type and maturity profile:

Unit: RMB’000

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
Item Amount % of total (%) Amount % of total (%)
Corporate deposits
Demand 73,645,804 23.44 79,289,145 27.42
Time 102,023,433 32.47 87,157,489 30.13
Subtotal 175,669,237 55.91 166,446,634 57.55
Personal deposits
Demand 30,426,964 9.68 23,333,801 8.07
Time 77,347,598 24.61 72,253,415 24.98
Subtotal 107,774,562 34.29 95,587,216 33.05
Other deposits 30,786,621 9.80 27,183,010 9.40
Gross deposits from customers 314,230,420 100.00 289,216,860 100.00
Add: Accrued interest 2,282,315 2,908,926
Total deposits from customers 316,512,735 292,125,786
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3.2.3 Shareholders’ Equity

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s total Shareholders’ equity reached
RMB45,972 million, representing an increase of RMB6,080 million or 15.24% from the end
of the previous year. The total equity attributable to Shareholders of the Bank reached
RMB44,495 million, representing an increase of RMB5,905 million or 15.30% from the end
of the previous year. The increase in Shareholders’ equity was mainly due to the completion
of the non-public issuance of A Shares by the Bank and continuous profit. In November
2020, the Bank issued 1 billion A Shares on the SZSE through non-public issuance. After
the issuance, the total share capital of the Bank increased to 7,514 million Ordinary Shares.
After deducting issuance expenses, the net proceeds amounted to RMB4,632 million.

Unit: RMB’ 000

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019

Item Amount % of total (%) Amount % of total (%)
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 7,514,125 16.35 5,921,932 14.85
Capital reserve 8,203,903 17.85 5,163,655 12.94
Surplus reserve 2,976,573 6.47 2,675,548 6.71
General risk reserve 7,078,451 15.40 6,619,553 16.59
Fair value reserve (698,206) (1.52) 97,063 0.24
Remeasurement of net defined

benefit liability (60,953) (0.13) (46,424) (0.12)
Retained earnings 11,655,496 25.35 10,333,487 25.90
Other equity instruments 7,825,508 17.02 7,825,508 19.62
Total equity attributable to

Shareholders of the Bank 44,494,897 96.79 38,590,322 96.73
Non-controlling interests 1,477,024 3.21 1,301,300 3.27
Total Shareholders’ equity 45,971,921 100.00 39,891,622 100.00
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3.2.4 Off-balance Sheet Commitments

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Bank’s off-balance sheet credit
commitments as at the end of the Reporting Period:

Unit: RMB’ 000

As at As at
31 December 31 December
Item 2020 2019

Credit commitments

Bank acceptances 118,049,727 103,738,951
Letters of credit 9,814,187 8,162,623
Guarantees 2,217,397 2,692,880
Unused credit card commitments 3,890,102 2,785,006
Total 133,971,413 117,379,460

In addition, as at the end of the Reporting Period, there was no material litigation in which
the Bank or any of its subsidiaries is a defendant. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the
Bank had no significant contingent liabilities. Details of off-balance sheet commitments are
disclosed in “Credit commitments” of Commitments and contingent liabilities in Note 42
to the financial statements of the chapter headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this
Report.

3.2.5 Asset Right Restriction as at the End of the Reporting Period
Details of pledged assets of the Bank are disclosed in “Pledged Assets” of Commitments

and contingent liabilities in Note 42 of the chapter headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of
this Report.
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3.3 Loan Quality Analysis

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the Bank continuously strengthened credit risk management and
accelerated the disposal of non-performing loans, keeping the overall quality of loans under
control. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the balance of non-performing loans amounted to
RMB4,944 million, and the non-performing loan ratio was 2.08%, down by 0.29 percentage point

from the end of the previous year.

3.3.1 Distribution of Loans by Five-Category Loan Classification

As at 31 December 2020

Unit: RMB’000

As at 31 December 2019

Item Amount % of total (%) Amount % of total (%)
Normal 95.89 187,187,713 95.55
Special mention 2.03 4,079,072 2.08
Substandard 1.40 2,669,799 1.36
Doubtful 0.67 1,961,656 1.00
Loss 0.01 13,425 0.01
Total loans and advances to

customers 100.00 195,911,665 100.00
NPLs and NPL ratio™°® 2.08 4,644,880 2.37

Note: NPL ratio is calculated by dividing total NPL principal (excluding accrued interest) by total loan

and advanced principal to customers (excluding accrued interest).

According to the five-category loan classification system, the Bank classified its NPLs into

substandard, doubtful and loss categories.
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3.3.2 Classification of Loans and Non-Performing Loans by Product Type

Unit: RMB’ 000

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
% of NPL % of NPL
Item Amount  total (%) NPLamount ratio (%) Amount  total (%) NPLamount ratio (%)

Corporate loans

Short-term loans 41,708,603 2005 1,519,417 331 44,581,659 2276 2,198,763 493
Medium and long-term loans 109,245,429 4591 1,856,239 1.70 79,983,957 4083 1,437,389 1.80
Subtotal 156,954,032 6596 3,435,656 219 124,565,616 63.59 3,636,102 292
Discounted bills 13,676,221 5.75 - - 11,752,226 6.00 S S

Personal loans

Personal business loans 25,639,981 10.78 1,033,789 403 20,912,865 10.67 671,249 3.2
Personal residential

mortgage loans 35,964,974 15.11 185,795 052 30,052,807 15.34 34,051 0.1
Personal consumption loans 2,769,512 1.16 226,720 819  53807,222 2.96 259,817 447
Credit card loans 2,954,470 1.24 61,822 209 2,820,929 1.44 4361 1.55
Subtotal 67,328,937 2829 1,508,126 224 59,593,823 3041 1,008,728 1.69
Total 237,959,190 100.00 4,943,782 2.08 195,911,665 100.00 4,644,880 2.37

During the Reporting Period, the Bank adhered to main operation line of high-quality
development, intensified risk management, and strengthened the effort on the collection
and disposal of non-performing assets. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the NPL ratio
of corporate loans (excluding discounted bills) was 2.19%, down by 0.73 percentage point
from the end of the previous year; the NPL ratio of personal loans was 2.24%, up by 0.55
percentage point from the end of the previous year.
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3.3.3 Classification of Loans and Non-Performing Loans by Industry

Unit: RMB’000

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
% of NPL % of NPL

Item Amount  total (%) NPL amount ratio (%) Amount  fotal/%)  NPLamount  ratio (%)
Wholesale and retall 30,468,072 12.80 1,121,197 3.68  27,09,140 13.83 1,152,189 425
Manufacturing 14,981,932 6.30 965,069 6.44 14577464 7.4 1,678,003 10.82
Construction 14,887,663 6.26 329,452 221 12,156,369 6.21 215,134 1.77
Real estate 30,557,324 12.84 381,888 1.25 26,677,880 13.62 39,897 0.15
Leasing and commercial

services 17,666,268 142 387,064 219 10,892,165 556 61,242 0.56
Water, environment and

public facility management 25,683,307 10.79 - - 16,128,317 8.28 43,580 0.27
Agriculture, forestry, animal

husbandry and fishery 1,926,802 0.81 124,315 6.45 1,686,307 0.86 360,247 21.38
Transportation, storage and

postal services 4,982,485 2.09 29,655 0.60 2,604,391 1.33 57,019 219
Production and supply of

electricity, heat,

gas and water 2,581,881 1.09 - - 2,369,014 1.21 10,000 0.42
Accommodation and catering 1,311,417 0.55 41,586 347 1,317,211 0.67 40,384 3.07
Mining 807,252 0.34 9,070 1.12 322,300 0.16 4,000 124
Culture, sports and

entertainment 1,660,210 0.70 2,860 0.17 1,808,720 092 1,000 0.06
QOthers 9,439,419 3.97 43,500 0.46 6,931,338 3.54 78,397 1.06
Total corporate loans 156,954,032 65.96 3,435,656 219 124,565,616 63.58 3,636,152 2.92
Total personal loans 67,328,937 28.29 1,508,126 224 59,593,823 30.42 1,008,728 1.69
Discounted bills 13,676,221 575 - - 11,752,226 6.00 - -
Total 237,959,190 100.00 4,943,782 2.08 195911,665 100.00 4,644,880 2.37

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the non-performing corporate loans of the Bank were
mainly concentrated in (1) the wholesale and retail industry; (2) the manufacturing industry;
and (3) the leasing and commercial services industry, with NPL ratios of 3.68%, 6.44% and
2.19%, respectively.
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3.3.4

3.3.5

Classification of Loans and Non-Performing Loans by Collateral

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Bank’s loans and non-performing loans by
collateral:

Unit: RMB’ 000

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
% of NPL % of NPL
Item Amount  total (%) NPL amount ratio (%) Amount  fotal/%)  NPLamount  ratio (%)
Unsecured loans 31,664,029 13.31 133,808 042 26,395,641 1347 118,447 045
Guaranteed loans 82,094,342 34.49 2,501,079 3.05 59,539,001 30.39 3,194,275 537

Loans secured by tangible assets

other than monetary assets 89,660,694 37.68 2,163,748 24 77715145 39.67 1,002,805 1.29
Loans secured by intangible

assets or monetary assets 34,540,125 14,52 145,147 042 32,261,878 16.47 329,363 1.02

Total 237,959,190 100.00 4,943,782 208 195911665  100.00 4,644,880 2.37

Borrower Concentration

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s loan balance to any single borrower did
not exceed 10% of the Bank’s net capital. The following table sets forth, as at the end of
the Reporting Period, the Bank’s loan balance to the ten largest single borrowers (excluding
group borrowers), all of which were classified as normal.

Unit: RMB’ 000

As at 31 December 2020

Principal % of total % of net

Item Industry balance loans (%) capital (%)

Borrower A Water, environment and 1,900,000 0.80 3.61
public facility management

Borrower B Leasing and commercial services 1,831,980 0.77 3.48

Borrower C Real estate 1,547,100 0.65 2.94

Borrower D Real estate 1,266,510 0.53 2.40

Borrower E Water, environment and 1,250,000 0.53 2.37
public facility management

Borrower F Manufacturing 1,240,000 0.52 2.35

Borrower G Water, environment and 1,200,000 0.50 2.28
public facility management

Borrower H Real estate 1,199,500 0.50 2.28

Borrower |  Real estate 1,176,000 0.49 2.23

Borrower J  Leasing and commercial services 1,173,700 0.49 2.23

Total 13,784,790 5.78 26.17
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3.3.6

3.3.7

3.3.8

Overdue Loans

Unit: RMB’000

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019

Item Amount % of total (%) Amount % of total (%)
Current loans 230,718,299 96.96 188,768,138 96.36
Loans past due for®®

3 months (inclusive) or less 2,489,278 1.04 3,025,224 1.54

3 months to 1 year (inclusive) 1,803,362 0.76 1,899,785 0.97

1 year or more 2,948,251 1.24 2,218,518 1.13
Subtotal 7,240,891 3.04 7,143,527 3.64
Gross principal loans 237,959,190 100.00 195,911,665 100.00

Note: Representing the principal amount of the loans on which principal or interest is overdue.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s overdue loans amounted to RMB7,241
million, representing an increase of RMB97 million or 1.36% as compared with the end of
the previous year. Overdue loans accounted for 3.04% of the total loans, decreased by 0.60
percentage point as compared with the end of the previous year.

Repossessed assets and provision for impairment
As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank had no repossessed assets.
Provision and Write-off of Allowance for Impairment Losses on Loans

During the Reporting Period, the Bank made a total reserve for losses on loans of RMB5,487
million, with RMB5,408 million provided for loans and advances to customers measured
at amortized cost, and RMB79 million for loans and advances to customers measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income. RMB5,356 million of non-performing loans
was written off and disposed, and RMB376 million of written-off loans was recovered. As
at the end of the Reporting Period, the balance of the Bank’s provision for losses on loans
was RMB7,932 million, of which the balance of impairment losses on loans and advances
to customers measured at amortized cost was RMB7,756 million and the balance of the
impairment losses on loans and advances to customers measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income were RMB176 million.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Changes in provision for impairment losses on loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost are set out as follows:

Unit: RMB’000

For the year ended 31 December

Opening balance 7,327,846 6,062,971
Provision for the period 5,407,911 4,676,458
Write-offs and disposals for the period (5,355,940) (3,869,583)
Recovery of written-off loans 375,806 458,000
Closing balance 7,755,623 7,327,846

Changes in provision for impairment losses on loans and advances to customers at fair
value through other comprehensive income are set out as follows:

Unit: RMB’ 000

For the year ended 31 December

Opening balance 97,001 34,405
Provision for the period 79,151 62,596
Closing balance 176,152 97,001
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cash Flow Statement Analysis

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s net cash outflow from operating activities was RMB11,179
million, where the cash inflow was RMB73,343 million, representing an increase of RMB16,345
million from the same period of the previous year, mainly due to the increase in borrowing
from central bank; and the cash outflow was RMB84,523 million, representing an increase of
RMB19,674 million from the same period of the previous year, mainly due to the increase in finance
lease receivables.

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s net cash inflow from investing activities was RMB24,614
million, where the cash inflow was RMB296,322 million, representing an increase of RMB168,424
million from the same period of the previous year, mainly due to the increase in cash flow received
from the recovery of investments; the cash outflow was RMB271,708 million, representing an
increase of RMB140,291 million from the same period of the previous year, mainly due to the
increase in cash outflow for investment payments.

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s net cash outflow from financing activities was RMB11,477
million, where the cash inflow was RMB120,580 million, representing a decrease of RMB4,159
million from the same period of the previous year, mainly due to the decrease in cash inflows
received from the issuance of bonds; the cash outflow was RMB132,057 million, representing
an increase of RMB13,906 million from the same period of the previous year, mainly due to the
increase in cash outflows for the repayment of the principal of the bonds due.

Unit: RMB’ 000

For the year ended 31 December

Year-on-year

Item 2019 change
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities 73,343,444 56,998,259 16,345,185
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities 84,522,753 64,849,062 19,673,691
Net cash flows used in operating activities (11,179,309) (7,850,803) (8,328,5006)
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities 296,322,073 127,898,449 168,423,624
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities 271,708,226 131,417,013 140,291,213
Net cash flows generated from/(used in)

investing activities 24,613,847 (3,518,564) 28,132,411
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities 120,579,727 124,738,282 (4,158,555)
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities 132,057,065 118,151,408 13,905,657
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from

financing activities (11,477,338) 6,586,874 (18,064,212)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

and cash equivalents (123,711) 27,942 (151,653)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents 1,833,489 (4,754,551) 6,588,040
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3.5 Business Segment Report

The following table sets forth the Bank’s total operating income by business segment for the
periods indicated.

Unit: RMB’000

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
Item Amount % of total (%) Amount % of total (%)

Corporate banking business 6,740,760 46.23 5,831,562 43.24
Retail banking business 1,546,570 10.61 1,740,291 12.90
Treasury business 6,238,079 42.79 5,828,175 43.21
Others e 54,260 0.37 86,873 0.65
Total operating income 14,579,669 100.00 13,486,901 100.00

Note: This segment consists primarily of equity investment and relevant income, and any other businesses
that cannot constitute a reporting segment alone.
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3.6 Significant Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Accounting Methods

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3

Explanation of changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and
accounting methods as compared with the financial report of the previous year

The amendments to IFRS 3 — Business Combinations were promulgated by the International
Accounting Standards Board in October 2018 to make clarification on the definition of
“business”. The Bank has adopted the amendment from 1 January 2020 in compliance with
the requirements. No retrospective application was required.

The amendments to IFRS 16 — Leases were promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board on 28 May 2020, which stipulated that rental concessions directly caused
by COVID-19, including rental concessions and postponed payments provided upon the
existing tenancy contracts as agreed between lessees and lessors, will not be accounted for
as lease modifications to the extent that the conditions of adopting simplified approaches
are satisfied, and shall be effective for the annual reporting period beginning on or after 1
June 2020 with early adoption allowed. The Bank has adopted the amendments from the
effective date of the amendments.

The changes required by the above documents have no significant impact on the Group’s
financial condition and operating results. For details, please refer to Note 2 “SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES” to the financial statements in the chapter headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this report and the announcements dated 31 August 2020 published by
the Bank on CNINFO and the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Explanation of major accounting errors correction during the Reporting Period that
require retrospective restatement

During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not have any major accounting errors correction
that need to be retrospectively restated.

Explanation of changes in the scope of the consolidated statements as compared
with the financial report of the previous year

The scope of the consolidated statements for the current period is consistent with that of
the financial report for the previous year.
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3.7 Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value
Unit: RMB’ 000

Gains and
losses from
Opening changes in  Accumulated Impairment Closing
balance fair value changes in accrued balance
for the for the fair value during the for the
Reporting Reporting recognized Reporting Reporting
Item Period Period in equity Period Period
Financial investments at fair
value through profit or loss
(excluding derivative
financial assets) 55,062,294 842,568 - - 46,463,308
Derivative financial assets 94,602 268,368 - - 362,970
Financial investments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income 15,751,610 - (1,106,530) (169,198) 21,983,430
Subtotal of financial assets 70,908,506 1,110,936 (1,106,530) (169,198) 68,809,708
Derivative financial liabilities 4,944 (4,944) - - -
Subtotal of financial liabilities 4,944 (4,944) - - -
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and the Main Reasons for the Changes

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

3.8 Major Statement Iltems and Financial Indicators with Changes of More Than 30%

Unit: RMB’000

Item

Fee and commission expense

Net trading gains

Net gains arising from

investments

Other operating income

Share of profits of associates

Net profit attributable to
non-controlling interests

For the year ended 31 December

206,615

368,339

1,187,922

54,260

35,035

153,304

Change
compared to
the same
period of
the previous
2019 year (%) Main reason analysis

147,140 40.42  Mainly due to the increase in
business scale.

708,485 (48.01) Due to the exchange rate
fluctuations of US dollar
against RMB and the
changes in gains from
trading bonds during the
Reporting Period.

2,097,656 (43.37) Due to the change in fair value
of financial investments at
fair value through profit
or loss.

40,186 35.02 The increase in government
grants as compared with
the previous period.

55,793 (87.21) Mainly due to the decrease
in profits of associates as
compared with the previous
period.

88,098 74.02  Mainly due to the increase in

the profits of subsidiaries
during the period as
compared with the previous
period.
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Unit: RMB’000

Change
compared to
As at 31 As at 31 the end of
LYY T December the previous

Item 2020 2019 year (%) Main reason analysis

Derivative financial assets 362,970 94,602 283.68  During the Reporting Period,

Derivative financial liabilities - 4,944 (100.00) there were two-way
fluctuations in the exchange
rate of US dollar
against RMB; the Bank
reasonably increased forward
foreign exchange to
effectively mitigate market
risks.

Financial assets held under 8,585,647 2,998,744 186.31  The Bank adjusted the
resale agreements size of such assets upon
comprehensive evaluation
of market liquidity and the
Bank’s capital needs.

Financial investments at 21,983,430 15,751,610 39.56 Due to the increase in bonds
fair value through other at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprehensive income.

Finance lease receivables 22,565,825 12,501,697 80.50 Mainly due to the increase in
the finance lease receivables
of Jiuding Financial Leasing
Company, a subsidiary of
the Bank.

Deferred income tax assets 3,718,962 2,834,990 31.18 Due to the increase in
temporary deductible
difference arising from
provision for asset
impairment losses and
change in fair value of
financial assets.

Due to central bank 25,966,645 9,954,864 160.84 The increase in medium-term
lending facility and
refinancing to small banks.
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Item

Placements from banks and
other financial institutions

Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements

Capital reserve

Fair value reserve

Remeasurement of net defined

benefit liability

As at 31
December
2020

20,467,593

21,303,430

8,203,903

(698,206)

(60,953)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Change
compared to
As at 31 the end of
December the previous
2019 year (%) Main reason analysis
14,113,018 45.03 The Bank adjusted the
size of such liabilities upon
16,385,737 30.01 comprehensive evaluation
of market liquidity and the
Bank’s capital needs.
5,163,655 58.88 The Bank completed the
non-public issuance of
A Shares during the
Reporting Period, leading to
an increase in domestic
equity premium.

97,063 (819.33) Mainly due to the change in
fair value of financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
as at the end of
the Reporting Period.

(46,424) 31.30 The decrease in the

remeasurement of net
defined benefit liability.
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4 INVESTMENT ANALYSIS

4.1

Overview

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets out details of the Bank’s equity investment as at the end of the Reporting

Period:
Unit: RMB’ 000
As at As at  The Bank’s share
31 December 31 December of the interest in
Item 2020 2019 the investee (%)
Jiuding Financial Leasing Company 1,020,000 1,020,000 51.00
Fugou Zhengyin County Bank 30,120 30,120 50.20
Xinmi Zhengyin County Bank 64,000 64,000 51.20
Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank 51,000 25,500 51.00
Queshan Zhengyin County Bank 25,500 25,500 51.00
Zhongmu Zhengyin County Bank © 208,000 104,000 18.53
Yanling Zhengyin County Bank @ 34,950 18,000 49.58
Xinzheng Zhengyin County Bank 17,280 17,280 25.00
China UnionPay Co., Ltd. 8,000 8,000 0.27
Service Centre for City Commercial Banks
(formerly known as Funds Clearing
Centre for City Commercial Banks) 400 400 1.29
Total 1,459,250 1,312,800
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Notes:

1. During the Reporting Period, Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank passed the resolution to increase
registered capital and shares at its general meeting, pursuant to which, shareholders shall make
a capital contribution on at 1:1 ratio. The total share capital changed from 50,000,000 shares to
100,000,000 shares. The number of shares held by the Bank in Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank
changed from 25,500,000 shares to 51,000,000 shares, and there was no change in the percentage of
shareholding.

2. During the Reporting Period, Zhongmu Zhengyin County Bank passed the resolution on the profit
distribution scheme to convert undistributed profit into share capital at its general meeting. The total
share capital changed from 561,350,000 shares to 1,122,700,000 shares. The number of shares held
by the Bank in Zhongmu Zhengyin County Bank changed from 104,000,000 shares to 208,000,000
shares, and there was no change in the percentage of shareholding.

3. During the Reporting Period, Yanling Zhengyin County Bank passed the resolution on plan to increase
registered capital and shares at its general meeting, pursuant to which 10,495,000 shares were created
and the total share capital changed from 60,000,000 shares to 70,495,000 shares. The Bank acquired
13,500,000 shares of Yanling Zhengyin County Bank from former shareholders, and subscribed for
3,450,000 newly issued shares, resulting in a change of shares held by the Bank from 18,000,000
shares to 34,950,000 shares, and there was a change in the percentage of shareholding from 30% to
49.58%.

For details of the Bank’s other investments as at the end of the Reporting Period, please refer to
the paragraph headed “Balance Sheet Analysis” in the chapter headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis”.

4.2 Significant Equity Investments Made During the Reporting Period
During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not make any significant equity investment.

4.3 Significant Non-equity Investments in Progress During the Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not have any significant non-equity investment in
progress.
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4.4 Use of Proceeds
The Bank completed the issuance of 1 billion A Shares by way of non-public issuance in November
2020, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 per Share at an issue price of RMB4.64 per Share, and the
premium of RMB3.632 billion generated from the issuance was recognized in capital reserve. The
scale of financing and the amount and use of proceeds raised are as follows:

4.4.1 Overview on Use of Proceeds

Unit: RMB’ 000

Proportion of
Net proceeds Net proceeds  Cumulative cumulative Total  Usesand  Amount of
used during ~ Cumulative involving change  netproceeds  netproceeds  amount whereabouts  proceeds
Net the Reporting net proceeds  of use during the involving involving ~ of unused  of unused idle over
Year Method proceeds Period used  Reporting Period change ofuse  changeofuse  proceeds  proceeds  two years

202 Non-public 4832442 4632442 4630442 - 5 - - - R
issuance of
A Shares

Total - 4632442 4632442 4632442 - 5 s - - -

Explanation on Adter deducting the issuance expenses, all proceeds from the issuance were used to replenish the Bank's core tier-one capital, which was in ine with the committed use of
generaluse of  proceeds.
procesds
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4.4.2 Use of Proceeds in Projects Committed

Unit: RMB’000

Amount of proceeds!” 4,632,442  Amount of proceeds 4,632,442
used during the year
Total amount of proceeds involving change of use during
the Reporting Period Nil

. . . . Cumulative amount 4,632,442
Cumulative total amount of proceeds involving change of use Nil
) ) : ) of proceeds used
Proportion of cumulative total amount of proceeds involving
change of use Nil
Date of Cumulative
Progress of  the project results
Totdl  Ivested  Cumulaie  investment  reaching  Resulis  achieved
Project undertaken ~ Projectinvolving ~ Totelamount ~ investment ~ amount invested as of end the achieved  asatthe Achieing  Any material
forinvestmentand ~ change, including ~ of proceeds amount  duringthe  amount as ofthe  infended duringthe  end of the s changesin
the use of excess those partially undertaken after ~ Reporting  of the end of period  working  Reporiing  Reporting  expected  the feasibilty
proceeds changed (f any) ~forinvestment  adjustment (1) Period the period () (3)=(/1) (%)  condiion  Period Period  results  of the project
Replenished capital NI 4630440 4632440 4630442 4632442 100% N/A N/A /A NA No
Total - 4630442 4632442 4630442 4,630,442 100% - NA NA - -
Reason for not meeting the schedule (by Nil
specific project)
Explanation on material changes in the Nil

feasibility of the project

Amount and use of the excess proceeds and  Nil

progress of use

Change in the place for applying the proceeds Nil

Adjustment to the way of applying the Nil

proceeds

Application and replacement of the proceeds  Nil

in the initial stage

Application of idle proceeds for temporary Nil

replenishment of working capital

Amount of positive balance of proceeds upon The Bank’s proceeds were used up and there were

commencement of the project and the relevant no remaining proceeds for investment projects

reason® funded by proceeds.

Whereabouts of unused proceeds The Bank’s proceeds were used up and there were
no unused proceeds.

Issues or other matters regarding the use and Nil

disclosure of proceeds
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4.5

4.6

4.7

Notes:

1. The amount of proceeds represented the net proceeds after deducting sponsor and underwriting
fees and other issuance expenses.

2. The proceeds were fully used to replenish the Bank’s core tier-one capital. As the proceeds

used for funding investment projects included the Bank’s own capital and proceeds, it was
unable to gauge the results achieved by the proceeds as at the end of the Reporting Period
independently.

4.4.3 Change of Use of Proceeds in Projects

During the Reporting Period, there was no change of use of proceeds in projects of the
Bank.

Significant Investments Not Funded by Proceeds

During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not have any significant investments not funded by
proceeds.

Financial Assets at Fair Value

For details of the Bank’s fair value measurement methods and items measured at fair value as at
the end of the Reporting Period, please refer to the information contained in the paragraph headed
“Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value” in the chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

Operations of Subsidiaries
4.7.1 Operations of Subsidiaries
Jiuding Financial Leasing Company

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank held 51.00% equity interest in Jiuding
Financial Leasing Company, a subsidiary of the Bank with a registered capital of RMB2
billion. Jiuding Financial Leasing Company was established in China where it carries out
its business. Its principal businesses include: (1) financial leasing business; (2) outward
or inward transfer of financial leasing assets; (3) fixed income securities investment
business; (4) acceptance of leasing deposits from lessees; (5) taking time deposits with
a term of three months or more from non-banking shareholders; (6) interbank lending; (7)
borrowing from financial institutions; (8) offshore borrowing; (9) sale and disposal of leased
assets; (10) economic consultancy; (11) other business approved by the CBIRC (business
activities subject to approval according to law may be carried out only after approval by
the competent authorities). As at the end of the Reporting Period, Jiuding Financial Leasing
Company had total assets of RMB24,430 million, net assets of RMB2,771 million, and total
financial leasing of RMB23,258 million. During the Reporting Period, it recorded operating
income of RMB753 million, operating profit of RMB372 million and net profit of RMB279
million.
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Fugou Zhengyin County Bank

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank held 50.20% equity interest in Fugou
Zhengyin County Bank, a subsidiary of the Bank with a registered capital of RMB60
million. Fugou Zhengyin County Bank was established in China where it carries out its
business. Its principal businesses include: (1) taking deposits from the public; (2) issuing
short-term, medium-term and long-term loans; (3) domestic settlement; (4) bill acceptance
and discounting; (5) interbank lending; (6) debit card business; (7) acting as issuing
agent, cashing agent and underwriter of government bonds; (8) acting as collection and
payment agent; (9) other business approved by the banking regulatory authority of the PRC
(business activities requiring licensing shall be carried out with valid permits or qualification
certificates). As at the end of the Reporting Period, Fugou Zhengyin County Bank had
total assets of RMB885 million, net assets of RMB65 million, total loans and advances to
customers of RMB536 million, total deposits from customers of RMB722 million. During the
Reporting Period, it recorded operating income of RMB27 million, operating profit of RMB3
million, and net profit of RMB2 million.

Xinmi Zhengyin County Bank

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank held 51.20% equity interest in Xinmi
Zhengyin County Bank, a subsidiary of the Bank with a registered capital of RMB125
million. Xinmi Zhengyin County Bank was established in China where it carries out its
business. Its principal businesses include: (1) taking deposits from the public; (2) issuing
short-term, medium-term and long-term loans; (3) domestic settlement; (4) bill acceptance
and discounting; (5) interbank lending; (6) banking card business; (7) acting as issuing
agent, cashing agent and underwriter of government bonds; (8) acting as collection and
payment agent and insurance agent; (9) other business approved by the banking regulatory
authority (business activities subject to approval according to law may be carried out only
after approval by the competent authorities). As at the end of the Reporting Period, Xinmi
Zhengyin County Bank had total assets of RMB1,043 million, net assets of RMB160 million,
total loans and advances to customers of RMB662 million, total deposits from customers
of RMB864 million. During the Reporting Period, it recorded operating income of RMB26
million, operating profit of RMB3 million, and net profit of RMB2 million.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank held 51.00% equity interest in Xunxian
Zhengyin County Bank, a subsidiary of the Bank with a registered capital of RMB100
million. Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank was established in China where it carries out its
business. Its principal businesses include: (1) taking deposits from the public; (2) issuing
short-term, medium-term and long-term loans; (3) domestic settlement; (4) bill acceptance
and discounting; (5) acting as issuing agent, cashing agent and underwriter of government
bonds; (6) interbank lending; (7) debit card business; (8) acting as collection and payment
agent and insurance agent; (9) other business approved by the banking regulatory authority
(business operations requiring permits shall be carried out after obtaining relevant permits
from the competent authorities) (business activities subject to approval according to law
may be carried out only after approval by the competent authorities). As at the end of the
Reporting Period, Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank had total assets of RMB1,223 million, net
assets of RMB110 million, total loans and advances to customers of RMB657 million, total
deposits from customers of RMB1,017 million. During the Reporting Period, it recorded
operating income of RMB46 million, operating profit of RMB20 million, and net profit of
RMB13 million.

Queshan Zhengyin County Bank

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank held 51.00% equity interest in Queshan
Zhengyin County Bank, a subsidiary of the Bank with a registered capital of RMB50 million.
Queshan Zhengyin County Bank was established in China where it carries out its business.
Its principal businesses include: (1) taking deposits from the public; (2) issuing short-term,
medium-term and long-term loans; (3) domestic settlement; (4) bill acceptance and
discounting; (5) interbank lending; (6) banking card business; (7) acting as issuing agent,
cashing agent and underwriter of government bonds; (8) acting as collection and payment
agent and insurance agent; (9) other business approved by the banking regulatory authority
(business activities subject to approval according to law may be carried out only after being
approved by the competent authorities). As at the end of the Reporting Period, Queshan
Zhengyin County Bank had total assets of RMB449 million, net assets of RMB49 million,
total loans and advances to customers of RMB260 million, total deposits from customers
of RMB361 million. During the Reporting Period, it recorded operating income of RMB19
million, operating profit of RMB7 million, and net profit of RMB5 million.
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4.7.2 Operations of Investee Companies

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank held 18.53%, 49.58% and 25.00% equity
interest in Zhongmu Zhengyin County Bank, Yanling Zhengyin County Bank and Xinzheng
Zhengyin County Bank, respectively. Three county banks had total assets of RMB23,183
million, total loans and advances to customers of RMB15,364 million, and total deposits
from customers of RMB20,733 million.

Zhengyin county banks have always committed to serving “agriculture, farmers and rural
areas” and supporting “small and medium-sized enterprises”. With a growing asset size
and an increasingly balanced structure of deposits and loans, the bank has stepped up its
efforts to support agricultural enterprises and increased shareholder returns year by year. As
a result, Zhongmu Zhengyin County Bank is ranked at the forefront among all county banks
in the country in terms of comprehensive strength.

4.7.3 Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
During the Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the Bank had no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

4.8 Structured Entities Controlled by the Bank

Details of the structured entities controlled by the Bank are set out in Note 43 to the financial
statements of the chapter headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” of this Report.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Bank’s goals of capital management include: (1) satisfying regulatory requirements on an ongoing
basis, and making reasonable room for normal operations and development from a capital perspective; (2)
ensuring that the capital level is commensurate with major risk exposure and risk management capacity;
(3) ensuring that capital planning is in line with the status of operation, risk movement trends, and long-
term development strategy; (4) using a variety of capital tools to optimize the scale and structure of
capital, continuously strengthening the endogenous capacity of capital, and controlling the cost of capital
with the support of reasonable financing strategies; (5) implementing Bank-wide capital performance
evaluation, enhancing the efficiency of capital use, and fully guaranteeing the level of return on capital
through capital allocation, risk pricing and performance evaluation; (6) appropriately implementing counter-
cyclical capital management, and smoothing the impact of cyclical fluctuations on sustainable and stable
operations through active capital management.

The Bank continuously improves its comprehensive risk management structure and internal capital
management procedures, prudently evaluates various risks, and fully identifies, measures, monitors and
reports on major risks. In accordance with the relevant requirements of the regulatory authorities and the
needs of the Bank for future development strategies, the Bank conducts capital planning once a year to
set a capital adequacy ratio target for at least three years. The capital planning is dynamically adjusted
every year in a timely manner in accordance with changes in regulatory requirements, development
situations, and other circumstances. When conducting capital planning, the Bank prudently evaluates
asset quality, profit growth and capital market volatility, fully considers factors that may have a significant
negative impact on capital levels, including contingent risk exposure, severe and prolonged market
recession, and other events exceeding risk tolerance, ensure that the target capital level is commensurate
with the business development strategy, risk appetite, risk management capability, and external operating
environment, balance short-term and long-term capital needs, and consider the long-term sustainability of
various sources of capital replenishment.

Based on the requirements of external regulatory authorities and internal risk management, the Bank
conducts stress tests on capital adequacy ratio on a regular or irregular basis as an important part
of the internal capital adequacy assessment procedures to evaluate the risks exposures of the Bank
under stressful conditions, the interaction between risks, the ability of capital to absorb losses and
support business continuity, as well as the reasonableness of capital management objectives, capital
replenishment arrangements and response measures. The results of the stress test are applied in medium
and long-term capital planning. For severe stress scenarios, the Bank formulates contingency capital plans
to meet unplanned capital needs, specifying corresponding capital replenishment policies and response
measures to ensure stable operations.

Capital financing management aims to further strengthen capital capacity, improve capital structure and
enhance capital quality. The Bank focuses on the endogenous growth of capital; strives to realize the
balance and coordination between expansion, profitability and capital constraints; replenishes capital via
measures like profit growth, keeping surplus reserve and allocating sufficient provision for impairment
losses on loans; optimizes capital structure and raises capital adequacy ratio level, so as to further
improve the Bank’s capability to resist risks and support the development of the real economy.
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5.1 Capital Adequacy Ratio Analysis

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Bank continued to refine its business structure and strengthen its capital management. Set
out below are the Bank’s capital adequacy ratios as at the end of the Reporting Period and the
end of the previous year calculated in accordance with the Administrative Measures for Capital
of Commercial Banks (Provisional) issued by the Former CBRC in 2012 and other relevant

requirements issued:

As at

31 December
Item 2020

Core tier-one capital

Unit: RMB’000

As at
31 December
2019

Share capital 7,514,125
Valid portion of capital reserve 8,203,903
Fair value reserve (698,206)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (60,953)
Surplus reserve 2,976,573
General reserve 7,078,451
Retained earnings 11,655,496
Valid portion of minority interests 947,757
Total core tier-one capital 37,617,146
Core tier-one capital deductions (1,074,912)
Net core tier-one capital 36,542,234
Additional tier-one capital

Additional tier-one capital instruments and related premium 7,825,508
Valid portion of minority interests 125,176
Net tier-one capital 44,492,918
Tier-two capital

Qualifying portion of tier-two capital instruments issued 5,000,000
Surplus provision for loan impairment 2,932,817
Valid portion of minority interests 253,634
Net tier-two capital 8,186,451
Net capital base 52,679,369
Total risk-weighted assets 409,505,750
Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio (%) 8.92
Tier-one capital adequacy ratio (%) 10.87
Capital adequacy ratio (%) 12.86

5,921,932
5,163,655
97,063
(46,424)
2,675,548
6,619,553
10,333,487
601,657
31,366,471
(918,036)
30,448,435

7,825,508
79,185
38,353,128

5,000,000
2,701,779

160,589
7,862,368

46,215,496
381,759,225
7.98

10.05

12.11

Note: For details, please refer to the column headed “Financial Summary” under Investor Relations on the

Bank’s website.
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5.2 Leverage Ratio Analysis

Unit: RMB’ 000

31 30 30 31

December September June March

Item 2020 2020 2020 2020

Net tier-one capital 45,574,048 42,223,905 41,628,919 40,921,229
Balance of on/off-balance sheet

assets after adjustment 686,993,391 678,584,802 687,554,034 672,368,001

Leverage ratio (%) 6.63 6.22 6.05 6.09

Note: Indicators related to leverage ratio as at the end of the Reporting Period, the end of the third quarter of
2020, the end of the first half of 2020 and the end of the first quarter of 2020 are calculated based on
the requirements of the Administrative Measures for Leverage Ratio Management of Commercial Banks
(Amended) (Former CBRC Order [2015] No. 1) coming into effect on 1 April 2015 which are consistent
with the data reported to the regulatory authorities. For details, please refer to the column headed
“Financial Summary” under Investors Relation of the Bank’s website.

6 BUSINESS OPERATION
6.1 Corporate Banking Business
6.1.1 Corporate Deposits

During the Reporting Period, due to the Pandemic, the economic situation at home and
abroad was tough, and China’s economy was going through a recovery period. In this
context, the traditional banking industry and other related sectors including consumer
finance, insurance, securities and funds faced tightening regulation. In an effort to promote
business upgrade, the Bank vigorously advanced the online and offline transaction banking
business and the construction of the “Five Clouds” platforms, and leveraged on financial
technologies to build a one-stop service ecosystem for corporate customers through
the development of online corporate asset business, supply chain finance, treasury
management, scenario finance, value-added and tailored services, thus driving the steady
growth of corporate deposits. The Bank focused on increasing low-cost corporate deposits
and corporate-private synergy, improved the construction and assessment of customer
base, and constantly strengthened the marketing and management of corporate deposit
business to ensure the stable growth of corporate deposits. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, the Bank’s corporate deposits was RMB206,456 million, representing an increase of
RMB12,826 million or 6.62% from the end of the previous year.
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6.1.2

6.1.3

Corporate Loans

During the Reporting Period, the Bank followed the national policies to give strong support
for enterprises to resume work and production, reduced corporate financing costs by cutting
fees and charges, and took various measures to help boost the real economy. Based on
the unique positioning as a “commerce and logistics bank”, the Bank continued to expand
its basic customer base, vigorously developed capital-light services, strictly controlled the
issuance of new loans, and strengthened risk screening on existing loans. As a result,
the Bank’s asset structure continued to improve and its corporate loans grew steadily
with improving asset quality. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the total principal of
corporate loans (including advances, forfeiting and discounted bills) of the Bank amounted
to RMB170,630 million, representing an increase of RMB34,312 million or 25.17% from the
end of the previous year.

Corporate Customers

During the Reporting Period, the Bank further promoted customer base management,
integrated the sales management system, customer relationship management system and
big data intelligent marketing system to achieve one-stop customer discovery, marketing
and management and enable online and intelligent customer base management. The Bank
continued to establish a sales management mechanism and sales review mechanism,
used upstream and downstream customer profiles to carry out in-depth marketing
and management of upstream and downstream customers, strengthened the dynamic
management of corporate customers, and improved the work efficiency of the marketing
team, thus promoting the sustainable and sound development of customer base.
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6.1.4 Institutional Business

During the Reporting Period, the Bank completed the strategic planning of government
finance and further focused on the development strategy of institutional business. The
Bank continued to improve its agency qualifications for key business lines, successfully
obtained the cooperative banks agency qualifications for provincial central treasury payment,
provincial unified salary payment and provincial social security card, and achieved full
coverage of the agency qualifications for non-tax revenue collection in Zhengzhou. As such,
the Bank covered more than 70% central treasury payments at the city and county (district)
levels of Zhengzhou, served as the sole bankruptcy administration agency for the local
courts in Zhengzhou, and became one of the three agent banks for rural collective economic
institutions in Zhengzhou, laying a solid foundation for subsequent business development.
The Bank rapidly scaled up its institutional customer base. During the Reporting Period,
755 new institutional accounts were opened; as at the end of the Reporting Period, the
Bank had 4,200 institutional customers. In addition, the Bank highlighted the advantages
of its characteristic segments and introduced the “Bank-Court Connect 2.0” product which
has been used by 11 courts and has covered over 60% of the areas of Zhengzhou. The
Bank cooperated with 69 courts in the province on litigation fees. As the influence of the
“Smart Government” brand continued to improve, the Bank has acquired a total of 229
e-government services customers. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the daily average
deposits of the Bank’s institutional customers amounted to RMB53,798 million, representing
an increase of RMB3,015 million from the end of the previous year and accounting for 28%
of the daily average of the Bank’s corporate deposits (excluding foreign-currency, agreement
and treasury deposits).

6.2 Retail Banking Business
6.2.1 Personal Deposits

As a local financial institution in Zhengzhou, the Bank upholds its distinctive positioning as
a “boutique bank for residents”, strengthens product innovation based on customer needs,
and focuses on key customers to improve the service system; deepens wealth management,
consolidates individual customer base, continuously improve customer loyalty by providing
high-quality financial services. As at end of the Reporting Period, the total balance of the
principal of Bank’s personal deposits amounted to RMB107,775 million, representing an
increase of RMB12,187 million or 12.75% from the end of the previous year.
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6.2.2

6.2.3

Personal Loans

During the Reporting Period, the Bank continued to refine key products. It launched
the “Housing E-finance” (Fef#) applet which integrates online credit approval, online
mobile valuation, online contract signing and mortgage processing, in an effort to provide
convenient and efficient financial services for customers. The balance of loans under
“Housing E-finance” exceeded RMB10 billion in October 2020, and reached RMB14,363
million as at the end of the Reporting Period. The Bank improved the online process of the
“Preferential Loan” (25 &) product, built a “full-process online” customer service channel,
and increased marketing efforts through marketing based on list screening, model triggering
and big data forecasting. In addition, the Bank successfully issued housing mortgage assets
backed securities (ABS). During the Reporting Period, the “Yuding 2020 Phase | Personal
Housing Mortgage-backed Securities” were transferred, representing a total amount of
assets of RMB3,499 million and 9,606 transactions were transferred. As at end of the
Reporting Period, the Bank’s personal loans amounted to RMB67,329 million, representing
an increase of RMB7,735 million or 12.98% from the end of the previous year.

Bank Cards

With Shangding Card (£ ) as the basic debit card, the Bank constantly enriches debit
card types and improves their functions. During the Reporting Period, the Bank issued a
series of featured cards including Taihang Changxing Logistics Card (X775 #4737 1), with
a steady growth in new card issuances. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank
had issued a total of 6,591,300 debit cards, representing an increase of 521,000 cards as
compared with the end of the previous year.

The Bank continued to optimize the credit card environment, improve business functions
and enhance service quality. During the Reporting Period, the Bank issued three credit
cards, namely Le Card (%), Virtual Card (E#E+) and Oscar Cinema Card (E& ). As
at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank had issued a total of 492,814 Shangding
credit cards, with an aggregate spending of RMB76.5 billion. During the Reporting Period,
the Bank’s credit card spending amounted to RMB22.8 billion and achieved a revenue of
RMB191 million (cumulative revenue: RMB568 million).
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6.3 Treasury Business

6.3.1

6.3.2

Money Market Transactions

During the Reporting Period, according to its business plan indicators and liquidity
management requirements, the Bank, while ensuring the safety of liquidity, scientifically
adjusted the debt maturity structure through effective pre-judgment on money supply to
control financing costs and increase gains. Meanwhile, the Bank performed its obligation
as a tier-1 trader to provide funds to the market. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the
total balance of the Bank’s deposits with banks and other financial institutions and financial
assets held under resale agreements was RMB14,027 million, accounting for 2.56% of
the Bank’s total assets; and the total balance of deposits from banks and other financial
institutions and financial assets sold under repurchase agreements was RMB61,981 million,
accounting for 12.35% of the Bank’s total liabilities.

Investment in Securities and Other Financial Assets

During the Reporting Period, the Bank paid close attention to the changes in international
dynamics, changes in the domestic and international economic environment and the
capital market, strengthened the study and trend analysis on the bond market, capital
market, external regulatory policies and the impact of the Pandemic on the domestic and
international macroeconomic environment, timely adjusted the direction of capital investment
and business development strategies, and seized appropriate business opportunities, so as
to attain maximum interest margin of capital investment while keeping risks under control.
As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s total investment in bonds, trust products,
investment products managed by securities companies and other securities financial
assets amounted to RMB234,445 million, down by 4.22% from the end of the previous
year. Among them, the total investment in bonds was RMB88,304 million, representing
an increase of 14.60% from the end of the previous year; and the total investment in trust
products and investment products managed by securities companies was RMB123,017
million, representing a decrease of 12.42% from the end of the previous year.
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6.3.3 Investment Banking Business

6.3.4

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s lead underwriting business of non-financial
corporate debt financing instruments grew rapidly. The Bank partnered with a number of
large enterprises in Henan Province to issue debt instruments of RMB14.65 billion in total.
In terms of underwriting amount, the Bank ranked fourth in Henan Province and third among
Class B city commercial banks in China. The Bank acted as the lead underwriter for Henan'’s
first ultra-short-term debentures for Pandemic prevention and control to help Henan to fight
the Pandemic and resume work and production. The Bank became the first city commercial
pank In Henan to obtain the qualification for entrusted management of debt financing
instruments in accordance with the policy requirements on entrusted management of the
National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors.

Wealth Management Business

During the Reporting Period, pursuant to regulatory requirements, the Bank continued
to scale down interbank and principal-guaranteed wealth management products and
develop personal non-principal-guaranteed wealth management business, thus enhancing
the liquidity management for wealth management business and achieving the strategic
transformation goal of reducing interbank wealth management products. As at the end of
the Reporting Period, the balance of the Bank’s interbank wealth management products
was RMB4 billion, down by 18.86% from the end of the previous year; the balance of
principal-guaranteed wealth management products was RMB879 million, down by 80.89%
from the end of the previous year; and the balance of non-principal-guaranteed wealth
management products was RMB45,054 million, up by 20.25% from the end of the previous
year. During the Reporting Period, the Bank issued a total of 268 wealth management
products, raising RMB104,177 million in total. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the
scale of the Bank’s existing wealth management products was RMB49,932 million, up
by 6.25% from the end of the previous year. Meanwhile, the Bank sped up the shift to
net-worth wealth management business in an effort to shift to 100% net-worth products
during the transition period. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the scale of net-worth
wealth management products was RMB38,418 million, representing an increase of 86.19%
from the end of the previous year and accounting for 76.94% of the total; the scale of retail
wealth management products was RMB45,752 million, representing an increase of 49.91%
from the end of the previous year and accounting for 91.63% of the total.
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6.4 Featured Business
6.4.1 Commerce and Logistics Finance

During the Reporting Period, the Bank vigorously developed commerce and logistics
finance, improved the business quality and quantity of “Five Clouds”, enriched the “Five
Clouds” products, continuously explored innovative models, introduced inter-platform open
APIs, successfully issued standard notes, and explored the integration of finance, industry
and technology to empower the real economy and provide more convenient and efficient
financial services for small and micro enterprises and private enterprises. Meanwhile, the
Bank continued to improve the technological capabilities in providing supply chain finance
services, and leveraged on advanced financial technologies to establish an Internet-based
“four-in-one” platform combining the flows of business, information, capital, and goods
based on the real transactions between key enterprises and the upstream and downstream
players, so as to provide “settlement + financing”, “domestic + overseas”, and “standard +
tailored” integrated solutions for key enterprises in industry chains and their upstream and
downstream partners through rich solutions, efficient response mechanism and professional
service capabilities.

Cloud Trading

The “Cloud Trading” platform flexibly combines various cloud products and services such
as corporate online banking, cash management, bank-enterprise direct link, and cross-
bank treasury management to “tailor” financial solutions for customers. During the Reporting
Period, the Bank collected and conducted analysis on customer needs by means such as
online questionnaires and offline follow-up visits, and then efficiently iterated and upgraded
products and systems to improve customer experience. In particular, the Bank launched
a virtual cash management account with four product models (easy bookkeeping, easy
collection, one connect, and user-defined mode), which supports four types of cash pools
(physical cash pool, legal cash pool, virtual cash pool, and inter-bank cash pool) and can
manage other bank accounts through the Bank’s corporate online banking, and added
products like budget management and receivables and payables management where
product parameterized configuration is implemented, thereby providing customers with
a complete package of treasury management services. As of the end of the Reporting
Period, the Bank’s corporate online banking had over 40,000 customers signed up; its cash
management platform had provided treasury management solutions for almost 2,500 large
and medium-sized enterprises and public institutions; its bank-enterprise direct link had
connected with almost 100 large and medium-sized group customers; the Bank had issued
over 3,700 corporate settlement cards in total.
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Cloud Financing

The “Cloud Financing” platform boasts innovative products, convenient services, efficient
response and leading technology as its core competitiveness, and uses e-signature, big
data, the Internet and other innovative financial technologies to extend the credit of key
enterprises along industry chains, so as to serve the supply chain ecosystem in line with
the national strategic initiative to support the development of SMEs. In doing so, the Bank
strives to provide customers with end-to-end online experience with multi-port access
and one-stop convenient and efficient services. During the Reporting Period, a new model
of online supply chain financing was introduced for e-commerce prepayments, forming a
characteristic public-private business scenario. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the
“Cloud Financing” platform had helped over 600 enterprises to raise over RMB16 billion.

Cloud Business

The “Cloud Business” platform is built on the Commerce and Logistics Bank Alliance,
leveraging advanced financial technology to build a supply chain finance ecosystem. Based
on the transaction information throughout the supply chain, the Bank extends the credit
of high-quality enterprises to their upstream customers through the electronic settlement
voucher “Ding E Credit” (§efZ) to provide key enterprises, suppliers and financial institutions
with financing, asset trading, asset management and related information consulting services,
in an effort to help upstream SMEs to reduce financing costs and improve financing
efficiency. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Cloud Business platform had more
than 1,100 registered members, including approximately 60 key enterprises, and had helped
almost 650 upstream partners of the key enterprises to raise approximately RMB8 billion in
total.

Cloud Logistics

The “Cloud Logistics” platform provides customers with one-stop financial services through
products such as treasury management, financing services and logistics support to build
a strategic brand as a commerce and logistics bank. During the Reporting Period, a cloud
logistics freight payment agency product integrating the flows of cargo, information and
capital was launched to build a complete online freight platform. The Bank explored financial
innovations in “platform + data + scenario”, introduced a new model featuring public-private
linkage, and tailored financial products for the logistics industry and its upstream and
downstream players, with a view to serving the real economy while committing to the
logistics sector. As at the end of the Reporting Period, 440,000 payments had been made
under the D+0 payment agency service with a total amount of RMB600 million; an aggregate
of 2.83 million entrusted logistics transactions had been completed with a total transaction
amount of over RMB4.6 billion.
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6.4.2

Cloud Service

The “Cloud Service” platform provides value-added and tailored services for customers and
scenario-based financial services for SMEs by developing different financial products and
bespoke solutions for diverse scenarios. In addition, Cloud Service uses the WeChat Official
Account of “Zhengzhou Bank Trade Finance” (Z/NiE7TRZ £ &%) and various innovative
scenario-based financial platforms to push industry insight reports and forward-looking
industry analysis in a targeted manner, and to provide value-added financial services such
as online appointment for account opening, electronic invoicing, fund supervision and office
collaboration. During the Reporting Period, the Bank launched the Cloud Service app,
added value-added services for smart office, and introduced four business scenarios, i.e.
easy-to-pay school catering, medical insurance prepayment, supervision of migrant workers’
salary payments, and home purchase deposit. The catering fee collection system for
primary and secondary schools has been put into use; the medical insurance prepayment
management product has been applied in approximately 20 designated hospitals; the
migrant workers’ payroll supervision service has been used by almost 50 enterprises,
covering seven rural banks; and the home purchase deposit service is well received by
customers.

Financial Services for Small and Micro Enterprises

During the Reporting Period, the Bank adhered to the original intention of “serving the
real economy”, and enhanced the small and micro finance model to continuously improve
the influence and market share of the Bank’s small and micro finance business and build
a characteristic brand. First, the Bank improved product design and promoted product
innovation. It accelerated product research and development (‘R&D”) and upgrade and
expanded the product portfolio for targeted customer groups, including home owners,
housing provident fund customers, assets under management (AUM) customers, trade union
membership card holders, tax-paying customers, medical suppliers, etc. Second, the Bank
set up a green channel for credit approval to improve approval efficiency. In an effort to offer
low-cost funding to meet the production and operation needs of key enterprises, the Bank
further improved the efficiency of loan review and release, introduced differentiated approval
policies with special and urgent approval procedures for special situations and emergencies,
and streamlined the loan application process while ensuring compliance to help enterprises
tide over the tough time. Third, the Bank used technology to enhance risk prevention and
control capabilities. The Bank improved the quality of its data and introduced third-party
data sources to lay a solid foundation to improve its risk control capabilities. It employed
special technologies such as decision-making engine to build its own risk control system
based on internal and external data and alongside rules, strategies and models. As at the
end of the Reporting Period, the balance of the Bank’s outstanding loans to small and micro
enterprises each with a credit facility of not more than RMB10 million (inclusive) amounted
to RMB34.23 billion, representing an increase of 21.87% from the end of the previous year,
which is 0.48 percentage point higher than the growth rate of all loans of the Bank. The
number of small and micro enterprises receiving inclusive loans with loan balance stood
at 65,522, representing an increase of 262 from the end of the previous year, marking the
successful achievement of the regulatory goals of “two increases and two controls”. During
the year, the Bank issued in aggregate inclusive loans of RMB30,039 million to small and
micro enterprises at an average interest rate of 4.97%, representing a decrease of 1.64

percentage points as compared with the previous year.
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6.5

6.4.3 Financial Services for Residents

The Bank upholds its distinctive positioning as a “boutique bank for residents” to
continuously develop financial products based on customer needs and improve customer
experience. Considering the liquidity needs of residents, the Bank launched the low-risk,
high-liquidity net-worth wealth management product “Golden Wutong Zhengyinbao” which
has a low entry barrier and allows for flexible subscription and redemption. The purchase
amount is subject to a minimum of RMB10,000 and may increase by any multiple of
one Renminbi, with the interest accruing from T day of subscription and the redeemed
amount arriving on T+1 day of redemption. The Bank developed Internet channels for
commission-based agency sales of precious metals. In May 2020, the Bank’s mobile
banking launched the precious metal agency sales business. In August 2020, the Bank’s
Tmall flagship store officially opened and began to serve customers nationwide for
commission-based sales of precious metals. In an effort to serve local customers, the Bank
created the exclusive brand of “Trade Union Membership Card”, and constantly launched
tailored products and special activities to meet the diverse needs of trade union members.
Such products and services are well received by the members. As part of the effort to
develop innovative financial services, the Bank launched the WeChat applet of “Zhengzhou
Bank Wealth Manager” to create an Internet-based new retail marketing model driven by
technology which achieved a sales amount of over RMB13 billion within six months of its
launch. In December 2020, the applet received the “User Experience Case Award of the
Year” in the Chinese Financial Brand Case of the Year Competition.

Distribution Channels

6.5.1 Physical outlets

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank established its head office in Zhengzhou,
Henan, 14 branches in Nanyang, Xinxiang, Luoyang, Anyang, Xuchang, Shanggiu, Luohe,
Xinyang, Puyang, Pingdingshan, Zhumadian, Kaifeng, Zhoukou and Hebi of Henan Province,
158 sub-branches and one special entity. Meanwhile, the Bank enhanced the layout of
its self-service equipment outlets, established a network of 158 internal and 66 external
self-service equipment outlets, forming proper area coverage and providing convenient
24-hour services.
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6.5.2 Electronic banking
Self-service banking

Adhering to the customer-oriented approach, the Bank continued to develop self-service
equipment with new functions, actively promoted the transformation of self-service
equipment and focused on developing multifunctional non-cash self-service equipment.
As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank had a total of 1,508 self-service facilities,
including 233 automated cash withdrawal machines, 347 automated teller machines,
339 smart counters, 258 online banking terminals, 162 easy payment terminals, and 169
automated queueing terminals. During the Reporting Period, the total number of cash
deposit and withdrawal transactions through self-service equipment was 5,473,000,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 24.72%, while the amount was RMB15,972 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 17.28%.

Online banking

The Bank’s online banking provides customers with online services with more convenient
experiences, more stable systems, more flexible security certifications, and more product
features through three major segments including financial products, wealth management
products, and life service products. During the Reporting Period, the Bank had 385,400
new online banking users, and 1,778,400 transactions contributing to transaction amount
of RMB52,042 million. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the accumulative number
of personal online banking customers was 1,807,100 (excluding closed accounts). During
the Reporting Period, the Bank had over 41,000 contracted corporate online banking
customers; the number of transactions was over 3,370,000 while the transaction amount
was over RMB1.2 trillion.

Mobile banking

The Bank’s mobile banking provides customers with safe and efficient financial and utilities
services. Financial services include mobile payment, remittance express, wealth management
supermarket, insurance supermarket, fund supermarket, precious metals, credit card and
personal loan; utilities services include utility payments, gas refilling and value top-up, charity
donations, travelling, electronic trade union cards, movie and video memberships and
takeaways, creating a financial ecosystem with local characteristics. During the Reporting
Period, the Bank had 438,800 new mobile bank customers contributing to 8,011,300
transactions and transaction amount of RMB108,032 million. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, the accumulative number of mobile banking accounts was 2,090,400.
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Online payment

The Bank’s online payment business covers the mainstream payment methods such as
Alipay, Tenpay, Baifubao, JD.com online and Yifubao, providing diversified payment channels
for bank cards and enhancing customers’ payment experience. During the Reporting
Period, the number and amount of transactions for the Bank amounted to 92,092,000
and RMB33,490 million, respectively, representing a year-on-year increase of 10.04% and
17.73%. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the number of accumulative transactions
was 258,653,200, amounting to transaction amount of RMB95,878 million.

Telephone banking

We offer uninterrupted 24-hour telephone banking service to customers through the
nationwide customer service hotline 95097, including business consultation, transaction
inquiry, loss reporting, bill payment, loan business consultation, investment and wealth
management services, PIN services, credit card services, outbound calls and customer care.
The customer service centre continued to enhance user experience and actively expanded
the scope of service based on customer needs. During the Reporting Period, our telephone
banking service department handled a total of 3,293,200 cases.

Online customer service

The Bank’s online customer service connects with the Bank’s official website, online
banking, mobile banking, and WeChat public account channels to answer business inquiries
online, accept customer complaints, and integrate featured functions such as intelligent
knowledge bases, 7x24 self-service responses, and multi-channel marketing, providing
customers with intelligent online services. During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s manual
customer service handled a total of 26,300 cases and its automated response handled a
total of 272,600 cases.

Video banking

In August 2020, the Bank launched video banking that connects with its mobile banking
and online banking to provide eight types of scenario-based services including review,
consultation and guidance. Video banking had delivered 13,000 service transactions,
including 7,000 review transactions and 6,000 consulting transactions.
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WeChat banking

Based on the WeChat eco-system (WeChat official account, applets, WeChat corporate
account, etc.), the Bank provides customers with a variety of financial services such as
business and brand marketing and promotion, financial transactions for payment and
settlement, and life services. During the Reporting Period, the Bank created an applet
ecosystem by launching Zhengzhou Bank Online Business Centre (EFM$R71T4R _E 42 E8),
Housing E-finance (fSe®t) applet, credit card applet, small business loan applet, and bank-
enterprise reconciliation applet, in order to remedy shortcomings in business, expand service
handling channels, cater to different customer needs, and facilitate the digital transformation
of the Bank. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the “Zhengzhou Bank WeChat Bank”
official account had 1.36 million users with cards linked.

Ding Rong Yi

The Bank’s internet financial service platform “Ding Rong Yi” (5 &%), based on the “Internet
+” strategy, focuses on key scenarios including micro, small and medium-sized enterprises,
and resident financial services, providing online account opening application, online wealth
management, payment and receipt, convenient payment, e-commerce service and other
diversified service features. During the Reporting Period, Ding Rong Yi had 1,385,900
accumulative transactions amounting to RMB12,529 miillion; intermediary business revenue
(after tax) was RMB2,585,600. As at the end of the Reporting Period, number of Ding Rong
Yi accounts was 726,600.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Bank proactively adapted to economic changes and regulatory
requirements, placed focus on the mindset of high-quality development, upheld prudent and sound
development philosophy, further implemented the capital return and risk pricing concept, continuously
optimized the comprehensive risk management system, established a sound compliance and risk
management culture, continuously provided and improved a diverse range of risk management and control
tools, and committed to balancing and effectively promoting risk management and business development
together with value creation to assure that the Bank conducts its business operations in an ongoing and
stable manner. In its business operations, the Bank is mainly exposed to the risks and has the control
initiatives as follows.

7.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of loss caused by the failure by a debtor or counterparty to perform its
contractual obligations or responsibilities. The Bank’s credit risk exposure mainly comes from loan
portfolios, investment portfolios, guarantees and other types of on- and off-balance sheet credit
risk. We have built a credit risk management framework covering all credit business processes,
and developed policies and procedures to identify, assess, measure, monitor, mitigate and control
credit risks. For credit risk management, we mainly adopt the following measures:

Firstly, we promoted policy research and innovation and strengthened credit policy guidance. The
Bank initiated the “one branch, one policy” research to conduct analysis on the advantages of
regional economy in depth and explore development paths with regional characteristics; established
standard industry research models, strengthened industry research, and enhanced industry
foresight to improve front-end risk prevention and control. Secondly, we strengthened customer
access management and strictly controlled access to new credit facilities. The Bank set a basic
access threshold for each customer based on its industry, size and other factors, formulated and
tightened the concentration limit indicator, strengthened credit concentration management, strictly
controlled the granting of facilities in large amounts, and developed plans to reduce existing credit
facilities. Thirdly, we improved the approval mechanism to enhance approval efficiency and quality.
The Bank established a hierarchical approval process covering the head office, branches and
sub-branches, carried out credit review within the scope of authority, and improved the efficiency
of credit review; and conducted unified credit management throughout the Bank to prevent credit
extension by multiple outlets and excessive credit extension, thus reducing credit risk.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s single customer loan concentration was 3.61%,
which met the 10% cap requirement as stipulated by the CBIRC; single group customer credit
concentration was 6.15%, which met the 15% cap requirement stipulated by the CBIRC; the
balance of loans to the top ten customers was RMB13,785 million, and the loan concentration
of the top ten customers was 26.17%; the balance of credit facilities to a single related party
customer was RMB2,580 million, with a credit concentration of 5.24%; and the credit concentration
of all related parties was 32.83%, which met the 50% cap requirement as stipulated by the CBIRC.
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7.2

Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of on- or off-balance-sheet loss arising from adverse changes in
market prices. The market risks that the Bank is exposed to are mainly interest rate risk and
exchange rate risk. The Bank’s market risk management objective is to ensure that potential
market losses are controlled at an acceptable level based on risk tolerance while striving to obtain
maximum risk-adjusted returns. The Bank’s market risk management covers the whole process of
identifying, measuring and monitoring market risks. For market risk management, we mainly adopt
the following measures:

Firstly, we continued to optimize the market risk management system. The Bank has established
a hierarchical market risk management system which covers account book keeping, risk
measurement, stress testing, risk reporting and special business risk management, and defines
the functions of the Board, senior management and the three lines of defense. Secondly, we
strengthened market risk limit management. Based on comprehensive analysis of the historical
fluctuations, gains and losses of risk assets in the market, investment strategies and allocation of
products, the Bank enhanced the market risk limit system, scientifically set risk limit indicators for
new business lines and new products, and developed an annual market risk limit plan, so as to
consolidate the foundation for market risk management. Thirdly, we conducted daily risk monitoring.
The Bank set up a market risk monitoring system covering monitoring objects, monitoring scope
and monitoring indicators, achieved front- and mid-office information sharing on market dynamics,
asset structure and limit implementation through daily market risk monitoring reports, established
an account book for market risk limit management to improve the quality and efficiency of risk
monitoring. Fourthly, we vigorously promoted the digital management of market risk. The Bank
adopted the idea to build a platform-based, modular and standardized digital management system,
and tested the core measurement functions such as valuation, value at risk and stress testing after
comprehensively considering the completeness of functions of the risk management system of the
financial market business and mid- and long-term business development needs.
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7.3

Operational Risk

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss caused by imperfect or problematic internal procedures,
personnel or information technology systems, and external events, mainly including internal and
external frauds, employment system and workplace safety incidents, customers, products and
business activities incidents, damage of tangible assets, information technology system incidents,
execution, delivery and process management incidents. The Bank’s operational risk management
objective is to effectively manage operational risks by establishing a sound operational risk
management framework so as to keep the losses of operational risk to a minimum. For operational
risk management, we mainly adopt the following measures:

Firstly, we conducted strict procedural control and deepened the identification and assessment
of procedural risks. The Bank used the Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA) tool to scientifically
identify the key operational risk events, types of risk event, risk reasons, risk factors and control
measures in management procedures and assess the inherent and residual risk exposures based
on the probability and degree of impact of risk occurrence and control its effectiveness. Secondly,
we strengthened management of employee behavior. The Bank revised the Measures for the
Management of Employees’ Violation Points and formulated “13 red lines” for employee behaviors
to deter non-compliant conducts effectively. Thirdly, we enriched technological approaches for risk
prevention and control. The Bank expanded the scope of recovery for approval-related business
using intensive and systematic methods, straightened out the risk characteristics of fraud cases
using a big data system, defined the criteria for credit access of those on the risk list, improved the
risk event review process, and enhanced the capability to investigate related party relationships,
thus effectively preventing ex-ante business risks. Fourthly, we stepped up accountability for risk
business. Based on the results of due diligence on non-performing assets, the Bank conducted
analysis on the problems found in due diligence, designed a systematic management scheme, held
those in charge of risk operations accountable, and stepped up deterrence and warning. Fifthly,
we enhanced our risk management capabilities. The Bank arranged employees to receive internal
control compliance training and dispatched employees to attend Associate International Financial
Risk Officer (AFRO) risk training, thereby enhancing the Bank’s risk management capabilities.
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7.4

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of failure to obtain sufficient funds in time or failure to obtain
sufficient funds at a reasonable cost to pay off debts falling due, to perform other payment
obligations and to meet other capital requirements for normal business operations. The objective
of the Bank’s liquidity risk management is to ensure sufficient fund positions to satisfy repayment
obligations and capital requirements for business settlement. The Bank observes changes in
liquidity closely, monitors the surplus and deficiency of funds on a real-time basis, sets the term
structure in a rational manner, gradually enhances the allocation of assets and liabilities, achieves
a balance in the asset-liability structure and steps up liquidity risk monitoring to assure liquidity is
safe and under control. For liquidity management, we mainly adopt the following measures:

Firstly, we stepped up liquidity management during daytime. We closely monitored the changes of
macro and monetary policies, predicted the changes of cash flows, arranged the financing term
structure in a rational manner to ensure that the requirement of positions during daytime can be
met. Secondly, we optimized the allocation of assets and liabilities, and strengthened the balanced
management of assets and liabilities plans and liquidity risks. We focused on the structure of
assets and liabilities and duration management to maintain a safe and reasonable level of maturity
mismatch. Thirdly, we strengthened liquidity risk limits management. We improved the liquidity
limits management systems, strengthened the alert on risk limit monitoring and timely integrated
the assets and liabilities plans to adjust the risk metrics in order to ensure the liquidity limit metrics
operate within a safe level. Fourthly, we conducted stress tests and emergency liquidity drills. The
stress tests analyze the potential vulnerabilities of liquidity risks and the results from the stress
tests are applied to the assets and liabilities plans. Meanwhile, we conducted emergency liquidity
drills after fully taking into account the results from stress tests to enhance emergency responses,
command coordination and emergency handling mechanisms.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank’s liquidity ratio was 70.41%, which met the
requirement of not less than 25% as stipulated by the CBIRC; its liquidity coverage rate was
3583.94%, which met the requirement of not less than 90% as stipulated by the CBIRC; the net
stable funding ratio was 111.00%, which met the requirement of not less than 100% as stipulated
by the CBIRC. Overall, the Bank’s key liquidity indicators met the regulatory requirements and its
overall liquidity risk was under control.
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7.5

Information Technology Risk

Information technology risk refers to the operational, legal, reputational and other risks caused
by natural factors, human factors, technical loopholes and management flaws in the course of
applying information technology. Based on its own conditions and the external environment, the
Bank develops and constantly improves management measures to identify, measure, monitor,
control and report information technology risk, thus effectively controlling information technology
risk. For information technology risk management, we mainly adopted the following measures:

Firstly, we promoted the construction of an information technology risk management system.
The Bank revised the Measures for Information Technology Risk Management, improved the
methodology for information technology risk management, reshaped the closed-ring management
of the life cycle of information technology risk, and built a dynamic management system for
information technology risk. Secondly, we conducted information technology risk monitoring.
The Bank established and improved a complete set of monitoring indicators covering all areas,
defined the thresholds of the risk indicators, reinforced monitoring and early warning, conducted
dynamic monitoring using key indicators, and prepared the Information Technology Risk Monitoring
Report on a quarterly basis. Thirdly, we deepened information technology risk assessment.
Based on the new methodology for information technology risk assessment and pursuant to the
regulatory guidelines, the Bank carried out risk assessment covering various areas of information
technology, with a focus on special assessment on outsourcing and development testing. Fourthly,
we strengthened business continuity management. The Bank revised the Measures for Business
Continuity Management and the Management Measures for Business Continuity Emergency Plans
and Dirills, and prepared the 2020 business continuity drill summary which covers various drill
scenarios such as information technology projects, major business interruptions, outsourcing
service interruptions, customer information protection, and public service events.
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7.6 Reputational Risk

Reputational risk refers to the risk of negative reporting and comments about the Bank due to
its operations, management and other activities or external events. The objective of the Bank’s
reputational risk management is to identify, monitor, control and eliminate reputational risk by
establishing a positive, reasonable and effective mechanism for reputational risk management in
order to build and maintain a good corporate image and boost its sustainable development. For
reputational risk management, we mainly adopt the following measures:

Firstly, we strengthened our reputational risk management system. The Bank formulated the
Implementation Rules for Reputational Risk Management which stipulates the basic principles
of “proactive management, prudent management, full participation, central management,
and hierarchical accountability”; and revised the Reputational Risk Emergency Plan based on
the Implementation Rules for Reputational Risk Management to provide more detailed and
comprehensive guidance for the efficient handling of sudden negative public opinions. Secondly,
we strengthened public opinion monitoring. The Bank pursued a proactive response strategy
to address public opinions, selected an optimal monitoring platform, used big data for daily
information collection, and gave full play to the role of professionals in analysis and management to
ensure timely detection and accurate research and judgment of negative public opinions, so as to
buy time for effective response. Thirdly, we carried out self-inspection to screen out potential risks.
The Bank conducted in-depth screening of hidden dangers, made great efforts to tackle important
and difficult problems with hidden dangers and historical problems, and improved accountability.
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7.7

Anti-Money Laundering Management

In strict compliance with the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC and other applicable laws
and regulations promulgated by the PBoC and with adherence to the “risk-based” anti-money
laundering method, we established a sound anti-money laundering institutional structure, improved
the internal control and operating procedures for anti-money laundering, enhanced the business
system for anti-money laundering, continued to carry out promotion and training programmes,
and effectively performed various anti-money laundering obligations. In carrying out anti-money
laundering, we mainly adopt the following measures:

Firstly, we established a sound governance structure for money laundering risks. We governed
the responsibilities of the Board, the Board of Supervisors, senior management members, the
anti-money laundering leading group and the member departments of the group, thus establishing a
well-defined and efficient anti-money laundering operation mechanism. Secondly, we strengthened
the construction of the internal control system for anti-money laundering. We improved the internal
control management system for anti-money laundering by having formulated 11 sets of special
rules and regulations for anti-money laundering, covering various aspects of anti-money laundering.
Thirdly, we enhanced the functions of the anti-money laundering monitoring and reporting system.
We strengthened risk monitoring and early warning activities; continuously enhanced anti-money
laundering and anti-terrorist financing capabilities; and revamped the information analysis, reporting
and related supporting module functions of the anti-money laundering monitoring and reporting
system to assure that anti-money laundering information was reported in a stable manner. We also
collected more blacklist information on money laundering and terrorist financing, and improved
the blacklist screening and control mechanism. Fourthly, we stepped up in our promotion on
anti-money laundering. We continued with both thematic publicity and daily publicity means by
carrying out diversified publicity campaigns by means of anti-money laundering information desks,
publicity display boards, distribution of promotional materials, official websites and official WeChat,
LED screens and other publicity channels to popularize anti-money laundering and anti-terrorism
knowledge so as to raise public awareness and enthusiasm in anti-money laundering activities.
Fifthly, we raised employees’ awareness on anti-money laundering. Based on the principle
of “different objects, different methods, different levels and different contents”, we enhanced
employees’ overall awareness, knowledge and skills in respect of anti-money laundering through
central training programmes and training programmes in the form of meetings.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RECEIVING RESEARCH DELEGATIONS, COMMUNICATION AND INTERVIEW
ACTIVITIES

During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not receive any research delegations, and had no
communication and interview activities.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

9.1

9.2

Fulfilment of Social Responsibility

For details, please refer to the 2020 Corporate Social Responsibility Report published on the
websites of CNINFO and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 March 2021 by the Bank.

Fulfilment of Social Responsibility in Calibrated Poverty Alleviation

9.2.1

9.2.2

Calibrated Poverty Alleviation Planning

Based on top-level design and with a focus on credit support, the Bank launched special
credit products and innovated credit service models for poverty alleviation, and had all
business lines and departments work together to ensure the full implementation of poverty
alleviation policies. Starting from product R&D, the Bank introduced the “five-in-one” credit
service model for targeted poverty alleviation- the “Cooperative Poverty Alleviation Loan”
which covers the government, key enterprises, banks, cooperatives and poverty-stricken
households, designated its Nanyang branch as the lead bank for cooperative poverty
alleviation, encouraged poverty-stricken households to join cooperatives to develop, increase
income and get rid of poverty, and encouraged key enterprises to share their development
gains with poverty-stricken households while achieving development.

Overview of Targeted Poverty Alleviation of the Year

During the Reporting Period, the Bank followed the guidance of socialism with Chinese
characteristics in the new era and the spirit of the Nineteenth National Congress of the
Communist Party of China and observed the requirements of the provincial and municipal
government for poverty alleviation to give full play to the role of finance in targeted poverty
alleviation by focussing on industrial poverty alleviation. With a focus on the core mission
of “helping poor areas develop advantageous and characteristic industries, promoting the
employment of poverty-stricken households and increasing the income of poverty-stricken
households” and the objectives of “One Core” and “No Worry About Food and Clothing and
Guarantee of Compulsory Education, Basic Healthcare and Housing Safety”, the Bank took
a package of measures for targeted poverty alleviation and firmly fought against poverty to
support rural revival, help build characteristic villages and serve rural financial works.
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Industrial poverty alleviation: Poverty-stricken areas enjoyed the Bank’s preferential offers
in projects, funds, and product design, as we carefully developed and designed agricultural
loan products based on our research, streamlined loan approval process by reducing
approval procedures, and established a “financial supermarket” to provide professional,
refined, characteristic, efficient and convenient financial services for “agriculture, rural areas
and farmers” enterprises. Meanwhile, the Bank established service outlets in lower-tier
cities and counties, continued to improve infrastructure construction in rural areas through
green credit and other channels, promoted financial knowledge to farmers to increase their
awareness of financial risk prevention, so as to support the construction and development of
rural areas. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank had issued agriculture-related
loans of RMB56,279 million and loans for targeted industrial poverty alleviation of
RMB628.01 million, lifting 3,520 registered poverty-stricken people out of poverty.

Health poverty alleviation: The Bank donated RMB100,000 to the “Let Children Drink Safe
Water” project under the Women and Children’s Development Foundation in Henan Province
to improve and alleviate the current situation regarding unsafe drinking water in children’s
institutions such as primary and secondary schools.

Basic living security: The Nanyang branch of the Bank donated RMB5,800 to impoverished
households, which was used to buy and distribute rice, noodles, oil, milk and other
necessities to them.

Social poverty alleviation: The Bank’s Hebi Branch and subsidiary Xinmi Zhengyin Village
Bank donated a total of RMB928,000 for financing charitable activities; the Bank’s subsidiary
Junxian Zhengyin Village Bank donated RMB1.5 million for financing the development of
poverty relief and public welfare projects. In accordance with the requirements of Zhengzhou
Municipal Committee for targeted poverty alleviation, the Bank incorporated village stationing
into the key tasks of the party building work for the current session of the party committee,
and deployed the chief Party secretary and two Party members to stationing areas to carry
out poverty alleviation work at the frontline. During the Reporting Period, the Bank donated
RMB30,000 to support the repair of village roads, carried out four joint educational and joint
construction activities, and paid consolatory visits to Party members in need and registered
poverty-stricken households and distributed life necessities to them.
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9.2.3 Results of Calibrated Poverty Alleviation

9.2.4

Indicator Amount/performance
[, Overview
Including: 1. Funds RMB630,573,800

2. Material support -
3. Number of registered poverty- 3,520
stricken people lifted out of poverty
Il. ltems =
1. Poverty alleviation by industrial development  RMB628,010,000 of targeted industrial poverty
alleviation loans were issued, lifting 3,520
registered poverty-stricken people out of

poverty
2. Poverty alleviation by transfer of employment -
3. Poverty alleviation by relocation -
4. Educational poverty alleviation -
5. Health poverty alleviation RMB100,000
6. Poverty alleviation by ecological protection -
7. Basic living security RMB5,800
8. Social poverty alleviation RMB2,458,000
9. Other items -
Il Awards (content, class) Lankao Sub-branch of the Bank was awarded

the title of Advanced Unit for Supporting Local
Development by Lankao County Government.

Subsequent Plan for Targeted Poverty Alleviation

The Bank will continue to promote targeted poverty alleviation and ensure that the
targeted poverty alleviation work is closely aligned with rural revival. Specifically, the Bank
will integrate rural poverty alleviation into the rural revival initiatives by broadening credit
channels, investing more resources, enhancing product designs, refining industrial poverty
alleviation policy and improving rural infrastructure, so as to achieve a smooth transition and
integrated development of the two in terms of institutional leadership, product designs and
technology support.

The Bank will continuously enhance its product innovation capabilities, and focus on
supporting operating entities like registered poverty-stricken farmers, agricultural enterprises
and farmers’ cooperatives; further explore the inclusion of the right to operate contracted
land in rural areas, rural housing, forest property rights, the right to use water areas and tidal
flats, and large agricultural machinery and tools in the scope of loan collateral to revive rural
resources, assets and elements, in order to solve the problems of lacking loan guarantees
and medium and long-term credit funds for agricultural production and operation; actively
engage financial technologies and apply big data, artificial intelligence, Internet of Things
and other technologies to financial poverty alleviation to improve the efficiency of poverty
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9.3

alleviation loan approval and reduce service costs; open up a green approval channel for
loan projects for targeted poverty alleviation, offer sufficient funds with preferential interest
rates, ensure the timely and effective release of poverty alleviation loans, with a view to
benefiting more poor people.

Issues Related to Environmental Protection

The Bank and its subsidiaries do not belong to key waste charge units published by environmental
protection authorities.

OUTLOOK

10.1

Industry Landscape and Trend

In 2020, the sudden outbreak of the Pandemic has brought unprecedented impact on the domestic
and global economy. Faced with a challenging macro environment, China’s banking industry
adhered to a new development concept, insisted on deepening reform and opening up, ceded
profits to the real economy, strictly guarded the bottom line of risks, and vigorously supported
Pandemic prevention and control, resumption of work and production and the development of the
real economy. While improving the quality and efficiency of financial services to the real economy
and accelerating the pace of transformation, the industry as a whole was running smoothly with
rapid growth in assets and liabilities, controllable credit risk and sufficient risk compensation
capability. Looking ahead, thanks to the successful control of the Pandemic and economic
recovery, the overall operating environment of China’s banking industry is gradually improving.

In this context, the Bank will pursue coordinated development that balances speed, efficiency and
quality, and concentrate on promoting comprehensive transformation and refined management
to move towards high-quality development. Firstly, the Bank will push forward capital-light
transformation by encouraging the steady development of low-risk, capital-light business
lines, scaling up capital-light investment banking business such as mergers and acquisitions,
matchmaking and underwriting of standard bonds, establishing a long-term mechanism for
circulation of credit assets, promoting the invigoration of existing assets, and gradually optimizing
the credit structure. Secondly, the Bank will continue to focus on product innovation and regard
innovation as the main driving force for future development. To this end, we will enhance the
transformation of innovative ideas, encourage product diversification and innovation and business
model innovation, improve the institutional structure and workflow for innovation, strengthen
assessment on innovation performance, and invest more resources in innovation. Thirdly, the
Bank will accelerate digital transformation by setting up supporting line departments with full-time
technical personnel, promoting the deep integration of technology and business operations,
improving the application of big data in marketing and risk control, and stepping up the effort to
attract technology talents. Fourthly, the Bank will continue to deepen the development of the three
distinctive business lines. In terms of trade financing, we will scale up business volume and create
highlights, improve the service and exchange mechanism of the Commerce and Logistics Bank
Alliance, and increase the service volume for the alliance, in a drive to expand the influence of the
alliance; in terms of small and micro financing, we will keep “positioning in good customer base
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and focusing on good products”, speed up product development and iteration, ensure to achieve
the goals of “Two Increases and Two Controls”, continue to strengthen the application of big data,
and create a safety net against credit risk for small and micro financing; in terms of finance for
residents, we will continue to develop innovative hit products based on customer needs, create
a comprehensive financial service model, carry out differentiated marketing with a focus on key
customer groups and important cities and counties, and endeavor to increase the contribution from
long-tail customers including holders of dormant accounts. Fifthly, the Bank will continue to operate
in compliance with laws and regulations, and shift the focus of compliance management from
ex-post inspection to ex-ante prevention and process management, so as to close compliance
loopholes and prevent misconduct at the source.

Corporate Development Strategy

During the Reporting Period, the Bank formulated the Strategic Development Plan for 2021-2025.
The new five-year strategic plan adheres to the principle of “high-quality” development and “refined”
management, sets the strategic vision of building a “leading bank with high-quality development”,
upholds the three distinctive business positions as “a commerce and logistics bank, a financing
expert for SMEs, and a boutique bank for residents”, and aims to drive the development of four
segments-retail finance, corporate finance, government finance and financial market business
with technological innovations. Under the plan, the Bank will coordinate the “customer-oriented”
omni-channel construction, and continuously improve the construction of core capabilities
including risk management capabilities, institutional and personnel capabilities, resource allocation
capabilities, and technical support capabilities, so as to balance the development of scale,
profitability and risks and promote high-quality and sustainable business development. Based
on the internal and external dynamics, in the next 3-5 years, the Bank will continue to shift to
high-quality organic development and make great efforts to adjust business structure, improve
asset quality and control non-performing assets, so as to prepare for accelerated development in
the next strategic cycle.

Operating Plan

2021 marks the first year of the Bank’s new strategic plan. The Bank will thoroughly implement the
spirit of the central, provincial and municipal economic work conferences and the national banking
and insurance regulatory work conference, adhere to the guidance for Party building, and focus on
strictly implementing the new strategic plan to begin a new chapter for high-quality development.

Firstly, we will focus on the implementation of the new strategic plan. We will continue to promote
high-quality development through various tasks with a focus on carrying out the new strategic plan.
To do so, we will give full play to the role of the PMO mechanism and strictly perform bi-weekly
reporting, monthly reporting, quarterly review and annual appraisal to ensure the completion of
various tasks and goals. In 2021, the appraisal will be performance-based and strategy-oriented,
give priority to debts, and be focused on the assessment of transformation-related key performance
indicators for high-quality development, so as to unleash the vitality of business development.
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Secondly, we will drive the development of key business lines. In respect of retail banking, we will
increase the efforts to pilot and promote rural service outlets and continue to expand liabilities
under management (LUM) and asset under management (AUM). In respect of small and micro
finance, we will focus on “hit products”, optimize our financial technology business model, and
strengthen asset pricing management, team building and post-loan management for small and
micro finance. In respect of corporate banking, we achieved breakthroughs in key provincial and
municipal projects, and will seek to improve the business quality and quantity of “Five Clouds”,
and raise awareness on our brand among institutional clients such as the housing provident fund
authorities and property maintenance funds in Henan Province. In respect of investment banking,
we will focus on bond issuance and matchmaking services for high-quality customers in the
province while actively exploring new investment banking products. In respect of financial market
and asset management, we will constantly improve our capabilities in investment research, credit
evaluation and trading capabilities to build a high-caliber financial market team.

Thirdly, we will speed up “reducing outstanding risk assets and controlling new ones”. We will
define the responsibilities of departments, branches and sub-branches, increase the efforts to
dispose of existing risk assets through means such as collection, revitalization, resolution and
transfer, and supervise and assess risk disposal on a quarterly and monthly basis. We will follow
the principle of “risk control first, revenue second” to conduct risk prevention and control for new
loans. In addition, we will strictly implement the policies on risk appetite, limit management and
non-local credit extension, continue to perform credit risk consulting projects, and strengthen
capacity building for risk management.

Fourthly, we will coordinate “three key business lines” to promote transformation. In terms of
customer base building, we will connect with elderly customers, middle-aged wealthy customers,
payroll agent customers and trade union card customers with a focus on increasing the proportion
of mid- and high-end customers; make good use of hierarchical management and “whitelist”
access to optimize products, services and marketing strategies, and continuously improve the
quality and efficiency of customer base building. In terms of capital-light transformation, we
will continue to promote capital-light transformation, strengthen assessment on capital-light
performance, encourage the growth of capital-light business lines such as wealth management and
small and micro financing, and increase the proportion of “intermediary business income”. In terms
of digital transformation, we will develop omni-channel application scenarios, continuously optimize
the experience of online services such as mobile banking and online banking, and enhance the
intelligent and light transformation of service outlets.
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10.4 Potential Risks

Despite the disruption of global industry chains and negative growth recorded by major economies
in 2020, China’s economic growth pulled off a remarkable turnaround in the third quarter through
proactive fiscal policy and prudent monetary policy. However, given that the economic impacts of
the Pandemic still persist, the banking industry is under fairly high pressure to prevent risks and
maintain stable growth. The Bank principally carries out its business in Henan Province and most
of its customers and businesses are based in Zhengzhou. In this context, economic changes in
Henan Province and Zhengzhou may have a significant impact on the business growth, asset
quality, operating results and financial position of the Bank. Guided by the strategy of high-quality
development, the Bank will adhere to its positioning of “serving the local economy, small and
micro enterprises, and urban and rural residents”, refocus on its original business, continuously
improve institutional construction, personnel capabilities and system technology, expedite digital
transformation and technology application, and enrich risk prevention and control tools and means
to enhance the ability to resist risks.

The Bank has been closely watching and evaluating the impact of the Pandemic on its business
operations, and has taken measures to deal with it, in order to ensure that its financial position
and operating results remain stable. The Bank vigorously supports enterprises to resume work and
production by deferring repayment of principal and interest in a reasonable manner, and actively
implements policies such as refinancing on anti-pandemic initiatives and targeted cuts to required
reserve ratios regarding refinancing to small banks, fulfilling its social responsibilities. However,
the ability of small and medium-sized enterprises to resist risks is low, and the gradual exposure
of subsequent risks will put great pressure on the quality of the Bank’s assets. In addition, the
Pandemic has profound impacts on residents’ living and consumption patterns, leading to an
explosive growth in consumers’ online and personalized needs, which puts higher requirements on
the innovation of the Bank’s products and services.
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CHANGES IN ORDINARY SHARES

1.1 Table of Changes in Ordinary Shares

Unit: Shares

As at 31 December 2019 Increase/decrease during the Reporting Period (+/-) As at 31 December 2020
Proportion Issuance of  Bonus  Capitalization Proportion
Number (%) newshares shares Issue” Others Sub-total Number (%)

|. Shares subject to trading moratorium 2,004,860,763 49.05  +1,000,000,000 - 200809867 -6,982,602 +1,262,827,265 4,187,717,028 55.73
1. State-owned shares 490,904,756 8.29 - - +49,090475 - +9,000475 539,995,230 119
2. Shares held by state-owned legal persons 1,061,006,531 1792 +521,844,800 - +106,100,652 - 62745452 1,688,951,983 248
3. Shares held by other domestic investors 1362,978,417 284 +478,155,200 - 4134618740  -6982602  +605,791,338  1,958,769,815 26.07
Including: Shares held by domestic legal persons ~1,322,509,778 233 +478156,200 - 13071868 6,982,602  +602,744466 1,925,254,244 25,62

Shares held by domestic natural persons 30,468,699 0.51 - - +3046.872 - +3046872 33,515,571 0.45

4, Shares held by foreign investors - - - 5 S - - - -
Including: Sheres held by overseas legal persons - - - - S = - - -
Shares held by overseas natural persons - - - - S S - - -

I1. Shares not subject to trading moratorium 3,017,042,137 50.95 - - +302,383,323 46,982,602  +309,365925  3,326,406,062 44
1, Orclnary Shares denominated in RMB 1499,042,137 2531 - - 4150583328 +6982602  +167,666920  1,656,608,062 22,06
2. Domestically-isted foreign shares - - - - - - - - -
3. Overseas-listed foreign shares 1518,000,000 25.64 - - 151,800,000 - +151,800,000 1,669,800,000 22
4, Others - - - - - - - - -

[Il. Total 5,921,931,900 100.00  +1,000,000,000 - +592,193,190 - +1,502,193,190  7,514,125,090 100.00

Notes:

1. Any fractional part of a Share arising from the Capitalization Issue shall be handled pursuant to relevant
requirements of the share registrar. The above number of Shares may deviate slightly due to the
existence of fractional Shares.

2. The minor differences in the last digits are caused by rounding.

3. During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not conduct any Share repurchase.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank issued 7,514,125,090 Ordinary Shares, including
1,669,800,000 H Shares and 5,844,325,090 A Shares.
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Description of Changes in Ordinary Shares

Changes in Ordinary Shares were mainly due to (1) the two Share replacement registrations for
22 Shareholders by the Bank in January 2020 and September 2020, respectively, the transfer-
out of a total of 6,982,602 A Shares held by those Shareholders from the Bank’s unrecognized
holders’ securities special accounts; and (2) the Bank implemented the Capitalization Issue
upon consideration and approval at the 2019 AGM, the 2020 first class meeting of the A
Shareholders and the 2020 first class meeting of the H Shareholders convened by the Bank
in May 2020, pursuant to which one new Share was issued for every 10 Shares and a total of
592,193,190 Shares were issued, upon which the total Ordinary Shares of the Bank increased from
5,921,931,900 Shares to 6,514,125,090 Shares; (3) and upon consideration and approval at the
2019 AGM, the 2020 first class meeting of the A Shareholders and the 2020 first class meeting of
the H Shareholders convened by the Bank in May 2020, and pursuant to the Approval in relation
to the Non-public Issuance of Shares by Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2020]
No. 1485) KEREEEIMBITRMHBRAFIELAMETRENOE) (FEFFA[2020]14855%))
received by the Bank from the CSRC in July 2020, the Bank completed the non-public issuance
of 1 billion A Shares in November 2020, all of which were Shares subject to trading moratorium.
Upon the completion of issuance, the total number of Ordinary Shares of the Bank increased from
6,514,125,090 Shares to 7,514,125,090 Shares.

The Impact of Changes in Ordinary Shares on Financial Indicators Such as
Earnings per Share and Net Assets per Share in the Previous Year and the Latest
Period

In June 2020, the Bank issued one new Share to the Ordinary Shareholders for every 10 Shares
by way of capitalization issue. After the implementation of the Capitalization Issue, the number
of Ordinary Shares of the Bank changed from 5,921,931,900 Shares to 6,514,125,090 Shares.
Pursuant to the requirements of Compilation Rules for Information Disclosures by Companies that
Offer Securities to the Public (No.9): Calculation and Disclosure of Rate of Return on Equity and
Earnings per Share (2010 Revision), basic earnings per Share, diluted earnings per Share, and net
assets per Share attributable to Ordinary Shareholders of the Bank for the comparison periods
were recalculated based on the number of Shares after the Capitalization Issue.

In November 2020, the Bank completed non-public issuance of 1 billion A Shares with a par value
of RMB1.00 per Share at an issue price of RMB4.64 per Share. The premium of RMB3.632 billion
generated from the issuance was recognized in capital reserve. After the issuance, the number of
Ordinary Shares of the Bank changed from 6,514,125,090 Shares to 7,514,125,090 Shares.

The impact of the above matters on financial indicators such as earnings per Share and net assets
per Share for the previous year and latest period is set out as follows:

2019 (after 2019 (before
Major financial indicators restatement) restatement)

Basic earnings per Share (RMB/Share) 0.41 0.483 0.47
Diluted earnings per Share (RMB/Share) No© 0.41 0.43 0.47

As at As at
Gl 31 December 31 December
31 December 2019 (after 2019 (before
2020 restatement) restatement)

Net assets per Share attributable to
Ordinary Shareholders of the Bank
(RMB/Share) 4.88 4.72 5.20

Note: Diluted earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the adjusted net profit of the diluted potential
Ordinary Shares attributable to Ordinary Shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average of the
adjusted outstanding Ordinary Shares of the Bank. During the Reporting Period and the comparison
period, there were no diluted potential Ordinary Shares of the Bank, therefore, diluted earnings per
Share equals basic earnings per Share.
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1.4 Changes in Shares Subject to Trading Moratorium during the Reporting Period

Unit: Shares

Number of
Shares subject Increase in Number of
to trading  the number of Number of ~ Shares subject
moratorium ~ Shares subject  Shares lifted to trading
at the totrading  from trading moratorium  Reasons for Date of
beginning of moratorium moratorium  atthe end of  being subject lifting from
the Reporting during the during the  the Reporting  to trading trading
Name of Shareholder Period Reporting Period Reporting Period Period  moratorium moratorium
Three legal persons including 6,771,828 - 6,771,828 - Initial public 22 January
Henan Provincial People’s Hospital offering 2020
Five natural persons including 19,270 - 19,270 - Initial public 22 January
CHU Ligui (% 8) offering 2020
Two legal persons including 66,555 6,656" 73,211 - Initial public 13 October
Zhengzhou Ergi Township and offering 2020
Rural Renovation Gonstruction
Development Limited
BHH -t BERERREERAA)
12 natural persons including 107,540 10,753 118,293 - Initial public 13 October
WU Tianxi (RRE) offering 2020
Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. 215,678,764 21,567,876" - 408,746,640 Initial public 19 September
(éﬁil\ﬁifé@ﬁﬁﬁﬁi@ﬂ) offering 2021
171,500,000% - Share subscription 27 November
from non-public 2025
issuance
Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. 199,046,474 19,904,647 - 318,951,121 Initial public 19 September
(TRERE7ERAF) offering 201
100,000,0002 - Share subscription 27 Noverber
from non-public 2025
issuance

Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. 114,697,149 11,469,714 - 311,511,663 Initial public 19 September

(BRETAREEAT) offering 2021
185,344,800 - Share subscription 27 May
from non-public 2022

issuance

23 target subscribers of the non-public - 543,155,200% - 543,155,200 Share subscription 27 May

issuance including Zhengzhou High-tech from non-public 2021
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. issuance
FNERERREEERAR)

Shareholders whose Shares were still 2,368,502,183  236,850,2211" - 2,605,352,404  Initial public -

subject to trading moratorium period offering
(excluding the above Shareholders)

Total 2,904,889,763  1,289,809,867 6,982,002  4,187,7117,028 - -

Notes:

1. This increase in Shares subject to trading moratorium was due to the implementation of the
Capitalization Issue based on one new Share for every 10 Shares in June 2020; the new Shares issued
to such Shareholders in the Capitalization Issue are subject to the trading moratorium as they are
subject to the trading moratorium conditions under the initial public offering.

2. This increase in Shares subject to trading moratorium was due to the completion of non-public

issuance of 1,000,000,000 A Shares by the Bank in November 2020, all of which were subject to
trading moratorium. In particular, the 171,500,000 A Shares and 100,000,000 A Shares subscribed by
Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (})11& & & H R A 7)) and Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd.,
(U RE 5B AT, the substantial Shareholders of the Bank, respectively, are prohibited from
listing and trading or transfer between the date of the completion of the issuance and within 60 months
from the listing; the 185,344,800 A Shares subscribed by Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. (A {Z:EBR S ER 7))
are prohibited from listing and trading or transfer between the date of the completion of the issuance
and within 18 months from the listing; a total of 543,155,200 A Shares subscribed by 23 other target
subscribers of the issuance are prohibited from listing and trading or transfer between the date of the
completion of the issuance and within six months from the listing.
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2 ISSUANCE AND LISTING OF SECURITIES
2.1 Issuance of Securities (Excluding Preference Shares) during the Reporting Period
2.1.1 Non-public Issuance of A Shares

On 3 September 2019, to increase the capital adequacy ratio of the Bank, improve the
capital structure, establish and improve the long-term capital management mechanism,
and enhance the capability for sustainable development, the Bank convened the 2019 first
extraordinary general meeting, 2019 first class meeting of the A Shareholders and 2019
first class meeting of the H Shareholders to consider and approve resolutions in relation
to the non-public issuance of A Shares by the Bank, proposed to issue no more than 1
billion (inclusive) A Shares by way of non-public issuance to no more than 10 (inclusive)
target investors (including Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (BB/Hi&&ZEAR A
7l), Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. (BIm{ssEAR E LA 7)) and Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (7]
FMERE S AR AF]), and to raise no more than RMB6 billion (inclusive) of proceeds. For
details, please refer to the announcements published by the Bank on CNINFO dated 17 July
2019, 16 August 2019 and 3 September 2019, as well as the announcements published on
the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange dated 17 July 2019, 16 August 2019 and 3
September 2019, and the circular dated 16 August 2019.

In November 2019, the CBIRC Henan Office approved the Bank’s non-public issuance of A
Shares proposal. For details, please refer to the announcements published by the Bank on
CNINFO and the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange dated 12 November 2019.

On 20 May 2020, the Bank convened the 2019 AGM, 2020 first class meeting of the A
Shareholders and 2020 first class meeting of the H Shareholders to consider and approve
the resolutions in relation to the revision of the non-public issuance of A Shares, proposed
to issue no more than 1 billion (inclusive) A Shares by way of non-public issuance to no
more than 35 (inclusive) target investors (including Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (EMIREEWARAT), Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. (B#{E:EERE(EAF) and Henan
Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (A BIRE $ER A 7)), and to raise a total proceeds of no more
than RMB6 billion (inclusive). For details, please refer to the announcements published by
the Bank on CNINFO dated 31 March 2020, 28 April 2020, and 21 May 2020 as well as the
announcements published on the website of Hong Kong Stock Exchange dated 30 March
2020, 6 April 2020, and 20 May 2020, and the circular dated 28 April 2020.

On 3 July 2020, the Issuance Examination Committee of CSRC approved the Bank’s
application for the revised non-public issuance of A Shares. On 21 July 2020, the Bank
received the Approval in relation to the Non-public Issuance of Shares by Bank of
Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2020] No. 1485) K BERZ A ES I R1 TR B IR A 7
IEAFEITIRERHEE NFEEEFT 1] [2020]148555%)) from the CSRC. For details, please refer to
the announcements published by the Bank on CNINFO and the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange dated 6 July 2020 and 22 July 2020.
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On 26 November 2020, all conditions precedent of the subscription agreements entered into
in relation to the non-public issuance of A Shares came into effect, and the Bank completed
the relevant registration and trading moratorium procedures with the Shenzhen branch of
China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited, thereby completing the non-
public issuance of A Shares. Pursuant to the non-public issuance, 1,000,000,000 A Shares
with a par value of RMB1.00 each (i.e. total par value of RMB1 billion) were issued at the
offering price of RMB4.64 per Share and subscribed by Zhengzhou Investment Holdings
Co., Ltd. (BPMIREFEM AR AR, Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. (A¥{EEAMREEAF]), Henan
Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (AEBERESHBRA7A]), and 23 other specified institutional
investors. The A Shares issued were listed on the SZSE on 27 November 2020. The gross
proceeds from the non-public issuance amounted to RMB4,640,000,000.00, and the
actual net proceeds was RMB4,632,441,660.00 after deduction of offering expenses of
RMB7,558,340.00 (excluding value-added tax), which has been fully utilized to replenish the
core tier 1 capital of the Bank. For details, please refer to the announcements published by
the Bank on the websites of CNINFO and Hong Kong Stock Exchange dated 26 November

2020.

2.1.2 Capitalization Issue

On 20 May 2020, the Bank held the 2019 AGM, the 2020 first class meeting of the A
Shareholders, and the 2020 first class meeting of the H Shareholders to consider and
approve the Capitalization Issue plan, pursuant to which one new Share for every 10
Shares shall be issued to the Ordinary Shareholders whose names appeared on the register
of Shareholders of the Bank as at the dividend distribution registration date by way of
capitalization issue, amounting to issuance of 592,193,190 Shares in total. Upon completion
of the implementation of the Capitalization Issue in June 2020, the number of Ordinary
Shares of the Bank changed from 5,921,931,900 to 6,514,125,090. On 30 June 2020, the
Shares issued under the Capitalization Issue were listed. For details, please refer to the
announcements published by the Bank on CNINFO dated 31 March 2020, 28 April 2020, 21
May 2020, and 19 June 2020 and the announcements published on the website of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange dated 30 March 2020, 6 April 2020, 20 May 2020, and 24 June 2020

and the circular dated 28 April 2020.

In August 2020, the Bank received the Approval of CBIRC Henan Office in relation to
the Change of Registered Capital of Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. (Yu Yin Bao Jian Fu
[2020] No. 295) (HERRERENRREBMBITROER A FEEZMERAILENZRIE
IRESTE[2020] 2959%)), which permitted the increase of the Bank’s registered capital from
RMB5,921,931,900 to RMB6,514,125,090 as its ordinary share capital has increased as
a result of the implementation of the Capitalization Issue. In September 2020, the Bank
received the Approval of CBIRC Henan Office in relation to the Amendments to the Articles
of Association of Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. (Yu Yin Bao Jian Fu [2020] No. 335) (1]
MRRERANRRAZEMNRITROBRAFME AR ERME)IRRRETE(2020)3355E)),
pursuant to which the amended Articles of Association considered at the 2019 AGM, the
2020 first class meeting of the A Shareholders and the 2020 first class meeting of the H
Shareholders were approved by the CBIRC Henan Office and took effect from the date of
approval. In November 2020, the Bank completed the change of the registered capital with
the relevant industrial and commercial administrations and the filing of the amended Articles
of Association with the relevant industrial and commercial administrations, and obtained
a new business license. For details, please refer to the announcements published by the
Bank on the websites of CNINFO and Hong Kong Stock Exchange dated 19 August 2020, 2

September 2020 and 27 November 2020.
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During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not have any corporate bonds which were
publicly issued and listed on any stock exchanges.

Description of Changes in the Total Number of Ordinary Shares and the
Composition of Shareholders, and Changes in the Structure of Assets and
Liabilities

In June 2020, the Bank issued one new Share for every 10 Shares to Ordinary Shareholders by
way of capitalization issue, upon which the number of Ordinary Shares of the Bank changed from
5,921,931,900 Shares to 6,514,125,090 Shares. In November 2020, the Bank completed the non-
public issuance of 1 billion A Shares, upon which the total number of Ordinary Shares of the Bank
changed from 6,514,125,090 Shares to 7,514,125,090 Shares. For details of the Shareholders
structure of the Bank, please refer to section headed “CHANGES IN ORDINARY SHARES” in this
chapter.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Shareholders’ equity of the Bank reached RMB45,972
million, representing an increase of RMB6,080 million or 15.24% from the end of the previous year.
The equity attributable to Shareholders of the Bank reached RMB44,495 million, representing an
increase of RMB5,905 million or 15.30% from the end of the previous year.

Existing Internal Employee Shares

The existing internal employee Shares are mainly, among others, acquired by shareholders of the
original urban credit cooperatives and the joint urban credit cooperative through taking part in the
establishment of the Bank in 1996, and through succession. As at the end of the Reporting Period,
certain Shares of the Bank were lifted from trading moratorium and listed for circulation. To date,
the date of issuance, offering price and shareholdings after the circulation of the internal employee
Shares could not be accurately verified.
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INFORMATION ON ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS

Number of Ordinary Shareholders and Their Shareholdings

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the total number of Ordinary Shareholders of the Bank was
112,155, among which 112,098 were holders of A Shares and 57 were holders of H Shares. As at the end
of the month prior to the publication Latest Practicable Date, the total number of Ordinary Shareholders
was 115,272, among which 115,216 were holders of A Shares and 56 were holders of H Shares.

The direct shareholdings of the top 10 Ordinary Shareholders of the Bank at the end of the Reporting
Period are set out as follows:

Unit: Shares

Number of Number of ~ Number of

Ordinary Changes Ordinary Ordinary

Shares held overthe  Sharesheld  Shares held

Shareholdings  attheendof  Reporting  subjectto  not subject

Name of Nature of Classof  percentage  the Reporting Period trading  totrading
Shareholder Shareholder Shares % Period (#-)  moratorium  moratorium Pledged or frozen

Status of

Shares  Number
HKSCC Nominegs Limited Oversgas legal person H Shares A5 1634361213 116487,383 - 1634361213 Unknown -
Zhengzhou Finance Bureau State-owned A Shares 723 BA3178769  B22T4004 539995230 3183539 Pledged 242,990,000
Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. ~ State-owned legal person A Shares 544 408918926  193240,162 408,746,640 172,286 - -
[ENREARARAT)
Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Lid. Domestic non state-owned A Shares 424 318951121 119904647 318,951,121 - Pledged 164,450,000
(TEEREHERA) legal person
Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. State-owned legal person A Shares 415 311511663 196814514 311,511,663 - - -
(BAEAARRELT)
Yutal Intenational (Henan) Real. Estate ~ Domestic non state-owned A Shares 384 288,200,000 26,200,000 288,200,000 - Pledged 288,200,000
Development Co., Ltd. Iegal person Frozen 288,200,000
(BRER (1) BHEREERAT)
Henan Xingye Real Estate Development  Domestic non state-owned A Shares 3.66 215,000200 25,000,200 275,000,000 200 Pledged 137,500,000
Co, Lid. [TEERRHEREBRAT)  legal person
Zhongyuan Trust o, Lid. State-owned legal person A Shares 350 263369,118 23042647 263,309,118 S S S
(REFARAR)
Henan Chendong Industry Co., Lid. Domestic non state-owned A Shares 331 248,600,000 22,600,000 248,600,000 - Pledged 124,299,998
(TEERE£ARAR) legal person
Henan Shengrun Holding Group Co., Ltd.  Domestic non state-owned A Shares 146 110,000,000 10,000,000 110,000,000 - Pledged 110,000,000
(TBERERERARAT) legal person
Henan Zhenghong Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ Domestic non state-owned A Shares 146 110000000 10,000,000 110,000,000 S Pledged 108,911,000
(TEELEEERA) legal person

Strategic investors or ordinary legal persons becoming top 10 Shareholders by way of ~ None
placing of new Shares (if any)

Description of related party relationships or concerted actions of Mr. FAN Yutao, deputy director of Zhengzhou Finance Bureau, was a director of Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. during the
the above Shareholders Reporting Period. Zhengzhou Finance Bureau wholly owns Zhengzhou Zhongrongchuang Industrial Investment Co.,
Lid. (maEIE £ R EBRAF), which in tum wholly owns Zhengzhou Ivestment Holdings Co., Ltd. The Bank
is not aware of any related party relationship among the above other Shareholders or whether they are parties acting

in concert under the Administrative Measures on the Acquiston of Listed Companies ( 12 A1 E AL ),

Description of entrusting/being entrusted voting rights or waiving voting rights of Nong
the above Shareholders
Description of the top 10 Ordinary Shareholders participating Nong

in margin financing and securties lencing business (f any)
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The direct shareholdings of the top 10 Ordinary Shareholders not subject to trading moratorium of the
Bank as at the end of the Reporting Period are set out as follow:

Unit: Shares

Number of Ordinary Shares
held not subject to trading
moratorium at the end of Type of Shares

Name of Shareholder the Reporting Period  Class of Shares Number
HKSCC Nominees Limited 1,634,361,213 H Shares 1,634,351,213
Henan Communications Industrial Development Co., Lid. (1 X BE£EEERAR) 46,075,157 A Shares 46,075,157
YOUNGHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED 35,268,200 H Shares 35,268,200
Henan Shenli Conerete Co., Ltd. (TER DRETERAR) 33,000,000 A Shares 33,000,000
Zhengzhou Hallong Industrial Co., Ltd. (EH/EEEZERA) 33,000,000 A Shares 33,000,000
Wugang Sino-Canada Mining Development Co., Ltd. (EEH XL EERAR) 33,000,000 A Shares 33,000,000
Henan Juhe Real Estate Co., Ltd. (1f 2 BAE£EREAAT) 22,000,000 A Shares 22,000,000
Henan Zhigjang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (TEZEE£ER ) 22,000,000 A Shares 22,000,000
Changge Xianghe Aluminium Materials Co,, Ltd. (RETHAEHARETAA) 22,000,000 A Shares 22,000,000
Zhengzhou Yijian Group Co., Ltd. (B -BEEBRAT) 22,000,000 A Shares 22,000,000
Henan Tian Lun Investment Holdings Company Limited (1% X b 2R EBER L) 22,000,000 A Shares 22,000,000
Description of related party relationships or concerted actions among the top 10 Ordinary The Bank is not aware of any related party relationship among the top 10
Shareholders not subject to trading moratorium, and between the top 10 Ordinary Ordinary Shareholders not subject to trading moratorium, and between
Shareholders not subject to trading moratorium and the top 10 Ordinary Shareholders the top 10 Ordinary Shareholders not subject to trading moratorium and

the top 10 Ordinary Sharenolders or whether they are parties acting in
concert under the Administrative Measures on the Acquisition of Listed
Companies ({ LA AIREEREEE),

Notes:
1. The data above is obtained from the register of Shareholders of the Bank as at 31 December 2020.
2. The Shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited are held by it in the capacity of agent and represents the

aggregate number of H Shares held by all institutional and individual investors registered in HKSCC Nominees
Limited as at the end of the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, none of the top 10 Ordinary Shareholders and the top 10 Ordinary
Shareholders not subject to trading moratorium carried out any agreed buy-back transactions.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES UNDER HONG
KONG LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Based on the knowledge of the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Bank, as at the end of
the Reporting Period, the following persons, other than Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the
Bank, had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Bank and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Bank under section 336 of the SFO, details of which are set out as follows:

Number of  Percentage of
Shares held issued  Percentage of
Long/ directly or Shares of total issued
Class of  Short indirectly ~ the relevant Ordinary
Name of substantial Shareholder Shares positions  Capacity (Shares) class (%) Shares (%)
Zhengzhou Finance Bureau AShares  Long Beneficial owner and ~ 1,133,882,575 19.40 15.09
interest of controlled
corporation'”
Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd, (B ERRAERAH) AShares  Long Beneficial owner 408,918,926 7.00 5.4
Zhengzhou Zhongrongehuang Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. AShares  Long Interest of controlled 408,918,926 7.00 544
(BATrREEEREERAA) corporation'!
Henan Investment Group Co., Ltd. (T EEBERA) AShares  Long Beneficial owner and 362,115,251 6.20 482
interest of controlled
corporation®
Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (WEERE 3ERAH) AShares  Long Beneficial owner 318,951,121 546 4.4
ZHU Zhihui (REE) AShares  Long Interest of controlled 318,951,121 546 424
corporation®
Bridge Trust Co., Lid. (B {ERARELLH) AShares  Long Beneficial owner 311,511,663 5.33 415
SPIC Capital Holding Co., Ltd. AShares  Long Interest of controlled 311,511,663 533 415
BREREEENERBRAA) corporation®!
SPIC Dongfang New Energy Corp. AShares  Long Interest of controlled 311,511,663 533 415
([EREREEEATERRNERAT) corporation®!
State Power Investment Corporation Limited AShares  Long Interest of controlled 311,511,663 533 415
EXENREEEERAT) corporation”
China Goldjoy Securities Limited (FE &% Z5ERA) HShares  Long Custodan 414,891,400 24.85 5.52
Yunnan International Holding Group Limited HShares  Long Beneficial owner 250,098,885 14,98 3.33
Yunnan Energy Investment (HK) Co., Limited HShares  Long Interest of controlled 250,098,885 14.98 3.33
corporation®
Yunnan Provincial Energy Investment Group Co., Ltd HShares  Long Interest of controlled 250,098,885 14,98 3.33
corporation®
Hong Kong Oriental Sage Limited (BB R B ARAH) HShares  Long Beneficial owner 245,300,000 14.69 3.6
Oriental Sage Limited (RBERA =) HShares  Long Interest of controlled 245,300,000 1469 3.26
corporation®
Beijng Shang Finance Management Co., Ltd. HShares  Long Interest of controlled 141,900,000 8.50 1.89
IRHBEAERERAR) corporation”!
WEI Lidong (R R) HShares  Long Interest of controled 141,900,000 8.50 1.89
corporation®
Hong Kong Xingrui Intemational Investment Co., Ltd. HShares  Long Beneficial owner 110,000,000 6.59 1.46
(EAERERRARRAR)
Zhengzhou Airport Zone Xingrui Industrial Group Co., Ltd. HShares  Long Interest of controlled 110,000,000 6.59 1.46
EHn=EERREESEER L), formerly known as corporation!
Zhengzhou Airport Zone Xingrui Industrial Co., Ltd.
FNmEERRREEERAR)
Zhengzhou Airport Xinggang Investment Group Co., Ltd. HShares  Long Interest of controlled 110,000,000 6.59 1.46

(ENREERBRESEARAE), formerly known as
Zhengzhou Xinzheng Integrated Free Trade Zone
(Zhengzhou Airport Zone) Xinggang Investment and
Development Co., Limited
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Number of  Percentage of
Shares held issued  Percentage of
Long/ directly or Shares of total issued
Class of  Short indirectly ~the relevant Ordinary
Name of substantial Shareholder Shares positions  Capacity (Shares) class (%) Shares (%)
Shenzhen Qianhai Ruimaotong Supply Chain Platform Service HShares  Long Interest of controlled 110,000,000 6.59 1.46
Co., Lid. (RIS REEET A RBER L) corporation®
Jiangsu Jinhe Electricity and Fuel Co., Ltd. HShares  Long Interest of controlled 110,000,000 6.59 1.46
(TEENENRHERAF) corporation®!
Ruimaotong Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. HShares  Long Interest of controlled 110,000,000 6.59 1.46
FRREEATERAERAF) corporation®
Zhengzhou Ruimaotong Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. HShares  Long Interest of controlled 110,000,000 6.59 1.46
ENRKBRERERAR) corporation®
Zhengzhou Zhongrui Industrial Group Co., Ltd. HShares  Long Interest of controlled 110,000,000 6.59 1.46
(ENPREZEEER L), formerly known as corporation®!
Henan Zhongrui Investment Co., Ltd. (T&H 3R A ERAR)
Henan Zhongrui Holding Co., Ltd. (B2 RARAT) HShares  Long Interest of controlled 110,000,000 6.59 146
corporation®
Zhengzhou Ruichang Enterprise Management Consulting HShares  Long Interest of controlled 110,000,000 6.59 1.46
Co., Ltd. (BINRELEEERNERLR) corporation®!
WAN Yongxing (E5kE) HShares  Long Interest of controlled 110,000,000 6.59 146
corporation®
Zhengzhou Zhengdong New District Construction Development ~ H Shares  Long Beneficial owner” 110,000,000 6.59 1.46
Investment Co., Ltd, (BMHBRHFERRFRRERAT)
Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. HShares  Long Person having a 110,000,000 6.59 1.46
securtty interest™®
Haitong International Securities Group (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. HShares  Long Person having a 110,000,000 6.59 1.46
securtty interest
Interest of controlled
corporation®
Haitong International Securities Group Limited HShares  Long Person having a 118,000,000 707 1.57
security interest
Interest of controlled
corporation"
Haitong International Holdings Limited HShares  Long Person having a 118,000,000 7.07 1.57
security interest
Interest of controlled
corporation"
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. HShares  Long Person having a 118,000,000 707 1.57
security interest
Interest of controlled
corporation"
CITIC Securities Company Limited HShares  Long Interest of controlled 574,693,936 34.42 7.65
corporation?
HShares  Short Interest of controlled 568,846,654 34.07 7.57
corporation?
Goncius | Limited HShares  Long Beneficial owner™ 115,501,859 6.92 1.54
HShares  Short Beneficial owner™ 115,501,859 6.92 1.54
Chinalines Holding Group Co., Ltd. (REZREEERAA) HShares  Long Beneficial owner 92,466,000 5.54 123
Shenzhen Chinalines Industrial Co., Ltd. (FIREE£ERAR)  HShaes  Long Interest of controlled 92,466,000 5.54 123
corporation
Shenzhen Xincheng Huaxiang Industrial Co., Ltd. HShares  Long Interest of controlled 92,466,000 554 1.23
(R RENEZERAF) corporation™
XIE Tinggui (&) HShares  Long Interest of controlled 92,466,000 5.54 1.23
corporation
YAO Jianhui (PkE ) HShares  Long Interest of controlled 93,548,000 5.60 1.24
corporation?
Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited HShares  Long Beneficial owner'® 90,957,714 5.45 1.21
Interest of controlled
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. HShares  Long corporation® 90,957,714 545 1.21
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As far as the Bank is aware, the above number of Shares represents the respective Shareholders’
interests and short positions as at the end of the Reporting Period, but the relevant number of Shares
and information may be different from the summary of DI Forms submitted to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange by relevant Shareholders. This is mainly because the Bank made the calculation based on
public information disclosed such as summary of DI Forms and the register of members of the Bank as
well as the issuance of one Share for every 10 Shares in accordance with the 2019 Capitalization Issue
plan completed on 30 June 2020.

Notes:

1. These 1,1383,882,575 Shares are directly or indirectly held by Zhengzhou Finance Bureau, including
543,178,769 Shares directly held by Zhengzhou Finance Bureau, 408,918,926 Shares held by Zhengzhou
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (BBMEEIEREAB R AR]), 71,784,880 Shares held by Zhengzhou Development
& Investment Group Co., Ltd. (ENEEIEEEEABR AR, 55,000,000 Shares held by Zhengzhou City
Sanitation & Cleaning Co., Ltd. (8 3R EE R AR A 7)) and 55,000,000 Shares held by Zhengzhou Municipal
Construction Engineering General Corporation (Z8/ B LI242 QX F]). Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (EBM&E R BBR A F]) is wholly-owned by Zhengzhou Zhongrongchuang Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.
(BN T AR B A EE 2R E AR A A), which is in turn wholly-owned by Zhengzhou Finance Bureau (&N 71 81 B B).
Zhengzhou Development & Investment Group Co., Ltd. (B8 2 E 1% & £ @ AR A 7)), Zhengzhou City Sanitation
& Cleaning Co., Ltd. (EBJNTIRENEZABMRAR]) and Zhengzhou Municipal Construction Engineering General
Corporation (B8N MR Ti24E A 7)) are directly or indirectly wholly-owned by Zhengzhou Finance Bureau. By
virtue of the SFO, Zhengzhou Zhongrongchuang Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (¥S/NH R REIE £ EBR
A 7)) is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (/1% &2
& EBR A R]), while Zhengzhou Finance Bureau is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Zhengzhou
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (BBM&E#ERE B R A F]), Zhengzhou Development & Investment Group Co., Ltd.
(BN RIEEEBAR AT, Zhengzhou City Sanitation & Cleaning Co., Ltd. (ES/NHRASZARAF]) and
Zhengzhou Municipal Construction Engineering General Corporation (Z81 /B T2 42 7). Mr. FAN Yutao (&
£E), a non-executive Director of the Bank, is the deputy director of Zhengzhou Finance Bureau.

2. These 362,115,251 Shares are directly or indirectly held by Henan Investment Group Co., Ltd. (AEiE &£ EE
[R/A7]), including 98,746,133 Shares directly held by Henan Investment Group Co., Ltd. (AE&REEBER A
A]) and 263,369,118 Shares held through Zhongyuan Trust Co., Ltd. (F/R{E5EA R A &)). Zhongyuan Trust Co.,
Ltd. (FRIEFEAMRAF]) is held as to 58.97% by Henan Investment Group Co., Ltd. (A& EEBARAR).
By virtue of the SFO, Henan Investment Group Co., Ltd. (A EiZ&E LB HRAF]) is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Zhongyuan Trust Co., Ltd. (FR{EFEHBR A F]). Mr. JI Hongjun (B 72 1&), a non-executive
Director of the Bank, is a vice president of Zhongyuan Trust Co., Ltd. (FR{ZzEBR A 7).

3. Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (A ERE SER A F]) is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. ZHU Zhihui and
his spouse Ms. WANG Linhui, respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. ZHU Zhihui is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (FFE R E 5 BB 72 F) Mr. ZHU Zhihui, a Supervisor of the
Bank, is the legal representative, executive director and general manager of Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (7]

MERESERAF).

4. Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. (B {=sEAREL A F)) is owned as to 50.24% by SPIC Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. (15
EREEEARERAR AT, which is in turn wholly-owned by SPIC Dongfang New Energy Corp. (B E#% 5%
BT #aL RN B R A R), while SPIC Dongfang New Energy Corp. (AR EREBER FH RN AR AT is
owned as to 58.10% by State Power Investment Corporation Limited (Bl E 1R & E=®E AR A 7). By virtue of
the SFO, SPIC Capital Holdings Co., Ltd. (IR Bz & E & RZEKR B R A 7)), SPIC Dongfang New Energy Corp.
(BRELEBRF LR BMR A7) and State Power Investment Corporation Limited (BREHEEEE A
[ /A 7A]) are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. (B¥mfsstBRET A 7]). Mr.
FAN Yutao (32 E£7%), a non-executive Director of the Bank, had been a director of Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. (B2
L BMRE LA F]) during the Reporting Period.

B These 250,098,885 Shares are directly held by Yunnan International Holding Group Limited, which is owned
as to 40% by Yunnan Energy Investment (HK) Co., Limited, while Yunan Energy Investment (HK) Co., Limited
is wholly-owned by Yunnan Provincial Energy Investment Group Co., Ltd. By virtue of the SFO, Yunnan Energy
Investment (HK) Co., Limited and Yunnan Provincial Energy Investment Group Co., Ltd. are deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Yunnan International Holding Group Limited.
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These 245,300,000 Shares are directly held by Hong Kong Oriental Sage Limited (F# R AR A A]), which is
wholly-owned by Oriental Sage Limited (3% ABR A 7]). By virtue of the SFO, Oriental Sage Limited (BREGR A
@) is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Hong Kong Oriental Sage Limited (B R & AR A 7).

Beijing Shang Finance Management Co., Ltd. (It R B EREIZHRR A R]) is owned as to 99.90% by Mr. WEI
Lidong (Ff3Z %) and Beijing Shang Finance Management Co., Ltd. (It R H g & AR EIE AR A 7)) holds a total of
141,900,000 Shares through certain subsidiaries. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. WEI Lidong (FI3Z %) is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Beijing Shang Finance Management Co., Ltd. (At R H B E RSB AR A F)).

Hong Kong Xingrui International Investment Co., Ltd. (B#&EIREKEIREBRAF) (‘Hong Kong Xingrui”) is
wholly-owned by Zhengzhou Airport Zone Xingrui Industrial Group Co., Ltd. (BN =SSR BT EEB AR
A7), formerly known as Zhengzhou Airport Zone Xingrui Industrial Co., Ltd. (E5Jifiz=/E R BB E 2 AR A7)
(“Xingrui Industrial’), being a state-owned company under the Zhengzhou Airport Zone Economic Integrated
Experimental Zone (Zhengzhou Xinzheng Integrated Free Trade Zone) Management Committee (E5)N #1228
KEGSAERE (FINFBGRARGE) EEEEE), formerly known as Zhengzhou Xinzheng Integrated Free
Trade Zone (Zhengzhou Airport Zone) Management Committee (M #FTE4RA RFIE (BMMEER) BIER
B&)). Xingrui Industrial is owned as to 51% and 49% by Zhengzhou Airport Xinggang Investment Holdings
Co., Ltd. (B S @B EE£@mMAR A RA]) (formerly known as: Zhengzhou Xinzheng Integrated Free Trade
Zone (Zhengzhou Airport Zone) Xinggang Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (E8N#E84R & RB R (ZLH
=R ) BB AR AR AR]) (‘Zhengzhou Xinggang”’), and Shenzhen Qianhai Ruimaotong Supply Chain
Platform Service Co., Ltd. (ZIIFNEIHREXBHEET SRS ERAF) (‘Ruimaotong”). Ruimaotong is wholly-
owned by Jiangsu Jinhe Electricity and Fuel Co., Ltd. (T# & ME AR AR A F]) (‘diangsu Jinhe”), which is
in turn wholly owned by a company (being listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) under Ruimaotong Supply
Chain Management Co., Ltd. (Mgt E#EE 2R/ B MR A7) (‘Ruimaotong Supply Chain Management’).
Ruimaotong Supply Chain Management is owned as to 57.65% by Zhengzhou Ruimaotong Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (EMIgEBEHESEFR AR (‘Zhengzhou Ruimaotong”, which is wholly-owned by
Zhengzhou Zhongrui Industrial Group Co., Ltd. (BN IR E ZEEE B R A7) (formerly known as Henan Zhongrui
Investment Co., Ltd. (A& EBRAR) (‘Zhengzhou Zhongrui”). Zhengzhou Zhongrui is owned as to
90% by Henan Zhongrui Holding Co., Ltd. (B HIERER 2 7)) (‘Henan Zhongrui Holding”), while Henan
Zhongrui Holding is wholly-owned by Zhengzhou Ruichang Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (E5/M i
EMEEEAXAARRAR) (‘Zhengzhou Ruichang”), which is owned as to 70% by Mr. WAN Yongxing (£ 5k ).
By virtue of the SFO, each of Xingrui Industrial, Zhengzhou Xinggang, Ruimaotong, Jiangsu Jinhe, Ruimaotong
Supply Chain Management, Zhengzhou Ruimaotong, Zhengzhou Zhongrui, Henan Zhongrui Holding, Zhengzhou
Ruichang and Mr. WAN Yongxing are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Hong Kong Xingrui.

Zhengzhou Zhengdong New District Construction Development Investment Co., Ltd. (Z5) 7 255 3 (@ 2 25 B 2%
& $4/2 7]) was established by the Zhengzhou Zhengdong New District Management Committee (651 & 5
REBEER).

Haitong International Financial Product (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. has a security interest in these 110,000,000
Shares. Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. is wholly-owned by Haitong International
Securities Group (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., which is in turn wholly-owned by Haitong International (BVI) Limited. By
virtue of the SFO, Haitong International Securities Group (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. and Haitong International (BVI)
Limited are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd.

8,000,000 Shares are directly held by Haitong International Securities Company Limited, which is wholly-owned
by Haitong International (BVI) Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Haitong International (BVI) Limited is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Haitong International Securities Company Limited. As mentioned in note
10 of this table, Haitong International Securities Group (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. is wholly-owned by Haitong
International (BVI) Limited. Accordingly, Haitong International (BVI) Limited is deemed to be interested in a total
of 118,000,000 Shares. Haitong International (BVI) Limited is wholly-owned by Haitong International Securities
Group Limited, which is 64.40% owned by Haitong International Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-
owned by Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. By virtue of the SFO, Haitong International Securities Group Limited,
Haitong International Holdings Limited and Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. are all deemed to be interested in a
total of 118,000,000 Shares held by Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. and Haitong
International Securities Company Limited.
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12. CITIC Securities Company Limited held 574,693,936 H Shares (long position) of the Bank and 568,846,654
H Shares (short position) of the Bank through certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries. These 574,693,936 H
Shares (long position) and 568,846,654 H Shares (short position) involve derivatives in the classes below:

285,939,289 H Shares (long position) — Convertible instruments (on-exchange transaction)
288,754,647 H Shares (long position) — Settled in cash (curb trading)
and 568,846,654 H Shares (short position)

13. These 115,501,859 H Shares (long position) and 115,501,859 H Shares (short position) held by Goncius |
Limited involve derivatives in the classes below:

115,501,859 H Shares (long position) — Convertible instruments (on-exchange transaction)
115,501,859 H Shares (short position) — Settled in cash (curb trading)

As the relevant interests involve derivatives, the information disclosed has not taken into account the calculation
made by the Bank regarding the issuance of one Share for every 10 Shares held pursuant to the Capitalization
Issue completed during the Reporting Period.

14. These 92,466,000 Shares are directly held by Chinalines Holding Group Co., Ltd. (ZREEILALEE AR AT,
which is in turn wholly-owned by Shenzhen Chinalines Industrial Co., Ltd. (RYIZKEZTEAERRAR]), while
Shenzhen Chinalines Industrial Co., Ltd. (FYIZEEZEER7AF]) is owned as to 68.75% and 30.63% by
Shenzhen Xincheng Huaxiang Industrial Co., Ltd. (RYIFFKESNEEERAF]) and Mr. YAO Jianhui (JkEHE),
and Shenzhen Xincheng Huaxiang Industrial Co., Ltd. (RIIFTKENEEFR A F]) is owned as to 70% by Mr.
XIE Tinggui (3£ 5). By virtue of the SFO, Shenzhen Chinalines Industrial Co., Ltd. (FIIFKEZBEBR A A),
Shenzhen Xincheng Huaxiang Industrial Co., Ltd. (FIIFTAKEREEFR A F]), Mr. YAO Jianhui (#k#E#E) and
Mr. XIE Tinggui (#3£ &) are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Chinalines Holding Group Co., Ltd.
(GREZEREERRAA).

15. The 1,082,000 Shares are directly held by Tinmark Development Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Mr.
YAO Jianhui (#k##8). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. YAO Jianhui (#£Z#) is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Tinmark Development Limited. As mentioned from note 14 of this table, Mr. YAO Jianhui (#kE#E) is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Chinalines Holding Group Co., Ltd. GRIEFEZREBEGR A A).
Accordingly, Mr. YAO Jianhui (#k72#%) is deemed to be interested in 93,548,000 Shares.

16. Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited is owned as to 51% by Camellia Pacific Investment Holding
Limited, which is wholly-owned by China Huarong International Holdings Limited. China Huarong International
Holdings Limited is owned as to 88.10% and 11.90% by Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (ZERIE ¥ B R F T2 7))
and Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd., respectively, while Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(EFREBE XA SEAF) and Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd. are both wholly owned by
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. By virtue of the SFO, China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited. Furthermore,
such 90,957,714 H Shares (long position) involve derivatives in the class below:

90,957,714 H Shares (long position) — Others (on-exchange transaction)

As the relevant interests involve derivatives, the information disclosed has not taken into account the calculation
made by the Bank regarding the issuance of one Share for every 10 Shares held pursuant to the Capitalization
Issue completed during the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed above, as at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank is not aware of any other
person (other than the Directors, Supervisors and the chief executive of the Bank) having any interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Bank pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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INFORMATION ON CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND DE FACTO
CONTROLLERS

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank did not have any controlling Shareholders or de facto
controllers.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

6.1

Holders with 5% or More Shareholding in the Bank

Zhengzhou Finance Bureau: Unified Social Credit Code is 11410100005252522X; the person in
charge is Mr. ZHAO Xinmin (f##71&). As at the end of the Reporting Period, Zhengzhou Finance
Bureau directly held 543,178,769 A Shares, accounting for 7.23% of the total issued Ordinary
Shares of the Bank. In addition, Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (BB &L AR A 7)),
Zhengzhou Development & Investment Group Co., Ltd. (BB ZEEKREEEABR A F]), Zhengzhou
City Sanitation & Cleaning Co., Ltd. (BMWREBERBMR2AF]) and Zhengzhou Municipal
Construction Engineering General Corporation (B8N MK T4 A 5]) which are directly or
indirectly wholly owned by Zhengzhou Finance Bureau hold a total of 590,703,806 A Shares. These
Shares in total accounted for 1,133,882,575 A Shares and 15.09% of the total issued Ordinary
Shares of the Bank. Mr. FAN Yutao, a non-executive Director of the Bank, is the deputy director of
Zhengzhou Finance Bureau. The related parties of Zhengzhou Finance Bureau include Zhengzhou
Zhongrongchuang Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. (BN REEIEZEKREEGRAF]), Zhengzhou
Development & Investment Group Co., Ltd. (EF/NEEEESEERAF]), and Zhengzhou City
Sanitation & Cleaning Co., Ltd. (ENTIREEREMR A F]). The ultimate beneficiary of Zhengzhou
Finance Bureau is itself.

Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (EMIEEZERBRAF]): incorporated on 25
October 2005; the registered capital is RMB3.51 billion; the Unified Social Credit Code is
91410100780545414U; the legal representative is Mr. LIANG Songwei (25 %%); the main business
scope covers investment and management of state-owned assets, real estate development and
sales as well as house leasing. As at the end of the Reporting Period, Zhengzhou Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd. held 408,918,926 A Shares, accounting for 5.44% of the total issued Ordinary
Shares of the Bank. Mr. LIANG Songwei, a non-executive Director of the Bank, is the chairman
and general manager of Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. The controlling shareholder of
Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. is Zhengzhou Zhongrongchuang Industrial Investment
Co., Ltd. (BO T EhalEX£IEEBRAR]), and the de facto controller is Zhengzhou Finance
Bureau. Related parties include Zhengzhou State-owned Holding Xicheng Construction Co., Ltd. (&5
M B FE P 32 3R A TR A 7)), Zhengzhou National Investment Real Estate Co., Ltd. (EMER B EGR
A 7)) and Zhengzhou Industry Development Guidance Fund Co., Ltd. (BN EXHEESIEESH
R~ d]), etc. The ultimate beneficiary of Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. is itself.

Note: As at the end of the Reporting Period, Henan Investment Group Co., Ltd. (AFEEEEBAERA
&) directly held 98,746,133 A Shares, and Zhongyuan Trust Co., Ltd. (F/REFEAER A F]), which is
controlled by Henan Investment Group Co., Ltd. (AmEELEAR A E]), directly held 263,369,118
A Shares. The two companies held 362,115,251 A Shares in total. In November 2020, the Bank
completed the non-public issuance of A Shares, upon which the total number of Ordinary Shares
increased from 6,514,125,090 Shares to 7,514,125,090 Shares, and the total shareholding of Henan
Investment Group Co., Ltd. (FFE1% & & B B R A7) decreased from 5.56% to 4.82%.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. 112



CHAPTER IV CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND
INFORMATION ON SHAREHOLDERS

113

6.2

Other Substantial Shareholders

According to the requirement of the Provisional Measures on the Management of the Equity of
Commercial Banks (FZE/TAREEREETHEE)) (Former CBRC Order 2018 No. 1), information
on other substantial Shareholders is as below:

Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (A M BIRE 5B A F]): incorporated on 5 December 2005; the
registered capital is RMB200 million; the Unified Social Credit Code is 91410100783405337J;
the legal representative is Mr. ZHU Zhihui (4R %5EE); the main business scope covers the sales of
building and decorative materials, mechanical and electrical products (excluding automobiles),
hardware and electrical equipment etc.; house leasing; wholesale and retail as well as pre-
packaged food. As at the end of the Reporting Period, Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. held
318,951,121 A Shares, accounting for 4.24% of the total issued Ordinary Shares of the Bank. Mr.
ZHU Zhihui, a Supervisor of the Bank, is the legal representative, executive director and general
manager of Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. The controlling shareholder and de facto controller
of Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. is Mr. ZHU Zhihui. Related parties include Zhengzhou Huida
Industrial Development Co., Ltd. (EIMEEEZZERAER AR, Henan Huida Construction &
Investment Co., Ltd. (A FIEZE R RIZE AR A 7)) and Huida Holdings Co., Ltd. (EZIER AR A 7)),
etc. The ultimate beneficiary of Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. is itself.

Henan Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (B ZEEERZEAFRE /A F]): incorporated
on 31 December 1998; the registered capital is RMB200 million; the Unified Social Credit Code
is 914101001699781784; the legal representative is Mr. Huang Kefei (& A] 7); the main business
scope covers the development and operation of real estate (licensed), sales of building materials
and house leasing. As at the end of the Reporting Period, Henan Xingye Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. held 275,000,200 A Shares, accounting for 3.66% of the total issued Ordinary Shares of
the Bank. The controlling shareholder of Henan Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. is Henan
Zensun Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. (AR IERTEEREBEBREMTAF]). The de facto
controller is Ms. ZHANG Huigi (3582), who is the daughter, being above the age of 18, of Mr.
ZHANG Jiangguo (5R#(E), a non-executive Director of the Bank. Related parties include Henan
Zensun Enterprise Development Co., Ltd., Henan Zensun Property Co., Ltd. (A IEEEXEREA
@]), Henan Zhengyang Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd. (A IEFGiER TR EBEGR A7),
etc. The ultimate beneficiary of Henan Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. is itself.

Zhongyuan Trust Co., Ltd. (FRIEFEER A F]): incorporated on 27 November 2002; the registered
capital is RMB4 billion; the Unified Social Credit Code is 91410000169953018F; the legal
representative is Mr. ZHAO Weihua (#8/#2); the main business scope covers the trusting of funds,
movable property, immovable property, negotiable securities, other property or property rights;
and engaged in the investment fund business, etc. as an investment fund or a sponsor of a fund
management company. As at the end of the Reporting Period, Zhongyuan Trust Co., Ltd. held
263,369,118 A Shares, accounting for 3.50% of the total issued Ordinary Shares of the Bank. Mr.
JI Hongjun (#E7=1&), a non-executive Director of the Bank, is the vice president of Zhongyuan Trust
Co., Ltd. The controlling shareholder of Zhongyuan Trust Co., Ltd. is Henan Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. (AR EEEERR A7), and the de facto controller is Henan Provincial Department of Finance
(A RG& BABREE). Related parties include Henan Investment Group Co., Ltd.(AEHRELEBEER D
A)), Henan Zhongyuan Expressway Co., Ltd. (I R R A KRS B R A F) and Great Wall Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (EREEEZE G AF]). The ultimate beneficiary of Zhongyuan Trust Co.,
Ltd. is itself.

Note: The legal representative of Zhongyuan Trust Co., Ltd. (F/R{E5EHR A7) has been changed from Mr.
CUl Zejun (E/ZE) to Mr. ZHAO Weihua (f#7%). The change of industrial and commercial registration
was completed and the business license was obtained on 4 February 2021.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER IV CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND
INFORMATION ON SHAREHOLDERS

RESTRICTIONS ON REDUCTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS, DE FACTO CONTROLLERS, PARTIES TO RESTRUCTURING
OR OTHER ENTITIES WITH UNDERTAKINGS

During the Reporting Period, the Bank had no cases involving restrictions on reduction of shareholdings of
controlling Shareholders, de facto controllers, parties to restructuring or other entities with undertakings.

PLEDGE AND FREEZING OF SHARES OF THE BANK

As at the end of the Reporting Period, to the knowledge of the Bank, 2,037,826,797 Ordinary Shares
of the Bank (accounting for 27.12% of the total issued Ordinary Shares) were subject to pledges and
312,206,450 Ordinary Shares were subject to freezing. No Shares were subject to judicial auction during
the Reporting Period. The Bank has no controlling Shareholders and therefore, there is no pledging of
Shares of the Bank by controlling Shareholders.
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CHAPTERV PREFERENCE SHARES

1 ISSUANCE AND LISTING OF PREFERENCE SHARES IN THE LAST THREE
YEARS AS AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Bank issued non-cumulative perpetual Offshore Preference Shares in the amount of USD1,191 million
at a dividend rate of 5.50% on 18 October 2017 through a private offering in the overseas market. The
Offshore Preference Shares (abbreviation of preference share: ZZBNK 17USDPREF; stock code: 04613)
were listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 19 October 2017 with a nominal value of RMB100 per
share at an offering price of USD20 per share. The total number of shares issued was 59,550,000, all of
which were issued and fully paid in US dollars.

Based on the Renminbi central parity rate against the US dollar published by the China Foreign Exchange
Trade System on 18 October 2017, the gross proceeds from the offering of the Offshore Preference
Shares were approximately RMB7,860 million. Pursuant to applicable laws and regulations and approval
from the CBIRC, the CSRC and other relevant regulatory authorities, the proceeds raised from the
Offshore Preference Shares issuance, after deduction of the issuance expenses, have been fully utilized
to replenish the additional tier-one capital of the Bank, which is consistent with the specific use disclosed
previously.

For the issuance terms and relevant details of the Offshore Preference Shares, please refer to the relevant
announcements and circulars of the Bank published on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Bank.

2 NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS OF OFFSHORE PREFERENCE SHARES AND
PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDING

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the total number of holders (or nominees) of Offshore Preference
Shares of the Bank was one. As at the end of the month prior to the publication Latest Practicable Date,
the total number of holders (or nominees) of Offshore Preference Shares was one.

The following table sets out shareholdings of the top 10 shareholders of Offshore Preference Shares (or
nominees) of the Bank as at the end of the Reporting Period:

Unit: Shares

Shares pledged or frozen
Number of Number of
shares held as shares held Number of
Shareholding  atthe end of  Changes over subject to shares held
percentage ©®  the Reporting  the Reporting trading without trading  Status of
Name of shareholder  Type of shareholder %) Period Period  moratorium moratorium shares Number
The Bank of New York ~ Overseas legal person 100 59,550,000 - - 59,550,000 Unknown Unknown
Depository (Nominees)
Limited
Description of different requirements on other terms of preference shares held other ~ None
than dividend distribution and residual property distribution
Description of the related party relationships or concerted actions among top 10 The Bank is not aware of any related party relationships between the above
shareholders of preference shares and between top 10 shareholders of preference  shareholders of preference shares and the top 10 Ordinary Shareholders
shares and top 10 Ordinary Shareholders or whether they are parties acting in concert under the Administrative Measures

on the Acquistion of Listed Companies ({ 72 FIREE BEE).
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Notes:

1. The above data are based on the register of the shareholders of Offshore Preference Shares of the Bank as at
31 December 2020.

2. The above Offshore Preference Shares were issued through a private offering, information of nominees of the
allottees was recorded on the register of shareholders of preference shares.

3. “Shareholding percentage” refers to the percentage of Offshore Preference Shares held by shareholders of

preference shares in the total issued Offshore Preference Shares.
PROFIT DISTRIBUTION OF OFFSHORE PREFERENCE SHARES

The dividend on the Offshore Preference Shares is paid in cash on an annual basis. After receiving the
dividends at the prescribed dividend rate, the shareholders of preference shares shall not be entitled to
any distribution of residual profits of the Bank together with the Ordinary Shareholders. The Bank shall
have the right to cancel dividends in whole or in part and this will not constitute an event of default. Any
amount of dividends not paid to the shareholders of preference shares in full by the Bank will not be
accumulated to the following dividend period. During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not adjust or
change its profit distribution policy for preference shares.

During the Reporting Period, as considered and approved at the meeting of the Board of the Bank held
on 28 August 2020, the Bank distributed the dividends on the Offshore Preference Shares pursuant to
the terms of the Offshore Preference Shares. The total dividends on the Offshore Preference Shares
distributed by the Bank amounted to US$72,783,333.33, of which US$65,505,000 was paid to the
holders of Offshore Preference Shares at a coupon dividend rate of 5.50%, and US$7,278,333.33 was
withheld as the income tax. Relevant taxes were covered by the Bank. For details, please refer to the
announcements dated 31 August 2020 published by the Bank on the websites of CNINFO and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. On 19 October 2020, the Bank completed the dividend payment of Offshore
Preference Shares. Such dividend distribution of Offshore Preference Shares is in compliance with the
dividend distribution conditions and relevant procedures.

The Bank will hold a Board meeting at least ten working days prior to the next dividend payment date of

the Offshore Preference Shares (i.e. 18 October 2021) to consider issues related to the dividend payment
and issue announcement to notify holders of the Offshore Preference Shares.
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Distribution of Offshore Preference Shares for the Past Three Years

Unit: RMB’000

Explanation of

shortfall

accumulating

Net profit Percentage to the next

attributable to to the net profit accounting year

Ordinary attributable to due to

Shareholders of Ordinary insufficient

the Bank Shareholders of distributable

under the the Bank profits or portion

consolidated under the that can be

Distributed financial consolidated allocated to
amount  statements for the financial remaining profit
Year of distribution (tax inclusive) distribution year statements (%) distribution

2020 493,442 3,167,567 15.58 S
2019 512,790 3,285,122 15.61 S
2018 502,343 3,058,831 16.42 S

REPURCHASE OR CONVERSION OF OFFSHORE PREFERENCE SHARES

During the Reporting Period, there was no repurchase or conversion of the Offshore Preference Shares of
the Bank.

RESUMPTION AND EXERCISE OF VOTING RIGHTS OF OFFSHORE
PREFERENCE SHARES DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

During the Reporting Period, and between the end of the Reporting Period and the end of the month
prior to the publication Latest Practicable Date, no voting rights of the Offshore Preference Shares were
resumed or exercised.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED FOR OFFSHORE PREFERENCE SHARES
AND REASONS

In accordance with Accounting Standards for Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement
of Financial Instruments, Accounting Standards for Enterprises No. 37 - Presentation of Financial
Instruments and Rules on the Difference between Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments and Relevant
Accounting Treatment promulgated by the MOF, as well as International Financial Reporting Standards
No. 9 — Financial Instruments and International Accounting Standards No. 32 — Financial Instruments:
Presentation, the provisions of the issued and existing Offshore Preference Shares conform to the
requirements as equity instruments, and will be calculated as equity instruments.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND THEIR DIRECT
SHAREHOLDINGS

Directors
Number of Increase in Decrease in Number of
Shares held the number the number Shares held
as atthe of Shares of Shares Other as at the
beginning of held during held during increase  end of the
the Reporting  the Reporting  the Reporting and  Reporting
Class of Period Period Period  decrease Period
Name Gender  Dateof birth  Position Status Term of Office Shares (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) ~ (Shares) (Shares)
WANG Tianyu (X5) M March 1966 Chairman In office 2011.39-20216.14 A Shares 25,008 2,500 - - 2,508
Executive Director In office 2006.12.16-2021.6.14
SHEN Xueaing (58 M July 1965 President In office Since 2012.45 S S S S = =
Executive Director In office 2012.7.12-2021.6.14
XA Hua (B%) M August 1967 Vice Chairman In office 2020.7.2-20216.14 - - - - 8 5
Executive Director In office 2020.7.2-20216.14
FAN Yutao (2573 M May 1966 Non-executive Director In office 2015.9.8-2021.6.14 - - - - - -
ZHANG Jingguo (BHE) M July 1963 Non-executive Director In office N127.12:20016.44 - = = = = =
JI Hongjun (2 1E) M June 1963 Non-executive Director In office 0127100001614 - 5 S = = =
LIANG Songwei (25%) M August 1968 Non-gxecutive Director In office 2012.7.12-2021.6.14 - - - - - -
WANG Shihao (T tt%) M April 1950 Non-executive Director In office 2018.7.5-20216.14 - - - - - -
XE Taifeng (K ) M August 1958 Independent non-executive  In office 2015.9.8-20216.14 - - - - - -
Director
WU Ge (R3) M May 1967 Independent non-executive  In office 2015.9.8-2021.6.14 - - - - - -
Director
CHAN Mei Bo Mabel F November 1971 Independent non-executive  In office 2015.9.8-2021.6.14 - - - - - -
(RxR) Director
Ul Yanyan (355 F January 1968 Independent non-executive  In office 2018.7.5-20216.14 - S S = = =
Director
FENG Tao (57%) M September 1963 Vice Chairmen Resigned ~ 2016.8.4-2020.4.24 - - - - - -
Executive Director Resigned ~ 2016.8.4-2020.4.24 - - - - - -
Notes:
1. The starting dates of the term of office represent the dates on which the relevant qualifications are approved by
the banking regulatory authority.
2. The increase in the number of Shares is due to the completion of the Capitalization Issue by the Bank by way

of issuing one Share for every 10 Shares on 30 June 2020.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR
STAFF AND INSTITUTIONS

Supervisors

Number of Increase Decrease
Shares held inthe inthe Number of
as at the number of number of Shares held
beginning of  Sharesheld ~ Shares held Other as at the
the during the during the increase end of the
Reporting Reporting Reporting and Reporting
Class of Period Period Period decrease Period
Name Gender Date of birth Position Status Term of Office Shares (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares)
ZHAO Lijuan (#E5) F September 1962 Chairwoman of In office 2016.6.17-2021.6.14 - - - - - -

the Board of Supenvisors
Employee Supervisor In office 2018.6.15-2021.6.14

THU Znihui (K5%) M August 1969 Shareholder Supervisor In office 2015.6.18-2021.6.14 - - - - - -
MA Baojun (SEE) M March 1963 External Supenisor In office 2018.1.19-2021.6.14 - - - - - -
SONGKe (RH) M April 1982 External Supenvisor In office 2017.5.19-2021.6.14 - - - - - -
CHENG Jie (%)  F December 1968 Employee Supervisor In office 2018.6.15-2021.6.14 A Shares 6,309 631 - - 6,940
LI Huoin (Z3) M September 1969 Employee Supervisor In office 2018.6.15-2021.6.14 - - - - - -

Note: The increase in the number of Shares is due to the completion of the Capitalization Issue by the Bank by way

of issuing one Share for every 10 Shares on 30 June 2020.
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Senior Management

Number of Increase Decrease

Shares held in the inthe Number of
asatthe  numberof  number of Shares held
beginning ~ Shares held ~ Shares held Other as at the
ofthe  duringthe  during the increase end of the
Reporting  Reporting  Reporting and Reporting
Term of Class of Period Period Period decrease Period
Name Gender Date of birth Position Status Office Shares (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares)
SHEN Xueging (££55) M July 1965 President Inofice  Since 5 Apri - - - - - -
2012
GUO Zhibin (B54) M October 1968 Vice President In office Since A Shares 37,320 3,732 - - 41,062
30 December 2015
SUN Halgang (/%) M August 1977 Vice President moficc  Since 28 February 2018 - S = = = =
ZHANG Wenjan (£30) M June 1965 Vice President Inofice  Since 28 February 2018 - - - - - -
FU Chungiao (B %) M October 1973 Vice President In office Since 29 March 2019 - - - - - -
Secretary of the Board In office Since 18 October 2013 - - - - - -
LI Lei (35) M August 1973 Assistant to President In office Since 21 November 2017~ A Shares 74,344 7434 - - 81,778
ZHANG Houlin () M June 1976 Assistant to President In office Since 21 November 2017 - - - - - -
LI Hong (%41) F February 1973 Assistant to President In office Since 29 March 2019 A Shares 26,746 2,675 - - 29421
LIU Jiuging (BIA ) M March 1978 Assistant to President Inofice  Since 29 March 2019 - - - - - -
JANG Teo (£7) M April 1972 Chief Informtion Officer In office Since 31 December 2015 A Shares 5,000 500 - - 5,500
WANG Yanii (£2E) F October 1970 Chief Risk Officer In office Since 12 February 2018 A Shares 111,515 11,151 - - 122,666
WANG Zhaogj (X% F November 1967 Chief Auditor In office Since 8 March 2018 A Shares 70617 7,062 - - 77,679
XA Hua (B %) M August 1967 Vice President Resigned  2012.2.6-2020.7.7 - - - - - -
Notes:
1. The starting dates of the term of office represent the dates on which the relevant qualifications are approved by
the banking regulatory authority.
2. The increase in the number of Shares is due to the completion of the Capitalization Issue by the Bank by way

of issuing one Share for every 10 Shares on 30 June 2020.

The table above discloses the Shares directly held by the Directors, the Supervisors and senior
management of the Bank. For the interests and short positions that the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executive have in the Bank under the SFO and in accordance with the Stock Exchange Listing Rules,
please refer to the chapter headed “Report of the Board of Directors”.
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CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Name Position Type Date Reason

FENG Tao (i5/E) Vice Chairman, Executive Director ~ Resigned 24 April 2020  Resigned due to age
XIA Hua (EZ) Vice Chairman, Executive Director  Elected 2 July 2020 Work adjustment
XIA Hua (EZE) Vice Chairman Resigned 7 July 2020 Work adjustment

On 24 April 2020, Mr. FENG Tao resigned from the posts of vice chairman and executive Director of the
Bank due to age. For details, please refer to the announcement dated 27 April 2020 published by the
Bank on the website of CNINFO and the announcement dated 26 April 2020 published by the Bank on
the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

On 24 April 2020, the Board considered and approved to appoint Mr. XIA Hua as an executive Director
candidate of the sixth session of the Board of the Bank. On 20 May 2020, it was considered and
approved at the 2019 AGM of the Bank to appoint Mr. XIA Hua as executive Director of the sixth session
of the Board of the Bank. On 20 May 2020, the Board considered and approved to appoint Mr. XIA Hua
as vice chairman of the Bank. The qualifications of Mr. XIA as executive Director and vice chairman were
approved by the CBIRC Henan Office on 2 July 2020. For details, please refer to the announcements
dated 27 April 2020, 21 May 2020 and 7 July 2020 published by the Bank on the website of CNINFO and
the announcements dated 26 April 2020, 27 April 2020, 20 May 2020 and 6 July 2020 published by the
Bank on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

On 7 July 2020, Mr. XIA Hua resigned from the post of vice chairman of the Bank due to work adjustment.

For details, please refer to the announcements dated 8 July 2020 published by the Bank on the websites
of CNINFO and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER VI DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT, STAFF AND INSTITUTIONS

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Mr. FAN Yutao, a non-executive Director, has ceased to serve as a director of Bridge Trust Co., Ltd.
(Bfmfest AR &ML A A)) since August 2020. The Bank was informed during the Reporting Period that
Mr. LIANG Songwei, a non-executive Director, has been serving as vice chairman of Zhengzhou Xinghe
Cultural Development Co., Ltd. (M 250 3L R AR A F) since August 2019, and Mr. WANG Shihao,
a non-executive Director, has been serving as independent director of Shanghai Shinovation Capital
Corporation Co., Ltd. (/883 & & EAk 7 AR 2 F]) since January 2019.

Mr. XIE Taifeng, an independent non-executive Director, has been serving as an independent director
of Everbright Xinglong Trust Co., Ltd.(X AEEE{EFEHEREFEAT) since January 2021. The Bank was
informed during the Reporting Period that Mr. WU Ge, an independent non-executive Director, has been
serving as deputy director of the Constitution and Administrative Law Committee of the All China Lawyers
Association since 2019 and has ceased to serve as director of the Constitutional and Human Rights
Committee of the All China Lawyers Association since 2019; Ms. CHAN Mei Bo Mabel, an independent
non-executive Director, has been serving as independent non-executive director of Renrui Human
Resources Technology Holdings Limited. (A¥m A BHEIZRRER A F]) (listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 06919) since November 2019, as member of Hong Kong Business Facilitation
Advisory Committee since July 2020, as a member of the Academy of Finance since December 2020,
as a member of the Independent Police Complaints Council since January 2021 and as a member of the
Corruption Prevention Advisory Committees of the ICAC since January 2021, and has ceased to serve as
member of Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel of Hong Kong since June 2020 and member of Small and
Medium Enterprises Committee of HKSAR since January 2021.

Mr. SONG Ke, an external Supervisor, has ceased to serve as independent non-executive director of
Zhejiang Yongan Rongtong Holdings Co., Ltd. (#T/Lsk & ghif = Ak (7 B R A &) (listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, stock code: 08211) since September 2020.

Other than those disclosed above, there was no change in the information of the Bank’s Directors and
Supervisors during the Reporting Period.
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POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

4.1

Biographies of Current Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
Directors

Mr. WANG Tianyu has served as a Director of the Bank since December 2005 and the chairman
of the Bank since March 2011, being primarily responsible for the overall operations and strategic
management of the Bank. In addition, he has served as the chairman of Zhongmu Zhengyin County
Bank since May 2012.

Mr. WANG has over 28 years of experience in banking business operations and management. He
joined the Bank in August 1996 and had successively served as the president of the Jingwu Road
sub-branch and vice president and president of the Bank from August 1996 to December 2011.
Prior to that, Mr. WANG had served as deputy manager and manager of the financial department
of China Staff Travel Agency (B8 THR7T4t) and Longxiang Hotel (BE¥E £E) from July 1988
to November 1992, and served as deputy director of Henan Province Yugong Urban Credit
Cooperatives (Ji] & & T 1= A #t) from November 1992 to August 1996. In addition, Mr. WANG
has been a member of the 12th People’s Congress of Henan Province since January 2013 and was
awarded the title of National Model Worker in April 2015. He was elected as a deputy to the 13th
National People’s Congress in January 2018.

Mr. WANG graduated from the Henan Institute of Finance and Economics (7] F Bf &£ 2F%) (Henan,
China) in June 1988, majoring in finance, and obtained a bachelor's degree in economics. He
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from the National University of Singapore
(Singapore) in June 2006, a master’s degree in executive business administration from Tsinghua
University (Beijing, China) in January 2015 and a doctoral degree in economics from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology (Hubei, China) in December 2018. He has been a senior
accountant accredited by the People’s Government of Henan Province since December 1998.

Mr. SHEN Xueqing has served as an executive Director of the Bank since July 2012 and the
president of the Bank since April 2012. He is primarily responsible for the daily operations and
management of the Bank.

Mr. SHEN has nearly 25 years of experience in banking business operations and management.
He joined the Bank in December 2011. Prior to joining the Bank, he held a number of positions
in Guangdong Development Bank Co., Ltd. (BRZERERITRMHERAE]) (currently known as
China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd., B#R1TARHD AR AF]) from June 1996 to November 2011. He
had served successively as deputy manager and manager of general office, director of operations
department and assistant to sub-branch president of the Huayuan Road sub-branch of the
Zhengzhou branch from June 1996 to October 2000, assistant to sub-branch president, vice
president and president of Dongming Road sub-branch of the Zhengzhou branch from October
2000 to July 2004, general manager of general office and general manager of No. 3 corporate
banking department of Zhengzhou branch from July 2004 to April 2006, president of Anyang sub-
branch from April 2006 to September 2009, and vice president of Changsha branch from October
2009 to November 2011. Prior to that, he had worked at the Financial and Trade Commission of
Pingdingshan City, Henan Province (FE& FIBILMEBE %Z E®) and successively served as
staff member, deputy chief and deputy director of the general office from September 1990 to June
1996.
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Mr. SHEN graduated from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics (AF 8148 E6%) (Henan,
China) in June 1990, majoring in finance, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics. He
obtained a master’'s degree in executive business administration from Xi’an Jiaotong University
(Shaanxi, China) in December 2008, and a master’s degree in executive business administration
from Tsinghua University (Beijing, China) in July 2015. He has been a senior economist accredited
by the People’s Government of Henan Province since December 2005.

Mr. XIA Hua has served as an executive Director and vice chairman of the Bank since July 2020.
He is primarily responsible for the affairs of the internal audit office of the Board, and assists Mr.
WANG Tianyu to manage the office of the Board, the remuneration and assessment office of the
Board and the strategic development department of the Board. In addition, he has served as the
chairman of Jiuding Financial Leasing Company since December 2019. Mr. XIA has nearly 31
years of experience in the banking industry. He joined the Bank in December 2011 and served
as vice president of the Bank from February 2012 to July 2020. Prior to joining the Bank, he had
successively served in the former CBRC Henan Office as a principal staff member and deputy chief
of the state-owned banking regulatory No. 1 department, deputy chief and regulatory researcher
of the city commercial banks regulatory department from September 2003 to December 2011.
He had successively served as vice president of the PBoC sub-branch in Yichuan County, deputy
principal staff member and principal staff member of the rural cooperative finance management
department of the Henan office, principal staff member of the cooperation department of the
Zhengzhou regulatory office of the Jinan office, principal staff member of the regulatory department
of the Agricultural Bank of China from August 1996 to September 2003, and staff member of the
foreign exchange department of PBoC Luoyang Office from July 1990 to July 1996.

Mr. XIA graduated from the Beijing Agricultural Engineering University (1t 52 % T2 X2 (Beijing,
China) in July 1990, majoring in applied electronic technology, with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering, and obtained from the China Europe International Business School (9 [&:BIER T & & 12
E[57) (Shanghai, China) an MBA degree for senior management personnel in October 2015. He has
been an economist accredited by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC since June 1995.

Mr. FAN Yutao has served as a non-executive Director of the Bank since September 2015. He
served as deputy director of the Zhengzhou Finance Bureau since February 2016 and director of
Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. (B¥{E:E B R EE A A]) from June 2011 to August 2020. In addition, he had
served as staff member of the budget section of the Zhengzhou Finance Bureau from July 1988 to
June 1994, deputy chief of the budget section of the Zhengzhou Finance Bureau from June 1994
to April 2002, chief of budget section of the Zhengzhou Finance Bureau from April 2002 to April
2006, chief of treasury section of the Zhengzhou Finance Bureau from April 2006 to July 2009, and
chief economist of the Zhengzhou Finance Bureau from July 2009 to February 2016.

Mr. FAN graduated from the Information Engineering College of the People’s Liberation Army of
the PRC (F B A REME (8 T 2P3) (Henan, China) in July 1988, majoring in computer science
and engineering, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering. He also obtained a completion
certificate in accounting from the Graduate School of the Institute of Fiscal Science of the Ministry
of Finance (84 B30 87 BUR 28 98 B ft 98 A 36) (Beijing, China) in July 2001.
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Mr. ZHANG Jingguo has served as a non-executive Director of the Bank since July 2012. He has
served as the chairman of Henan Zensun Property Co., Ltd. (A IE R B ¥ AR 2 7)) since January
2001; the chairman of the board, an executive director and the chief executive officer of Zensun
Enterprises Limited (IEFE 2B R A a)) (formerly known as ZH International Holdings Ltd., listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code:00185) since July 2015; a co-chairman and director
of Global Medical REIT (listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock code: GMRE) since June
2016; an executive director of Henan Hongguang Zensun Property Co., Ltd. since October 2017;
chairman of Zanyu Technology Group Co., Ltd. (BFEHZEBE D AR A F]) (isted on the SZSE,
stock code: 002637) since October 2018. In addition, he had served as department deputy chief of
Henan Household Appliances Industry Co., Ltd. (% A& XELZE A A]) from July 1983 to June
1991, vice general manager of Henan Light Industry Corporation (7] F & 8 T & 242/ 7)) from July
1991 to April 1995 and general manager of Henan Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (A
3 P ¢ EE PR 2 G FR A A) from April 1995 to April 2001.

Mr. ZHANG graduated from Zhengzhou University (Henan, China) in June 1983, majoring in
wireless communication, and obtained a bachelor’'s degree in science. He also obtained a
completion certificate in international trade from the Renmin University of China (Beijing, China) in
July 2001 and an MBA degree for senior management personnel from the Peking University (Beijing,
China) in July 2013. He has been a senior engineer accredited by the People’s Government of
Henan Province since August 1997.

Mr. JI Hongjun has served as a non-executive Director of the Bank since July 2012. He has
successively served as deputy general manager and vice president of Znongyuan Trust Co., Ltd. (F
JR{E:E B R A7) since December 2003, director of Great Wall Fund Management Co., Ltd. (%
+ & HPRAF]) since December 2008 and director of Henan Asset Management Company Limited
(AEBEERAMR AT since August 2017. In addition, he had served as a cadre of the finance
and trade department of the Henan Province Planning Commission from July 1984 to December
1984, a clerk and successively staff member of the foreign finance department, deputy chief
staff member and principal staff member of the financial department of Henan Province Planning
Economy Commission from December 1984 to December 1994, successively principal staff
member of the foreign economy department, deputy chief of the senior officer department, deputy
chief of the fixed asset investment department of the Henan Province Planning Commission from
December 1994 to August 2000, deputy chief of the finance department of the Henan Province
Development and Planning Commission (A& 2 EaTEIZ &) from August 2000 to November
2003 (serving as deputy chief of the No. 1 credit loan section of the Henan Branch of the China
Development Bank (BIZBAZEER1T0 & ©77) from September 2002 to September 2003), and a
non-executive director of Bank of China Travel Services Jiaozuo Co., Ltd. (FE{EFRIRIEFTAXID B IR A
7]) from November 2012 to May 2016.

Mr. JI graduated from the CCP Henan Provincial Committee Party School (FF A & ERK)
(Henan, China) in July 1994, majoring in economics (evening college). He obtained a completion
certificate of the post-graduate course for further studies in finance (& BiE2 70 4 RIREIE )
from the Business School of Wuhan University (Hubei, China) in June 2004 and an MBA degree
from the Asia International Open University (Macau) (Macau, China) in November 2010. He has
been a financial planner accredited by the Beijing Finance Training Centre (3t 5% g2 # 1)) since
October 2007.
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Mr. LIANG Songwei has served as a non-executive Director of the Bank since July 2012. He has
served as general manager of Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (EF/N#& &I E R A R)
since October 2008, a director of the aforesaid company since December 2009, the chairman of
the aforesaid company since June 2015, vice chairman of Zhengzhou Xinghe Cultural Development
Co., Ltd. (BN E L3R AR AR]) since August 2019, and director and general manager of
Zhengzhou National Central City Industrial Development Fund Co., Ltd. (ZFN 1 Bl 5K A /030 T 22 5 3
BRELRMD AR AF]) since September 2019. In addition, he served as business manager of Henan
Native Produce Import and Export Co., Ltd. (F[F84& T E# 1 0 A a]) from August 1989 to October
1996, assistant to the general manager of Zhengzhou Baiwen Co., Ltd. (Group) (E5/H B XD B R
~NA] (&) from October 1996 to September 2008, director of international trading department,
director and deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Baiwen Group Co., Ltd. (EMEXEEABR A
Al) from October 1996 to October 2008.

Mr. LIANG graduated from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences
(Beijing, China) in December 1998, majoring in literature and art, and earned a master’s degree. He
graduated from University of International Business and Economics (Beijing, China) in June 2005,
majoring in international trade, and earned a master’s degree in economics.

Mr. WANG Shihao has served as a non-executive Director of the Bank since July 2018. He has
served as a part-time professor of the Shanghai National Accounting Institute since July 2010,
a part-time professor of the Overseas Education College of Shanghai Jiao Tong University since
January 2011, a part-time professor of the College of Business of Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics since May 2013, an independent director of Bank of Lanzhou Co., Ltd. since June
2016, and an independent director of Shanghai Shinovation Capital Corporation Co., Ltd. (k£
AR EEERMHBR AR since January 2019. In addition, He served as director and legal
representative of Shanghai City Credit Cooperatives (/&M A A 1ELEi#) from February
1991 to December 1995, executive director and vice president of Shanghai City Cooperation
Commercial Bank (/&8 T A e 2 8R1T) (currently known as Bank of Shanghai) from December
1995 to May 2010, legal representative of the Funds Clearing Centre for City Commercial Banks
from July 2002 to August 2013, special expert for decision consulting of the Shanghai People’s
Government (&M ARBUFREZBFERERK) from March 2008 to February 2010 and from
December 2010 to November 2012, independent director of Huishang Bank Corporation Limited
from October 2011 to November 2018, independent non-executive Director of the Bank from July
2012 to June 2018 and a visiting professor (Year 2012-2014) of the School of Economics of Fudan
University from June 2012 to December 2014,

Mr. WANG graduated from Fudan University (Shanghai, China) in July 1984, majoring in financial
management cadre. He completed a joint senior MBA course organized by the Shanghai National
Accounting Institute (Shanghai, China) and the Arizona State University (U.S.) in June 2005, and
obtained an MBA degree from the Arizona State University (U.S.). He has been a senior economist
accredited by the PBoC since July 1993.
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Mr. XIE Taifeng has served as an independent non-executive Director of the Bank since
September 2015. He has served as professor of School of Finance of Capital University of
Economics and Business since July 2005, independent director of Green Fund Management
Co., Ltd.(B8ME L EIR B A 7)) since October 2016, independent director of China Fiim Co.,
Ltd. (FREEZMHER AR (isted on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600977) since
October 2019, independent non-executive director of Bank of Jinzhou Co., Ltd. ($8MRTTR%D
BRRAF]) (isted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 00416) since November 2019,
and independent director of Everbright Xinglong Trust Co., Ltd.(XAKEREEFEERETAR)
since January 2021. In addition, he served as a teaching assistant, a lecturer of the Economics
Department, the associate professor of the Business School, the dean of the Finance Department,
professor and deputy dean of the Business School of Zhengzhou University from January 1982
to July 2000, professor of Business Administration Branch School of Beijing Machinery Industry
Institute (At R T2 2207%) from July 2000 to July 2005, deputy dean, dean and PhD supervisor
of School of Finance of Capital University of Economics and Business from January 2006 to March
2015, independent director of China Haohua Chemical Group Co., Ltd. (FEZE /L TEBERND AR
73 A8]) from March 2013 to December 2018, and independent director of Woori Bank (China) Limited
(R AER1T (P E) ABREA 7)) from September 2013 to September 2019.

Mr. XIE graduated from Zhengzhou University (Henan, China) in December 1981, majoring in
politics and economics, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics. He graduated from the
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (Sichuan, China) in July 1986, majoring in
monetary banking, and obtained a master’'s degree in economics in January 1989. He obtained a
doctoral degree in economics from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (Sichuan,
China) in January 2000. He has been a professor accredited by the People’s Government of Henan
Province since May 1996.

Mr. WU Ge has served as an independent non-executive Director of the Bank since September
2015. He has served as director and legal representative of Beijing Zhongwen Law Firm (it &=
TP EIRAISEFT) since November 2013, a part-time researcher of the Institute of Criminal
Law Science of Beijing Normal University since August 2006, director of the Chinese Overseas
Friendship Association (FFZE/FIMNEZE®) since September 2008 and executive director of the
aforesaid association since May 2019, standing vice president of the China Institute of Case-based
Jurisprudence (FFERIZ=FIVAEHIEE) since October 2013, a part-time researcher of the Human
Rights Education and Research Centre of the Southwestern University of Politics and Law, being
the National Base of Human Rights Education and Training, since April 2015, a supervisor of China
Foundation for Disabled Persons (Bl &E ABFIEESE) since April 2019, and deputy director
of the Constitution and Administrative Law Committee of the All China Lawyers Association since
2019. In addition, he served as director of the Constitutional and Human Rights Committee of
the All China Lawyers Association from 2004 to 2019, a part-time professor of the Law School of
China University of Political Science and Law from May 2007 to May 2010, a tutor of the Master
of Laws program of the Law School of Tsinghua University from October 2012 to October 2015,
a tutor of the Master of Laws program of the Law School of Central University of Finance and
Economics from December 2015 to 2018, a member of the 11th Henan Provincial Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from January 2013 to January 2018 and an
independent member of the Loans Review Committee of the headquarters of China Development
Bank from 2007 to 2018.
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Mr. WU graduated from Renmin University of China (Beijing, China) in January 2000, with a
master’s degree in law. He obtained a completion certificate of a post-graduate course in finance
from the School of Economics of Peking University (Beijing, China) in December 2002.

Ms. CHAN Mei Bo Mabel has served as an independent non-executive Director of the Bank since
September 2015. She established Mabel Chan & Co. (REZE &AM E#FT) in January 1999. She
has served as an independent non-executive director of Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Ltd. (listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 01170) since August 2011, deputy managing
partner of Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited since January 2016; a member of the Securities and
Futures Appeals Tribunal of HKSAR (B48&# KBS EFEFHE) since April 2017, a member
of the Export Credit Insurance Corporation Advisory Board of HKSAR (&8t 0 ARG miEHE
8) since July 2017, a member of the Air Transport Licensing Authority of HKSAR (&8 2212 2 iR
/@) since August 2017, a member of the Trade and Industry Advisory Board of HKSAR (&8 T %
B 5% B E) since September 2017, an independent non-executive director of Renrui Human
Resources Technology Holdings Limited (listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code:
06919) since November 2019, a member of Hong Kong Business Facilitation Advisory Committee
since July 2020, a member of the Academy of Finance since December 2020, a member of the
Independent Police Complaints Council since January 2021 and a member of the Corruption
Prevention Advisory Committees of the ICAC since January 2021. In addition, she served as a
council member of the Association of Women Accountants HK (FBZ &@:TRitH &) from January
2006 to March 2017 and the president of the aforesaid Institute in 2010, a member of the Council
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (B/&&5FEIAE) from December 2007 to
December 2018 and the president of the aforesaid Institute from December 2016 to December
2017. She served as the president of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors (B8 A
E:HEIA®) from December 2009 to December 2010, a member of Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal
Panel of Hong Kong from May 2010 to June 2020, a school board member of Hong Kong Baptist
University from January 2013 to December 2018, an independent non-executive Director of South
China Assets Holdings Limited (formerly known as South China Land Limited, listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 08155) from May 2013 to March 2017, a member of the Appeal
Panel (Housing) of Hong Kong (B8 L:FZ E€ () from April 2014 to April 2018, and a member of
Small and Medium Enterprises Committee of HKSAR from January 2015 to January 2021.

Ms. CHAN obtained an MBA degree from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (Hong
Kong, China) in November 2000. She has been a member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants (E B4 AR ETAIA®) since November 1996, a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (B/E&5HAIA®) since January 1997 and a certified public accountant
(practising) accredited by the Hong Kong Institute of Certificated Public Accountants (BF/&&&HAIA
®) since 1999, a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors (BB E A SR A E)
since December 2002, a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(ERBMEBANE TSI A E) since February 2008, and a member of CPA Australia (&€ 51Hf
N since 2017.

Ms. LI Yanyan has served as an independent non-executive Director of the Bank since July 2018.
She has served as a professor of Zhengzhou University since May 2008, and director and editor-
in-chief of the school newspaper editorial department of Zhengzhou University since January 2015.
Prior to this, she served as a teacher in the social science department of Xinxiang Medical College
(FT4PEEPT) from July 1990 to August 1994, a teacher in the College of Economics of Henan
University from June 1997 to May 2001 and a teacher and deputy dean of the Business School of
Zhengzhou University from May 2001 to January 2015.
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Ms. LI obtained a bachelor’s degree in history from Henan University (Henan, China) in July 1990,
a master’s degree in economics from Fudan University (Shanghai, China) in June 1997 and a
doctorate degree in economics from Nanjing University (Jiangsu, China) in June 2007. She carried
out her post-doctoral research work at Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (Beijing, China)
from October 2007 to April 2010. She has held the title of professor accredited by the People’s
Government of Henan Province since May 2008.

Supervisors

Ms. ZHAO Lijuan has served as a Supervisor and the chairwoman of the Board of Supervisors
of the Bank since June 2016, and the chairwoman of the labor union of the Bank since November
2007. In addition, she has served as the chairwoman of Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank since
November 2017.

Ms. ZHAO joined the Bank in August 1996 and had successively served as vice president and
president of the Wulibao sub-branch, president of the Jinhai Avenue sub-branch and vice president
of the Bank from August 1996 to June 2016, and a Shareholder Supervisor and the chairwoman
of the Board of Supervisors of the Bank from June 2016 to June 2018. She has served as an
employee Supervisor and the chairwoman of the Board of Supervisors of the Bank since June
2018. Prior to joining the Bank, she successively served as accountant and accounting chief of
Zhengzhou Wulibao City Credit Cooperatives (851 FAE & {5 A 4L) from December 1984 to
August 1996.

Ms. ZHAO graduated from the Air Force Logistics Management College of the People’s Liberation
Army (PFRARMBBEEFEHEIEER) (Jiangsu, China) in June 2004, majoring in financial
management. She obtained a completion certificate of advanced course program in finance major
in the master of business administration program (LE & EME+R24 &5 A = &AHHELL) from the
School of Finance of Renmin University of China (Beijing, China) in March 2008. She has been a
senior political consultant accredited by the Senior Professional Evaluation Committee of Henan
Province Enterprises’ Ideological and Political Personnel (A& ¥ BAAEBUA TIEA B SR EER
BB ERFTEZ §E) since January 2009, and a senior economist accredited by the Ministry of
Personnel of the PRC since November 2015.

Mr. ZHU Zhihui has served as a Shareholder Supervisor of the Bank since June 2015. He has
served as the chairman of Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (A /R & 5B R A 7)) since December
2005, the chairman of Zhengzhou Huida Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Ei/NiEE E b ER S
R A &) since November 2011, the chairman of Henan Huida Jiarui Property Co., Ltd. (A m&EE 5=
BHEFEEBMR AR since March 2013, and the chairman of Huida Holdings Limited (B85 A R A
7)) since January 2015. Previously, he served as deputy general manager of Henan Province Light
Industry Economic Technology Import and Export Co., Ltd. (] & %& & T4 B 0 A 7)) from
June 1987 to March 1993, and the general manager of Zhengzhou Huida Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (BiMeEE S ERZEER A F]) from March 1993 to November 2011, and the chairman
of Zhengzhou Huida Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. (EMEEE 2 (&) FRAF]) from May 1998 to
December 2014.

Mr. ZHU graduated from CCP Henan Provincial Committee Party School (FFFAFEE £ ER)
(Henan, China) in December 1996, majoring in economic management (correspondence education),
and obtained a completion certificate in business strategy advanced program (& 75 B &= A AHE TE)
from Peking University (Beijing, China) in April 2010.
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Mr. MA Baojun has served as an external Supervisor of the Bank since January 2018. He has
served as the chairman of Henan Songshan Technology and Innovation Fund Management Co.,
Ltd. CRAIEELRIAIESEE AR AR since December 2016, a supervisor of Zhaoging Baoxin
Investment Company Limited (B2E M E &R EBRAF]) since June 2010 and director of Tak Yau
Limited since June 2017. He served as a staff member of the industry department of Zhengzhou
Finance Bureau from August 1986 to November 1988, a staff member of the Zhengzhou Finance
Bureau office from November 1988 to March 1992, deputy director of the Zhengzhou Finance
Bureau office from March 1992 to November 1993, deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Trust
Investment Company (ESJH{E5E#%E A7) from November 1993 to October 1995, the general
manager of Zhengzhou Trust Investment Company (ESM{EFE&RE A 7)) from October 1995 to
May 2002, the chairman of the board of directors of Bridge Trust Investment Company Limited
(AHEFEREER ST AF) from May 2002 to April 2011, a member of the Party Committee of
SPIC Capital Holding Co., Ltd. (EIRE&KERZERERAF]) from April 2011 to August 2016, the
chairman of the board of directors of Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. (BIB{EsEERETAA]) from April
2011 to December 2016, the chairman of the board of directors of Central China Airport Industry
Fund Management Co., Ltd. (FIRMZEEEZREELEEEBR AR from January 2015 to March
2018, the chairman of the board of directors of Henan Jianye Holdings Development Co., Ltd. (]
R EERIER AR A R]) from December 2016 to July 2018 and a director of Henan Houpu Jianye
Fund Management Co., Ltd. (A FEHERZEESEEFR A R]) from August 2017 to January 2019.

Mr. MA graduated from South-Central University for Nationalities (7 F R 2 F%) (Hubei, China) in
July 1986, majoring in Chinese language and literature, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts. In
June 2005, Mr. MA graduated from the National University of Singapore (Singapore) and obtained
a master’s degree in business administration. He has been a senior economist accredited by the
People’s Government of Henan Province since April 1994.

Mr. SONG Ke has served as an external Supervisor of the Bank since May 2017. He has served
as a lecturer in the Faculty of Monetary Finance of the School of Finance of Renmin University of
China (FEIARKEFHEREREB LB ZE) since September 2015, deputy Party secretary of
the School of Finance of Renmin University of China (A Bl A R AZ8 K< B2 07) since April 2019,
a council director and deputy director of the International Monetary Institute of Renmin University
of China (FEIARKEBRHEEEHITAT) since January 2014 and an independent non-executive
director of Bank of Guizhou Co., Ltd. (BEMIE7THZH AR AR (isted on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 06199) since August 2018. Mr. SONG served as league secretary general
of the School of Finance of Renmin University of China (Ff Bl A R A E2 8 £ @2 Fx) from July 2004
to September 2009 and a post-doctoral researcher of the School of Statistics of Renmin University
of China from July 2012 to July 2015. He was appointed as deputy commissioner of the Banking
Commission of the Guizhou People’s Government Finance Office (& /& B4 atitsR178) from
November 2012 to December 2013. He served as an independent non-executive director of
Zhejiang YongAn Rongtong Holdings Co., Ltd. (/I k & BIE AR % B R A &) (listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 08211) from December 2017 to September 2020.
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Mr. SONG graduated from the School of Finance of Renmin University of China (Beijing, China) in
July 2004, majoring in finance, with a bachelor’'s degree in economics. He continued his master’s
and doctoral studies at the School of Finance of Renmin University of China (Beijing, China) from
September 2006 to July 2012, obtaining a doctoral degree in economics.

Ms. CHENG Jie has served as an employee Supervisor of the Bank since June 2018 and the
president of the Longzi Lake sub-branch of the Bank since September 2016. She joined the Bank
in August 1996 and had successively served as the head of the credit section of the Jingwu Road
sub-branch, an office head and deputy president of the Weier Road sub-branch and the president
of the Wenbo sub-branch and the Eastern District sub-branch, respectively, from August 1996 to
September 2016. Prior to this, Ms. CHENG served as an accounting staff member of Yellow River
Shopping Mall in Zhengzhou City (B8N &7 #§35) from December 1986 to May 1993. She had
successively served various roles at Henan Province Yugong Urban Credit Cooperatives (7] Fg &
¥ I {2 A4t), such as a teller, the head of the savings department and the head of the credit
department from May 1993 to August 1996.

Ms. CHENG graduated from the East China Institute of Technology (¥25 T &%) (currently known
as Nanjing University of Science and Technology (52 T AZ)) (Jiangsu, China) in June 1992,
majoring in accounting. She has been an economist accredited by the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC since November 2000.

Mr. LI Huaibin has served as an employee Supervisor of the Bank since June 2018 and the
president of the Nongye Road East sub-branch of the Bank since September 2018. He joined the
Bank in July 1997 and had successively served as an employee of the Commodity Exchange sub-
branch, the chief of the corporate banking department of the head office, the president of the
Executive District sub-branch, the president of the Eastern District sub-branch, the president of the
Xingyang sub-branch and the president of the Shangqiu branch of the Bank, respectively, from July
1997 to September 2018. Prior to this, he served as a sales manager of the sales department of
Zhengzhou Grain Machinery Co., Ltd. (88 EH# k% (5 A R A7) from July 1993 to July 1997.

Mr. LI graduated from Zhengzhou Institute of Food Science (ESM & ZFz) (currently known as
the Henan University of Technology (i1 # L2 K 2%)) (Henan, China) in July 1993, with a bachelor’s
degree in food engineering. He later graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
(Hubei, China) in August 2007, with a master's degree in finance. He has been an economist
accredited by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC since November 1998.
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Senior Management
For Mr. SHEN Xuegqing’s biography, please see the section headed “Directors” of this chapter.

Mr. GUO Zhibin has served as vice president of the Bank since December 2015. He is primarily
responsible for the operations of the administrative management department, the financial market
department, the asset management department and the bill business department of the Bank. In
addition, he has served as the chairman of Xinzheng Zhengyin County Bank since July 2018. Mr.
GUO has over 22 years of experience in the banking industry. He served as an assistant to the
president of the Bank from December 2010 to December 2015. Prior to that, he had served as
the president of the Huanghe Road sub-branch of the Zhengzhou branch at Industrial Bank Co.,
Ltd. (HZEIRITRMD AR F]) from March 2006 to December 2010. In addition, he had served at
Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. (3 KIRTTRX1D B R 2 F]) as assistant to the president and vice president
of the Hongzhuan Road sub-branch of the Zhengzhou branch, deputy general manager of
corporate business No. 2 department of the Zhengzhou branch, and the general manager of the
asset security department of the Zhengzhou branch from June 1999 to March 2006. He served as
the manager of the general office and deputy general manager of Henan Yutai Mall Co., Ltd. ()7
M= mEARAR]) from October 1997 to May 1999, and deputy director of the general office
of the Zheng Sanjie (EX=41) sub-branch of the Bank and the Henan Province Labor City Credit
Cooperative (7] & & B3 i {= A 4t) from August 1996 to October 1997 and from January 1995 to
August 1996, respectively.

Mr. GUO graduated from Zhengzhou University (Henan, China) in June 1995, majoring in finance.
He graduated from Henan University (Henan, China) with the completion of the national economics
postgraduate course program (B R4S 7S H T AEREESI) in July 1999. He also obtained
a master’s degree in business administration from the Asia International Open University (Macau)
(Macau, China) in August 2004, and an EMBA degree from the Guanghua School of Management
of Peking University (1t R KE N EEIEELT) (Beijing, China) in June 2017. He has been an
economist accredited by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC since November 1997.

Mr. SUN Haigang has served as a vice president of the Bank since February 2018. He is primarily
responsible for the credit approval department, the credit management department, the risk
management department, the asset protection department, and the risk line support department of
the Bank. Mr. SUN has nearly 12 years of experience in the banking industry. He joined the Bank
in October 2009 and served as an assistant to the president of the Bank and the general manager
of the strategic development department of the Board from October 2009 to October 2013, and an
assistant to the president of the Bank and the president of the Luoyang branch from October 2013
to April 2016. Prior to joining the Bank, he worked at Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (% LR &A% (5
ABRAA]) from July 2007 to September 2009.

Mr. SUN graduated from Henan University (Henan, China) in June 2000, majoring in marketing
(advertising), with a bachelor’s degree in arts. He graduated from Henan University (Henan, China)
in July 2004, majoring in political economics, with a master’'s degree in economics. He graduated
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (Shanghai, China) in June 2007, majoring
in industrial economics, with a doctoral degree in economics. He has been a senior economist
accredited by the Human Resources and Social Security Ministry of the PRC since December
2014.
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Mr. ZHANG Wenjian has served as a vice president of the Bank since February 2018, the dean
of the Financial Institute (& &LAF3TFT) and director of the Office of the Postdoctoral Research
Workstation (18 Z&EHF T {EIh) of the Bank since April 2019. He is primarily responsible for the
operations of the retail business department, the credit card department, the financial department
of small business, the retail line risk department, and the retail line support department. Mr. ZHANG
has over 36 years of experience in the banking industry. He joined the Bank in November 1997
and had successively served as a staff member of the Zhengliu Street sub-branch, deputy general
manager of the financial accounting department, general manager of the accounting and settlement
department, general manager of the corporate business department, a member of the preparatory
team of the Nanyang branch, president of the Nanyang branch, and an assistant to president of
the Bank from November 1997 to March 2018. Prior to that, he had served as deputy chief of the
accounting section and director of the transaction centre of the Jinshui sub-branch of Industrial &
Commercial Bank of China Limited (/B TR#R1TAx (0 BR A R]) from February 1985 to November
1997.

Mr. ZHANG graduated from Zhengzhou Workers’ University (E5/1 T8t T AZ2) (Henan, China) in
June 1989, majoring in applied computer science. He also graduated from Nanjing Institute of
Political Science (B RBUAE ) (Jiangsu, China) in June 2005, majoring in economic management.
He also graduated from the School of Economic Management of Nankai University (Tianjin, China),
majoring in economic management in June 2016. He has been a senior economist accredited by
the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC since December 2016.

Mr. FU Chungiao has served as a vice president of the Bank since March 2019 and the secretary
of the Board of the Bank since October 2013. He is primarily responsible for the operations
of the asset and liability management department, the financial department, the information
technology department, the channel management department and the innovation management
department. Mr. FU has over 24 years of experience in the banking industry. He joined the Bank
in August 1996, and had served successively as deputy manager and deputy general manager of
the planning and asset department, deputy general manager and general manager of the asset
operation department, and director of the Office of the Board of Directors of the Bank from March
2000 to July 2020.

Mr. FU graduated from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics (7] EJ B £&8£28%) (Henan, China) in
June 1995, majoring in money and banking. He obtained a master’s degree in law from Zhengzhou
University (Henan, China) in June 2008. He has been an economist accredited by the Ministry of
Personnel of the PRC since November 1999.
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Mr. LI Lei has served as an assistant to the president of the Bank since November 2017. He
is primarily responsible for the operations of the corporate business department, institutional
business department, investment banking department and the public line support department.
Mr. LI has nearly 29 years of experience in the banking industry. He joined the Bank in September
1996, and had successively served as deputy chief of the accounting section, deputy director
of the transaction centre of the Jinhai Avenue sub-branch, deputy manager of the asset security
department and the credit department, deputy general manager of the risk management
department, deputy general manager of the credit approval department of the head office,
president of the Zidong sub-branch, president of the Baolongcheng sub-branch, and president
of the Xinzheng sub-branch, general manager of the corporate business department of the head
office, president of the Xinxiang branch and president of the Luoyang branch from September 1996
to November 2017. Prior to that, he worked at Zhengzhou Urban Credit Cooperatives from July
1992 to August 1996.

Mr. LI graduated from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China
(Beijing, China) in December 1996, majoring in foreign economics, and graduated from TEDA
College, Nankai University (R AREZEET) (Tianjin, China) in July 2017, majoring in finance. He
has been an assistant accountant accredited by the Department of Personnel of Henan Province
since April 1996.

Mr. ZHANG Houlin has served as an assistant to the president of the Bank since November 2017.
He is primarily responsible for the operations of the Nanyang branch and serves as its president.
Mr. ZHANG has nearly 22 years of experience in the banking industry. He joined the Bank in
August 1999, and successively served as a staff member in the business department of the head
office, a staff member in the corporate business department of the head office, president of the
Longhai East Road sub-branch, president of the Dengfeng sub-branch, president of the Anyang
branch and president of the Nanyang branch from August 1999 to November 2017.

Mr. ZHANG graduated from the Zhengzhou Shengda University of Economics, Business &
Management (Z0N KEFZELLE EFR) (Henan, China) in July 1999, majoring in accounting, and
graduated from Nankai University (Tianjin, China) in June 2018 with a master’s degree in senior
executive business administration. He has been an accountant accredited by the Ministry of
Finance since May 1999.

Ms. LI Hong has served as an assistant to the president of the Bank since March 2019. She is
mainly responsible for the affairs of the operation management department and the compliance
department. Ms. LI has over 25 years of experience in the banking industry. She joined the Bank
in August 1996 and had served successively as a teller and director of the business department
of the Longhai sub-branch, director of the business department, manager of the marketing
department, and president of Xijiancai sub-branch, president of Jinyicheng sub-branch, and
president of the Zhongyuan Road sub-branch of the Bank from August 1996 to March 2020. Prior
to that, she served as a teller at the Longhai Urban Credit Cooperatives in Zhengzhou from January
1995 to August 1996.
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Ms. LI graduated from Henan Sports School (A4 & B EEER) (Henan, China) in July 1994,
majoring in physical education. She graduated from Zhengzhou Workers’ University (¥F0Nm8;T
AE) (Henan, China) majoring in computer accounting in July 2004. She graduated from China
Central Radio and Television University (R E#HEHRAKE) majoring in law in January 2009. She
graduated from Nankai University (Tianjin, China) in December 2016 with a master’s degree in
senior executive business administration. She has been an assistant accountant accredited by the
People’s Government of Guancheng Hui District, Zhengzhou since January 2001.

Mr. LIU Jiuqing has served as an assistant to the president of the Bank since March 2019,
and the general manager of Zhengzhou management department since April 2019. He is mainly
responsible for the operations of Zhengzhou management department. He ceased to serve as the
general manager of the investment banking department of the Bank from January 2021. Mr. LIU
has nearly 20 years of experience in the banking industry. He joined the Bank in May 2012 and
had served successively as director of the No.3 market development department, general manager
of the trade finance department and director of the No.3 market development department, and
general manager of the trade finance department of the Bank from May 2012 to January 2017.
Prior to that, he served successively as accountant of the business department, account manager
of the personal banking department, account manager of the corporate banking department of
Dongming Road sub-branch of Zhengzhou branch of Guangfa Bank, deputy manager and manager
of the corporate department, assistant to the president, and vice president of Huanghe Road sub-
branch of Zhengzhou Branch of Guangfa Bank from July 2001 to May 2012.

Mr. LIU graduated from Henan Business College (] & ¥ & % E R E4) (now merged into Henan
University of Animal Husbandry & Economy (R4 4% EkT), Henan, China) in July 2001,
majoring in public relations and secretarial work, and graduated from Nankai University (Tianjin,
China) in July 2017, majoring in finance. He has been a junior economist accredited by the Ministry
of Personnel of the PRC since November 2004.

Mr. JIANG Tao has served as chief information officer of the Bank since December 2015, general
manager of the information technology department (formerly known as the science and technology
development department) of the Bank since April 2005 and the director of innovative business of
the Bank since March 2020. Mr. JIANG has nearly 27 years of experience in the banking industry.
He joined the Bank in August 1996, and served successively as an assistant engineer of the
science and technology department, chief of the post-supervision and development department
and chief and deputy general manager of the science and technology development department
from August 1996 to April 2005.

Mr. JIANG graduated from Zhengzhou University (21 X 28) (Henan, China) in July 1994, majoring
in computer science and application. He obtained a master’'s degree in computer engineering
from PLA Information Engineering University (FBIARBEHRE(ZE T KE) (Henan, China) from
September 2002 to July 2005. He has been a senior programmer accredited by the Examination
Board of China Qualification Certificate of Computer and Software Technology Proficiency (fFBI5T
BERBMBERMERTIKFEEHZE®) since October 2003.
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Ms. WANG Yanli has served as the chief risk officer of the Bank since February 2018. She is
primarily responsible for asset security and risk management of the Bank. Ms. WANG joined the
Bank in August 1996, and had successively served as vice president of the Jinhai Avenue sub-
branch, president of the Jinhai Avenue sub-branch, president of the Dashigiao sub-branch,
director of the business department of the head office, general manager of the risk management
department, general manager of the credit approval department, chief risk management officer
and general manager of the risk management department of the Bank from August 1996 to
February 2018. Prior to joining the Bank, she served as deputy director of Zhengzhou Urban Credit
Cooperatives from June 1995 to August 1996, worked in Zhengzhou Urban Credit Cooperatives
from July 1991 to June 1995 and the North Electric Power Section of Zhengzhou Railway Bureau
(BB 55 B B4t BASER) from December 1989 to June 1991.

Ms. WANG graduated from Zhongzhou University (1K 22) in July 1989 with a major in household
appliances. She obtained her master’s degree in business administration from Kunming University
of Science and Technology (EFFIE T KE) from September 2009 to July 2011. She has been a
senior accountant and an economist accredited by the Ministry of Finance since October 2016.

Ms. WANG Zhaogi has served as the chief auditor of the Bank since March 2018. She is primarily
responsible for internal auditing. Ms. WANG joined the Bank in August 1996 and worked in the
accounting office of the Bank from August 1996 to July 1999. She had successively served as
auditor of deputy division level of the audit and supervision department, vice general manager of
the audit and supervision department, vice general manager (presiding) of the post-supervision
department, general manager of the post-supervision department, general manager of the audit
department, director of the internal audit office of the Board, general manager of the former
accounting and settlement department and general manager of the operations management
department from July 1999 to March 2018. Prior to this, she worked in the accounting department
of Zhengzhou Urban Credit Union (B0 ik A B#4L) from July 1991 to August 1996 and
worked in Zhengzhou Construction Urban Credit Cooperative (Z8/HHi2 R T M) from
November 1984 to July 1991.

Ms. WANG graduated from Renmin University of China in June 2018 with a major in business
administration. She has been a senior accountant accredited by the People’s Government of Henan
Province since December 2007 and a senior auditor accredited by the Department of Human
Resources and Social Security of Henan Province since December 2019.
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4.2

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. FU Chungiao, one of the joint company secretaries of the Bank, was appointed on 29
September 2015. Please see the section headed “Senior Management” of this chapter for his
biography.

Ms. LEUNG Wing Han Sharon, one of the joint company secretaries of the Bank, was appointed
on 6 November 2015. Ms. LEUNG is the vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited. She has over 15 years of experience in finance, accounting and company
secretarial matters. Ms. LEUNG holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration (accounting),
a bachelor’s degree in laws, and a master’'s degree in international corporate and financial laws.
Ms. LEUNG is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators)
in the UK, and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK. She is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Positions of Current Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Held in
Shareholder Units

Remuneration

Name of the Position held in Allowance from

incumbent Name of Shareholder Unit Shareholder Unit Term of Office  Shareholder Unit

FAN Yutao (2% %) Zhengzhou Finance Bureau Deputy commissioner  Since February 2016 Yes
(BMTEHHE)

FAN Yutao (E %) Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. Director From June 2011 No
(BRELBERELLR) to August 2020

J Hongjun (7 18) Zhongyuan Trust Co., Ltd. Deputy president  Since December 2003 Yes
(PREFERAA)

LIANG Songwei (25%)  Znhengzhou Investment Holdings Chairman Since June 2015 Yes
Co., Ltd. (BMEREHFRBRAR)

ZHU Zhihui (K518 Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. Chairman  Since December 2005 No
(TEERESERAR)
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Positions of Current Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Other Units (Excluding Shareholder Units)

Management Held in

Remuneration
Name of the Position Held in Allowance from
incumbent Name of Other Unit Other Unit Term of Office Other Unit
WANG Tianyu (EXF)  Zhongmu Zhengyin County Bank Chairman Since May 2012 No
Chairman
XIA Hua (E ) Jiuding Financial Leasing Company Chairman  Since December 2019 No
ZHANG Jingguo (F&1E)  Henan Zensun Property Co., Ltd. (TREAE £ERAH) Chairman Since January 2001 Yes
ZHANG Jingguo (&) Zensun Enterprises Limited (EHE£ AR A7) Chairman of the board, Since July 2015 No
executive director and
chief executive officer
ZHANG Jingguo (K#Z)  Global Medical REIT Co-chairman and Since June 2016 No
director
ZHANG Jingguo (&EHEE) Henan Hongguang Zensun Property Co., Ltd. Executive director ~ Since October 2017 No
(TREXEBHESARAR)
ZHANG Jingguo (&) Zanyu Technology Group Co., Ltd. (BFREEBRNER A7) Charmen  Since October 2018 No
JI Hongjun (E%14) Great Wall Fund Management Co., Ltd. (RAESEEERAT) Director  Since December 2008 Yes
JIHongjun (7 18) Henan Asset Management Company Limited Director Since August 2017 No
(THEEERARAT)
LIANG Songwei (25%)  Zhengzhou Xinghe Cultural Development Co., Ltd. Vice Chairman Since August 2019 No
ENETERERAR)
LIANG Songwei (25%)  Zhengzhou National Central City Industrial Development Fund Director,  Since September 2019 No
Co., Ltd. BHMERTLEMEEERES RN ERAR) general manager
WANG Shihao (Z1%)  Shanghai National Accounting Institute Part-time professor Since July 2010 No
WANG Shihao (E#%)  Overseas Education College of Shanghai Jiao Tong University Part-time professor Since January 2011 No
WANG Shihao (T#%)  College of Business of Shanghai University of Part-time professor Since May 2013 No
Finance and Economics
WANG Shiheo (E%)  Bank of Lanzhou Co., Ltd. Independent director Since June 2016 Yes
WANG Shinao (E%)  Shanghai Shinovation Capital Corporation Co., Ltd. Independent director Since January 2019 Yes
(LEnaREEERNERAR)
XIE Taifeng (314 School of Finance of Capital University of Professor Since July 2005 Yes
Economics and Business
XIE Taifeng (714 1) Green Fund Management Co., Ltd. (BHESERERAA) Independent drector ~ Since October 2016 Yes
X Taifeng (A 12) China Film Co., Ltd. (FEEZRIERAT) Independent director ~ Since October 2019 Yes
X Taifeng (A 12) Bank of Jinzhou Co., Lid. (BMETRAERAT) Independent  Since November 2019 Yes
non-executive director
XIE Taifeng (A 18) Everbright Xinglong Trust Co., Ltd. (X AERfEEEREMRAE)  Independent director ~ Since January 2021 Yes
WU Ge (R5) Beijing Zhongwen Law Firm (3t R B2 MZ 45 Director  Since Noverber 2013 Yes
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Remuneration
Name of the Position Held in Allowance from
incumbent Name of Other Unit Other Unit Term of Office Other Unit
WU Ge (R8) Institute of Criminal Law Science of Beiing Normal University Part-time researcher Since August 2006 No
WU Ge (RE) Chinese Overseas Friendship Association (2 &5M &4 2) Managing director Since May 2019 No
WU Ge (R5) China Institute of Case-based Jurisprudence Standing vice president Since October 2013 No
(FERIEEREE)
WU Ge (RE) National Base of Human rights Education and Training, Part-time researcher Since April 2015 No
i.e. Human Rights Education and Research Centre of
the Southwestern University of Politics and Law
WU Ge (RE) China Foundation for Disabled Persons (REE& AEF£SE) Supervisor Since April 2019 No
WU Ge (R5) The Constitution and Administrative Law Committee of Deputy director Since 2019 No
the All China Lawyers Association
CHAN Mei (R%Z) Mabel Chan & Co. in Hong Kong (BB REE &S HF) Founder  Since January 1999 Yes
CHAN Mei (R%8) Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Ltd. Independent Since August 2011 Yes
non-executive director
CHAN Mei (%) Grant Thorton Hong Kong Limited Deputy managing partner Since January 2016 Yes
CHAN Mei (B£E) Securities and Futures Appeals Triounal of HKSAR Member Since April 2017 No
(EREFRASEH HEHR)
CHAN Mei (B£%) Export Credit Insurance Corporation Advisory Board of Member Since July 2017 No
HKSAR (BR LD ERRBRHAZEE
CHAN Mei (%) Al Transport Licensing Authority of HKSAR (BAZEIE ) Member Since August 2017 No
CHAN Mei (%) Trade and Industry Advisory Board of HKSAR Member  Since September 2017 No
(ERIXEAHAZEE)
CHAN Mei (B£%) Renrui Human Resources Technology Holdings Limited Independent  Since November 2019 Yes
non-executive director
CHAN Mei (%) Hong Kong Business Facilitation Advisory Committee Member Since July 2020 No
CHAN Mei (%) Academy of Finance Member  Since December 2020 No
CHAN Mei (B%%) Independent Police Gomplaints Council Member Since January 2021 No
CHAN Mei (B%%) Corruption Prevention Advisory Committees of the ICAC Member Since January 2021 No
CHAN Mei (B%%E) Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel of Hong Kong Member From May 2010 to No
(FEARNLREHE) June 2020
CHAN Mei (R%3) Small and Medium Enterprises Committee of HKSAR Member  From January 2015 to No
(AR HLREEE) January 2021
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Remuneration
Name of the Position Held in Allowance from
incumbent Name of Other Unit Other Unit Term of Office Other Unit
LI Yanyan (355 Zhengzhou University Professor Since May 2008 Yes
LI Yanyan (2% The school newspaper editorial department of Director and Since January 2015 Yes
Zhengzhou University editor-in-chief
ZHAO Lijuan (BET) Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank Chairman  Since November 2017 No
ZHU Zhinui (K758) Zhengzhou Huida Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Chairman  Since November 2011 No
FHEEEEREERAT)
ZHU Zhinui (K58) Henan Huida Jiarui Real Estate Co., Ltd. Chairman Since March 2013 Yes
(TREEREELARAR)
ZHU Zhihui (£ 75%) Huicla Holdings Limited (B2 RERAF) Chairman ~ Since January 2015 No
MA Baojun (5EE) Zhaoging Baoxin Investment Gompany Limited Supervisor Since June 2010 No
(EETEERAERAR)
MA Baojun (5EE) Henan Songshan Technology and Innovation Fund Management Chairman  Since December 2016 Yes
Co, Ltd. (THBILHRAHESERARAA)
MA Baojun (SEE) Tak Yau Limited Director Since June 2017 No
SONG Ke (RH) International Monetary Institute of Renmin University of China Council director and Since January 2014 No
(PEARAZERSEHEN deputy director
SONG Ke (R Faculty of Monetary Finance of the School of Finance of Renmin Lecturer ~ Since September 2015 Yes
University of China (FEEARAEBB S BER ER S BZ)
SONG Ke (RH) School of Finance of Renmin University of China Deputy party secretary Since April 2019 No
(FEARAZHHEHER)
SONG Ke (R) Zhejiang YongAn Rongtong Holdings Co., Ltd. Independent  From December 2017 to Yes
(FTAERRERRGERLE) non-executive director September 2020
SONG Ke (£#) Bank of Guizhou Co., Ltd. Independent Since August 2018 Yes
non-executive director
GUO Zhibin (F351) Xinzheng Zhengyin County Bank Chairman Since July 2018 No

Penalties Imposed on Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Who
Currently Hold Positions or Resigned During the Reporting Period in the Past

Three Years

The Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Bank who currently hold positions or
resigned during the Reporting Period did not have any punishments by the securities regulatory
authorities in the past three years.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.

140



CHAPTER VI DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT, STAFF AND INSTITUTIONS

5

141

REMUNERATION POLICY AND ANNUAL REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

5.1

Remuneration Policy

5.1.1

5.1.2

The Decision-making Process

The Bank’s general meeting decides on the remuneration of Directors and Supervisors,
considers and approves the remuneration measures for Directors and Supervisors,
authorizes the remuneration and appraisal committee of the Board to formulate the
remuneration plan for the relevant Directors and Supervisors, and is responsible for the
assessment and implementation. The Board of the Bank determines the remuneration of
the senior management personnel, considers and approves the remuneration measures for
senior management personnel, authorizes the remuneration and appraisal committee of the
Board to formulate the remuneration plan of relevant senior management personnel, and is
responsible for assessment and implementation.

Determination Basis

According to the guidelines from regulatory authorities, the Administrative Measures on
Remuneration and Performance for Directors and Supervisors at Governance Level, the
Administrative Measures on Remuneration and Performance for Senior Management at
Operation Level, and Administrative Measures on the Deferred Payment of Performance-
based Remuneration, the Bank formulated the remuneration assessment plan for the
chairman of the Board, the vice chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Board of
Supervisors, other executive Directors, and senior management personnel based on the
principles of balance between power and responsibility, combination of incentive with
restriction, keeping remuneration in line with risk and responsibilities, and equal emphasis
on short-term and long-term objectives. The assessment covers four areas: operating
results, risk management, internal control compliance, and duty performance, which reflects
protection of the interests of depositors and investors and ensure that the Bank’s short-
term interest aligns with its long-term interests. The Bank determines the total annual
remuneration of the chairman of the Board, the vice chairman of the Board, the chairman
of the Board of Supervisors, other executive Directors, and senior management personnel
based on their annual assessment results.

The Bank remunerates non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
according to the payment plan for allowances of the non-executive Directors and
remuneration of independent non-executive Directors, and remunerates the Shareholder
Supervisors and external Supervisors based on the payment plan for allowances of
Shareholder Supervisors and remuneration of external Supervisors. The remuneration
standard of other Supervisors is implemented in accordance with relevant measures of the
Bank.
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5.1.3 Actual Payments

The Bank pays the basic salaries of the chairman of the Board, the vice chairman of the
Board, the chairman of the Board of Supervisors and the senior management according
to the remuneration management system; and pays the performance salaries according to
the annual performance assessment. As the chairman of the Board, the chairman of the
Board of Supervisors, the full-time deputy party secretary and the Secretary of Committee
for Discipline Inspection are municipal government officials, only the basic salary portion are
paid to them preliminarily. The actual salary will be calculated after the superior department
determines the new salary evaluation plan and standard, and the difference will be paid or
refunded as the case may be. Other Directors and Supervisors are paid monthly according
to the allowance standards.

Remuneration for Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Unit: RMB’ 000

Total remuneration
from the Bank
(before tax)

during the

Whether obtained
remuneration from
the related parties

Name Position Status Reporting Period of the Bank

WANG Tianyu Chairman and In office 984.00 No
executive Director

SHEN Xueqing President and In office 1,732.05 No
executive Director

XIA Hua Vice chairman and In office 785.50 No
executive Director

FAN Yutao Non-executive Director In office S Yes

ZHANG Jingguo  Non-executive Director In office 36.00 Yes

JI Hongjun Non-executive Director In office 36.00 Yes

LIANG Songwei Non-executive Director In office = Yes

WANG Shihao Non-executive Director In office 168.00 Yes

XIE Taifeng Independent non- In office 180.00 No
executive Director

WU Ge Independent non- In office 180.00 No
executive Director

CHAN Mei Bo Independent non- In office 180.00 No

Mabel executive Director

LI Yanyan Independent non- In office S No
executive Director

ZHAO Lijuan Chairwoman of the In office 1,639.48 No
Board of Supervisor and
employee representative
Supervisor

ZHU Zhihui Shareholder In office 36.00 Yes

representative Supervisor
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Total remuneration

from the Bank
(before tax)

Whether obtained
remuneration from

during the the related parties
Name Position Status Reporting Period of the Bank
MA Baojun External Supervisor In office 150.00 No
SONG Ke External Supervisor In office 150.00 Yes
CHENG Jie Employee representative  In office 1,981.26 No
Supervisor
LI Huaibin Employee representative  In office 1,942.46 No
Supervisor
GUO Zhibin Vice president In office 1,549.73 No
SUN Haigang Vice president In office 1,549.55 No
ZHANG Wenjian  Vice president In office 1,548.02 No
FU Chungiao Vice president and In office 1,548.74 No
secretary of the Board
of Directors
LI Lei Assistant to president In office 1,457.84 No
ZHANG Houlin Assistant to president In office 1,426.19 No
LI Hong Assistant to president In office 1,218.28 No
LIU Jiuging Assistant to president In office 1,459.07 No
JIANG Tao Chief information officer In office 1,048.77 No
WANG Yanli Chief risk officer In office 1,092.98 No
WANG Zhaogi Chief auditor In office 1,002.85 No
FENG Tao Vice chairman and Resigned 569.32 No
executive Director
XIA Hua Vice president Resigned 853.97 No
Total - - 26,506.05 -

5.3 Share Incentives Granted to Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
During the Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the Directors, Supervisors and senior management personnel of
the Bank neither held any options nor were granted restricted share units or any forms of share

incentives.
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6 STAFF

6.1

Composition

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the following table sets out the composition of employees of

the Bank:

Number
Number of in-service employees of the Bank 4,984
Number of in-service employees of the subsidiaries 347
Total number of in-service employees 5,331
Total number of employees receiving remuneration during the period 5,331
Number of resigned and retired employees with costs borne 1,083
Note: The number of employees excludes dispatched employees.
By department/function

Number of
Job category employees Percentage
Corporate banking 710 13%
Retail banking 1,519 29%
Risk management, internal audit and legal compliance 490 9%
Finance and accounting 1,404 26%
I.T. 215 4%
Business management and support 993 19%
Total 5,331 100%
By age
Number of

Age group employees Percentage
30 or below 2,263 42%
31- 40 2,216 42%
41- 50 623 12%
Over 50 229 4%
Total 5,331 100%
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By level of education
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Highest level of education

Number of
employees

Percentage

Master’s degree or above
Bachelor’s degree
Associate degree

Others

972
3,862
449
48

18%
73%
8%
1%

Total

5,331

100%

6.2

6.3

Staff Training Plan

According to the annual development strategy, the Bank constantly improves the training
system and training management system, promotes the construction of a learning-oriented
institution, highlights the soft power of development, providing strong talent support for long-term
development. During the Reporting Period, the Bank officially launched the “Ding College (5 £653)”
of Online Education College of Zhengzhou Bank (PR #84% E2F), taking advantage of the advanced
and scientific nature of the platform to undertake talent training through the combination of online
and offline methods. The Bank continuously carries out the establishment project of professional
sequence curriculum system, including curriculum system sorting, learning map building, internal
curriculum development, etc.; speeds up the effort to nurture talents of all levels and improves
all employees’ capability to undertake the duties of their positions; focuses on the reserve cadres
training, internal lecturer training programs, training on new employees hired through on-campus
recruitment, the headquarters staff reserves training, and trainings on corporate account managers,
small and micro customer managers, operations, rotational trainings on risks, building a sound
talent base construction for the business development of the Bank.

Remuneration Policy for Staff

The Bank adheres to the principles of “fairness, competition and incentivization” in formulating
its remuneration policy. In other words, the remuneration policy shall be able to reflect external
fairness, internal fairness and individual fairness of salary; it shall be conducive to enhancing our
market competitiveness and attractiveness to talented people. When adjusting its remuneration
structure, the Bank makes corresponding adjustments for positions whose remunerations are
far below the market level based on the results of a market salary survey, and it shall also be
able to make our salary more incentivised, namely to motivate our employees by incorporating
floating wages and performance-linked bonus and other incentive components into our salary
packages, and to provide employees at different positions with equal promotion opportunities
by designing different promotion channels. The Bank makes social insurance contributions and
housing provident fund contributions and provides other employee benefit packages for employees
in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations of the PRC, and establishes a corporate
annuity system and a supplementary medical fund to improve the pension payment and medical
security of employees. For details, please refer to Note 32(a) in the chapter headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this Report.

145  Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER VI DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT, STAFF AND INSTITUTIONS

6.4 Labor Outsourcing

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank had 329 dispatched employees. The positions
assigned to dispatched employees were mainly auxiliary positions such as savings tellers,
lobby managers, voucher scanning personnel, file input personnel and drivers. The Bank’s
unified management systems on vacation, induction, training, etc., also apply to the dispatched
employees. The salaries of the dispatched employees were determined based on their performance
assessment results. The Bank assesses the dispatched employees regularly and transfers the
dispatched employees to official staff in proportion on merit.

BASIC INFORMATION OF INSTITUTIONS UNDER THE BANK

The following table sets out the branches and sub-branches of the Bank as at the end of the Reporting
Period:

Number of its affiliated Number of ~ Asset size
Region Name of institutions Business address (China) institutions employees  (RMB’000)
Zhengzhou, Henan  Headaquarters 22 Shangwu Waihuan Road, 116 branch institutions in 4,984 522,146,926
Zhengdong New District, district of Zhengzhou for
Zhengzhou City, conducting external business
Henan Province and 57 institutions in other
prefectural-level cities in
Henan for conducting
external business
Zhengzhou, Henan  Branch institutions in - 99 institutions 3,621 439,259,809
Zhengzhou
for conducting external
businesses directly
managed
by the headquarters
Zhengzhou, Henan  Small Business Financial Room 102, 1-2/F and Room 301-309, 17 institutions for conducting 342 3,989,544
Service Centre 3/F, 4A, North of Longhu Zhonghuan external business
South Road and East of Jiuru Road,
Zhengdong New District, Zhengzhou
City, Henan Province 17 institutions for
conducting external business
Nanyang, Henan  Nanyang branch The junction of Zhongjing Road and 10 institutions for conducting 161 9,719,638
Fanli Road, Wancheng District, external business
Nanyang City, Henan Province
Xinxiang, Henan ~ Xinxiang branch No. 278, Xiangyang Road, 7 institutions for conducting 126 5,820,434
Xinxiang City, Henan Province external business
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Region

Name of institutions

Business address (China)

Number of its affiliated
institutions

Number of
employees

Asset size
(RMB’000)

Luoyang, Henan

Anyang, Henan

Shanggiu, Henan

Xuchang, Henan

Luohe, Henan

Xinyang, Henan

Puyang, Henan

Pingdingshan,

Henan

Zhumadian, Henan

Kaifeng, Henan

Zhoukou, Henan

Hebi, Henan

Luoyang branch

Anyang branch

Shanggiu branch

Xuchang branch

Luohe branch

Xinyang branch

Puyang branch

Pingdingshan branch

Zhumadian branch

Kaifeng branch

Zhoukou branch

Hebi branch M@

Longan Building (EZAE), the junction of
Guanlin Road and Houzaimen Street,
Luolong District, Luoyang City,

Henan Province

Yiwu International Business & Trade Mansion,
the junction of Zhonghua Road and
Delong Street, Andong New District,

Anyang Gity, Henan Province

Floor A28, Siji Harbour, Wenhua Road North
and Zhongzhou Road East, Liangyuan
District, Shangqiu City, Henan Province
Juncheng International Building (FBZ
BB KJE), the junction of Liancheng
Avenue and Weiwen Road, Weidu District,

Xuchang City, Henan Province

Floor 1-5, Changjian International (5 B EIE5),
the junction of Songshan West Branch Road
and Mudanjiang Road, Yancheng District,

Luohe City, Henan Province

Floor 1-2, Zhongle Baihua Mansion (F£57E
M), the junction of Xingi Avenue and
Xinba Street, Yangshan New District,

Xinyang City, Henan Province

The northwest of junction of Renmin Road
and Kaizhou Road, Hualong District,

Puyang City, Henan Province

The southeast of junction of Kaiyuan Road
and Qinggong Road, Zhanhe District,
Pingdingshan City, Henan Province

The southwest of junction of Huaihe
Avenue and Tianzhongshan Avenue,
Zhumadian City, Henan Province

The southeast of junction of Jinming
Avenue and Hanxing Road, Kaifeng City,

Henan Province

The southeast of junction of Traffic Avenue and
Bayi Avenue, Zhoukou City, Henan Province
The northeast of junction of Qishui Avenue
and Zihuai Lane, Qibin District, Hebi City,

Henan Province

7 ingtitutions for conducting
external business

7 institutions for conducting
external business

5 ingtitutions for conducting
external business

4 institutions for conducting
external business

3 institutions for conducting
external business

4 institutions for conducting
external business

2 institutions for conducting
external business

2 ingtitutions for conducting
extenal business

2 institutions for conducting
external business

2 ingtitutions for conducting
external business

1 institution for conducting
external business

1 institution for conducting
external business

124

92

82

54

7

67

55

46

59

33

13,987,173

8,087,708

6,328,885

5,923,719

4,225,134

247113

4,560,619

5,395,829

4,284,680

4,221,426

3,240,087

736,133

Note: The Hebi branch of the Bank was officially opened for business on 8 May 2020.
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Note: In accordance with the spirit of the Notice of the General Office of Municipal Commission of China’s Communist
Party in Zhengzhou on Matters Relating to the Setting of the Discipline Inspection and Supervision Department
of Bank of Zhengzhou (Zheng Ban [2019] No.100), the Bank has dissolved the Discipline Supervisory Office and
replaced it with a stationed unit (“Discipline Inspection and Supervision Team of Municipal Commission
for Discipline Inspection and Supervision Stationed in Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.”) established in the
Bank by the Municipal Commission for Discipline Inspection and Supervision.
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OVERVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank has established a relatively sound corporate governance structure, including the general
meeting, the Board, the Board of Supervisors, and senior management, to regulate operation, specify
duties and maintain effective balance, so as to fully protect and safeguard the legitimate rights and
interests of domestic and international Shareholders and other stakeholders. During the Reporting
Period, the Bank continued to enhance its corporate governance structure, various systems of corporate
governance and corporate governance standards in strict accordance with the requirements of the
Company Law, the Securities Law, the Corporate Governance Guidelines for Listed Companies issued
by the CSRC, the SZSE Listing Rules, the Guidelines for the Standard Operation of Listed Companies
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the Stock Exchange Listing Rules , and the Corporate Governance
Code together with the Bank’s corporate governance practice. As at the end of the Reporting Period,
there was no significant inconsistency between the Bank’s actual corporate governance and the Company
Law and relevant provisions of the CSRC. Meanwhile, the Bank strictly abided by the code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code and the Stock Exchange Listing Rules relating to inside information
disclosure. The Directors are not aware of any information indicating that the Bank had not complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Bank constantly reviewed and updated the corporate governance
system in accordance with relevant laws, regulations, and regulatory requirements. It amended the
Articles of Association, the Rules of Procedures of General Meetings, and the Rules of Procedures of
Board Meetings, and formulated the Information Reporting System for Senior Management. The Board
formulated the strategic development plan for 2021-2025 to specify its development direction. Under the
leadership of the Board, the Bank completed the non-public issuance of A Shares to improve its capital
adequacy. It readjusted members of the special committees of the Board to strengthen professional
functions and improve operational efficiency and performance. The Board of Supervisors carried out
performance evaluations, regularly issued supervision tips, and strengthened supervision function.
Independent non-executive Directors and external Supervisors actively conducted business surveys and
earnestly expressed independent opinions. In doing so, the expertise and supervisory role of external
experts were put into play. The Bank discloses information in a true, accurate, complete and timely
manner in accordance with laws, regulations, the Articles of Association and the Bank’s information
disclosure measures, and ensures that all Shareholders have equal access to such information. The
Bank attaches great importance to the management of inside information, strictly controls the scope of
personnel having access to inside information, and registers the list of personnel knowing the Bank’s
inside information in a timely manner. No person with knowledge of inside information has been found to
illegally use inside information to trade in the Bank’s Shares.

The Bank will continue to review and strengthen corporate governance in order to ensure consistent

compliance with the regulatory provisions and the SZSE Listing Rules and the Stock Exchange Listing
Rules and meet the higher expectations of Shareholders and investors.
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The Bank’s Independence from Shareholders Holding More Than 5% of the Bank’s
Shares in Terms of Operations, Staff, Assets, Institutional Structure and Finance

During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not have any controlling Shareholder.

(1)

Operations: The Bank operates independently from Shareholders holding more than 5% of the
Bank’s Shares.

Staff: The Bank operates independently in terms of staff and salary management.
Assets: The Bank has independent places of business and supporting facilities.

Structure: The Bank has a sound institutional structure through which the Board, the Board
of Supervisors and various functional departments operate independently with clear powers
and functions and have no subordinate relations with the functional departments of corporate
Shareholders holding more than 5% of the Bank’s Shares.

Finance: The Bank sets up the independent finance department and audit department equipped
with special financial and audit personnel, and established an independent accounting system and
financial management system.

Horizontal Competition

The Bank does not have controlling Shareholders or horizontal competition with controlling Shareholders,
the de facto controllers and other companies controlled by them.

GENERAL MEETINGS

Investor Disclosure

participation Date of date of the
Number, session and type ratio convening resolutions Disclosure index
2019 AGM 55.19% 20 May 2020 20 May 2020 The website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
The website of the Bank
(www.zzbank.cn)
CNINFO (www.cninfo.com.cn)
2020 first class meeting of the 68.31% 20 May 2020 20 May 2020 The website of the Hong Kong Stock
A Shareholders Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
The website of the Bank
(www.zzbank.cn)
CNINFO (www.cninfo.com.cn)
2020 first class meeting of the 14.15% 20 May 2020 20 May 2020 The website of the Hong Kong Stock
H Shareholders Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)

The website of the Bank
(www.zzbank.cn)
CNINFO (www.cninfo.com.cn)
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During the Reporting Period, the Bank held one annual general meeting, one class meeting of the A
Shareholders, and one class meeting of the H Shareholders, the particulars of which are as follows:

On 20 May 2020, the Bank held the 2019 AGM in Zhengzhou, Henan. In the meeting, 25 resolutions
regarding the Work Report of the Board, the Work Report of the Board of Supervisors, Financial
Accounts, Financial Budget, the Profit Distribution and Capitalization Issue Plan, Amendments to the
Articles of Association, and the Revised Non-public Issuance of A Shares were considered and approved;

On 20 May 2020, the Bank held the 2020 first class meeting of the A Shareholders in Zhengzhou, Henan.
In the meeting, five resolutions regarding the Profit Distribution and Capitalization Issue Plan, Amendments
to the Articles of Association, and the Revised Non-public Issuance of A Shares were considered and
approved; and

On 20 May 2020, the Bank held the 2020 first class meeting of the H Shareholders in Zhengzhou, Henan.
In the meeting, five resolutions regarding the Profit Distribution and Capitalization Issue Plan, Amendments
to the Articles of Association, and the Revised Non-public Issuance of A Shares were considered and
approved.

The convening of the above general meetings, the notices, the holding and voting procedures were in line
with the relevant provisions of the relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association.

During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not have any situation in which the shareholders of preference
shares whose voting rights were resumed requested to convene extraordinary general meetings, convened
and presided over the general meetings, or submitted provisional proposals for general meetings.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
4.1 Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

As the decision-making body of the Bank, the Board of Directors is accountable to the general
meeting and responsible for implementing the resolutions of the general meeting. The Board
of Directors mainly exercises the following powers and rights: convening general meetings and
implementing the resolutions adopted at general meetings; deciding on the business development
strategies, business plans and investment proposals of the Bank; formulating annual budgets, final
accounts, profit distribution plans and loss recovery plans of the Bank; formulating proposals on the
increase or reduction of the Bank’s registered capital and the issue of bonds and other securities
and the listing of the Bank; formulating proposals on major acquisitions by the Bank, acquisitions
of the Shares of the Bank or merger, division, dissolution or change of the corporate form; deciding
on external investment, acquisition and disposal of assets, pledge of assets, external guarantee,
entrustment of wealth management and other matters of the Bank within the scope of authority
granted by the general meeting; examining and approving the related party transactions which
require approval by the Board of Directors as stipulated by the law, administrative regulations,
departmental rules, regulatory documents and regulations of securities regulatory authorities of the
locality where the Bank’s stocks are listed; deciding on the establishment of the Bank’s internal
management departments; appointing or removing the Bank’s president and secretary to the
Board of Directors, deciding to appoint or removing the Bank’s senior management personnel
including the vice presidents, assistants to the president and chief financial officer of the Bank
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in accordance with the recommendations of the president, and determining their remunerations,
rewards and punishment; formulating the basic management systems of the Bank, deciding on
the policies on risk management, internal control and compliance policy of the Bank; formulating
amendment proposals on amendments to the Articles of Association, the rules of procedures of
general meetings and Board meetings; proposing at a general meeting the appointment, dismissal
or discontinuance of appointment of accounting firms; supervising the performance of the senior
management, receiving the president’s work report and examining the president’s work; managing
the information disclosure of the Bank and taking ultimate responsibility for the completeness and
accuracy of the Bank’s accounting and financial reporting systems; reviewing any material capital
expenditure, contract and commitment which exceeds the expenditure limit for senior management
set by the Board of Directors; and other powers and rights stipulated by laws, administrative
regulations, departmental rules or the Articles of Association, and those conferred by the general
meeting.

As the administrative body of the Board of Directors, the office of Board is responsible for the
preparation of general meetings and the meetings of the Board of Directors and special committees
of the Board of Directors, information disclosure, investor relations management and other daily
affairs.

Operating Model of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall hold at least four regular meetings a year, and convene extraordinary
meetings when necessary. The meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held in the form of
physical meetings or by way of telecommunication. The notices of regular Board meetings and the
materials of the meeting shall be sent to each Director at least ten days and five days before the
relevant meeting is convened, respectively, in accordance with the related corporate governance
requirements under the regulatory provisions and the SZSE Listing Rules and the Stock Exchange
Listing Rules and the Articles of Association. The detailed minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Directors will be provided to all attending Directors for their review subsequent to the meetings,
and shall be signed by all Directors for confirmation after proposing amendments. A good
communication and reporting mechanism has been established among the Board of Directors, the
Directors and senior management of the Bank. Senior management provides sufficient information
for the Board and its special committees to make decisions. All Directors may seek independent
professional opinions with the cost borne by the Bank. The President of the Bank regularly reports
to the Board and is subject to its supervision. Relevant members of senior management are invited
to participate in meetings of the Board and its special committees from time to time to provide
explanations or answers to inquiries. At the meetings of the Board of Directors, all Directors can
present their opinions freely, and decisions on important matters should only be made after a
detailed discussion. Directors with material interest or conflict in relevant proposals shall refrain
from voting.
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4.3

Members of the Board and the Board Diversity Policy

The Bank believes that the diversity of the members of the Board of Directors can improve
the performance of the Bank. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including (but not limited to) gender, qualifications, regional
and industry experience, skills, knowledge and educational background. All Board appointments
will be determined based on both capability and integrity, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard given to the benefits of diversity to the Board.

The nomination committee of the Board will review and assess this policy as and when appropriate,
and consider the structuring, size and composition of the Board on an annual basis as well as set
the following measurable goals, to ensure the effective implementation of this policy:

The Board
The Board shall ensure that there is no gender limitation in selecting Directors;

At least one third, and no less than three in total, of the Board members are independent non-
executive Directors;

Board members shall possess knowledge and skills in different areas; and
At least one Board member is a professional in finance or accounting.

The Nomination Committee of the Board of Directors will discuss any amendments or amendments
that may need to be made, and then submit these proposed amendments to the Board of Directors
for approval. The selection of candidates for Directors by the Nomination Committee will be based
on a series of diverse fields and with reference to the Bank’s business model and specific needs.
For the nomination policy as well as procedures for selection of Directors, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Nomination Policy and Procedures for Selection of Directors” in this chapter.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board comprised a total of 12 Directors, including:
Ten males and two females;

Three executive Directors, five non-executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors;

One Director aged under 50, nine Directors aged 50 to 59, and two Directors aged 60 or above;
and

Four Directors specialising in banking, two Directors specialising in teaching and research, one
Director specialising in law, one Director specialising in accounting, and four Director specialising in
other areas.

Accordingly, the Board considers its members have generally achieved diversity in different
aspects.

For details of each Director’s term of office and changes of Directors during and after the Reporting
Period, please refer to the chapter headed “Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management, Staff and
Institutions” of this Report.
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Chairman and President

The roles and duties of the chairman of the Board of Directors and the president are taken up by
different individuals. There is a clear division of responsibilities in compliance with the requirements
and recommendations of the regulatory provisions and the SZSE Listing Rules and the Stock
Exchange Listing Rules.

Mr. WANG Tianyu, as the chairman of the Board of Directors, is mainly in charge of chairing
general meetings, convening and chairing meetings of the Board of Directors; supervising and
reviewing the implementation of resolutions of the Board of Directors; signing share certificates,
bonds and other marketable securities of the Bank; signing important documents of the Board of
Directors and other documents required to be signed by the legal representative of the Bank; and
exercising the duties and powers of the legal representative.

Mr. SHEN Xueqing, as the president of the Bank, is mainly in charge of managing operations of
the Bank, arranging the implementation of the resolutions of the meetings of the Board of Directors
and reporting the work to the Board of Directors; submitting annual business plans and investment
proposals to the Board of Directors and arranging the implementation upon approval by the Board
of Directors; and drafting proposals on the establishment of the internal management departments,
basic management systems and specific regulations of the Bank.

Responsibilities of Directors

During the Reporting Period, all Directors carefully, earnestly and diligently attended relevant
meetings as specified and required by relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association,
exercised their rights regarding the operation of the Board and resolutions of the meeting of
the Board, and duly considered and voted on its resolutions and actively offered responsible
suggestions and advice, which facilitated the Bank’s sound and sustainable development and
perfectly completed the tasks and objectives of the Board. While duly exercising their rights
as Directors, they were performing their corresponding obligations to fully protect the rights of
Shareholders and investors. Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Board of Supervisors conducted evaluation of the performance of duties of the Directors
during the Reporting Period, and reported the results of the evaluation to the general meeting.
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Particulars of Meetings of the Board of Directors and Directors’ Attendance

During the Reporting Period, the Bank held 10 meetings of the Board of Directors, considered 73
major resolutions including related party transactions, the work report of the Board of Directors,
final accounts report, annual profit distribution and Capitalization Issue plan, amendments to the
Articles of Association, and the revised non-public issuance of A Shares.

Particulars of the Meetings

Number and session

Date of convening

Form of convening

The 2020 first extraordinary meeting of
the sixth session of the Board
The 2020 second extraordinary meeting of
the sixth session of the Board
The eighth meeting of the sixth session of the Board
The 2020 third extraordinary meeting of
the sixth session of the Board
The ninth meeting of the sixth session of the Board
The 2020 fourth extraordinary meeting of
the sixth session of the Board
The 2020 fifth extraordinary meeting of
the sixth session of the Board
The tenth meeting of the sixth session of the Board

The eleventh meeting of the sixth session of the Board

The 2020 sixth extraordinary meeting of
the sixth session of the Board

19 February 2020

12 March 2020

30 March 2020
14 April 2020

24 April 2020
20 May 2020

8 July 2020
28 August 2020

29 October 2020
21 December 2020

By correspondence

By correspondence

On-site meeting
By correspondence

On-site meeting
By correspondence

By correspondence
On-site meeting

On-site meeting
On-site meeting
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Directors’ Attendance
Special Committees of the Board®
2020 first 2020 first Related
class class Party Remuneration ~ Consumer
meeting meeting Strategic Risk ~ Transactions and Rights
of the of the Board of Development Management Control Audit ~ Nomination ~ Assessment  Protection
Director 2019AGM A Shareholders  H Shareholders Directors ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee®  Committee®  C

Actual attendance/required attendance (times)®

Executive Director WANG Tianyu 10110 4/4 il
SHEN Xueging / / v 10110 44 il
XIA Hua 4440 44 00
FENG Tao e 1

Non-executive Directors FAN Yutao / / v/ 10110 414
ZHANG Jingguo 10110 33
JI Hongjun / / v 10110 i
LIANG Songwei 1010 /6 44
WANG Srihao 1010 6/6

Independent Non-executive ~ XIE Taifeng 1010 6/6 mn 202 1l

Directors WU Ge 10/10 44 414

CHAN Mei Bo Maboel / v / 1010 n 202 202
LI Yanyan v v/ 4 10110 414 33

Notes:

(1) Mr. XIA Hua was elected as an executive Director of the sixth session of the Board of Directors of the
Bank on 20 May 2020 at the 2019 AGM of the Bank. He was approved to perform his duties on 2 July
2020 and shall attend four meetings of the Board of Directors during the Reporting Period.

2) Mr. FENG Tao resigned as an executive Director of the Bank on 24 April 2020, and shall attend four
meetings of the Board of Directors during the Reporting Period.

(3) The number of meetings in which Directors of the special committees of the Board are required to
attend shall be the number of meetings held throughout the year, while the actual number of attendance
is the actual number of meetings attended by Directors of the special committee. During the Reporting
Period, all Directors attended meetings of the special committees of the Board in person. There was no
attendance by proxy.

(4) On 24 April 2020, Ms. CHAN Mei Bo Mabel ceased to be the chairwoman of the nomination committee,
and shall attend two meetings of the nomination committee during the Reporting Period; Mr. XIE Taifeng
was appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee, and shall attend two meetings of the
nomination committee during the Reporting Period.

(5) On 24 April 2020, Mr. XIE Taifeng ceased to be a member of the remuneration and assessment
committee, and shall attend one meeting of the remuneration and assessment committee during the
Reporting Period; Ms. CHAN Mei Bo Mabel was appointed as a member of the remuneration and
assessment committee, and shall attend two meetings of the remuneration and assessment committee
during the Reporting Period.

(6) During the Reporting Period, the consumer rights protection committee of the Bank held one meeting

on 9 April 2020.
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During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
failed to attend the meetings of the Board of Directors in person for two consecutive times.

During the Reporting Period, the Chairman and independent non-executive Directors held meetings
without the presence of other Directors.

4.7 Independence and Performance of Duties of Independent Non-executive
Directors

4.7.1 Confirmation of the Independence for Independent Non-executive Directors

At present, the Board consists of four independent non-executive Directors and the
qualification, number and percentage of independent non-executive Directors satisfy the
relevant requirements of the regulatory provisions and the SZSE Listing Rules and the Stock
Exchange Listing Rules. None of the independent non-executive Directors are involved in
any conflict which would bring their independence into question as described in Rule 3.13 of
the Stock Exchange Listing Rules. The Bank had already received the letters of confirmation
on independence submitted by each independent non-executive Director as required by the
Stock Exchange Listing Rules, and believes that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent and in compliance with relevant guidelines provided by Rule 3.13 of the Stock
Exchange Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors neither have any business or financial interests
in the Bank nor hold any management position in the Bank. All the incumbent independent
non-executive Directors were elected for a term of three years. They may continue to serve
for three years after the expiration of the term, provided that the total consecutive terms
shall not exceed six years.

The independent non-executive Directors account for the majority of seats in and act as

chairman of the related party transactions control committee, the audit committee, the
nomination committee and the remuneration and assessment committee of the Board.
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4.7.2 Performance of Duties of Independent Non-executive Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors’ Attendance of Board Meetings and Annual General

Meeting
Number of Failure to attend
required meetings in
attendance Number of person for 2
for Board  Attendance Attendance by  attendance  Times of consecutive
Name meetings in person  telecommunication by proxy  absence times
XIE Taifeng 10 2 0 0 No
WU Ge 10 1 0 0 No
CHAN Mei Bo Mabel 10 0 10 0 0 No
LI Yanyan 10 4 6 0 0 No
Attendance of independent non-executive Ms. CHAN Mei Bo Mabel and Ms. LI Yanyan attended the 2019 AGM,
Directors at general meetings the 2020 first class meeting of the A Shareholders and the 2020 first

class meeting of the H Shareholders of the Bank.

During the Reporting Period, none of the independent non-executive Directors failed to
attend Board meetings in person for two consecutive times.

Dissenting Opinions of Independent Non-executive Directors on Relevant Matters of the
Bank

During the Reporting Period, none of the independent non-executive Directors had any
objection to relevant matters of the Bank.

Other Explanations on Independent Non-executive Directors’ Performance of Their Duties

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s independent non-executive Directors performed
their duties diligently and faithfully with a responsible attitude towards the Bank and
investors, and the duties performed were in strict accordance with the Company Law,
the Securities Law, the Guidelines for the Standard Operation of Listed Companies on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the SZSE Listing Rules, the Stock Exchange Listing Rules
and other laws and regulations as well as the Articles of Association, the Work Rules for
Independent Directors and other relevant requirements. They actively attended Board
meetings, general meetings and meetings of relevant committees, conducted on-site
inspections of the Bank to learn about the Bank’s operations, internal control mechanism
and the implementation of resolutions of the Board meetings, and expressed independent
opinions on related party transactions, profit distribution and the Capitalization Issue, internal
control, appointment of external audit agency, Shareholders’ return scheme for the next
three years and other matters of the Bank, earnestly safeguarding the rights and interests of
Shareholders, especially those of the public Shareholders.
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During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s independent non-executive Directors expressed
independent opinions on relevant issues considered by the Board. During Board meetings
and inspections of the Bank, they put forward an array of opinions and suggestions, all of
which were adopted or responded to by the Bank.

Time of Type of
disclosure Subject matter opinion
23 January 2020 Independent Opinions on Related Party Transactions Agree
20 February 2020  Independent Opinions on Related Party Transactions Agree
9 March 2020 Independent Opinions on Related Party Transactions Agree
13 March 2020 Independent Opinions on Related Party Transactions Agree
26 March 2020 Independent Opinions on Related Party Transactions Agree
26 March 2020 Independent Opinions on Related Party Transactions Agree
31 March 2020 Independent Opinions on Non-public Issuance of A Shares Agree
Involving Related Party Transactions
31 March 2020 Independent Opinions on Related Party Transactions Agree
31 March 2020 Independent Opinions on 2019 Profit Distribution and Agree
Capitalization Issue Plan of the Bank, the Amendment of
the Profit Distribution Policy in the Articles of Association,
2019 Internal Control Self-assessment Report, the Special
Report on Related Party Transactions in 2019, the
Estimated Amount of Daily Related Party Transactions in
2020, the Appointment of External Audit Agency in 2020,
Guarantees and the Occupation of Funds by Controlling
Shareholders and Other Related Parties, and Remuneration
for Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
31 March 2020 Independent Opinions on Shareholder Return Planning Agree
of the Bank for the Next Three Years (2020-2022)
27 April 2020 Independent Opinions on Proposed Change of Executive Agree
Directors of the Sixth Session of the Board of Directors
21 May 2020 Independent Opinions on 2019 Performance Agree
Appraisal Results of Executive Directors and
Senior Management Personnel
31 August 2020 Independent Opinions on External Guarantees of the Bank Agree

and the Occupation of Funds by Controlling Shareholders
and Other Related Parties, the Distribution of Offshore
Preference Shares Dividends, 2020 Performance Appraisal
Scheme for Executive Directors and Senior Management
Personnel, and Changes in Accounting Policies

On 28 April 2020, an independent Board committee comprising independent non-executive
Directors Mr. XIE Taifeng, Mr. WU Ge, Ms. CHAN Mei Bo Mabel, and Ms. LI Yanyan
provided advice for independent Shareholders in relation to the subscription of the Bank’s
non-public issuance of A Shares by Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (AFEREZ 5 ER A7)
and Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (Ef/N#&&ZRBRAF]) in accordance with
the conditional share subscription agreements and the supplementary agreements thereof.
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THE SPECIAL COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

5.1

5.2

Strategic Development Committee

The strategic development committee of the Bank currently consists of three executive Directors
(Mr. WANG Tianyu, Mr. SHEN Xueqging and Mr. XIA Hua). The strategic development committee is
chaired by Mr. WANG Tianyu, an executive Director.

The strategic development committee is mainly responsible for researching the Bank’s long-term
development strategy and significant investment decisions, setting business and management
objectives and long-term development strategy for the Bank, making recommendations for the
Bank’s significant investment decisions, supervising and checking the implementation of annual
business plans and investment plans, communicating regularly with the senior management and
heads of departments in relation to the operations and risks of the Bank, providing advice and
suggestions, and other matters under the authority granted by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the strategic development committee held a total of four meetings,
in which they considered and approved a number of resolutions such as the Zhengzhou Bank’s
Strategic Development Plan for 2021-2025, the Mid-term Capital Plan (2021-2023), the Capital
Increase to Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank, the Capital Increase to and Acquisition of Yanling
Zhengyin County Bank and the 2019 Annual Work Report of the strategic development committee
of the Board.

Risk Management Committee

The risk management committee of the Bank consists of two non-executive Directors, Mr. LIANG
Songwei and Mr. WANG Shihao, and one independent non-executive Director, Mr. XIE Taifeng. The
risk management committee is chaired by Mr. WANG Shihao, a non-executive Director.

The risk management committee is mainly responsible for controlling, managing, monitoring
and assessing risks of the Bank, reviewing risk control principles, objectives and policies of the
Bank and reporting them to the Board of Directors for deliberation and approval, reviewing risk
management measures of the Bank, examining and supervising the risk management work carried
out by the senior management in all aspects, conducting surveys and evaluations on risk policies,
management status and risk tolerance levels of the Bank on a regular basis and reporting to the
Board of Directors, providing recommendations on improving risk management and internal control
of the Bank, and formulating approval management plan for the Bank and reporting to the Board of
Directors and general meetings for deliberation and approval.

During the Reporting Period, the risk management committee held a total of six meetings to
consider and approve a number of resolutions such as the 2019 Compliance Management Report,
the Comprehensive Risk Management Report, the Anti-money Laundering Work Report, the
Approval Proposal of the Board, and the Risk Preference Statement.
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5.3

5.4

Related Party Transactions Control Committee

The related party transactions control committee of the Bank consists of one non-executive
Director (Mr. LIANG Songwei) and two independent non-executive Directors (Mr. WU Ge and
Ms. LI Yanyan). The related party transactions control committee is chaired by Mr. WU Ge, an
independent non-executive Director.

The related party transactions control committee is mainly responsible for the management, review
and matters, as approved by the Board of Directors, of related party transactions, and controlling
the risk of related party transactions, formulating rules and management framework relating to
related party transactions of the Bank, reviewing related parties of the Bank and reporting them to
the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors and announcing identified related parties to
relevant staff of the Bank timely, reviewing and supervising the control of related party transactions
of the Bank, re-examining materials about related party transactions and subsequently submitting
the same to the Board of Directors for approval.

During the Reporting Period, the related party transactions control committee held a total of four
meetings to consider and approve a number of resolutions such as the Specific Report on 2019
Related Party Transactions, the Estimated Amount for Daily Related Party Transactions in 2020, the
List of Related Parties, and Business Cooperation with High-Quality Related Party Clients Satisfying
Relevant Policy Requirements.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Bank consists of one non-executive Director (Mr. JI Hongjun) and two
independent non-executive Directors (Ms. CHAN Mei Bo Mabel and Mr. XIE Taifeng). The audit
committee is chaired by Ms. CHAN Mei Bo Mabel, an independent non-executive Director.

The audit committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the risks and compliance status, internal
control management system, accounting policies, auditing basic management system, financial
reporting procedures and financial position of the Bank, auditing the financial information of
the Bank, preparing a report on audited financial statements and submitting it to the Board for
consideration; making recommendations on the appointment and change of external audit agency,
coordinating the communications between internal audit departments and external auditors; taking
charge of the Bank’s annual audit and overseeing the senior management to rectify the issues
raised in the audit and implement audit recommendations, reviewing, evaluating and reporting to
the Board of Directors on the internal audit on a regular basis.

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee held a total of seven meetings to consider and
approve resolutions such as the 2019 Annual Report of the Bank, the 2019 Internal Audit Report,
the 2019 Internal Control Self-assessment Report, the Appointment of External Auditors for 2020,
and the 2020 Interim Report.
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Bank consists of one non-executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors. The non-executive Director is Mr. FAN Yutao, and the two independent
non-executive Directors are Mr. XIE Taifeng and Mr. WU Ge. The nomination committee is chaired
by Mr. XIE Taifeng, an independent non-executive Director.

The nomination committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, know-how, experience and diversity) of the Board and the management every year,
and advising the Board on proposed changes to the Board based on the strategy of the Bank;
developing the criteria and procedures for selecting Directors and senior management personnel,
and formulating or revising the Board Diversity Policy; searching for qualified candidates for
Directors and submitting nominations to the Board; assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; conducting preliminary review of the qualifications of candidates for
directors and senior management personnel, and making recommendations to the Board; and
widely searching for qualified candidates for directors and senior management.

During the Reporting Period, the nomination committee held a total of four meetings to consider
and approve a number of resolutions such as the 2019 Work Report of the Nomination Committee,
the New Establishment of the Position of Director of Innovation Business and the Nomination of
Mr. JIANG Tao to Concurrently Hold the Position, the Nomination of Mr. XIA Hua as an Executive
Director of the Six Session of the Board of Directors, the Election of Mr. XIE Taifeng as the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Sixth Session of the Board of Directors, and the
Nomination of Mr. CHEN Heng as the Director of Financial Market Business.

Nomination Policy and Procedures for Selection of Directors

In order to ensure that the Board of Directors have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the Bank’s business, the nomination committee of the Board of
Directors shall recommend nominations of Directors to the Board of Directors in accordance with
the principles of the Board Diversity Policy and the Bank’s Nomination Policy. The main criteria
and principles of the Bank’s Nomination Policy include: (1) reviewing the structure, size and
composition (including skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board of Directors and
the management every year according to the operations, management, asset scale and equity
structure of the Bank, and providing suggestions to the Board in relation to possible changes of the
Board of Directors based on the strategy of the Bank; (2) formulating the criteria and procedures
for selecting Directors and members of senior management, and providing suggestions to the
Board; formulating or revising the Board Diversity Policy and developing the diversity of the Board
of Directors in the process of personnel selection, taking into account, among other things, gender,
age, culture, perspective, educational background and professional experience; (3) searching for
qualified candidates for Directors and proposing nominations to the Board of Directors after due
consideration of the Board Diversity Policy of the Bank, the requirements for being a Director of
the Bank under the Articles of Association of the Bank, the Stock Exchange Listing Rules and
applicable laws and regulations, as well as the contributions that relevant candidates can make
to the Board of Directors in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity; (4) assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors according to the
factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules and any other factors as may be
considered appropriate by the nomination committee or the Board of Directors; where a proposed
independent non-executive Director is proposed to serve as a director of five (or more) listed
companies, whether he/she can devote enough time to the Board of Directors will be assessed.
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The main procedures for selection of Directors of the Bank are as follows: (1) The general office
of the Board and the nomination committee of the Board of Directors shall actively communicate
with relevant departments of the Bank to study the Bank’s demand for appointment and re-election
of Directors and senior management personnel and prepare relevant written documents; (2) the
nomination committee of the Board of Directors may extensively search for candidates for directors
and senior management personnel within the Bank and its controlled (associate) companies and
talent market; (3) the nomination committee of the Board of Directors shall, after due consideration
of relevant requirements, including but not limited to the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy, identify persons who are eligible to become Board members, and assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors as appropriate; the nomination committee of the Board of
Directors shall collect and understand information on the candidates including their occupations,
educational background, professional titles, detailed work experience, and full-time and part-time
job experience, and formulate relevant written materials; (4) the nomination committee shall
solicit the nominees’ written consent to their nominations, otherwise they may not be put on
the list of candidates for Directors, general manager and other senior management personnel;
(5) the nomination committee shall convene meetings to review the qualifications of proposed
candidates according to the job qualifications required for Directors, general manager and other
senior management personnel; (6) the nomination committee shall make recommendations
and submit relevant materials to the Board of Directors on candidates for Directors and senior
management personnel within a reasonable time prior to the election and re-election of Directors
and appointment of senior management personnel; and (7) the nomination committee shall follow
up other matters according to the decisions and feedback of the Board of Directors.

Remuneration and Assessment Committee

The remuneration and assessment committee of the Bank consists of one non-executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors. The non-executive Director is Mr. ZHANG Jingguo,
and the two independent non-executive Directors are Ms. CHAN Mei Bo Mabel and Ms. LI Yanyan.
The remuneration and assessment committee is chaired by Ms. Li Yanyan, an independent
non-executive Director.

The remuneration and assessment committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the remuneration
management system and policies of the Bank, studying the criteria for appraising Directors and
senior management personnel, and conducting the appraisal and making proposals; making
proposals to the Board in respect of the remuneration policies and structures for Directors
and senior management of the Bank and the formulated remuneration policies with a view
to establishing a set of formal and transparent procedures, supervising and modifying the
implementation of the Bank’s remuneration policies; reviewing the performance of duties of
Directors and senior management personnel and conducting annual performance appraisal on
them.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration and assessment committee held a total of three
meetings to deliberate and approve a number of resolutions such as the 2019 Work Report of the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee, the 2019 Performance Appraisal Results on Executive
Directors and Senior Management Personnel, and the 2020 Performance Appraisal Scheme for
Executive Directors and Senior Management Personnel.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER VIl CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

5.7 Consumer Rights Protection Committee

The consumer rights protection committee of the Bank consists of three executive Directors (Mr.
WANG Tianyu, Mr. SHEN Xueqing and Mr. XIA Hua). The consumer rights protection committee is
chaired by Mr. WANG Tianyu, an executive Director.

The consumer rights protection committee is mainly responsible for formulating the Bank’s
development goals, strategies and plans for the protection of consumer rights, deploying and
coordinating for the protection of consumer rights and conducting research on major issues
concerning consumer rights protection, regularly communicating with the senior management and
heads of departments about consumer rights protection of the Bank and giving comments and
suggestions, supervising and inspecting the implementation of the annual work plan, and other
matters under the authority granted by the Board of Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the consumer rights protection committee held a total of one meeting
to research and deploy the consumer rights protection of the Bank, and considered and approved
a number of resolutions such as the 2019 Report of Consumer Rights Protection, the 2019 Work
Report of the Consumer Rights Protection Committee, and the Rectification Plan for Consumer
Rights Protection.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for establishing sound corporate governance practices and procedures of
the Bank. During the Reporting Period, the Board performed the following duties within its terms of
reference: formulating and reviewing the Bank’s corporate governance policies and practices, and making
recommendations; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of Directors, Supervisors and senior management; reviewing and monitoring the Bank’s policies and
practices in respect of compliance with laws and regulatory requirements; formulating, reviewing and
monitoring the codes of conduct for Directors, Supervisors and employees; and reviewing compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code and the disclosing in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
7.1 Responsibilities of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors, as the supervisory body of the Bank, aims to protect the legitimate
rights of the Bank, Shareholders, staff, depositors and other stakeholders. It is accountable to the
general meeting. The duties of the Board of Supervisors include: to review the Bank’s financial
reports prepared by the Board of Directors and express comments thereon in writing; to supervise
the performance and due diligence of the Board of Directors, senior management and its members;
to question the Directors, the Board of Directors and senior management; to conduct exit audits
towards the Directors and senior management personnel if necessary; to require the Directors
and senior management personnel to rectify their acts which are detrimental to the interests of the
Bank; to examine and supervise the Bank’s financial activities; to supervise and audit the business
decision making, risk management and internal control of the Bank, if necessary; to propose
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dismissal or initiate legal proceedings against the Directors and senior management personnel who
violate laws, administrative regulations, the Articles of Association or resolutions of the general
meeting; to propose the convening of extraordinary general meetings and extraordinary Board
meetings, convene and preside over the general meeting in the event that the Board of Directors
has failed to fulfil its duty as stipulated by the Company Law to convene and preside over the
general meeting, and propose resolutions to a general meeting; to verify financial information such
as financial reports, business reports and profit distribution plans to be proposed at the general
meeting by the Board of Directors; to make arrangements for remuneration (or allowance) for the
Supervisors; and to exercise other powers and rights conferred by applicable laws, administrative
regulations, departmental rules, regulatory documents and the Articles of Association or those
granted by the general meeting.

Operating Model of the Board of Supervisors

This includes convening regular meetings of the Board of Supervisors, attending general meetings,
attending the Board meetings and certain meetings of its special committees, attending the relevant
meetings of the senior management, reviewing various documents and materials from the senior
management, receiving the work report and project report of the senior management, evaluating
the annual performance of Directors and the senior management, facilitating communications
among the Directors and the senior management, conducting exit audits of the executive Directors
and the senior management, conducting investigation and research on branch institutions, carrying
out a variety of special investigations, etc. Through the above work, the Board of Supervisors
monitors and evaluates the Bank’s operation and management, risk management and internal
control, as well as the performance of duties of Directors and the senior management personnel.
During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors performed its duties diligently, supervised
the legal compliance of performance of duties by Directors and the senior management. They also
performed audit on the executive Directors and the senior management personnel as required.
They reviewed and supervised the financial activities, risk management and internal control of the
Bank, and investigated any abnormal operating activities. During the Reporting Period, the Board
of Supervisors supervised the 2019 annual performance of the Board of Directors of the Bank,
Directors, the senior management and its members and Supervisors, and gave feedback to the
Board of Directors and the senior management.

Members of the Board of Supervisors

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors consisted of a total of six
Supervisors, including three employee representative Supervisors: Ms. ZHAO Lijuan (EBE18), Ms.
CHENG Jie () and Mr. LI Huaibin (Z/E¥); one Shareholder representative Supervisor: Mr.
ZHU Zhihui (5REEE); and two external Supervisors: Mr. MA Baojun (5Z %) and Mr. SONG Ke
(REH. The composition of the Board of Supervisors of the Bank is reasonable, and is sufficiently
professional and independent to ensure the effective performance of its supervisory role.

For details of the Supervisors and changes of Supervisors, please refer to the chapter headed
“Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management, Staff and Institutions” of this Report.
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Particulars of Meetings of the Board of Supervisors and Supervisor’s Attendance

During the Reporting Period, the Bank held a total of six Board of Supervisors meetings to consider
16 major resolutions including the 2019 Work Report of the Board of Supervisors, the 2019 Annual
Report and Highlights, the Profit Distribution and Capitalization Issue Plan, the 2019 Performance
Assessment Report on the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors, Senior Management and

Their Members.

Convening of the Meeting

Session of the Meeting Date of convening Form of convening

The eighth meeting of the sixth session of 30 March 2020 On-site meeting
the Board of Supervisors

The ninth meeting of the sixth session of 24 April 2020 On-site meeting
the Board of Supervisors

The 2020 first extraordinary meeting of the 20 May 2020 By correspondence
sixth session of the Board of Supervisors

The 2020 second extraordinary meeting of the 8 July 2020 By correspondence
sixth session of the Board of Supervisors

The tenth meeting of the sixth session of 28 August 2020 On-site meeting
the Board of Supervisors

The eleventh meeting of the sixth session of 29 October 2020 On-site meeting

the Board of Supervisors

Attendance of Supervisors at Meetings of the Board of Supervisors during the Reporting

Period
Attendance Attendance Required
Supervisor in person by proxy attendance
Employee Supervisors ZHAO Lijuan 6 0 6
CHENG Jie 6 0 6
LI Huaibin 6 0 6
Shareholder Supervisor ZHU Zhihui 6 0 6
External Supervisors SONG Ke 6 0 6
MA Baojun 6 0 6

Attendance at General Meetings During the Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, all Supervisors attended the annual general meeting and class
meetings of Shareholders of the Bank, and supervised the legal compliance of the procedures of

meetings and the voting process on-site.
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Attendance at the Meetings of the Board and the Senior Management During the
Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors sent representatives to attend on-site
meetings of the Board of Directors, and supervised legal compliance of the meetings and
procedures of voting as well as the attendance, speech and voting of Directors. The Board of
Supervisors also sent representatives to attend the relevant meetings of the senior management
and supervised the execution of resolutions of the Board of Directors by the senior management
and the business conducted by the senior management according to the Articles of Association
and the approval by the Board of Directors.

Special Committees of the Board of Supervisors

Special Committees of

the Board of Supervisors Chairman Members
Nomination committee MA Baojun ZHAQ Lijuan, CHENG Jie
Supervision committee SONG Ke ZHU Zhihui, LI Huaibin

The Nomination Committee of the Board of Supervisors

Primary duties of the nomination committee of the Board of Supervisors include: formulating the
selection procedures and standards of Supervisors, preliminarily reviewing the qualifications of
candidates for supervisors and making recommendations to the Board of Supervisors; supervising
the process of election and appointment of Directors; conducting overall assessment on the
performance of duties by the Directors, Supervisors and senior management personnel and
submitting reports to the Board of Supervisors; supervising whether the remuneration management
system and policies of the Bank and the remuneration proposal for its senior management
members are scientific and reasonable; and any other matters under the authority granted by the
Board of Supervisors.

During the Reporting Period, the nomination committee of the Board of Supervisors held a total of
one meeting to consider and approve a number of resolutions including Board of Supervisors’ 2019
Assessment Report on the Duties Performed by the Board and Its Members, Board of Supervisors
and Its Members and Senior Management and Its Members.
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Supervision Committee of the Board of Supervisors

The primary duties of the supervision committee of the Board of Supervisors are formulating plans
for supervision of financial activities of the Bank and implementing relevant inspections; supervising
the Board of Directors to establish and adhere to prudent business philosophy and value standards
and formulating development strategies that align with the actual situations of the Bank; monitoring
and reviewing the business decision making, risk management and internal control of the Bank;
and any other matters under the authority granted by the Board of Supervisors. The supervision
committee of the Board of Supervisors may conduct investigation on special affairs of the Bank,
and the results of the investigation shall be reported to both the Board of Supervisors and the
Board of Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the supervision committee of the Board of Supervisors held a total
of one meeting to consider and approve one resolution including the Third Quarterly Report of the
Bank for 2020.

8 MANAGEMENT

8.1

Duties and Powers

The management, as the executive body of the Bank, is responsible to the Board of Directors
and subject to the supervision of the Board of Supervisors. The division of authority and powers
between the management and the Board is determined in accordance with the Articles of
Association and other corporate governance documents.

The Bank has one president and several vice presidents and assistants to the president, all of them
shall be appointed or removed by the Board. The president is responsible to the Board. Approved
and delegated by the Board of Directors, the president of the Bank exercises the following powers
and rights: to take charge of the operations management of the Bank, arrange the implementation
of the resolutions of the meetings of the Board of Directors and report the work to the Board of
Directors; to submit annual business plans and investment proposals to the Board of Directors and
arrange the implementation upon approval by the Board of Directors; to draft proposals on the
establishment of the internal management departments, basic management systems and specific
regulations of the Bank; to propose to the Board of Directors to appoint or dismiss the vice
presidents, assistants to the President, financial officers and other senior management personnel;
to decide to appoint or dismiss persons in charge of the internal departments and branches of the
Bank other than those to be appointed or dismissed by the Board of Directors, and determine their
salaries, benefits, reward and punishment according to the remuneration reward and punishment
scheme set up by the Board of Directors; to approve senior management members and persons
in charge of internal departments and branches to conduct operational activities; to decide on the
appointment and dismissal of the Bank’s staff, and on matters relating to wages, benefits, reward
and punishment; to adopt emergency measures when any material emergency occurs in the Bank
and report them to the banking regulatory and administrative authorities under the State Council,
the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors immediately; and to exercise other powers
and rights conferred by applicable laws, administrative regulations, departmental rules, regulatory
documents, regulations of the relevant regulatory authorities and the Articles of Association as well
as those granted by the Board of Directors.
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8.2 Appraisal and Incentives

The Board of Directors determines the remuneration of senior management personnel of the Bank,
deliberates and approves the remuneration packages for senior management personnel, and
approves the remuneration and assessment committee of the Board to formulate remuneration
packages for senior management personnel and carry out performance appraisal for final
determination of remuneration. The Bank determines the total annual remuneration of each senior
management member based on the annual appraisal results on senior management in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Measures for Compensation and Performance Management of
Senior Management Personnel.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. FU Chungiao and Ms. LEUNG Wing Han Sharon, vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited, have been appointed by the Bank as its joint company secretaries. Ms. LEUNG Wing
Han Sharon’s main contact person at the Bank is Mr. FU Chungiao, another joint company secretary.
During the Reporting Period, both Ms. LEUNG Wing Han Sharon and Mr. FU Chungiao had received not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with the provisions under Rule 3.29 of
the Stock Exchange Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
10.1 Convening of General Meetings

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the Rules of Procedure of General Meetings, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened within two months upon request in writing by
Shareholders holding individually or collectively 10% or more of the voting shares of the Bank (the
“‘Requesting Shareholders”).

General meetings shall be convened by the Board. If the Board of Directors is unable to or unwilling
to fulfil its duties in convening a general meeting and the Board of Supervisors does not convene a
general meeting, Shareholders individually or collectively holding more than 10% of the Bank’s total
voting Shares for more than 90 consecutive days (the “Convening Shareholders”) may convene
and preside over the meeting on a unilateral basis.

Any proposal to the Board of Directors for the convening of a general meeting shall be made in
writing. The Board of Directors shall, in accordance with the laws, administrative regulations and
the Articles of Association, furnish a written reply stating its agreement or disagreement to the
convening of the meeting within ten days after receiving such proposal.

In the event that the Board of Directors agrees to convene a meeting, the notice of the general
meeting shall be issued within five days after the passing of the relevant resolution at the meeting
of the Board of Directors. Any changes to the original proposal made in the notice require prior
approval of the Shareholders concerned.
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If the Board of Directors does not agree to convene such meetings or does not furnish any reply
within ten days after receiving such proposal, Requesting Shareholders shall have the right to
propose to the Board of Supervisors for the convening of such meetings, provided that such
proposal shall be made in writing.

In the event that the Board of Supervisors agrees to convene the meeting, the notice of the general
meeting shall be issued within five days after receiving such request. Any changes to the original
proposal made in the notice shall require prior approval of the Shareholders concerned.

Failure of the Board of Supervisors to issue the notice of meeting within the required period shall
be deemed a failure of the Board of Supervisors to convene and preside over it, and Shareholders
individually or collectively holding more than 10% of the Bank’s total voting Shares for more than
90 consecutive days may convene and preside over the meeting on a unilateral basis.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Shareholders individually or collectively holding 3% or more of the total outstanding voting shares
(the “Proposing Shareholders”) have the right to put forward proposals in writing to the Bank.
The Proposing Shareholders may submit provisional proposals in writing to the convener ten days
before the general meeting is convened. The convener shall issue a supplementary notice of the
general meeting within two days after receiving the provisional proposals.

Convening of Extraordinary Board Meeting

The chairman of the Board shall convene and preside over an extraordinary board meeting within
ten days upon receipt of the proposal from Shareholders representing more than one tenth voting
rights.

Making Inquiries to the Board

Shareholders are entitled to supervise the business activities of the Bank, and make
recommendations or inquiries.

Shareholders are entitled to access relevant information in accordance with the laws, administrative
regulations, departmental rules, regulatory documents, relevant regulations of the securities
regulatory authorities of the places where the Shares of the Bank are listed, and the Articles of
Association, including:

1. obtaining a copy of the Articles of Association upon payment of the costs thereof;
2. inspecting, free of charge, and photocopying, after paying a reasonable fee, the following
documents:

(1) all parts of the register of Shareholders;

2) personal information of Directors, Supervisors, the President and other senior
management personnel of the Bank;
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(3) the Bank’s share capital;

(4) a report showing the total nominal value, quantity, highest and lowest prices of each
class of Shares repurchased by the Bank since the previous fiscal year and all costs
paid by the Bank in this regard;

(5) minutes of Shareholders’ general meetings;
(6) special resolutions of the Bank;

(7) the latest audited financial statements, and reports of the Board of Directors, auditors
and the Board of Supervisors; and

8) a copy of the latest annual return filed with the PRC company register department or
other competent authorities.

A Shareholder who requests to inspect any such information or obtain relevant data shall provide
written documentation to the Bank certifying the class and quantity of Shares held by him/her in
the Bank. After verifying the identity of the Shareholder, the Bank shall provide the Shareholder
with the relevant information as requested.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Investor Relations

The Bank attaches importance to communication with Shareholders, actively responds to Shareholders’
advices and recommendations, and seeks to improve mutual understanding and communication with
Shareholders through various channels including general meetings and results presentation conferences
and enhance engagement with Shareholders via the Bank’s website, e-mail and telephone.

For enquiries to the Board, investors may contact:

The general office of Board of Directors of Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.

Address: 22 Shangwu Waihuan Road, Zhengdong New District, Zhengzhou City, Henan, PRC

Tel: +86-371-67009199 Fax: +86-371-67009898

Email: ir@zzbank.cn

Information Disclosure

The Board of Directors and senior management of the Bank place great importance on information

disclosure. They rely on good corporate governance and sound internal control to ensure that investors
have access to information in a timely and accurate manner.
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In accordance with the Administrative Measures for Information Disclosure of Listed Companies, the
Measures for Information Disclosure of Commercial Banks, the SZSE Listing Rules and the Stock
Exchange Listing Rules, the Bank continuously improves the timeliness, accuracy and completeness
of the information disclosed. During the Reporting Period, the Bank published relevant announcements
and circulars on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, CNINFO (cninfo.com.cn) (E#&
#1#8), China Securities Journal (R EIFE%R)), Shanghai Securities News ( /&% %)), Securities
Times &% FR)) and Securities Daily KFE#HR)) from time to time. Meanwhile, the full texts of the
Bank’s announcements, circulars, and financial reports such as annual reports and interim reports are
made available on the website of the Bank, and the annual reports and interim reports are available for
inspection by investors and stakeholders in the general office of the Board of Directors and main outlets
of the Bank.

FINANCIAL, BUSINESS AND FAMILY RELATIONSHIP AMONG DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The Directors, Supervisors and senior management personnel (including the chairman and the president)
of the Bank do not have any relationship, including financial, business, family and other material relations.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND RELEVANT
EMPLOYEES

The Bank has adopted a code of conduct on terms no less exacting than the required standards in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Stock Exchange Listing Rules as the code governing securities transactions by Directors and Supervisors
and relevant employees. After having made inquiries to all Directors and Supervisors, the Bank confirmed
that they had complied with the above code during the Reporting Period.

The Bank is not aware of any Director, Supervisor and senior management personnel violating the
restrictive share trading requirements under the Guidelines for the Standard Operation of Listed
Companies on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and other standard documents during the Reporting Period.

In March 2021, Mr. Li, the spouse of Ms. WANG Zhaoaqi, a senior management member of the Bank, was
found to have committed short-swing transactions due to misoperation during the period between January
2021 and March 2021. The gain of RMB150.00 from such short-swing transaction has been handed over
to the Bank in full. The Bank has reprimanded Ms. WANG Zhaoqi, demanding that she increase study of
relevant laws and regulations, strictly restrain her personal and relatives’ transactions, and prevent the
recurrence of similar incidents. Ms. WANG Zhaoqi has expressed deep remorse for failing to perform
her supervision obligations in a timely manner. She conducted profound reflection, submitted an incident
report to the Bank, and undertook to further study relevant laws and regulations, so as to regulate her
personal and relatives’ transactions, strengthen securities account management, voluntarily safeguard the
order of the securities market, and prevent the recurrence of similar incidents. For details, please refer to
the announcement published by the Bank on CNINFO and the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
dated 9 March 2021.
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TRAININGS AND RESEARCHES OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS DURING
THE REPORTING PERIOD

Trainings and Researches of Directors

All Directors of the Bank are able to undertake their responsibilities, perform their duties, study
relevant regulations and books in respect of the standard operation and information disclosure of listed
companies, learn the latest regulatory policies and related systems, improve self-discipline awareness,
compliance awareness, integrity awareness and professional skills. During the Reporting Period, all
Directors participated in a number of training sessions conducted by the Henan Branch of the CSRC, the
SZSE, and China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. (the sponsor for continuous supervision of the Bank),
through which they systematically studied the key amendments to the Securities Law, Opinions of the
State Council on Further Improving the Quality of Listed Companies and acquired a deeper understanding
of the responsibilities and obligations of directors, supervisors, and senior management personnel as
well as relevant Shareholders. Non-executive Director Mr. WANG Shihao and independent non-executive
Directors Mr. XIE Taifeng and Ms. LI Yanyan visited the Anyang Branch of the Bank to conduct surveys,
thereby better understanding the Bank’s business operations and day-to-day management.

Trainings of and Researches of Supervisors

Each Supervisor of the Bank studied in depth the regulatory policies at home and abroad and the
responsibilities and obligations of directors, supervisors, and senior management personnel to improve
their overall quality and ability to perform their duties. During the Reporting Period, all Supervisors
participated in a number of training sessions conducted by the Henan Branch of the CSRC, the SZSE,
and China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd. (the sponsor for continuous supervision of the Bank), through
which they systematically studied the key amendments to the Securities Law, Opinions of the State
Council on Further Improving Quality of Listed Companies, and acquired a deeper understanding of the
responsibilities and obligations of directors, supervisors, and senior management personnel as well as
relevant Shareholders. All Supervisors conducted surveys and inspections on some departments of the
head office, branches, and subsidiaries. and had in-depth communication with the relevant persons in
charge and employees.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

At the 2019 AGM held on 20 May 2020, the Bank considered and approved the re-appointment of
KPMG Huazhen LLP and KPMG as its domestic and overseas auditors, respectively, for a term until the
2020 annual general meeting of the Bank. The two accounting firms have been providing accounting
services for the Bank for 9 years and 6 years, respectively. The Bank did not change its auditors in the
past three years. In 2020, the certified public accountants who signed the auditor’s report of the financial
statements, which was prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises of
the PRC by the Bank, were Mr. GONG Kai and Mr. LI Jie, both had served as certified public accountant
signing the auditor’s report of financial statements of the Bank consecutively for one year; the certified
public accountant who signed the auditor’s report of the financial statements, which was prepared in
accordance with the IFRS by the Bank, was Mr. Eric Pang, who had provided audit services for the Bank
consecutively for one year.

During the Reporting Period, the Bank paid a total of RMB5.2 million as remuneration to KPMG Huazhen
LLP and KPMG for their review of the Bank’s interim financial statements and audit of the Bank’s annual
financial statements, and paid internal control audit fees for 2020 of RMBO0.4 million to KPMG Huazhen
LLP. KPMG Huazhen LLP’s and KPMG'’s responsibility statements on the financial reports were set out in
the audit reports of the A Share and H Share annual reports, respectively.

The Board and the audit committee of the Board agreed on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors of the Bank without any disagreement.
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16 RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
16.1 Procedures for Identification, Assessment and Management of Material Risks

In order to handle major emergencies in the Bank in a timely and proper manner, effectively prevent
and resolve risks, and maintain financial order and social stability, the Bank continuously enhanced
its risk management system, strengthened its risk management policies and system construction,
and improved the operational mechanisms of the risk management committee of the Board and the
risk management committee of the senior management to play their roles in the decision-making on
major risks and internal control matters, while improving the comprehensive assessment system on
of risk management of the branches. The Bank has formulated a series of management measures
including the Management for the Reporting of Major Emergencies which provide that major
emergencies shall be classified by nature and business type and be reported, filed and managed
by different departments accordingly in a timely, accurate, true and comprehensive manner.

16.2 Risk Management Responsibility of the Board

The Board of Directors is well aware of its responsibility for implementing risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and to provide
reasonable but not absolute guarantee against material misstatements or losses. In accordance
with relevant laws and regulations including the Comprehensive Risk Management Guidelines for
Financial Institutions in the Banking Industry, the Guidelines for Internal Control of Commercial
Banks, and code provisions C.2.1 and C.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code, the Board has
formulated the Basic Rules for Comprehensive Risk Management, the Measures for Risk Appetite
Management, the Measures for Management of Risk Limits, and has established and implemented
risk management and internal control systems. The Board is also responsible for timely reviewing
the effectiveness of such measures and systems, reviewing risk control principles, objectives
and policies of the Bank, determining the acceptable risk exposure, ensuring that the senior
management takes necessary risk control measures, and supervising the senior management’s
monitoring and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems. The Bank reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Bank and its subsidiaries at least once a year. During the Reporting Period,
the Bank revised the Basic Rules for Comprehensive Risk Management, further detailed the risk
governance structure and organizational responsibilities, and specified the risk preference, risk limit,
internal audit and other management mechanisms. For the Reporting Period, the Board believes
that the risk management and internal control systems developed and implemented by the Bank
were adequate and effective.
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Characteristics of the Risk Management System

The Bank has continuously established the comprehensive risk management system, improved
comprehensive risk management policies and procedures, ensured the implementation of policies,
conducted self-assessment of the comprehensive risk management system, and enhanced the
self-discipline mechanism. We combine qualitative and quantitative methods to identify, measure,
evaluate, monitor, report, control or mitigate various risks such as credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk, reputation risk and information technology risk, while carefully evaluating the
interaction between various risks. The Bank’s risk management system comprises the following
elements: risk management framework, risk appetite and risk limits, risk management policies and
procedures, management information system, internal control and audit systems, etc.

Characteristics of the Internal Control System
Overview of Internal Control

The Bank has built three lines of defence in internal control. The business operation department
acts as the first line of defence, responsible for identifying and assessing risks at the corporate
level as well as formulating risk mitigation measures. The risk management department acts
as the second line of defence, responsible for developing the Bank’s overall risk appetite and
risk management policies, procedures and quotas, monitoring transactions, and dealing with
risk events, etc. The internal audit department of the Board of Directors acts as the third line of
defence, responsible for independent testing, verifying and evaluating the completeness, adequacy
and effectiveness of the internal control, and reporting to the Board of Directors directly. These
three lines of defence come with well-defined responsibilities and division of work, and complement
each other, creating all-round, whole-process and full-service surveillance. Through information
exchange and close collaboration, these three lines of defence are identifying and solving problems
on an ongoing basis, which boosts an enhancement in the internal control standards of the Bank.

The Bank has established a regulated and standard internal control system. A comprehensive,
systematic and regulated business policy and a management system have been set up throughout
the entire decision-making, execution and supervision process. By smoothening process as well
as identifying and assessing operational risks, the job duties of each position and section are well
defined, and the business operation procedures of each section are clearly described to regulate
each process stringently, fully reveal possible problems or risk points and provide control measures
accordingly, so that a regulated and standard business and management process has been
established to increase the effectiveness of internal control.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. 176



CHAPTER VIl CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

16.5

The Bank has established a sound and efficient electronic information management system for
its principal business activities, such as the payment and settlement system, accounting system,
domestic- and foreign-currency fund business system, bank card business system, international
settlement business system, credit business system, post-loan management system and risk
management system, through embedding a computer system’s rigid control into the business
process. Moreover, the Bank has established relevant sound policies and procedures for stringently
managing the work process for the approval, initiation, design, development, debugging, operation
and maintenance, disaster recovery management and user authority in respect of a system project;
defining management standards; and refining management responsibilities for the prevention of
risks in information technology.

The Bank has established an efficient and effective supervisory mechanism for internal control.
It has formulated an internal control compliance and operational risk management policy by
making full use of big data technology and model for risk control. It continues to adopt innovative
off-site inspection methods (such as building a platform for “early warning of in-event risks” and
for “analysis of customers’ risk data hologram tables”) and enhance monitoring models. It has
created an environment for the analysis of multi-risk data sources with the use of internal and
external data sources; closely followed the Bank’s business development pattern; and carried
out multi-dimensional monitoring and analysis of operational risks, business risks, business early
warning, at-risk customers, etc., to identify, warn, deal with and rectify any problems at an early
stage for the prevention of compliance and operational risks effectively.

Internal Control Assessment

16.5.1 Particulars of Major Internal Control Defects Discovered During the Reporting
Period

During the Reporting Period, the Bank found no major defects on internal control.

16.5.2 Self-assessment Report on Internal Control

Date of full-text disclosure of internal 31 March 2021
control assessment report
Websites for full-text disclosure of CNINFO (www.cninfo.com.cn)
internal control assessment report Website of the Bank (www.zzbank.cn)

The proportion of the total assets of entities

covered by the assessment in the total assets in

the consolidated financial statements of the Bank  100.00%
The proportion of the operating income of

entities covered by the assessment in the

operating income in the consolidated

financial statements of the Bank 100.00%
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Defect recognition criteria

Category

Financial reports

Non-financial reports

Qualitative criteria

Qualitative criteria for identifying a material
weakness: a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control of financial reporting,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that

a material misstatement of financial statements

will not be prevented or detected and corrected

on a timely basis. Signs of material weaknesses
include but are not limited to: directors, supervisors
or senior management personnel commit

fraud or other malpractices; there are material
misstatements in the published financial statements;
material or significant weaknesses in internal control
of financial reporting have not been rectified;

the supervision over internal control of financial
reporting is ineffective.

Qualitative criteria for identifying a significant
weakness: a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control of financial reporting,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
misstatement of financial statements, which is not
material but important enough to merit attention
by the board of directors and the management,
will not be prevented or detected and corrected
on a timely basis. Signs of important weaknesses
include but are not limited to: failure to select

and apply accounting policies in accordance with
generally accepted accounting standards, no anti-
fraud procedures and control measures have
been established; for the accounting treatment

of unconventional or special transactions, the
corresponding control mechanisms have yet to be
established or implemented and there is a lack of
remedial control measures; there are one or more
deficiencies in the control of the financial reporting
process at the end of each reporting period and
there is no reasonable assurance that financial
statements will be prepared in a true and complete
manner.

Qualitative criteria for identifying a general
weakness: any other weakness in internal control
of financial reporting that does not constitute a
material or significant weakness.

Qualitative criteria for identifying a material
weakness: a deficiency or a combination
of deficiencies that has a material
negative impact on legal compliance,
asset safety, improvement of operating
efficiency and effectiveness, achievement
of development strategies and other
internal control objectives. Signs of
material weaknesses include but are

not limited to: material decision-making
mistakes; serious violations of national
laws and regulations and consequent
severe penalties; frequent and extensive
negative news in the media; overall
ineffective control systems for important
business activities.

Qualitative criteria for identifying a
significant weakness: a deficiency or

a combination of deficiencies that has

a significant negative impact on legal
compliance, asset safety, improvement
of operating efficiency and effectiveness,
achievement of development strategies
and other internal control objectives.
Signs of important weaknesses include
but are not limited to: significant decision-
making mistakes; serious losses arising
from violation of internal rules and
regulations; negative news in the media
with limited impact; significant mistakes
in the design and control of systems for
important business activities.

Qualitative criteria for identifying a general
weakness: any other weakness in internal
control over non-financial reporting
activities that does not constitute a
material or significant weakness.
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Defect recognition criteria

Category

Financial reports

Non-financial reports

Quantitative criteria

Quantitative criteria for identifying a material
weakness: The amount of misstatement in the
financial statements that may be caused by the
underlying internal control weakness meets the
following criteria; amount of misstatement >5%
of the total profit before tax in the consolidated
income statement for the current year.

Quantitative criteria for identifying a significant
weakness: The amount of misstatement in the
financial statements that may be caused by the
underlying internal control weakness meets the
following criteria: 0.25% of the total profit before
tax in the consolidated income statement for the
current year <amount of misstatement < 5% of the
total profit before tax in the consolidated income
statement for the current year.

Quantitative criteria for identifying a general
weakness: The amount of misstatement in the
financial statements that may be caused by the
underlying internal control weakness meets the
following criteria: amount of misstatement < 0.25%
of the total profit before tax in the consolidated
income statement for the current year.

Quantitative criteria for identifying a
material weakness: The direct property
loss that may be caused by the underlying
internal control weakness meets the
following criteria: direct property loss
>5% of the total profit before tax in the
consolidated income statement for the
current year.

Quantitative criteria for identifying a
significant weakness: The direct property
loss that may be caused by the underlying
internal control weakness meets the
following criteria: 0.25% of the total profit
before tax in the consolidated income
statement for the current year <direct
property loss < 5% of the total profit
before tax in the consolidated income
statement for the current year.

Quantitative criteria for identifying a
general weakness: The direct property
loss that may be caused by the underlying
internal control weakness meets the
following criteria: direct property loss <
0.25% of the total profit before tax in the
consolidated income statement for the
current year.

Number of major defects in Nil
financial reports

Number of major defects in Nil
non-financial reports

Number of important defects in -~ Nil
financial reports

Number of important defects in -~ Nil

non-financial reports
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16.6 Audit Report on Internal Control

Review opinions in the audit report on internal control

KPMG Huazhen LLP believes that as at 31 December 2020, Zhengzhou Bank had maintained
effective internal control over its financial reporting in all material aspects in accordance with the
Basic Rules for Internal Control of Enterprises and other relevant regulations.

Disclosure of the audit report on internal control Disclosed

Date of full-text disclosure of the 31 March 2021
audit report on internal control

Websites for full-text disclosure of the CNINFO (www.cninfo.com.cn)

audit report on internal control Website of the Bank (www.zzbank.cn)
Type of opinion in the audit report on internal control Standard unqualified opinion

Whether there are major defects in non-financial reports No

The audit report on internal control issued by the accounting firm is consistent with the
self-assessment report of the Board.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the requirements of the Guidelines for Internal Audit of Commercial Banks and the Guidelines
for Internal Control of Commercial Banks, the Bank has established an independent and vertical internal
audit management system where the internal audit office as the executive body of the internal audit of the
Bank is subordinate to the Board and works under the specific guidance of the audit committee of the
Board. In accordance with regulatory requirements and relevant rules and regulations, the internal audit
office conscientiously performs its duties, timely submits audit results to the senior management, and
regularly reports to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors on the audit work.

Adhering to the principles of independence, objectivity and significance, the internal audit department of
the Bank formulates the master plan and annual work plan for internal audit of the Bank, arranges the
audit of the Bank’s business activities, operations and economic responsibilities of key personnel during
their term of service, inspects, assesses, supervises and improves the Bank’s business operations, risk
management, internal control compliance, and corporate governance effects, and makes improvement
suggestions to the management.

During the Reporting Period, the internal audit department of the Bank adhered to the principle
of risk-based auditing, actively adjusted to the needs for risk management situation, continuously
strengthened audit supervision, followed up the correction of identified audit problems, improved the
training and subsequent education of internal audit personnel, constantly enhanced their professional
competence, and improved the quality and efficiency of internal audit.
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INSIDE INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for disclosing information of the Bank, which includes enacting standard
procedures and methods in relation thereto and reviewing information to be disclosed, and it also assumes
liabilities for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the information disclosed. The information
disclosure of the Bank is subject to the supervision of regulators and the Board of Supervisors. The
chairman of the Board is the primary person responsible for implementing the management measures for
information disclosure, while the secretary of the Board is in charge of its execution and the general office
of the Board deals with the daily work thereof.

The Bank enacted the Management System for Information Disclosure Affairs {2 BB EH5EEHIE))
and Insider Information and Insider Registration Management System ( N8 N A5 AZ LB IR HIE))
based on domestic and overseas laws, regulations and other regulatory documents such as the Company
Law, the Securities Law, Measures for Information Disclosure of Commercial Banks (B ¥#3R17{= B IR E It
%)), and the SZSE Listing Rules and the Stock Exchange Listing Rules, in order to ensure confidentiality
of the Bank’s inside information, safeguard the fairness in information disclosure and protect the legal
rights of investors.

The Bank makes information disclosure and manages inside information in strict compliance with
the regulatory requirements and specifies the principles, contents, management and procedures for
information disclosure in the Management System for Information Disclosure Affairs, which also provides
for the coverage, insider limits and registration, and the security management of inside information as well
as punishment for divulging inside information, etc.

During the Reporting Period, the Bank not only stringently complied with the regulatory requirements
of domestic and overseas regulators, but also intensified its management rules and enhanced the
security measures of its inside information as well as disclosing relevant information timely according to
requirements. There was no incident of breaching the confidentiality of inside information.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

In accordance with the requirements of the Company Laws, the Reply of the State Council on the
Adjustment of the Notice Period of the General Meeting and Other Matters Applicable to the Overseas
Listed Companies (Guo Han [2019] No. 97), the Guidelines for Articles of Association of Listed
Companies, the Administrative Measures for the Issuance of Securities by Listed Companies, and other
applicable laws, regulations, regulatory provisions and regulatory documents, and taking account of its
actual situation, the Bank amended some provisions of the Articles of Association during the Reporting
Period. The amendments were considered and approved at the 2019 AGM, the 2020 first class meeting
of the A Shareholders, and the 2020 first class meeting of the H Shareholders, and had been approved by
the competent banking regulatory authorities. For details of the amendments, please refer to the Bank’s
announcements dated 31 March 2020, 28 April 2020, 21 May 2020, and 2 September 2020 published on
CNINFO (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the Bank’s announcements dated 30 March 2020, 20 May 2020, and
2 September 2020 and circular dated 28 April 2020 published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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PROTECTION OF CONSUMER RIGHTS

During the Reporting Period, the Bank has conscientiously implemented the requirements from the
regulatory authorities such as the CBIRC and the PBoC and fully leveraged the coordination mechanism
of various departments and actively carried out the protection of consumer rights.

Enhanced consumer protection for the protection of their legitimate rights and interests. During the
Reporting Period, the Bank sent the key staff involved in the protection of consumer rights and interests
to attend special online training programmes for the protection of consumer rights and interests, had
front-line responsible and key staff attended various online and offline training sessions related to the
protection of consumer rights and interests in the Bank, and enhanced the professional competence
and handling capabilities of staff involved in the protection of consumer rights and interests. Meanwhile,
the Bank handled various petition and complaint cases efficiently in accordance with the relevant rules
and regulations for petitions and complaints, thus having effectively protected the legitimate rights and
interests of consumers of the Bank.

Strengthened publicity and education of financial knowledge to raise consumers’ awareness about
financial security. During the Reporting Period, the Bank rolled out a number of publicity campaigns
such as prevention of phone fraud, prevention of illegal fundraising, promotion on Consumer Rights Day,
financial knowledge promotion month and two other financial knowledge promotional events. Various
publicity materials about financial knowledge were shown on WeChat public accounts and on LED screens
at our branches, and an array of publicity campaigns were staged on campus and in the community by
a number of branches. The Bank worked in liaison with local media and community offices to increase
the effectiveness of publicity campaigns so as to foster and promote relevant financial knowledge among
general financial consumers, with emphasis placed on guiding consumers to invest and consume in
a rational manner and on raising their awareness about risk prevention and their capability to protect
themselves.
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Bank is primarily engaged in the PRC banking and related financial services, including corporate
banking, retail banking, treasury operation and other businesses.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), including the key risks and uncertainties
faced by the Group, the possible future development plan of the Group’s business and the Bank’s
compliance with laws and regulations, are set out in the sections headed “Highlights of Accounting Data
and Major Financial Indicators”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Significant Events” and “Report
of the Board of Supervisors” of this Report. Such discussions form an integral part of this “Report of the

Board of Directors”.
PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

2.1 Formulation, Implementation or Adjustment of Profit Distribution Policy for
Ordinary Shares During the Reporting Period

According to the current Articles of Association, the Bank shall give preference to cash dividend
distribution with reference to the continuous profitability, compliance with regulatory requirements,
and the normal operation and long-term development of the Bank. The Bank shall not distribute
profits to holders of Ordinary Shares until it has paid the agreed dividends to holders of the
Preference Shares in full. Subject to the conditions for dividend distribution as stipulated by laws
and regulations, the cumulative profits available for distribution in terms of cash dividends in the
last three years shall be no less than 30% of the annual average distributable profits achieved by
the Bank in the last three years. Where the Bank is to adjust its profit distribution policy, the Board
shall make a special discussion on that, elaborate on the reasons for the adjustment, formulate a
written demonstration report and submit it to the general meeting for approval after it is reviewed
by the independent non-executive Directors. The adoption of the underlying resolution is subject
to affirmative votes representing at least two-thirds of the voting rights held by the Shareholders
present at the general meeting. The Bank shall make internet voting accessible to Shareholders.

The Bank formulated the Shareholder Return Planning of the Bank for the Next Three Years (2020-
2022) pursuant to relevant requirements such as Notice on Further Implementing Matters Relevant
to the Cash Dividend Distribution by Listed Companies KERE—FEE LT ARIREHAEAE
TEHYBAN)) and Guideline No. 3 on the Supervision and Administration of Listed Companies — Cash
Dividends of Listed Companies ( ET AR EEIE3FE35- LM ARIKEESH4L)) of the CSRC, and
amended the provisions of the Articles of Association in relation to cash dividends pursuant to the
Administrative Measures for the Issuance of Securities by Listed Companies { A A& H#1T
EIRYEE)) and Guidelines for the Standard Operation of Listed Companies of the SZSE, so as to

further complete the profit distribution system and improve and implement the cash dividend policy.
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2.2

The above formulation of and amendments to the dividend policy have received approval opinions
from independent non-executive Directors, and have been considered and approved by the eighth
meeting of the sixth session of the Board of Directors, the 2019 AGM, the 2020 first class meeting
of the A Shareholders, and the 2020 first class meeting of the H Shareholders.

The formulation and implementation of the Bank’s cash dividend policy is in compliance with
the provisions of the Articles of Association and the resolutions of the general meeting. The
policy has clearly defined criteria and proportion of dividend distribution and is underpinned
by well-established decision-making procedures and mechanisms in which the independent
non-executive Directors have performed their duties and roles in good faith. Minority Shareholders
have been given the opportunity to fully express their opinions and demands, and their legitimate
rights and interests have been fully protected. The conditions and procedures for the adjustment to
or change in cash dividend policy are compliant and transparent.

Profit Distribution and Capitalization Issue for the Reporting Period

Number of bonus shares per 10 Shares -
Cash dividend per 10 Shares (RMB) (inclusive of tax) -

Number of Shares capitalized per 10 Shares 1
Share capital base for the distribution proposal (Shares) 7,514,125,090
Total cash dividends (RMB’000) (inclusive of tax) -
Distributable profit (RMB’000) 12,185,948

Cash dividends as a percentage of total distributable profit (%) -

Particulars of the cash dividend distribution

For details, please refer to “Section XVI Dividend Distribution Policy” of the (A-Share) Initial Public
Offering Prospectus of the Bank disclosed on the website of CNINFO (www.cninfo.com.cn) on 30
August 2018.
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Particulars of the proposal for profit distribution and capitalization issue

In 2020, net profit attributable to the parent company under the consolidated financial statements
of the Bank audited by KPMG Huazhen LLP amounted to RMB3,167,567 thousand. In accordance
with the requirements of the existing Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and the
Articles of Association, the audited net profit attributable to the parent company of the Bank
amounted to RMB3,010,254 thousand; after deducting dividends on Offshore Preference
Shares distributed on 19 October 2020 amounting to RMB493,442 thousand, the profit of the
year available for distribution to Ordinary Shareholders amounted to RMB2,516,812 thousand.
The balance of capital reserve of the parent company of the Bank as at the end of 2020 was
RMB8,203,961 thousand, of which share premium was RMB8,139,346 thousand. The proposed
2020 plan for profit distribution and transfer of capital reserve to Shares are as follows:

1. 10% of the net profit, equivalent to RMB301,025 thousand, will be appropriated as statutory
surplus reserve;

2. RMB458,000 million will be appropriated as general risk reserves;

£k No cash dividends will be distributed this year, but one new Share for every 10 Shares

shall be issued to the Ordinary Shareholders, whose names appear on the register of
Shareholders as at the dividend distribution registration date, by way of conversion of capital
reserve. Calculated based on the total share capital of 7,514,125,090 Ordinary Shares of the
Bank as at 31 December 2020, a total of 751,412,509 conversion shares will be converted.
After the implementation of the transfer of capital reserve to share capital, the registered
capital of the Bank will increase from RMB7,514,125,090 to RMB8,265,537,599;

4, The remaining undistributed profit will be carried forward to next year.

The Bank will not distribute cash dividends for 2020 after taking into account mainly the following
factors: firstly, facing the impact of the pandemic, the Bank proactively implemented national
macro policies to support enterprises in resuming operation and production through a number
of measures including lowering interest rates, reducing handling fees, extending credit loans and
deferring repayment of principal and interest due, to continuously boost the real economy while
responding to the regulatory guidance on strengthening risk resistance capabilities by increasing
the provision for asset impairment, resulting in pressure on the growth of net profits. Secondly,
given that the requirements under the capital regulatory policies have become increasingly
stringent for commercial banks, and external capital replenishment is relatively difficult,
replenishing capital through internal capital became increasingly important for small and medium
banks to ensure capital adequacy, especially for core tier-one capital adequacy level. The Bank
has formulated a new five-year plan and is carrying out it in a solid manner for its transformation
and upgrade to high-quality development. The retained undistributed profits will be used to
replenish the Bank’s core tier-one capital, which can help raise the Bank’s capital adequacy
level and risk-resistance capacities to support the Bank’s strategic transformation as well as
the healthy and sustainable development of various businesses, thereby creating a greater
value for investors. Thirdly, the Bank has distributed cash dividends of RMB888,290,000 and
RMB592,193,000 to Ordinary Shareholders for 2018 and 2019 respectively, the total amount of
which accounted for more than 30% of the average annual profit distributed by the Bank from
2018 to 2020. The Bank complies with requirements under laws and regulations as well as the
Articles of Association and the Shareholder Return Planning of the Bank for not distributing cash
dividends for 2020.

The dividend distribution plan will be implemented after being submitted for consideration and
approval at the general meeting of the Bank. The date is expected to be around 15 July 2021
(Thursday). An announcement regarding the specific date will be made separately by the Bank.
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Proposal for Profit Distribution and Capitalization Issue for the Past Three Years
(Including the Reporting Period)

2020 profit distribution plan of Ordinary Shares: the Board of the Bank recommended that one new
Share for every 10 Shares shall be issued to the Ordinary Shareholders whose names appeared on
the register of Shareholders as at the dividend distribution registration date by way of capitalization
issue, and no cash dividend or bonus share shall be distributed or issued. The profit distribution
plan will be proposed at the general meeting of the Bank for approval.

2019 profit distribution plan of Ordinary Shares: after the consideration and approval at the 2019
AGM, the 2020 first class meeting of the A Shareholders and the 2020 first class meeting of the H
Shareholders, the Bank has distributed cash dividends of RMB1.00 (tax inclusive) per 10 Shares
to the A Shareholders whose names appeared on the register of Shareholders as at 29 June 2020
and H Shareholders whose names appeared on the register of Shareholders as at 2 June 2020,
and issued Shares on the basis of one new Share for every 10 Shares held by the above Ordinary
Shareholders by way of Capitalization Issue. Total cash dividends of RMB592,193,000 and a total
of 592,193,190 new Shares were distributed and issued by way of Capitalization Issue respectively.

2018 profit distribution plan of Ordinary Shares: after the consideration and approval at the 2018
annual general meeting, the Bank has distributed the 2018 annual dividends in the form of cash to
A Shareholders whose names appeared on the register of Shareholders as at 18 June 2019 and
H Shareholders whose names appeared on the register of Shareholders as at 4 June 2019. Such
dividends were based on RMB1.50 (tax inclusive) per 10 Shares and amounted to approximately
RMB888,290,000 in total.
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The cash dividends for Ordinary Shares of the Bank for the last three years (including the Reporting

Period) are as follows:

Unit: RMB’ 000

Percentage of

total cash

Percentage of dividend

Percentage of cash dividend by (including by

cash dividend in other means in other means)

the net profit the net profit in the net profit

Net profit (deducting (deducting (deducting

(deducting dividend on dividend on dividend on

dividend on preference preference preference

preference shares) shares) shares)

shares) attributable to attributable to attributable to

attributable to Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary

Ordinary  Shareholders of Amount of  Shareholders of Shareholders of

Shareholders of  the Bank inthe  cash dividends  the Bank in the the Bank in the

the Bank in the consolidated  distributed by consolidated consolidated

Cash dividend consolidated financial other means financial Total cash financial

per 10 Shares financial  statements for (suchas  statements for dividends  statements for

Year of (inclusive of tax) ~Cash dividends  statements for the relevant repurchased the relevant  (including by the relevant
dividends (RMB/Share) (inclusive of tax) the relevant year year (%) Shares) year (%)  other means) year (%)
2020 - - 2,674,125 - - - - -
2019 1.00 592,193 2,772,332 21.36 - - 592,193 21.36
2018 1.50 888,290 2,556,488 34.75 - - 888,290 34.75

For details of the profit distribution of Offshore Preference Shares, please refer to the chapter
headed “Issuance of Preference Shares”.
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2.4

Dividend Tax
Distribution of Cash Dividends
Holders of A Shares

For individual Shareholders, according to the provisions of the Circular on Issues Concerning
the Implementation of Differentiated Individual Income Tax Policies on Dividends and Bonuses of
Listed Companies (Cai Shui [2012] No. 85) and the Circular on Issues Concerning Differentiated
Individual Income Tax Policies on Dividends and Bonuses of Listed Companies (Cai Shui [2015] No.
101) issued by the MOF, the State Administration of Taxation and the CSRC, where an individual
acquires the shares of a listed company from public offering of the company or from the stock
market, for a holding period of not more than one month (inclusive), the dividends and bonuses
paid on such shares shall be included into his taxable income in full amount; for a holding period
of more than one month but not more than one year (inclusive), 50% of the dividends and bonuses
paid on such shares shall be included into his taxable income; for a holding period of more than
one year, the dividends and bonuses paid on such shares are temporarily exempted from individual
income tax. The above income is subject to a uniform 20% tax rate for individual income tax. For
Shareholders being securities investment funds, their dividend income shall also be subject to the
above provisions.

For Shareholders being resident enterprises, according to the provisions of paragraph (2) of Article
26 of the Corporate Income Tax Law, dividends, bonuses and other equity investment income
between eligible resident enterprises are tax-free income. According to the provisions of Article
83 of the Regulations on the Implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law, the “dividends,
bonuses and other equity investment income between eligible resident enterprises” as mentioned in
the provisions of paragraph (2) of Article 26 of the Corporate Income Tax Law refer to investment
return received from a resident enterprise’s direct investment in other resident enterprises,
excluding the investment income obtained by continuously holding shares publicly issued and listed
by resident enterprises for less than 12 months.

For non-resident enterprise Shareholders, according to the provisions of the Corporate Income Tax
Law” and the Regulations on the Implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law, the dividend
income obtained by non-resident enterprises shall be taxed at a reduced rate of 10%.

For Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors (QFlls), according to the Circular of the State
Administration of Taxation on Issues Concerning the Withholding and Payment of Corporate
Income Tax on Dividends, Bonus and Interest Paid by PRC Resident Enterprises to QFlls (Guo Shui
Han [2009] No. 47), listed companies shall withhold and remit corporate income tax for QFlls at a
rate of 10%. QFIl Shareholders who wish to enjoy tax treaty (arrangement) benefits may apply to
the competent tax authority for tax benefits in accordance with the relevant provisions of the tax
treaty, and the competent tax authority shall follow such provisions after verification thereof. Where
tax refund is involved, an application for tax refund may be made to the competent tax authority in
a timely manner after dividends and bonuses are obtained.
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Holders of H Shares

For overseas non-resident enterprise Shareholders, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China and its implementing regulations, the
Notice of the State Administration of Taxation on Issues Concerning the Withholding of Enterprise
Income Tax on Dividends Paid by PRC Resident Enterprises to Offshore Non-resident Enterprise
Holders of H Shares (Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897) KR4 RENHEE R EBEINM
PR3EE R ERRIRER BN EFET A R &8 @A) K[2008]8975%)), and the
letter “Tax Arrangements of Enterprises in Mainland China on Dividend Issuance to Hong Kong
Residents” issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Bank shall withhold and remit corporate
income tax at a rate of 10% when distributing final dividends to non-resident enterprise holders of
H Shares (including H Shares registered in the name of HKSCC Nominees Limited).

For overseas non-resident individual Shareholders, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the
Individual Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China and its implementing regulations
as well as the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation on Issues Concerning the Levy and
Administration of Individual Income Tax After the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 045 (Guo
Shui Han [2011] No. 348) KEIZRTH548 /3R BIF 3 [1993]0455% X BE L2 BRAE AP SHEAE
o RE Y B 20 (B B K [2011]3485R)), the overseas resident individual Shareholders of a domestic
non-foreign-invested enterprise which issued stocks in Hong Kong are entitled to relevant
preferential tax treatments in accordance with the tax treaties entered into by and between the
countries they are from and China as well as the taxation arrangement between the Mainland
China and Hong Kong (Macao). An individual income tax shall be withheld at a preferential tax rate
of 10% generally for dividends paid to overseas resident individual Shareholders by the domestic
non-foreign-invested enterprise which issued stocks in Hong Kong, unless otherwise required by
the regulations of relevant tax laws and tax conventions.

Generally, the Bank will withhold and remit individual income tax for holders of H Shares in
accordance with the above arrangements, but if the tax authorities require otherwise, the Bank will
follow their requirements.

For tax issues concerning Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the provisions of the Circular on
Taxation Policies Concerning the Pilot Program of a Mechanism for Mutual Stock Market Access
Between Shenzhen and Hong Kong (Cai Shui [2016] No. 127) issued by the MOF, the State
Administration of Taxation and the CSRC shall apply.
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Capitalization Issue

Pursuant to the Notice of State Administration of Taxation in relation to the Capitalisation of
Capital Reserve and the Levy of Individual Income Tax regarding the Distribution of Bonus Shares
of Joint-Stock Enterprises (Guoshuifa [1997] No. 198) (BIZR %1% 42 o B FA AR 15 i 1> 5 45 3% JG AN A1
TR AT RS B A TS B B3 AN (B 77 35 [1997]198%5%)), the increase of share capital of joint-stock
enterprises by way of capitalization issue does not belong to the distribution of dividends and
bonuses. The shares obtained by individuals from the capitalization issue are not treated as
individual income, and are exempted from individual income tax. As a result, there will be no levy
of PRC taxation in respect of the issue of new shares under the capitalization issue and no relevant
taxation will be withheld and paid.

Dealings in the new H Shares will be subject to the payment of stamp duty, the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange trading fee, transaction levy, or any other applicable fees and charges in Hong Kong.

Distribution of Dividends on Offshore Preference Shares

Pursuant to the PRC tax laws and regulations, the Bank is required to withhold and remit corporate
income tax at a rate of 10% when distributing dividends on Offshore Preference Shares to
overseas non-resident enterprise Shareholders. Pursuant to the regulations of the Inland Revenue
Department of Hong Kong, no tax is payable in Hong Kong in respect of dividends on Offshore
Preference Shares paid by the Bank.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding the PRC, Hong Kong and
other tax implications arising from their holding and disposal of H Shares and Offshore Preference
Shares of the Bank. The Bank will not take any responsibility for any taxation impact or liability of
holders of H Share.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS OF H SHARES
In order to determine the eligibility of holders of H Shares of the Bank to vote at the forthcoming annual

general meeting, the register of members of H Shares will be closed accordingly. For details, please refer
to the circular of the 2020 annual general meeting to be despatched to the Shareholders by the Bank.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

For details of the share capital and substantial Shareholders of the Bank, please refer to the chapter
headed “Changes in Share Capital and Information on Shareholders”.

ISSUANCE OF DEBT SECURITIES

For details of the issuance of debt securities of the Bank, please refer to the paragraph headed “Issuance
and Repurchase of Bonds” in the chapter headed “Significant Events” in this Report.

USE OF PROCEEDS

For details of the use of proceeds of the Bank, please refer to the chapter headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves (and reserves distributable to Shareholders) of the Bank for the
Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in Shareholders’ equity.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property and equipment of the Bank are set out in Note 22 to the financial
statements in the chapter headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this Report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary and usual course of business, the Bank offers commercial banking services and products
to the public in China, including certain connected persons of the Bank such as the Shareholders,
Directors, Supervisors, president and/or their respective associates. Pursuant to the Stock Exchange
Listing Rules, such transactions, being conducted on normal commercial terms in the ordinary and usual
course of the business of the Bank, shall be exempt from the reporting, annual review, disclosure and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Stock Exchange Listing
Rules. The Bank has reviewed all its connected transactions and acknowledged that it had complied with
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, to increase the capital adequacy ratio of the Bank, improve the capital
structure, establish and improve the long-term capital management mechanism, and enhance the
sustainable development capabilities, the Board resolved to approve the amendments to the plan
for non-public issuance of A Shares on 30 March 2020. On the same day, the Bank entered into the
supplemental agreement of the conditional share subscription agreement with Zhengzhou Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd. (EF/N#& &1 E R A 7)) and Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (A @EERE 5B A7),
respectively. Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. shall subscribe for not less than 171.5 million A
Shares of the Bank under the non-public issuance, and Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. shall subscribe
for A Shares with an amount of not more than RMB600 million but not less than RMB450 million
under the non-public issuance. As at the date of the supplemental agreements, Zhengzhou Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd. was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhengzhou Finance Bureau (a substantial
Shareholder and connected person of the Bank under Chapter 14A of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules).
Therefore, Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. was an associate of Zhengzhou Finance Bureau,
and thus a connected person of the Bank. Mr. ZHU Zhihui, a Supervisor, being a connected person of the
Bank under Chapter 14A of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules, held 90% of the equity interest in Henan
Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd.. Therefore, Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. is an associate of Mr. ZHU Zhihui
and thus a connected person of the Bank. The revised transactions constitute connected transactions
of the Bank. The Bank has complied with the reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules. In November 2020,
the Bank completed the non-public issuance of A Shares. Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.
subscribed for 171.5 million A Shares with a subscription amount of RMB796 million, and Henan Guoyuan
Trade Co., Ltd. subscribed for 100 million A Shares with a subscription amount of RMB464 million. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Bank dated 30 March 2020, 6 April 2020, 20 May 2020
and 26 November 2020 and the circular dated 28 April 2020 published by the Bank on the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The definition of connected persons under Chapter 14A of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules is different
from the definition of related parties under International Accounting Standard, and its interpretations
by the International Accounting Standards Board. Some of the Bank’s related party transactions also
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined under the Stock
Exchange Listing Rules, but none of them constitutes a disclosable connected transaction as defined
under the Stock Exchange Listing Rules except for the above connected transactions with Zhengzhou
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. and Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd..
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details regarding the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Bank are set out in the chapter
headed “Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management, Staff and Institutions” of this Report.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN BUSINESS IN
COMPETITION WITH THE BANK

None of the Directors or Supervisors of the Bank holds any interest in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, whether directly or indirectly, with that of the Bank.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS, AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and Supervisors are set out in the chapter headed “Directors,
Supervisors, Senior Management, Staff and Institutions” of this Report and in note 9 to the financial
statements of the independent auditor’s report of this Report. Retirement benefits offered by the Bank to
employees are set out in note 32(a) to the financial statements of the independent auditor’s report of this
Report. Details of the remuneration of the top five highest-paid individuals are set out in note 10 to the
financial statements of the independent auditor’s report of this Report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or Supervisors entered into a service contract with the

Bank which was not determinable by the Bank within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the interests of Directors, Supervisors and chief executive officer
in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Bank or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Bank and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies in Appendix 10 to the Stock Exchange
Listing Rules were set out as follows:

Number of Shares
held directly or Percentage of the Percentage of all

Class of indirectly (Shares) relevant class of  Ordinary Shares

Name Position  Shares Nature (Long position) Shares in issue (%) in issue (%)

WANG Tianyu Director A Shares  Beneficial owner 27,503 0.00047 0.00037

ZHU Zhihui Supervisor A Shares  Interest of controlled 318,951,121 5.46 4.24
corporation Mo/

CHENG Jie Supervisor A Shares  Beneficial owner 6,940 0.00012 0.00009

Note: 318,951,121 A Shares of the Bank are held directly by Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (AEERE S ER QA 7),
which is owned as to 90% by Mr. ZHU Zhihui, a Supervisor of the Bank. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. ZHU Zhihui
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. (TR ERE $ER A 7).

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive held any interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Bank or its associated corporations as at
the end of the Reporting Period.

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, neither the Bank nor any of its subsidiaries entered into any significant
transaction, arrangement or contract in which the Directors or Supervisors or entity connected with the
Directors or Supervisors directly or indirectly had a material interest.
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THE BANK’S LOANS TO ENTITIES

During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not provide any entity with loans that shall be disclosed under
Rule 13.13 of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period was the Bank or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors and/or Supervisors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management or administration contract in relation to all or substantial parts of the business of the
Bank was entered into during the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OR
REDEEMABLE SECURITIES OF THE BANK

During the Reporting Period, the Bank and its subsidiaries had not purchased, sold or redeemed any
listed securities or redeemable securities of the Bank.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank had not issued or granted any convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights, and there had been no exercise of conversion or subscription
rights over the convertible securities, options, warrants or other similar rights issued or granted by the
Bank at any time.

LOAN AGREEMENTS OR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE OF THE BANK

During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not provide any of its affiliated companies with any financial
assistance or guarantees required to be disclosed under Rule 13.16 of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules.
The Bank does not have a controlling Shareholder or ultimate controller, nor has it entered into any loan
agreement with covenants relating to specific performance of the controlling Shareholder or breached the
terms of any loan agreement.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not have provisions in respect of pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and according to the relevant provisions of the PRC laws and regulations.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Bank made charitable and other donations in an aggregate sum of
approximately RMB9,076,800.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Reporting Period, other than Offshore Preference Shares, the Bank neither had nor entered
into any equity-linked agreements.

Upon approval by the former CBRC Henan Office and the CSRC, the Bank issued non-cumulative
perpetual Offshore Preference Shares in the amount of USD1,191 million on 18 October 2017 through
a private offering on the overseas market. Pursuant to regulations including the Measures on Capital
Management of Commercial Banks (Trial) and the Trial Administrative Measures on Preference Shares,
a commercial bank shall set up the provisions of coercive conversion of preference shares into Ordinary
shares, under which the commercial bank shall convert the preference shares into Ordinary Shares as
contractually agreed in case of a trigger event. Such trigger event happens when the common equity
tier 1 capital adequacy ratio has fallen to 5.125% (or below) and when the CBIRC determines that the
bank will not be able to exist if shares of the bank are not transferred or written down, or when relevant
regulators determine that the bank will not be able to exist if there is no capital injection from public
sectors or supports with coordinative effects. The Bank, according to relevant regulations, has formulated
provisions of trigger events under which Offshore Preference Shares shall be coercively converted into
H Shares. If such trigger events happen to the Bank and all Offshore Preference Shares need to be
coercively converted into H Shares in accordance with their initial conversion price, the total amount of
the Offshore Preference Shares which would be converted into H Shares will not exceed 1,719,533,921 H
Shares. During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not experience any trigger event in which the Offshore
Preference Shares need to be coercively converted into H Shares.

RELATIONS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Bank takes effective measures to safeguard the legitimate rights and interests of its employees,
striving to establish a harmonious and stable employment relationship. The Bank enters into labor
contracts with its employees in accordance with the relevant laws, and continuously improves the
relevant labor employment system and employee security system. By conscientiously implementing
the national policies and regulations on salary and welfare, the Bank has developed the “Administrative
Measures on Salary and Welfare”, under which it pays employees full salaries on time, contributes
various social insurance and housing provident fund and built a multi-level pension and medical security
system. Assuming the responsibility of protecting the vital interests of employees, the Bank establishes
a care-giving relief fund, regularly arranges for employees to receive health check-ups, and purchases
mutual insurance for accidental injury and critical illness insurance for employees. The Bank also
keeps helping employees to enhance their value through enhancing position system for smooth career
development path and providing them with a wide range of professional training.
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The Bank adheres to a customer-oriented approach, promotes service etiquette and knowledge, and
promotes standard services at outlets to continuously improve customers’ financial experience. To protect
consumer rights, the Bank integrated the concept and requirements of consumer protection into its
systems and established a consumer rights protection system involving consumer services, information
privacy, education on financial knowledge, and customer complaints handling. The Bank pays attention
to communication with customers. It keeps in touch with customers through letters, telephone, fax, direct
visits, the internet and other forms of communication channels, provides customers with round-the-clock
telephone banking services in China through the unified customer service telephone line, and offers online
customer service to provide customers with intelligent online services.

Adhering to the principles of openness, fairness and impartiality, the Bank has established the bidding
committee, selects suppliers by means of bidding and other similar forms, and maintains good
communication and cooperation with various suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the Latest Practicable Date, according to the data publicly available to the Bank and the Directors
have been aware of, the Bank has complied with the public float requirements under the Stock Exchange
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. During the Reporting
Period, the Bank strictly abided by the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code and the
relevant Stock Exchange Listing Rules on disclosure of inside information. Details of corporate governance
of the Bank are set out in the chapter headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this Report.

MAJOR DEPOSITORS AND BORROWERS

The Bank is not dependent on a single major depositor/borrower. As at the end of the Reporting Period,
the deposits balance of the five largest depositors and loan balance of the five largest borrowers of the
Bank represented no more than 30% of the total deposits balance, gross loans and advances of the
Bank. The Directors of the Bank and their close associates or any Shareholder which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the number of issued Shares do not have any interest in the above
five largest depositors/borrowers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code, the Bank shall maintain appropriate
insurance to cover the potential litigation initiated against the Directors. According to the Articles of
Association, unless Directors, Supervisors and senior management personnel are proved to have failed
to perform their duties honestly or in good faith, the Bank shall, to the fullest extent permitted by laws
and administrative regulations or to the extent not prohibited by laws and administrative regulations,
assume civil liabilities incurred by Directors, Supervisors and senior management personnel during their
performance of duties. The Bank has purchased appropriate liability insurance for the Directors and
provided them with an indemnity for liabilities incurred during the operations of the Bank for the Reporting
Period.
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OTHER MATTERS

As far as the Board is aware, the Bank has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Bank in all material respects. In the meantime,
the Bank is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment and communities in which it
operates. Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the Bank endeavors to comply with laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. For details, please refer to the 2020 Corporate Social
Responsibility Report published on the websites of CNINFO and Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 March
2021 by the Bank.

During the Reporting Period, the Bank was not aware of any Shareholders having waived or agreed to any
arrangement to waive dividends.

During the Reporting Period, the Directors of the Bank did not waive or agreed to waive relevant
remuneration arrangement.

During the Reporting Period, the Bank had not pledged any significant assets.

During the Reporting Period, the Bank had no controlling Shareholder or ultimate controller. As a result,
the Bank did not have any controlling Shareholder pledging the Bank’s shares to secure the Bank’s debts
or to secure guarantees or other support of the Bank’s obligations.

Subsequent to the Reporting Period, on 8 March 2021, the name of the building where the Bank’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong was located has been changed, so the address of the Bank’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong has been changed. The website, telephone number and fax
number of the Bank remain unchanged.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, save as disclosed in this Report, there were no other significant
subsequent events of the Bank requiring disclosure.

By order of the Board
Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.
WANG Tianyu

Chairman

30 March 2021
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During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors of the Bank was dedicated to performing its duties
diligently based on its responsibility to the Shareholders and employees in accordance with the Company
Law, the Guidelines on the Corporate Governance of Commercial Banks, the Articles of Association and
the requirements of the rules and regulations to the Board of Supervisors, and formed a relatively complete
supervisory system covering the supervision over meetings, strategies, financial affairs and performance
assessment, which was a positive driving force for steady business development, enhancement of risk control
and improvement of the corporate governance structure of the Bank.

199

MAJOR WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors attended all the meetings and activities of the
“Three Boards and one Management” of the Bank. The Board of Supervisors convened six meetings
in total and special committees of the Board of Supervisors each convened one meeting to consider
16 resolutions concerning business operation, internal control, corporate governance and performance
assessment of the Directors and the Supervisors and review 36 reports concerning internal audit, related
party transactions and quality of assets. Members of the Board of Supervisors attended the general
meetings and were present at all the on-site meetings of the Board, and supervised the compliance with
laws and regulations in relation to the convening of the general meetings and Board meetings, voting
procedures, and the Directors’ attendance, opinions expressed and voting at the general meetings and
Board meetings. Members of the Board of Supervisors attended and presented at various meetings
and activities to obtain information on the operations management of the Bank in all aspects in a timely
manner, thereby substantially consolidating their supervision functions. The Board of Supervisors had no
objection to the supervisory affairs during the Reporting Period.

The sixth session of the Board of Supervisors consists of six Supervisors (three employee representative
Supervisors, one Shareholder representative Supervisor and two external Supervisors). Each of the
supervisory committee and the nomination committee has three members, respectively, and is chaired by
an external Supervisor, thus satisfying the regulatory requirements of the composition and proportion of
members of the Board of Supervisors.

During the Reporting Period, the external Supervisors actively acquainted themselves with the operations
management of the Bank, and gave opinions or suggestions on significant matters by attending meetings
of the Board of Supervisors, convening special committee meetings of the Board of Supervisors, being
present at the Board meetings, participating in investigations and surveys conducted by the Board of
Supervisors (on a collective or separate basis) at the branch level. During the adjournment of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors, the external Supervisors were able to review various documents
and reports of the Bank and exchange opinions with the Board of Directors and management on any
problems found in a timely manner, playing an active role in performing the supervisory duties of the
Board of Supervisors.
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INDEPENDENT OPINIONS ON RELEVANT MATTERS

Performance of Duties by the Board of Directors and Senior Management and Its
Members

The Board of Supervisors completed the 2019 report of performance assessment of the Board of
Directors, senior management and its members as required and reported the performance assessment
results to the general meetings and regulatory authorities. The Board of Supervisors was of the view
that the Board of Directors and senior management performed their duties according to the Guidelines
on the Corporate Governance of Commercial Banks and the Articles of Association and gave full play
to their strategic leadership functions to facilitate the Bank to achieve quality development. The senior
management continued to improve their capability of implementing strategic decisions, established and
finalized various measures, ensuring the smooth completion of various jobs throughout the year. The
Board of Supervisors will conduct the 2020 annual assessment on the performance of duties by the
Board, senior management and its members as required, and report the assessment results to the general
meeting and regulatory departments.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations in Operations

During the Reporting Period, the operating activities of the Bank complied with the requirements of the
Company Law, the Law on Commercial Banks and the Articles of Association, and the decision-making
process was legitimate and effective. The Directors and senior management were honest, trustworthy,
diligent and conscientious. No acts in violation of laws and regulations and the Articles of Association or
detrimental to the interests of the Bank and Shareholders were found in the performance of duties by the
Directors and senior management of the Bank during the year.

Truthfulness of Financial Report

Upon careful review of the 2020 annual report of the Bank by all Supervisors in a practical and
responsible manner to all Shareholders, the Board of Supervisors was of the view that procedures for the
preparation of the 2020 annual report by the Board complied with the laws, administrative regulations and
requirements of the CSRC; the contents of the report truthfully, accurately and completely reflected the
actual situation of the Bank; and there were no false representations, misleading statements or material
omissions contained therein.

Related Party Transactions
During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors supervised the related party transactions, and

considered that the prices of the related party transactions of the Bank were fair and reasonable and no
acts detrimental to the interests of the Bank and Shareholders were found by the Board of Supervisors.
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Internal Control

The Board of Supervisors considered that the Bank had established a relatively comprehensive corporate
governance structure, formulated relatively complete management systems relating to corporate
governance and internal control, and was capable of improving the foregoing in accordance with the
actual situation of the Bank and regulatory requirements. The internal control system of the Bank had
been carried out smoothly, complied with the relevant standard requirements of laws and regulations on
the management of corporate internal control systems, and completely, truthfully and objectively reflected
the establishment and operation of the internal control system of the Bank. The Board of Supervisors
reviewed the 2020 Internal Control Self-Assessment Report of the Bank and had no objection to its
contents.

Implementation of Resolutions of General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors supervised the implementation of the resolutions
of general meetings, and considered that the Board was capable of earnestly implementing the relevant
resolutions of general meetings and did not take any action detrimental to the interests of Shareholders.
Profit Distribution Plan

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the 2020 Profit Distribution Plan of the Bank, and considered that the
profit distribution plan complied with the relevant requirements of laws, regulations and the Articles of
Association and was in the interests of all Shareholders and beneficial to the long-term development of
the Bank.

Dividend Distribution Plan for Preference Shares

During the Reporting Period, the dividend distribution plan for preference shares of the Bank complied

with the relevant requirements of laws, regulations, the Articles of Association and the issuance terms or
provisions of preference shares.
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Changes in Accounting Policies

During the Reporting Period, changes in accounting policies of the Bank were reasonably made in
accordance with the requirements of the relevant documents issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and the MoF, compiled with the relevant requirements of IASB, the MoF, CSRC,
SZSE, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and other regulatory authorities, were able to reflect the financial
position and operating results of the Bank in a more objective and fair manner, and were in the interests
of the Bank and Shareholders.

Information Disclosure Matters

During the Reporting Period, the Board of Supervisors oversaw the information disclosure matters of
the Bank and was of the opinion that: the Bank had established a sound system for the management
of information disclosure matters and had fulfilled its information disclosure duties in compliance with
the provisions of relevant laws and regulations and regulatory requirements. The contents of disclosure
are truthful, accurate and complete without any false representation, misleading statement or material
omission.

Save as disclosed above, the Board of Supervisors had no objection to other supervisory affairs during
the Reporting Period.

By order of the Board of Supervisors
Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.
ZHAO Lijuan

Chairwoman of the Board of Supervisors

30 March 2021
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1 ISSUANCE AND REPURCHASE OF BONDS

The Bank issued the tier Il capital bonds (Bonds code: 1620066), whose date of value was 21 December
2016, in an amount of RMBS3 billion in the national interbank bond market on 19 December 2016, with a
fixed rate for a term of 10 years. The Bank shall have the issuer redemption right at the end of the fifth
year and the coupon rate is 4.10%.

The Bank issued the tier Il capital bonds (Bonds code: 1720014), whose date of value was 31 March
2017, in an amount of RMB2 billion in the national interbank bond market on 30 March 2017, with a fixed
rate for a term of 10 years. The Bank shall have the issuer redemption right at the end of the fifth year and
the coupon rate is 4.80%.

The Bank issued the 2017 first tranche of green financial bonds (Bonds code: 1720065), whose
book-building was recorded in the national interbank bond market, in an amount of RMB3 billion on 5
September 2017, for a maturity term of three years and a coupon rate of 4.70%. All of the bonds expired
and were redeemed on 4 September 2020.

The Bank issued the 2019 first tranche of green financial bonds (Bonds code: 1920043), whose
book-building was recorded in the national interbank bond market, in an amount of RMB2 billion on
3 June 2019, for a maturity term of three years and a coupon rate of 3.70%. The proceeds from the
issuance of the bonds was specially used for green industry projects as defined in the List of Projects
Supported by Green Financial Bonds formulated by the Green Finance Committee of China Society of
Finance & Banking.

Jiu Ding Financial Leasing Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Bank, issued financial bonds (Bonds code:
2022047) which value date was 24 November 2020, in an aggregate amount of RMB1.4 billion in the
national interbank bond market on 20 November 2020. These bonds are 3-year fixed-rate bonds with a
coupon rate of 4.20%.

203 Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.



CHAPTER X  SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

2 PERFORMANCE OF UNDERTAKINGS

2.1

Undertakings Fully Performed by the Bank’s de facto Controller, Shareholders,
Related Parties, Purchasers and the Bank during the Reporting Period and
Undertakings Not Fully Performed as at the End of the Reporting Period

Undertaking Undertaking Date of Term of
Undertakings  party type Details of the undertaking undertakings undertakings Performance

Undertakings ~ Zhengzhou Undertaking Within 36 months since the date of the 19 September Refertothe ~ During the

made ininitial  Finance Bureau  on shares initial public offering of the Bank's A 2018 detalls of the  course of
public offering ~ (BMAEEE)  with seling Shares on the SZSE, Zhengzhou Finance undertakings  performance
of A Shares restrictions Bureau shall not transfer or entrust

others to manage the issued Shares of
the Bank held by it before this round of
issue, and shall not allow the Bank to
repurchase such Shares; if the closing
price of the Shares issued in this round
by the Bank is lower than the issue price
for 20 consecutive trading days within
six months, or the closing price is lower
than the issue price as at the end of the
six-month period upon the listing, the
lockup period for the Bank’s Shares held
by Zhengzhou Finance Bureau shall be
automatically extended by six months.

If it intends to reduce its shareholdings
within two years after the expiry of the
share lockup period, the annual reduced
shareholdings shall be no more than
5% of the number of shares held by it;
if it intends to reduce its shareholdings
two years after the expiry of the share
lockup period, the number of reduced
shareholdings will be announced three
trading days before it reduces its
shareholding, the selling price shall be
no less than the issue price of the initial
public offering of the Bank's A Shares (if
there is any dividend distribution, bonus
issue of shares, capitalization of capital
reserve, share placing, share subdivision
and other ex-rights and ex-dividend
events of the Bank's shares, the seling
price will be adjusted accordingly by ex-
rights and ex-dividend).
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Undertaking Undertaking Date of Term of

Undertakings  party type Details of the undertaking undertakings undertakings Performance

Undertakings  Shareholders Undertaking Within 36 months since the date of the 19 September Refertothe  During the
made ininitial  in aggregate on shares initial public offering of the Bank's A 2018 details of the  course of
public offering ~ holding more with selling Shares on the SZSE, these Shareholders undertakings  performance
of A Shares than 51% of restrictions shall not transfer or entrust others to

the Shares manage the issued Shares of the Bank
(Zhengzhou held by them directly or indirectly before
Finance Bureau this round of issue, and shall not allow
excluded) the Bank to repurchase such Shares.
(lease refer

to the relevant

content of the

Prospectus of

the Shares (A

Shares) of the

IPO of the Bank

for detailed list)

Undertakings  Directors, Undertaking Within 36 months since the date of the 19 September Refertothe ~ During the
made ininitial - Supervisors on shares initial public offering of the Bank's A 2018 details of the  course of
public offering  and senior with selling Shares on the SZSE, they shall not undertakings  performance
of A Shares management restrictions transfer or entrust others to manage the

personnel of issued Shares of the Bank held by them
the Bank before this round of issue, and shall

205 Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.

not allow the Bank to repurchase such
Shares.

After the expiry of the lockup period, they
shall transfer no more than 15% of the
total number of the Shares held by them
annually during the term of office, and
no more than 50% of the total number
of the Shares held by them within five
years, they shall not repurchase in six
months after selling their shares or resell
in six months after purchasing Shares;
they shall not transfer the Shares of the
Bank held by them within six months
after they leave office.
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Undertakings

Undertaking
party

Undertaking

type

Details of the undertaking

Date of

Term of

undertakings undertakings Performance

Undertakings
made in initial
public offering
of A Shares

Undertakings
made in initial
public offering
of A Shares

Directors, senior

management
personnel of
the Bank

Individuals of the

Bank holding
more than
50,000 internal
staff Shares

Undertaking
on shares
with selling
restrictions

Undertaking
on shares
with selling
restrictions

If the closing price of the A Shares of the 19 September Refer to the

initial public offering of the Bank on the
SZSE is lower than the issue price for
20 consecutive trading days within six
months, or the closing price is lower than
the issue price as at the end of the six-
month period upon the listing, the lockup
period for the Bank’s Shares held by
them shall be automatically extended by
six months. During the extended lockup
period, they shall not transfer or entrust
others to manage the issued Shares of
the Bank held by them before this round
of issue, and shall not allow the Bank to
repurchase such Shares.

If the Shares are reduced within two years
after the expiry of the lockup period, the
selling price shall be no less than the
issue price of the initial public offering of
the Bank's A Shares.

Within three years since the listing date
of the Bank on the SZSE, they shall
not transfer the Shares of the Bank of
Zhengzhou held by them. After the expiry
of the above three-year Shares transfer
lockup period, they shall transfer no
more than 15% of the total number of
the Shares held by them annually, and
no more than 50% of the total number
of the Shares held by them within five
years.
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Details of the undertaking

Date of

Term of

undertakings undertakings Performance

Undertaking Undertaking
Undertakings  party type
Undertakings  Additional Undertaking
made ininitial ~ Shareholders of  on shares
public offering ~ the Bank during ~ with selling
of A Shares the Reporting restrictions
Period
Undertakings ~ The Bank, Undertakings
made ininitial -~ Zhengzhou on the price
public offering  Finance stabilization
of A Shares Bureau, al
Directors
(independent
non-executive
Directors
excluded)
of the Bank
and senior
management
personnel
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Within 36 months since the date of the 19 September Refer to the

initial public offering of the Bank’s A
Shares on the SZSE, these Shareholders
shall not transfer or entrust others to
manage the issued Shares of the Bank
held by them directly or indirectly before
this round of issue, and shall not allow
the Bank to repurchase such Shares.

They will strictly observe and execute the
‘Price Stabilization Plan for A Shares”
considered and approved at the general
meeting of the Bank and perform the
obligations of stabilising the Share
price of the Bank according to the
requirements of such plan. Please refer
to the relevant content of the prospectus
of the Shares (A Shares) of the initial
public offering of the Bank for the
conditions triggering the implementation
of the price stabilization measures and
specific measures to maintain stable
share price.

2018

details of the
undertakings

19 September  Refer to the

2018

detalls of the
undertakings

During the
course of
performance

During the
course of
performance
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Undertakings

Undertaking
party

Undertaking
type

Details of the undertaking

Date of

Term of

undertakings undertakings Performance

Undertakings
made in initial
public offering
of A Shares

Undertakings
made in
non-public
issuance of
A Shares

Undertakings
made in
non-public
issuance of
A Shares

Zhengzhou
Finance Bureau

(BHHEER)

Zhengzhou
Investment
Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (BMRE
PRERAT)

Bridge Trust
Company
Limited (&%
[ERAREM

AR

Undertakings
on avoiding
horizontal
competition

Undertaking
on shares
with selling
restrictions

Undertaking
on shares
with selling
restrictions

During the period for being a major 19 September Refer to the

Shareholder of the Bank, its subsidiary
enterprises (including wholly-owned,
controlled subsidiaries and effectively-
controlled enterprises) will not engage
in, directly or indirectly, any forms of
business activities that will compete
or likely to compete with the Bank's
principal business. Zhengzhou Finance
Bureau will supervise its subsidiary
enterprises in accordance with this
undertaking and exercise necessary
rights to ensure them to comply with this
undertaking.

Zhengzhou Finance Bureau will strictly
comply with the relevant laws and
regulations of the CSRC and the stock
exchanges where the Bank's Shares are
listed and the requirements of company
management policies such as the Article
of Association and management policies
on related party transactions of the Bank,
exercise the Shareholder’s rights and
perform the Shareholder’s obligations
as equally as other Shareholders, and
neither seek unfair interest by use of the
position of major Shareholder, nor impair
the legal interests of the Bank and other
Shareholders.

It shall not transfer Shares under non-
public issuance of the Bank within 60
months since the date of the listing
thereof,

It shall not transfer Shares under non-
public issuance of the Bank within 18
months since the date of the listing
thereof.
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Undertaking Undertaking Date of Term of
Undertakings  party type Details of the undertaking undertakings undertakings Performance

Undertakings ~ Henan Guoyuan  Undertaking It shall not transfer Shares under non- 27 November Refertothe  During the

made in Trade Co., Ltd.  on shares public issuance of the Bank within 60 2020 detals of the  course of
non-public (TEEREZS  with seling months since the date of the listing undertakings  performance
issuance of BRAT) restrictions thereof.

A Shares

Undertakings 23 targets of Undertaking They shall not transfer Shares under non- 27 November  Refertothe  During the

made in the non-public ~ on shares public issuance of the Bank within 6 2020 details of the ~ course of
non-public issuance with selling months since the date of the listing undertakings  performance
issuance of including restrictions thereof.
A Shares Zhengzhou
Gaoxin
Investment
Holding Group
Co., Ltd. (EM
PHRERRE
BERRA)
Whether the undertakings are performed on time Yes

If the undertakings are not performed when overdue, ~ Not applicable
explanations on reasons and working plans for the
next step shall be stated in detail

2.2 Existence of the Profit Forecast about Assets or Projects, and the Reporting
Period Was Still in the Profit Forecast Period, the Bank’s Explanation on the
Profit of Assets or Projects Reaching the Goal and the Reasons

There was no existence of the profit forecast about assets or projects nor the Reporting Period
was still in the forecast period for the Bank.
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with relevant provisions under the Administrative Measures for Related Party Transactions
Between Commercial Banks and Insiders or Shareholders, the SZSE Listing Rules, the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises, and other laws, administrative rules, departmental regulations, and
regulatory documents, the Bank relentlessly improved its regulations such as Administrative Measures
of Related Party Transactions, continuously enhanced its management mechanism of related party
transactions, and prudently carried out related party transactions using relevant systems for supervision
and approval of related party transactions to effectively prevent related party transaction risks. During
the Reporting Period, related party transactions between the Bank and its related parties are conducted
in the ordinary course of its business with terms and prices agreed in accordance with the principles of
fairness as well as on conditions no better than non-related party transactions of the same type. Such
related party transactions had no significant impact on the operation results and financial conditions of the
Bank and the indicators on the control of related party transactions were in compliance with the related
regulations of regulatory authorities.

3.1 Related Shareholders Directly or Indirectly Holding 5% or more of the Shares of

the Bank
Change(s)
Relationship during the
Name of the with the Place of Organization ~ Registered Legal Reporting
related party related party registration type capital representative  Principal business  Period
Zhengzhou Shareholder ~ N/A Government N/A N/A N/A Nil
Finance Bureau department
(BMNFHER)
Zhengzhou Shareholder ~ Zhengzhou, Company with ~ RMB3.51 LIANG Songwei  Investment and Nil
Investment Holdings Henan limited liability ~ billion management of
Co., Ltd. (BB & state-owned
ERERAR) assets, real estate

development and
sale; house leasing.

Note: In November 2020, the Bank completed the non-public issuance of A Shares, upon which the total
number of Ordinary Shares increased from 6,514,125,090 Shares to 7,514,125,090 Shares. Zhengzhou
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (EF/#&% & & H PR A 7)) subscribed for 171.5 million A Shares, and held
408,918,926 A Shares as at the end of the Reporting Period, representing 5.44% of the Bank’s total
issued Ordinary Shares. The number of A Shares held directly and indirectly through Zhongyuan Trust
Co., Ltd. (FR{EEER A7), and Henan Investment Group Co., Ltd. (i m & £EH R A 7)) amounted
to 362,115,251 Shares, and the total shareholding percentage decreased from 5.56% to 4.82%.
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3.2

3.3

Significant Related Party Transaction

In accordance with the relevant requirements of the Administrative Measures for Related Party
Transactions Between Commercial Banks and Insiders or Shareholders and the Administrative
Measures for Related Party Transactions of the Bank, related party transactions are defined as
follows:

A general related party transaction shall refer to a transaction between the Bank and a single
related party with an amount of no more than 1% of the net capital of the Bank and the balance
of the transactions between the Bank and the related party after such transaction constituting no
more than 5% of the net capital of the Bank. A significant related party transaction shall refer to a
transaction between the Bank and a single related party with an amount of more than 1% of the
net capital of the Bank or the balance of the transactions between the Bank and the related party
after such transaction constituting more than 5% of the net capital of the Bank. If the transaction
is non-credit-grant-type, the transaction amount shall be the cumulative amount of all relevant
transaction balances between the Bank and the same related party continuously within 12 months;
if the transaction is credit-grant-type, the transaction amount shall be the credit balance between
the Bank and the same related party; if the transaction involves both non-credit-grant-type and
credit-grant-type, the transaction amount shall be calculated on an aggregate basis. In calculating
the amount of transactions between a natural person related party and the Bank, the transactions
between the person’s close relatives and the Bank shall be aggregated; in calculating the amount
of transactions between a legal person related party or other organizations and the Bank, the
transactions between the legal persons or other organizations constituting a group client together
with the legal person related party and the Bank shall be aggregated.

Implementations of Related Party Transactions

During the Reporting Period, in strict compliance with the requirements of the Company Law
and the SZSE Listing Rules, the Bank conducted recurring related party transactions within the
estimated quota on recurring related party transactions for 2020 as approved by the general
meeting. The details of such transactions are set out in the following table. Apart from such
transactions as listed below, the Bank conducted no other significant transactions that met the
above requirements.
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3.3.1 Related party transactions of corporation credit grant type

Unit: RMB’ 000

Estimated
quota on
recurring Actual
related party  total credit Credit
Number  Related client transactions granted  Related legal persons granted
1 Zhengzhou Construction Investment 3,200,000 3,170,000  Zhengzhou Transportation Construction 690,000
Group Co., Ltd. Investment Co., Ltd.
BHPRRREEERRAR) BHZBRRREARAT)
and its related parties
Zhengzhou Road and Bridge Construction 1,188,500
Investment Group Co., Ltd.
(EMRERIRESBERLR)
Zhengzhou Highway Engineering Company 601,500
(BHFREIERAR)
Zhengzhou Songyue Highway Development 690,000
Co., Ltd.
BNEEARREERAR)
2 Zhengzhou Transportation 1,200,000 800,000  Zhengzhou Transportation Construction 800,000
Construction Investment Co., Ltd. Investment Co., Ltd.
(BHRERRREERAT) BABRRREARAT)
and its related parties
3 Zhengzhou Municipal Construction 550,000 420,000  Zhengzhou Municipal Construction 300,000
Engineering General Corporation Engineering General Corporation
(BNTTRIEEAR) (BNTTHIEEAR)
and its related parties
Henan Kanghui Cement Products Co., Ltd. 120,000
(TEREKEERARAR)
4 Henan Investment Group Co., Ltd. 4,000,000 1,110,000  Luohe Big Data Operation Co., Ltd. 380,000
(TERESEERAR) (BATABEERARAR)
and its related parties
Henan Yicheng Holdings Co., Ltd. 380,000
(TRERARERAR)
Zhumadian City Yulong Tongli Cement 50,000
Limited Company
(BSETRERNKEERAA)
Henan Development Gas Co., Ltd. 200,000
(TEEERMAARAR)
Xinxiang Zhongyi Power Generation Co. Ltd. 100,000
(FEPRESERLRA)
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Estimated
quota on
recurring Actual
related party total credit Credit
Number  Related client transactions granted  Related legal persons granted
5 Henan Zhengyang Construction 3,500,000 1,075,000  Henan Zhengyang Construction Engineering 550,000
Engineering Group Co., Ltd. Group Co., Ltd.
(THERRRIREEERAA) (THIRERIRREERAA)
and its related parties
Zensun Enterprises Limited 525,000
(EHEZARLA)
6 Henan Huida Jiarui Real Estate Co., 3,000,000 2,884,310  Zhengzhou Huida Industrial Development 498,500
Ltd. (TEEEREEXERAR) Co., Ltd. (BNEBREXERERAR)
and its related parties
Henan Huida Construction Investment Co., 1,266,610
Ltd. (TRBERFRERRAT)
Zhengzhou Yingshou Trading Co., Ltd. 150,000
([BNREHEARLT)
Henan Xincheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. 144,000
(TEMAEFARAR)
Henan Yingshuo Construction Engineering 525,200
Co., Litd. (TRBERETIRERAR)
Henan Kairui Real Estate Co., Ltd. 300,000
(TESEEZARLA)
7 Zhengzhou Zhongrongchuang 4,200,000 3,120,000  Zhengzhou Zhongrongchuang Industrial 1,000,000
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. [nvestment Co., Ltd.
BATPREEXREBRAA) (ENTPREERREARLR)
and its related parties
Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. 390,000
([BNREERERAT)
Zhengzhou Guotou Industrial Development 400,000
Fund (Limited Partnership)
(BHEREZERES (BREH)
Zhengzhou State-owned Holding Xicheng 330,000
Construction Co., Ltd.
([BHEEBRERERAR)
Zhengzhou Tianjianhu Big Data Industrial 1,000,000
Park Development Co., Ltd.
(ENRRIABEELXEERERAA)
8 Henan Asset Management Company 1,900,000 1,170,000  Henan Asset Management Company Limited 1,170,000
Limited (7B & EERARAT) and (TEEEEARAR)
its related parties
9 Bank of Lanzhou Co., Ltd. (#M3&1T 2,000,000 1,000,000  Bank of Lanzhou Co., Ltd. 1,000,000

B BARAH)
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Estimated
quota on
recurring Actual
related party  total credit Credit
Number  Related client transactions granted  Related legal persons granted
10 Bank of Guizhou Co., Ltd. 2,000,000 2,000,000  Bank of Guizhou Co., Ltd. 2,000,000
(EMFTRHERRA) (EMFTRHBRA )
11 Bridge Trust Company Limited 1,500,000 1,500,000  Bridge Trust Company Limited 1,600,000
(BiERERALRR) (B ERELRR)

3.3.2 Credit-grant-type Related Transactions of Subsidiaries

Unit: RMB100 million

Estimated

quota on
recurring Actual
related party total credit
Number Related client transactions granted
1 Jiuding Financial Leasing Company 4,000,000 4,000,000
2 Fugou Zhengyin County Bank 500,000 420,000
3 Xinmi Zhengyin County Bank 300,000 200,000
4 Xunxian Zhengyin County Bank 300,000 250,000
) Queshan Zhengyin County Bank 350,000 200,000
6 Zhongmu Zhengyin County Bank 300,000 300,000
7 Yanling Zhengyin County Bank 300,000 200,000
8 Xinzheng Zhengyin County Bank 300,000 300,000

3.3.3 Credit-grant-type Related Transactions of Natural Persons

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the credit balance of natural person related parties
in the Bank was RMB91,437,500, which did not exceed the limit of RMB200 million for
the aggregate quota of natural person related parties under Estimated Quota on Recurring
Related Party Transactions for 2020.
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3.3.4 Other Related Party Transactions

A total of RMB448,828,200 of credit assets was transferred to Henan Asset Management
Company Limited (mEEEIEBRAR]); a total of trust custody and supervision fees
of RMB8,174,600 was provided to Bridge Trust Co., Ltd.; a total of trust custody and
supervision fees of RMB230,099,100 was provided to Zhongyuan Trust Co., Ltd. The largest
single transaction of interbank bonds and capital transaction business with each of the
Bank of Lanzhou Co., Ltd. (BMNiE7T81H R A A]), the Bank of Guizhou Co., Ltd. (BNE
TR AR A &) and Central China Securities Co., Ltd. (FFRIEAAHD AR A F]) amounted
to RMB803,641,800, RMB997,650,900 and RMB337,984,200, respectively; the subsidiary
county banks purchased a total of RMB4.15 billion of wealth management products from
the Bank, of which Fugou Zhengyin County Bank purchased an amount of RMB210 million
and Zhongmu Zhengyin County Bank purchased an amount of RMB3.94 billion. None of the
above transactions exceeded the estimated quota on recurring related party transactions for
2020.

On 30 March 2020, the Bank entered into supplemental agreement of the conditional share
subscription agreement with Zhengzhou Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., Bridge Trust Co.,
Ltd. and Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd., respectively, in relation to the revised non-public
issuance of A Shares. Such transactions constituted related party transactions of the Bank
and had been considered and approved at the 2019 AGM of the Bank. In November 2020,
the Bank completed the non-public issuance of A Shares. Zhengzhou Investment Holdings
Co., Ltd. subscribed for 171.5 million A Shares with a subscription amount of RMB796
million, Bridge Trust Co., Ltd. subscribed for 185 million A Shares with a subscription
amount of RMB860 million, and Henan Guoyuan Trade Co., Ltd. subscribed for 100 million
A Shares with a subscription amount of RMB464 million. For details, please refer to the
announcements published on CNINFO by the Bank dated 31 March 2020, 28 April 2020, 21
May 2020 and 26 November 2020, and on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
dated 30 March 2020, 6 April 2020, 20 May 2020, and 26 November 2020 and the circular
dated 28 April 2020.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS AND INFORMATION ON THEIR PERFORMANCE

4.1

4.2

Entrustment, Contracting and Leasing Matters

During the Reporting Period, the Bank had no significant contracts on significant entrustment,
contracting and leasing matters.

Significant Guarantees
During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not have any material guarantee that needed to be

disclosed save for the financial guarantees within the business scope as approved by the PBoC
and the CBIRC.
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4.3 Entrust Others to Manage Cash Assets
4.3.1 Entrusted wealth management

During the Reporting Period, there was no event in respect of entrusted wealth management
beyond the Bank’s normal business.

4.3.2 Entrusted Loans

During the Reporting Period, the Bank had no entrusted loans beyond its normal business
scope.

4.4 Material Contracts in Day-to-day Operations
During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in this Report and other announcements and
circulars of the Bank, the Bank did not have other material contracts in day-to-day operations that
are required to be disclosed.

4.5 Other Significant Contracts
During the Reporting Period, the Bank had no other significant contractual matters requiring
disclosure, other than those disclosed in this Report, other announcements and circulars of the

Bank.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL OR ABSORPTION OF ASSETS AND
EQUITY

During the Reporting Period, the Bank had no significant acquisition, disposal or absorption of assets and
equity.
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SIGNIFICANT LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

The Bank’s Jinshui East Road Sub-branch filed a lawsuit with Zhengzhou Intermediate People’s Court
of Henan Province in August 2020 over a financial loan contract dispute with Zhengzhou Sino-Crystal
Diamond Co., Ltd. and other parties. The court formally accepted the case and commenced a court
session for hearing it. The judgment of the first instance was received in September 2020. As the
defendant did not appeal within the statutory time limit, the judgment of the first instance came into
force. Zhengzhou Intermediate People’s Court of Henan Province lawfully prescribed the termination of
the enforcement procedures and ruled that the defendant shall be obliged to continue to perform the
debts. The Bank will take proactive measures to protect its interests. For details, please refer to the
announcements dated 11 August 2020 and 21 September 2020 published by the Bank on CNINFO and
the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Bank’s Jinshui East Road Sub-branch filed a lawsuit with Zhengzhou Intermediate People’s Court of
Henan Province in August 2020 over a financial loan contract dispute with Henan Tianying Group Co.,
Ltd. and other parties. The court formally accepted the case and commenced a court session for hearing
it. The judgment of the first instance was received in September 2020. After the judgment was made,
as none of the defendants appealed within the statutory time limit, the judgment of the first instance
came into force. The Bank has applied to Zhengzhou Intermediate People’s Court of Henan Province for
enforcement in March 2021. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Bank dated 14 August
2020 and 28 September 2020 published on CNINFO and the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Bank was involved in certain litigation and arbitration matters arising from its ordinary course of
business due to the recovery of borrowings and other reasons. As at the end of the Reporting Period,
the amount of other pending litigations and arbitrations in which the Bank acted as the plaintiff or the
applicant was RMB1,185 million; while the total amount of the pending litigation and arbitration of the
Bank acting as the defendant or the respondent was RMB10 million. These litigation and arbitration
matters are not expected to have material adverse impacts on the financial position and operating results.

PUNISHMENT AND REMEDIAL ACTIONS OF THE BANK AND THE DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK AND SHAREHOLDERS
HOLDING MORE THAN 5% OF THE BANK’S SHARES

During the Reporting Period, to the best knowledge of the Bank, none of the Bank, the current and former
Directors, Supervisors, senior management personnel of the Bank or Shareholders with shareholding of
more than 5% was subject to investigation by competent authorities, enforcement actions by judiciary
authorities or disciplinary departments, or brought before relevant judiciary authorities or being investigated
for criminal responsibilities, investigations or administrative punishments by the CSRC, prohibited against
entry into or being identified as an inappropriate person for the securities markets, or is the subject of any
material administrative punishments imposed by other administrative authorities or public reprimands by
any stock exchange.
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INTEGRITY OF THE BANK AND ITS CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND DE
FACTO CONTROLLERS

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Bank had no controlling Shareholders or de facto controllers.
During the Reporting Period, the Bank and its biggest Shareholder had no failure to execute an effective
court judgment, or any large amount of due outstanding debts.

In 2017, Henan Zhipeng Real Estate Co., Ltd. (A EEIEE ZBR A7), as the plaintiff, filed a civil lawsuit
in the court against the former legal representative of Henan Guoyuan Auction Co., Ltd. (A& RRHE
BIRA7F]) (already deregistered), other relevant parties and the Bank as defendants, requesting the court
to confirm that the auction of the creditor’s rights over a certain loan owned by the Bank conducted by
Henan Guoyuan Auction Co., Ltd. as entrusted by the Bank from March to April 2011 should be invalid,
and filed claims, among others things, for the return by the Bank of the transaction price of RMB26
million paid by the plaintiff for its participation in and successful bid at the auction. After the hearing
by Zhengzhou Municipal Intermediate People’s Court of First Instance and by Henan Provincial Higher
People’s Court of Second Instance, the two courts determined that the aforesaid auction was invalid on
the ground, among other things, that the auction company’s auction procedures were in violation of the
relevant regulations, and ruled that the Bank should return the auction money of RMB26 million and bear
a portion of the case’s fees, and that Henan Zhipeng Real Estate Co., Ltd. should return the creditor’s
rights certificate involved in the auction to the Bank. In this regard, the Bank has filed a petition for a
retrial with the Supreme People’s Court, enforced the judgment by returning the auction money and borne
a portion of the case’s fees. The Supreme People’s Court accepted the case in July 2020 and ruled for
a retrial in September 2020. Henan Provincial Higher People’s Court heard the case in March 2021. No
judgement was available yet as at the latest practicable date. The Court of First Instance and the Court
of Second Instance in this case have confirmed in their written judgments that the Bank was not at fault
during the auction procedures. The dispute over the auction contract is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Bank’s profits for the current or subsequent periods.

OCCUPATION OF CAPITAL BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER AND ITS
RELATED PARTIES OF THE BANK FOR NON-OPERATING PURPOSES

There was no occupation of capital of the Bank by the controlling Shareholder and its related parties for
non-operating purposes.
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SPECIAL STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT OPINION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ON EXTERNAL GUARANTEES OF THE BANK
AND CAPITAL OCCUPATION BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER RELATED PARTIES OF THE BANK

Guarantee business is one of the regular banking businesses of the Bank, which is approved by the
PBoC and CBIRC. The Bank attached great importance to the risk management of this business, strictly
implemented relevant operation processes and approval procedures and effectively controlled the risk of
external guarantee business. During the Reporting Period, the Bank meticulously implemented the relevant
requirements of notice Zhengjianfa [2003] No.56 issued by the CSRC and had no unlawful guarantees.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, there was no capital occupation by the controlling Shareholder or
other related parties of the Bank.

IMPLEMENTATIONS OF SHARE OPTION SCHEME, EMPLOYEE SHARE
OWNERSHIP SCHEME OR OTHER EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE MEASURES

During the Reporting Period, the Bank did not implement any form of share option scheme, employee
share ownership scheme or other employee incentive measures.

SUSPENSION IN TRADING OR DELISTING UPON DISCLOSURE OF THIS
REPORT

The Bank is not exposed to any risk of suspension in trading or delisting upon disclosure of this Report.
MATTERS RELATED TO BANKRUPTCY AND RESTRUCTURING

There was no matter related to bankruptcy or restructuring of the Bank during the Reporting Period.
AUDIT REVIEW

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 were prepared by the Bank according to
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises of the PRC and were audited by KPMG Huazhen LLP/

KPMG, respectively, which issued a standard unqualified audit report/independent auditor’'s report. The
Report was reviewed by the audit committee of the Board and the Board of Directors of the Bank.

EXPLANATION ON OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

During the Reporting Period, the Bank had no other significant events, other than those disclosed in this
Report, other announcements and circulars of the Bank.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE BANK’S SUBSIDIARIES

During the Reporting Period, the Bank’s subsidiaries had no significant events.
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CHAPTER XI INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.
(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC’) with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. (the “Bank”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 229 to 373, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSASs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

at amortised cost

Impairment of loans and receivables, finance lease receivables and financial investments measured

2(7).

Refer to note 18, 19(c) and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group uses the expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model to calculate the loss allowance in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standard 9
Financial Instruments (“IFRS 97).

The determination of loss allowances using the ECL
model is subject to a number of key parameters
and assumptions, including the identification of loss
stages, estimates of probability of default, loss given
default, exposures at default and discount rate,
adjustments for forward-looking information and
other adjustment factors. Management judgment is
involved in the selection of those parameters and the
application of the assumptions.

In particular, the determination of the loss allowances
is heavily dependent on the external macro
environment and the Group’s internal credit risk
management strategy. The expected credit losses
for corporate loans, finance lease receivables and
financial investments measured at amortised cost
are derived from estimates including the historical
losses, internal and external credit grading and other
adjustment factors. The expected credit losses for
personal loans are derived from estimates whereby
management takes into consideration historical
overdue data, the historical loss experience for
personal loans and other adjustment factors.

Our audit procedures to assess loss allowances of
loans and receivables, finance lease receivables and
financial investments measured at amortised cost
included the following:

o understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls of financial reporting
over the approval, recording and monitoring
of loans and receivables, finance lease
receivables and financial investments
measured at amortised cost, the credit grading
process and the measurement of provisions
for impairment;

° involving KPMG'’s financial risk specialists,
assessing the reliability of the expected
credit loss model used by management
in determining loss allowances, including
assessing the appropriateness of the key
parameters and assumptions in the expected
credit loss model, including the identification
of loss stages, probability of default, loss given
default, exposure at default, discount rate,
adjustments for forward-looking information
and other management adjustments,
and assessing the reasonableness of key
management judgement;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Impairment of loans and receivables, finance lease receivables and financial investments measured

at amortised cost (continued)

Refer to note 18, 19(c) and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note

2(7).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss given default based on a range of
factors. These include available remedies for recovery,
the financial situation of the borrower, the recoverable
amount of collateral, the seniority of the claim and
the existence and cooperativeness of other creditors.
The enforceability, timing and means of realisation of
collateral can also have an impact on the recoverable
amount of collateral and, therefore, the amount of
loss allowances as at the end of the reporting period.
The economic impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has
added the degree of estimation uncertainty relating to
the accounting estimates.

We identified the impairment of loans and advances
to customers, financial lease receivables and financial
investments measured at amortized cost as a key
audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty and
management judgment involved and because of its
significance to the financial results and capital of the
Group.

o assessing the completeness and accuracy
of data used for the key parameters in
the expected credit loss model. For key
parameters derived from internal data relating
to original loan agreements, we compared
the total balance of the loan and financial
investment list used by management to assess
the allowances for impairment with the general
ledger, selecting samples and comparing
individual loan and investment information with
the underlying agreements and other related
documentation to assess the accuracy of
compilation of the loan and investment list. For
key parameters derived from external data,
we selected samples to inspect the accuracy
of such data by comparing them with public
resources;

° for key parameters involving judgement,
critically assessing input parameters by
seeking evidence from external sources and
comparing to the Group’s internal records
including historical loss experience and type
of collateral. As part of these procedures,
we challenged management’s revisions
to estimates and input parameters and
considered the consistency of judgement.
We compared the forward-looking
economic factors used in the models to
market information to assess whether they
were aligned with market and economic
development, with a particular focus on the
economic impact of COVID-19 pandemic;

° for key parameters which were derived from
system-generated internal data, assessing
the accuracy of input data by comparing
the input data with original documents on
a sample basis. In addition, we involved
our IT specialists to assess the logics and
compilation of the overdue information of loans
and advances to customers;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment of loans and receivables, finance lease receivables and financial investments measured
at amortised cost (continued)

Refer to note 18, 19(c) and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note
2(7).

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

° evaluating the validity of management’s
assessment on whether the credit risk of
the loans and receivables, finance lease
receivables and financial investments
measured at amortised cost has, or has not,
increased significantly since initial recognition
and whether the loan is credit-impaired
by selecting samples in industries more
vulnerable to the current economic situation
with reference to other borrowers with
potential credit risk and checking the overdue
information of loans and receivables, finance
lease receivables and financial investments
measured at amortised cost, making enquiries
of the credit managers about the borrowers’
business operations, checking borrowers’
financial information and researching market
information about borrowers’ businesses;

° for selected samples of loans and receivables,
finance lease receivables and financial
investments measured at amortised cost
that are credit-impaired, assessing the
reasonableness of loss given default. We
also evaluated management’s assessment of
the value of collaterals and the forecast cash
flows, evaluated the viability of the Group’s
recovery plans, compared market price of
collaterals with management’s assessment of
the value. We also evaluated the timing and
means of realisation of collateral and evaluated
other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contract terms;

. recalculating the amount of credit loss
allowance using the expected credit loss
model for samples of loans and receivables,
finance lease receivables and financial
investments measured at amortised cost, to
verify the calculation accuracy of the credit
loss allowance; and

o assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures on impairment of loans and
receivables, finance lease receivables and
financial investments measured at amortised
cost against prevailing accounting standards.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Fair value of financial instruments

2(7).

Refer to note 19(a), 19(b) and 41 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Financial instruments carried at fair value account for
a significant part of the Group’s assets. The effect
of fair value adjustments of financial instruments
may impact either the profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

The valuation of the Group’s financial instruments,
held at fair value, is based on a combination of
market data and valuation models which often
require a considerable number of inputs. Many of
these inputs are obtained from readily available
data. For level 1 and level 2 financial instruments in
the fair value hierarchy, the inputs used in valuation
techniques are quoted market prices and observable
inputs, respectively. Where one or more significant
inputs are unobservable in the valuation techniques,
as in the case of level 3 financial instruments, then
estimates need to be developed which can involve
significant management judgement.

The Group has developed its own models to value
certain level 2 and level 3 financial instruments, which
also involve significant management judgement.

Global economic uncertainty influenced movements
in market rates including interest rates and foreign
exchange rates. Increased market volatility resulted
in greater ranges of values in management’s
assessment of the valuation of financial instruments
held.

We identified assessing the fair value of financial
instruments as a key audit matter because of the
degree of complexity involved in valuing certain
financial instruments and because of the degree of
judgement exercised by management in determining
the inputs used in the valuation models.

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of
financial instruments included the following:

° assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over the valuation, independent
price verification, front office and back office
reconciliations and model approval for financial
instruments;

° assessing the level 1 fair values, on a sample
basis, by comparing the fair values applied by
the Group with publicly available market data;

° involving KPMG’s valuation specialists to
assess whether the valuation method selected
is appropriate, and assist us in performing
independent valuations, on a sample basis,
of level 2 and level 3 financial instruments
and comparing our valuations with the
Group’s valuations. Our procedures included
comparing management valuation with our
valuation method, developing parallel models,
obtaining inputs independently and verifying
the inputs; and

° assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures in relation to fair value of financial
instruments against prevailing accounting
standards.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Consolidation of structured entities

Refer to note 43 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2(4) and 2(19).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Structured entities are generally created to achieve
a narrow and well defined objective with restrictions
around their ongoing activities. The Group may
acquire or retain an ownership interest in, or act as
a sponsor to a structured entity through issuing a
wealth management product, or act as an investor
to a structured entity through investing in an asset
management plan, a trust plan or an asset-backed
security.

In determining whether a structured entity is required
to be consolidated by the Group, management is
required to consider the power it possesses, its
exposure to variable returns, and its ability to use its
power to affect returns. These factors are not purely
quantitative and need to be considered collectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
Group’s non-equity interests in structured entities
sponsored by third party institutions which were
not consolidated by the Group was RMB121,041
million whilst (31 December 2019: RMB138,949
million), the amounts of assets held by structured
entities sponsored by the Group which the Group
did not consolidate but in which it held an non-equity
interest was RMB49,054 million (31 December 2019:
RMB42,397 million).

We identified the consolidation of structured entities
as a key audit matter because it involves significant
management judgement to determine whether a
structured entity is required to be consolidated
by the Group or not and because the impact of
consolidating a structured entity on the consolidated
financial statements and relevant regulatory capital
requirements could be significant.

Our audit procedures to assess the consolidation of
structured entities included the following:

o Understanding and assessing the effectiveness
of design and implementation of key internal
controls over the consolidation of structured
entities;

° selecting significant structured entities of each
key product type and performing the following
procedures for each entity selected:

= inspecting the related contracts,
internal establishment documents and
information disclosed to the investors
to understand the purpose of the
establishment of the structured entity
and the involvement the Group has
with the structured entity and to assess
management’s judgement over whether
the Group has the ability to exercise
power over the structured entity;

= reviewing the risk and reward structure
of the structured entity including any
capital or return guarantee, provision
of liquidity support, commission paid
and distribution of the returns to
assess management’s judgement as to
exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the Group’s involvement in such
an entity;

- reviewing management’s analyses
of the structured entity including
qualitative analyses and calculations of
the magnitude and variability associated
with the Group’s economic interests
in the structured entity to assess
management’s judgement over the
Group’s ability to influence its own
returns from the structured entity; and

- assessing management’s judgement
over whether the structured entity
should be consolidated or not; and

° assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in relation to structured entities
against prevailing accounting standards.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Pang Shing Chor Eric.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2019

Interest income 23,893,143 21,591,827
Interest expense (12,653,981) (12,573,369)
Net interest income 3 11,239,162 9,018,458
Fee and commission income 1,936,601 1,722,569
Fee and commission expense (206,615) (147,140)
Net fee and commission income 4 1,729,986 1,575,429
Net trading gains 5 368,339 708,485
Net gains arising from investments 6 1,187,922 2,097,656
Other operating income 7 54,260 40,186
Operating income 14,579,669 13,440,214
Operating expenses 8 (3,417,780) (3,693,321)
Impairment losses on assets il (7,184,457) (5,796,660)
Operating profit 3,977,432 3,950,233
Share of profits of associates 21 35,035 55,793
Profit before taxation 4,012,467 4,006,026
Income tax expense 2 (691,596) (632,806)
Profit for the year 3,320,871 333220,
Net profit attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Bank 3,167,567 3,285,122
Non-controlling interests 153,304 88,098
3,320,871 33220

The notes on pages 237 to 373 form part of these financial reports.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2019

Profit for the year 3,320,871 S22 0)
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income net of tax attributable to equity
shareholders of the Bank
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
— Change in fair value/credit losses from debt investments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (795,269) 58,473
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
— Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (14,529) (1,932)
Non-controlling interests 12 (558)
Other comprehensive income netoftax ~ =~ = -~ -~ =~ IESSSEEEEE . - 59,983
Total comprehensive income 2,511,085 3,429,203
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Bank 2,357,769 3,341,663
Non-controlling interests 153,316 87,540
2,511,085 3,429,203
Basic and diluted earnings per share (restated for comparative period)
(in RMB) i) 0.41 0.43

The notes on pages 237 to 373 form part of these financial reports.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. 230



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

31 December

31 December

Note 2020 2019
Assets
Cash and deposits with central bank 14 36,492,083 38,465,676
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 1) 2,357,591 1,930,394
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 16 3,083,574 2,784,681
Derivative financial assets 28 362,970 94,602
Financial assets held under resale agreements 17 8,585,647 2,998,744
Loans and advances to customers 18 231,250,013 189,266,541
Financial investments:
Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss 19 46,463,308 55,062,294
Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income 19 21,983,430 15531560
Financial investments measured at amortised cost 19 164,230,569 173,168,422
Finance lease receivables 20 22,565,825 12,501,697
Interest in associates 21 400,250 376,874
Property and equipment 22 2,686,802 2,372,354
Deferred tax assets 23 3,718,962 2,834,990
Other assets 24 3,632,420 2,869,248
Total assets 547,813,444 500,478,127
Liabilities
Due to central bank 245 25,966,645 9,954,864
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 26 20,210,404 18,906,118
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 2Tk 20,467,593 14,113,018
Derivative financial liabilities 28 - 4,944
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 29 21,303,430 16,3853
Deposits from customers 30 316,512,735 292,125,786
Tax payable 653,304 745,840
Debt securities issued Sil 93,164,057 105,245,667
Other liabilities 32 3,563,355 3,104,531
Total liabilities 501,841,523 460,586,505

The notes on pages 237 to 373 form part of these financial reports.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
at 31 December 2020 (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
RRRO YT 31 December
Note 2020 2019
Equity

Share capital 33 7,514,125 5,921,932

Other equity instruments
Include: preference shares 36 7,825,508 7,825,508
Capital reserve 34 8,203,903 5510356.55!
Surplus reserve 34 2,976,573 2,675,548
General reserve 34 7,078,451 6,619,553
Fair value reserve 34 (698,206) 97,063
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability 34 (60,953) (46,424)
Retained earnings 3D, 11,655,496 10,333,487
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 44,494,897 38,590,322
Non-controlling interests 1,477,024 1,301,300
Ot A e S e ook S AN R e i ot i O B L
Total liabilities and equity 547,813,444 500,478,127

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2021.

Wang Tianyu
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Executive Director

Shen Xueging
President
Executive Director

Gao Chenxin
General Manager of the Planning and
Finance Department

Fu Chungiao
Chief accountant

(Company chop)

The notes on pages 237 to 373 form part of these financial reports.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2020

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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Equity

Consolidated Statement of Changes in

for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 4,012,467 4,006,026

Adjustments for:

Impairment losses on assets 7,184,457 5,796,660
Depreciation and amortisation 439,534 474,790
Unrealised foreign exchange losses/(gains) 434,173 (290,466)
Net losses from disposal of long-term assets 638 2,758
Net trading gains of financial investments at fair value through profit or loss (201,983) (133,694)
Net gains arising from investments (1,187,922) (2,097,656)
Share of profits of associates (35,035) (55,793)
Interest expense on debt securities issued 2,841,648 3,465,530
Interest income on financial investments (9,634,456) (9,640,255)

3,853,521 1,527,900

Changes in operating assets

Net decrease in deposits with central bank 2,872,095 328825
Net decrease in deposits and placements with banks and other financial

institutions 203,448 345,187
Net (increase)/decrease in financial investments at fair value through profit

or loss (5,322,103) 6,200,598
Net increase in loans and advances to customers (47,053,934) (39,721,461)
Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets held under resale agreements (5,586,004) 451,046
Net (increase)/decrease in finance lease receivables (10,166,372) 1,029,973
Net increase in other operating assets (733,601) (899,875)

(65,786,471) (28,716,707)

Changes in operating liabilities

Net increase in amounts due to central bank 15,879,850 5,718,800
Net increase/(decrease) in deposits and placements from banks and other

financial institutions 7,576,103 (7,818,114)
Net increase/(decrease) in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 4,915,671 (2,565,857)
Net increase in deposits from customers 25,013,560 25,085,926
Net (decrease)/increase in other operating liabilities (1,183,030) A28 22

52,202,154 20,549,477

Cash used in operations (9,730,796) (6,639,330)
Income tax paid (1,448,513) (1,211,473)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (11,179,309) (7,850,803)

The notes on pages 237 to 373 form part of these financial reports.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2019

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal and redemption of investments 280,857,069 116,606,924
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment and other assets 497 4,762
Payments on acquisition of investments (271,236,204) (130,508,275)
Payments on increased share of associates (20,580) -
Dividends and interest received 15,464,507 11,286,763
Payments on acquisition of property and equipment and other assets (451,442) (908,738)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) investing activities 24,613,847 (3,518,564)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds received from issuance of Private A-share 4,632,441 -
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests 24,500 -
Proceeds received from debt securities issued 115,922,786 124,738,282
Repayment of debt securities issued (127,590,149) (113,140,978)
Interest paid on debt securities issued (3,255,895) (3,466,185)
Dividends paid (1,087,926) (1,396,879)
Cash flows from other financing activities (123,095) (147,366)

e e I E B L U R TR G WP R P s Ty .. L
hetincroase/decreasglin cashand ca ety o o I~ (2302
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 17,766,563 2,25 525 =1514;
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents (123,711) 27,942
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 37(a) 19,600,052 17,766,563
Net cash flows generated from operating activities include:
Interest received 14,376,949 13,769,703

Interest paid

(10,185,543)

(10,096,248)

The notes on pages 237 to 373 form part of these financial reports.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1

237

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd., formerly known as City Commercial Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd., is a
joint-stock commercial bank established with the approval of the People’s Bank of China (the “PBoC”) in
accordance with the notice of JiyinFu [2000] No. 64. The Bank changed its name to Bank of Zhengzhou
Co., Ltd. in October 2009. The registered address is No.22 Business Waihuan Road, Zhengdong New
District, Zhengzhou City, Henan Province. The Bank operates in Henan Province of the PRC.

The Bank obtained its financial institution license No. B1036H241010001 from the former China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“the former CBRC”), and obtained its business license No. 410000100052554
from the State Administration for Industry and Commerce of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The Bank is regulated by the China Banking Insurance Regulatory Commission (the “CBIRC”) authorized
by the State Council.

In December 2015, the Bank’s H-shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock code: 06196). In September 2018, the Bank’s A-share was listed on the SME Board
of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 002936).

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) includes taking deposits
from the public; extending short-term, medium-term and long-term loans; effecting domestic settlements;
accepting and discounting bills; issuing financial bonds; acting as the issuing agent, cashing agent and
the underwriting of government bonds; trading government bonds; engaging in interbank borrowings;
financial leasing; offering guarantees; providing safe-deposit box service; collecting and making payments
as agent and acting as insurance agent; accepting entrusted loans and other businesses approved by the
banking regulatory authorities under the State Council.

For subsidiaries of the Bank, refer to Note 21 for more information.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual IFRSs,
International Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(2) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 comprise the Bank
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(2)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgement about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future years if the revision affects both
current and future years.

Judgements that have a significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainly are discussed in Note 2(25).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical basis,
except for financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, or derivative financial instruments (see Note 2(7)) are stated at their fair

value as explained in the accounting policies.

The financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand, which is the
functional currency of the Group.

Change in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB to these financial
statements for the current accounting year:

° Amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of a Business

o Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior years have been prepared or presented in this financial report. The

Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2

239

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(4)

Consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based on control and the consolidated financial
statements comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries. Control exists when the investor has all of
following: power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered. The financial position, financial performance and cash flows of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet within
shareholders’ equity. Net profit or loss attributable to non-controlling shareholders is presented
separately in the consolidated income statement below the net profit line item. Comprehensive
income attributable to non-controlling shareholders is presented separately in the consolidated
income statement below the total comprehensive income line item. When the amount of loss for
the current period attributable to the non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds the
non-controlling shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of owners’ equity of the subsidiary,
the excess is still allocated against the non-controlling interests.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of a subsidiary are different from those of
the Bank, the Bank makes necessary adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary
based on the Bank’s own accounting period or accounting policies. Intra-group balances and
transactions, and any unrealised profit or loss arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
when preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, unless they represent impairment
losses that are recognised in the financial statements.

Translation of foreign currencies

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from investors, the capital is translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate ruling at the date of receipt. Other foreign currency
transactions are, on initial recognition, translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates or the
rates that approximate the spot exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

A spot exchange rate is quoted by the PBoC, the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, or
a cross rate determined based on quoted exchange rates. A rate that approximates the spot
exchange rate is determined by a systematic and rational method, normally the average exchange
rate of the current period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange
rate at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are generally recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are
translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the transaction date. Non-monetary items that
are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the date
the fair value is determined. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss,
except for the differences arising from the re-translation of financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, non-restricted balances with central bank,
short-term deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions, and highly liquid
short-term investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial instruments

() Recognition and initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value. For financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, any related directly attributable transaction
costs are charged to profit or loss; for other categories of financial assets and financial liabilities,
any related directly attributable transaction costs are included in their initial costs.
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Classification of financial assets
The Group classifies financial assets into different categories upon initial recognition based
on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow

characteristics of financial assets:

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost, including loans and advances to
customers and financial investments measured at amortised cost;

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI”), including
loans and advances to customers at FVOCI and financial investments at FVOCI; and

= Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(7) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets may not be reclassified after initial recognition unless the Group changes
the business model for managing the financial assets, in which case, all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period after the business model
changes.

Financial assets not designated as FVTPL that meet the following conditions are classified
as financial assets measured at amortised cost:

- The purpose of the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets is to
receive contractual cash flows;

- The contractual terms of the financial assets stipulate that the cash flows generated
on specific dates are only for payment of the principal and the interest based on the
amount of principal outstanding.

The Group classifies financial assets not designated as FVTPL that meet the following
conditions as financial assets at FVOCI:

- The purpose of the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets is to
receive contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets;

- The contractual terms of the financial assets stipulate that the cash flows generated
on specific dates are only for payment of the principal and the interest based on the
amount of principal outstanding.

For equity investment not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably designate it as
financial asset at FVOCI upon initial recognition. The designation is made on an individual
basis and the investment is in line with the definition of the equity instrument from the
issuer’s perspective.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(7) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)

Classification of financial assets (Continued)

Except for the above-mentioned financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and
at FVOCI, the Group classifies all other financial assets into financial assets at FVTPL. At
the time of initial recognition, if the accounting mismatch can be eliminated or significantly
reduced, the Group can irrevocably designate financial assets that should be measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as financial assets at FVTPL.

The business model for managing financial assets refers to how the Group manages
financial assets to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether the sources
of cash flows for financial assets managed by the Group is contractual cash flows, the sale
of financial assets or both. The Group determines the business model for managing financial
assets based on objective facts and specific business objectives for the management of
financial assets as determined by key management personnel.

The Group assesses the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets to
determine whether the contractual cash flows generated by the relevant financial assets on
specific dates are solely for payment of the principal and the interest based on the amount
of principal outstanding. Of which, the principal is the fair value of the financial assets at
initial recognition; the interest includes the time value of money, the credit risk associated
with the outstanding principal amount for a specific period, and the consideration of other
basic borrowing risks, costs and profits. In addition, the Group assesses the contractual
terms that may result in a change in the time distribution or amount of contractual cash
flows generated by the financial assets to determine whether they meets the requirements of
the above contractual cash flow characteristics.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(7)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial investments at FVTPL

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets are measured at fair value, and
the resulting gains or losses (including interest and dividend income) are included in
profit or loss, unless the financial asset is part of a hedging relationship.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses arising from financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost and are not a component of any hedges are
recognised in profit or loss at the time of derecognition and reclassification and
amortisation using the effective interest method or recognition of impairment.

Debt securities at FVOCI

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets are measured at fair value.
Interest calculated using the effective interest method, impairment losses or gains
and exchange gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss, and other gains or
losses are included in other comprehensive income. At the time of derecognition, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets are measured at fair value.
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss; other gains or losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income. At the time of derecognition, the cumulative gains or
losses previously included in other comprehensive income are transferred to retained
earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(7) Financial instruments (Continued)
(iif) Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

The Group classifies financial liabilities into financial liabilities at FVTPL, financial guarantee
contract liabilities, and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost.

- Financial liabilities at FVTPL

The financial liabilities includes trading financial liabilities and financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial liabilities are measured at fair value.
Any resulting gains or losses (including interest expenses), unless related to hedge
accounting, are recognised in profit or loss.

- Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contracts refer to contracts that require the Group to make
specified payments to reimburse the contract holder for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or revised terms of a debt instrument.

The financial guarantee contract liabilities is subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount of a provision determined in accordance with the principles
for impairment of financial instruments and the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation (see Note 2(7)(v)).

- Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Annual Report 2020 | Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. 244




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(7) Financial instruments (Continued)
(iv) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in financial instruments are treated as separate derivatives
when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the hybrid instrument is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These

embedded derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised directly in profit or loss.

For less complex derivative products, the fair values are principally determined by valuation
models which are commonly used by market participants. Inputs to valuation models are
determined from observable market data wherever possible, including foreign exchange spot
and forward rates and interest rate yield curves. For more complex derivative products, the
fair values are mainly determined by quoted prices from dealers.

v) Impairment
The Group recognises provision for expected credit loss (‘ECL”) on:
- Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
- Debt securities at FVOCI;
- Finance lease receivables;
= Credit commitments.
Other financial assets measured at fair value, including financial assets at FVTPL, equity

investments designated at FVOCI and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(7) Financial instruments (Continued)

v)

Impairment (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

Expected credit loss is a weighted average of credit losses on financial instruments weighted
at the risk of default. ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
(including extension options) over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible def